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ABOUT SAZGAR 
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited “The Company”

 

was incorporated in Pakistan on September 

21, 1991 as a Private Limited Company and converted into a Public Limited Company on 

November 21, 1994.
 

The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. 
 

The Company is specialized
 
in the manufacturing and sale

 
of high-quality four-wheel 

passenger
 

and off-road
 

vehicles, thee-wheelers,
 

automotive parts. The Company has signed 

technical & cooperation agreements with two Chinese automobile groups - Beijing 

Automotive Group Company Ltd. (BAIC) and Great Wall Motor Company Ltd. (GWM) for the 

manufacturing / assembly of four wheelers.  

Sazgar is renowned for its commitment to quality and innovation. The Company has also 

honored to introduce the rst-ever locally assembled Hybrid Electric Vehicle (HEV) and pure 

Electric
 

Vehicles (EVs) in Pakistan. With a commitment to enhancing mobility solutions and 

contributing to the automotive industry, the Company
 

operates state-of-the-art 

manufacturing facilities equipped with advanced technology and stringent quality control 

measures.
 

Company offers the products under the name of the following brands. Detail of our products 

is available on our corporate website www.sazgarautos.com

 

and further in this report.
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PROFILE OF BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS  
  

 

 

 

Mian Asad Hameed is Chief Executive Ofcer of the Company. He has qualied from USA and 
represents as a board member since the inception of the Company. He has played an 
instrumental role in the establishment and progress of the Company. He has a diversied 
experience of running and managing the affairs of the company. He possessed great 
leadership qualities. 

He started his career as an assistant area manager of Burma shell in 1980. He joined M/S Ciba 
Enterprises (Private) Limited in 1984 as a director and later on in 1986 appointed as Chief 
Executive of the company and enjoyed this position up to 2008.  He brought with him a wealth 
of rich experience in research, development and management of business. 

In Sazgar he has been personally involved in the development of wheel rims die’s, production 
machinery, development & design of Mini cab three-wheel rickshaw. He has thorough and in-
depth knowledge of automobile market in Pakistan and the surrounding region. He has 
successfully managed to market the auto rickshaw all over Pakistan and export in countries 
like Afghanistan, Japan, and Tanzania etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed is a non-executive director and chairperson of the Company. She 
has an experience of more than 23 years as a board member of the Company. She has been 
playing a leadership role in conducting the affairs of the Board by ensuring that the Board is 
playing an effective role in fullling its responsibilities. She has a very innovative mind and 
diversied experience of administration, human resource and customers’ relationship.  

With a rich and diversied professional exposure and with a focus on innovation, Mrs. Saira has 
proved to be a very effective management resource with a demonstrated air for creating 
synergies. 

Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 

Chief Executive Ofcer / Director 

Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 

Chairperson and Non-Executive Director 

He has played a key role in the successful establishment and management of the four-wheeler 
project of the Company. Under his leadership, the project has achieved key milestones, 
including the introduction of high-tech hybrid electric vehicles (HEVs). His strategic vision has 
been critical in securing arrangements for sourcing key components, optimizing production 
processes, and expanding the company’s footprint in the competitive automotive market. His 
extensive knowledge of the automobile industry and his commitment to innovation have 
positioned the company as a key player in the automotive market in Pakistan.
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Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan is working as a Chief Operating Ofcer of the three-wheeler and 
automotive parts division of the Company. He is on Board of the Company since its inception. 
He is a graduate mechanical engineer and owns a working experience of more than 38 years 
from abroad and from well-known Pakistani automobile and engineering companies. He is 
looking after overall plant operations, quality control, research and development of the 
company. 

He has also played a pivotal role in the development of the Company's four-wheeler project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed is working as a Chief Operating Ofcer of the four-wheeler 
division of the Company. He is foreign qualied – MBA and a lateral thinker, young, energetic 
and having strong commitment to excel the Company. He is on Board of the company since 
2008. Previously during the period from March 2011 to March 2014, he was also heading the 
Sales & Marketing department of the Company, he was responsible for developing a 
distribution and sales network of the Company. His major achievements include developing 
cross provinces distribution networking for marketing, sales and after-sales services.  

He oversees and manages the company's operations, ensuring efciency across production, 
supply chain, and quality control. 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir is a Non-Executive Director of the Company. He is also serving on the 
Board of M/s. Power Vision System (Pvt.) Ltd. as director since September 2009, heading 
product and business development department. The Power Vision System (Pvt.) Ltd is engaged 
in the manufacturing of generators. He is also working as a Chief Executive / Director in M/s 
Pak Tractor Manufacturing Company Private Limited.  

He is a foreign qualied LLB Honors and MA Honors, attended various training of industry 
support program and CBI Export coaching programs. His major achievements include setting 
up of generator manufacturing Plant as per International Standards. 

 

 

Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 

Chief Operating Ofce  r  - Executive Director 

Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed  

Chief Operating Ofce  r  - Executive Director 

Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 

Non-Executive Director 
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Mrs. Sana Suleyman is a non-executive director of the Company. She is BSC Hons in Economics 
and Finance. She has also served as non-executive director of Sazgar Engineering Works 
Limited during the period from March 2011 to 2014. She is also serving on the board of Triquest 
(Pvt.) Ltd. as Director of the Company, the Company is engaged in Real Estate development 
business. She is a partner in Pakistan Outdoors, an organization which is involved in outdoor 
recreational activities within Pakistan. She is a partner in CMK Construction, a rm which is 
engaged in construction related activities both in private and public sector. She is also a 
managing partner of Al Hameed Industries and Agricultural farms, a rm which is engaged in 
cold storage, Ice factory, Oil Extraction unit and agricultural farming. She has a versatile 
experience of business administration and corporate strategies. 

 

 

 

 
He is serving on the board of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited as Independent Director with 
effect from February 17, 2022. After completing BSc (Hons) in Mathematics, Business 
Management and Finance from Queen Mary, University of London, UK, he obtained Master’s 
degree in Management of Development from University of Turin, Italy. He has rich working 
experience of more than 10 years in local as well as International Organizations as an Advisor 
in the eld of nancial, technical, business and organization development. He has been 
associated with the following organizations: 

 German International Cooperation (GIZ) – Lahore 
 Farani Taylor LLP – London 
 Moody International (Pvt) Limited – Lahore 
 American Refugee Committee (ARC) – Lahore 

 

 

 
 

He is serving on the board of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited as Independent Director. He 
holds MBA degree from Golden Gate University San Franciso – USA and owns a working 
experience of more than 26 years from abroad and from well-known Pakistani Banking 
Companies.  

He served at senior management positions in different banks and has attended different 
banking and professional training courses i.e., Commercial Banking from France, Advance 
Selling Skills from ANZ Training Centre, Pakistan, Treasury management from Switzerland, 
Management of Accounting Systems from ANZ Training Centre Pakistan, Credit and 
Accounting Management from ANZ Training Centre UK. He has depth and versatile knowledge 
and understanding of Pakistani and International Banking Industry. 

Mrs. Sana Suleyman 

Non-Executive Director 

Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed 

Independent Director 

Mr. Taha Mahmood 

Independent Director 
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He is serving on the board of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited as Independent Director. He 
holds a degree in MSc Financial Management & Corporate Accountability from Middlesex 
University, London. He has assigned the responsibility of Director Finance in his family-owned 
business M/S Ijaz Brothers and also served as Head of Finance and Corporate Accountability 
in M/S ACC Polymers.  

In 2017 he set up his own company by the name of M/S Anjum Chemical Company. The 
company is in the business of indenting industrial raw materials to various clients across Housing, 
Medical, Automotive and Appliance industries. He is expert in analyzing of customers decision 
making, international economic events evaluation, foreign exchange market, trade policies 
and geopolitical risks. 

 

Mr. Umair Ejaz 

Independent Director 
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BUSINESS  MODEL  
SAZGAR’s business model integrates diverse resources and strategic activities to drive sustainable growth and 

value creation. During the year, no signicant changes has been made to the Company’s business model.  
 

CAPITAL INPUTS  

Financial Capital  
 Equity  & Reserves: Rs. 23.7 billion 
 Long term Debt: Rs. 0.15 billion 

Manufactured Capital  
 02 advanced manufacturing facilities with state-of-the-art machineries. 
 Diversied product portfolio. 

Human Capital  

 Experienced leadership. 
 Workforce of 1,552 talented and motivated employees (FYE 2024-25). 
 Health & safety policies. 
 Diversity & inclusion. 

Intellectual Capital
 

 
Brand and corporate reputation.

 
 
Highly skilled and experienced professionals.

 
 
Advanced in-house ERP.

 
 
Membership with major associations and ISO certications.

 

Natural Capital
 

 
Adherence to Environmental Management System (ISO 14001).

 
 
Use of materials including water, natural gas etc. for business operations.

 
 
Commitment to efcient utilization of natural resources and investment in low 
carbon technology.

 

Social And 
Relationship Capital

 

 
Partnership with international suppliers.

 
 
Strong customer base.

 
 
Strong dealers’ network

 
across Pakistan.

 
 

Relationship of trust with stakeholders.
 

 

CSR initiatives.

 

 

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Governance 

Page 130 -144

Strategy And 
Resource Allocation 

Page 29 - 35

Future Outlook

Page 55 - 56

Performance & 
Impact 

Page 160 - 189 

Risks And 
Opportunities

Page 40 - 46

Research & 
Development

 

Manufacturing & 
Assembly  

Supply
 

Chain
 Management

 
Sales, Marketing

 

& 
After Sales support
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OUTPUTS  

 

 

 

 Four-Wheeler Vehicles

 

Three-Wheeler Vehicles

 

Wheel Rims

 Production

 

11,039 units

 

Production

 

24,700 units

 

Production

 

41,717 units

 Sales

 

10,889

 

units

 

Sales

 

25,786 units

 

Sales

 

42,622 units

 
For detailed segment results, refer to the Note 38

 

to the

 

Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year 

ended June 2025.

  

 
OUTCOMES 

Wealth generation 
and economic 

growth  

 Growth in revenue by 89% and net-prot by 106% as compare to the year 
2024.  

 Share price increased by 37% on June 30, 2025, compared with June 30, 
2024.  

 Contribution of Rs. 37.65 billion to the national exchequer. 

 
Dividends of Rs. 3.14

 
billion to shareholders.

 

 
Financial charges of Rs. 230.3

 
million to providers

 
of nance.

 

 
Contribution to economic resilience in the form of fuel savings via our 
electric and hybrid electric vehicles.

 

Employees

  

Salaries and other benets of Rs. 2.12

 

billion.

 

Community

  

CSR contribution of Rs. 31.5

 

million.

 

 

Trust based relationships with all stakeholders.

 

 

Satised customers through reliable mobility solutions, fuel efciency, and 
enhanced driving experience.

 

 

Improved brand reputation.

 

Environment

  

Plantation of trees

 

 

Increased Energy consumption.

 

 

Increased GHG emissions.

 

For more details refer to Sustainability Report 2025.
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VALUE CHAIN 

POSITIONING
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Finished goods, 

CKDs & other 

parts.
 

 

 

Inbound 

Logistics
 

 

 

SAZGAR Factory
 

Finished Four & 

Three Wheelers  

 

 

Finished Wheel 

Rims  

 

 

Outbound Logistics
 

 

 

 

Outbound Logistics
 

 

 

 
Dealers / Booking 

Agents

 

 

 End Consumers

 

HAVAL

 

 



HISTORY OF MAJOR EVENTS 
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GEOGRAPHICAL
PRESENCE
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At SAZGAR, we are committed to upholding the highest standards of integrity and ethical 

behavior in every aspect of our business. Our key principles and practices as detailed in our 

Code of Business Conduct, reecting our dedication to responsible and transparent operations 

are outlined below:

 Business Conduct

 
Conduct business with 
honesty and integrity.

 

Ethical Responsibility

 
Uphold high standards of 
ethical behavior and 
integrity in all business 
practices.

 

Shareholder Value

 
Act in a manner that 
protects and enhances 
shareholder value.

 
Reporting Concerns

 Report any ethical concerns 
or violations through 
appropriate channels.

 

Accuracy of Company 
Records

 Ensure the accuracy and 
completeness of company 
records and reports.

 

Government Compliance

 Adhere to all applicable 
government laws and 
regulations.

 

Communication
 

Maintain clear, honest, and 
respectful communication.

 

Anti-Corruption
 

Comply with anti-corruption 
laws and avoid engaging in 
corrupt practices. 

Condentiality and 
Proprietary Information

 
Safeguard proprietary and 
condential company 
information. 

Fair Competition  

Engage in fair competition 
and avoid anti-competitive 
practices.  

Competitive Information 

Avoid sharing or obtaining 
competitive information 
through unethical means. 

Conict of Interest 

Disclose and manage any 
potential conicts of interest. 

Quality and Market Conduct  

Commit to high-quality 
products and fair market 
practices.

 

Purchasing Practices 

Follow fair and transparent 
purchasing practices.

 

Customer Information 

Protect the condentiality 
and integrity of customer 
information.

 

Political Activities
 

Avoid using company 
resources for political 
activities.

 

Gifts and Entertainment
 

Follow company policies on 
giving and receiving gifts 
and entertainment.

 

Personal Relationships
 

Manage personal 
relationships to avoid 
conicts of interest in 
business dealings.

 

Harassment

 

Zero tolerance for 
harassment or discrimination 
in the workplace.

 

Health & Safety

 

Ensure a safe and healthy 
work environment for all 
employees.

 

Community Involvement

 

Engage in community 
activities that align with 
company values and ethics.

 

DE&I

 

Promote diversity, equity 
and inclusion at workplace.
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EXTERNAL ENVIRONEMNT 

ANALYSIS 
 

Signicant factors affecting the external environment 
 

and organization’s response
 

Political Factors
 

Government policies, regulations, and political stability have numerous 

effects on the company’s operations and
 

the performance of the overall 

automotive industry.
 
To address this, we actively monitor and adapt to 

regulatory changes and political developments. Our strategy includes 

compliance with local regulations and proactive engagement with 

policymakers to inuence favorable automotive policies. 
 

Economic Factors 
Economic factors such as exchange rates, ination, and interest rates 

inuence costs and consumer purchasing power. Our strategy to handle 
these economic issues includes strategic nancial management, including 

hedging against currency risks, managing debt prudently, and adjusting 

pricing strategies to reect economic conditions.  

Social Factors  
Consumer preferences, demographics, and lifestyle changes drive demand 

for automotive products. Social trends toward sustainability and innovation 

impact product development and offering. Our strategy includes deeply 

understanding consumer trends and preferences, investing in research and 

development to align with market demands, and offering products that meet 

evolving social and environmental expectations.  

Technological Factors 
Advances in automotive technology, such as electric vehicles and 

autonomous driving, inuence competitive dynamics and investment needs.
 

To address this, the strategic focus is on technology and innovation to stay 

competitive, R&D for new technologies and integrating advanced features 

into our vehicles to meet market demands and future trends.
 

Environmental Factors
 

Environmental regulations and sustainability concerns affect manufacturing 

processes and product offerings. Issues such as emissions and waste 

management are critical.
 
We adhere to environmental regulations and 

invest in sustainable practices. Our potential initiatives include ISO 

certications, reducing
 
emissions, shifting

 
towards renewable energy sources, 

and excessive plantations
 

.
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Porter’s Five 

Forces

Threat of New Entrants 
(Moderate)

High capital requirements

Favorable government 
policies to encourage new 

players.

Bargaining Power of 
Suppliers (Low)

Presence of multiple local 
suppliers and options to 

import.

Easy to switch suppliers.

Bargaining Power of Buyers 
(High)

Easy access to information 
and a growing array of 

options.

High price senstivity.

Threat of Substitutes 
(Moderate)

Used vehicles can affect new 

vehicle sales, particularly in 

economic downturn 

situations.

Industry Rivalry (High)

Intense competition among 
existing automotive players. 
This rivalry is heightened by 
price competition, product 

di�erentiation, and 
aggressive marketing 

strategies.

Legal Factors
 Compliance with local laws, including corporate & taxation laws, labor laws,

 nancial reporting standards, safety standards

 

etc.

 

are

 

essential.

 

We ensure 

compliance with all relevant legal requirements through regular audits and 

updates to our policies. Our legal team is dedicated to navigating the 

complex regulatory landscape to mitigate risks and protect our interests.
  

Effect of Seasonality on the Automotive Business 

The Company’s business does not experience any material seasonal effects that signicantly 

impact operations, demand, or nancial performance.  

Sales and production activities are consistent throughout the year, with no notable 

uctuations tied to specic seasonal factors. Consequently, the company's strategic planning, 

resource allocation, and operational management are carried out without any major 

adjustment for seasonality.
 

Competitive Landscape & Market Positioning
 

Porter’s Five Forces model has been used to identify and analyze the strength of competition

 

the automotive industry

.
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Analysis of Key Stakeholders

 
 

Key 
Stakeholders

 

Legitimate Needs and

 

Interests

 

Industry Trends

 

Company’s Strategic

 

Response

 Shareholders

 

/

 

Investors

 

Protability, growth, 
economic returns, new 

projects, transparent 
disclosures.

 

Variation in market 
dynamics, regulatory 
changes, focusing

 

on 
ESG.

 

Innovation and business 
development, effective 

governance and 
corporate reporting.

 

Banks

 

/

 

Lenders

 

Company’s nancial 
performance, new projects 

and compliance.

 

Auto-mobile

 

nancing

 
cap, credit risk, 

sustainable nancing 
aligned with ESG 
considerations.

 

Business sustainability, 
nancial stability and

 
providing transparent 
nancial information.

 

Suppliers
 

/
 Vendors

 

New business opportunities, 
timely payments, guidance 

on new material 
requirements, mutually 

benecial terms & 
conditions.

 

Focus on
 

localization
 and supply

 
chain 

resilience.
 

Continuous business 
development, effective 

training/guidance on new 
requirements.

 

Government & 
Regulators  

Compliance with laws and 
regulations.  

Carbon levies, policy 
on electried vehicles, 

ESG reporting. 

Compliance with all legal 
and regulatory 

requirements and 
contributing to the 

economy in terms of 
taxes/duties. 

Customers
 

Product specications and 
quality, product price, 
delivery time, after sale 

services.
 

Shift to electric 
mobility.

 

Continuous innovation, 
improving product quality, 

offering competitive 
pricing,

 
improved after 

sale services.
 

Dealers

 Business

 

continuity,

 

product 
quality

 

/ delivery, trainings, 
product knowledge and 

return on investment.

 

Extensive distribution

 

network supported by

 

strong after-sales

 

service.

 

Trainings for better 
customer experience at 
dealerships, improving 
product quality and 

delivery timelines, offering 
lucrative business terms.

 

Employees

 Remuneration and 
benets, responsibilities, 

trainings, health, safety & 
well-being and work-life 

balance.

 
Workforce upskilling, 

employee safety, and 
retention.

 

Compliance with

 

labour 
laws, competitive 
remuneration and 
packages, on job 

trainings, open 
communication channels, 

employees’ well-being 
initiatives.

 

Local 
Community

 
Employment opportunities, 

infrastructural 
development, education, 
health, clean water and 

other social issues

 
Expectations for 
environmental 
responsibility.

 
CSR initiatives focusing on 
health, education, hunger 

and creating job 
opportunities.
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TO

WS
Strong brand name in automotive
industry.

Strong reputation for high 
quality of products.

High-capacity 
modern production facility.

Experienced and professional 
workforce.

Not fully utilizing marketing 
opportunities

Expansion into international markets 
to enhance revenues.

Improved marketing and brand 
management can help increase 
customer base.

Introduction of new models/variants
with upgrade technology.

Continue to expand our local 
footprint via new dealerships.

Localization of imported parts.

Emerging competitors.

Supply chain challenges.

Political instability.

Economic conditions of the country and 
ination uctuations.

Frequent variations in laws & regulations 
and in-consistency in government policies.

Foreign exchange risk (devaluation of 
Pak rupee).
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STRATEGY & RESOURCE 

ALLOCATION 
 

Objectives and Strategies 

The strategic objectives are an integral part of a business that plays a pivotal role in the 

organization’s success. The Company’s objectives and strategies are mentioned below:
 

    

Objective Strategy Resources  

Allocated  KPIs  

HIGHER RETURNS TO THE 
STAKEHOLDERS 

Company aims for high 
returns through 
maximization of local 
sales, exploring export 
opportunities, and 
boosting brand 
awareness. 

_______________________ 

TIME HORIZON: 

 

 

PRIORITY:  

High 
 

 

ª Launch targeted marketing 
campaigns. 

ª Enhance dealer 
engagement. 

ª Explore and enter new 
regional markets. 

ª Introduction of new vehicles 
and new variants. 

ª Financial Capital  

ª Manufactured  

Capital  

ª Social and 
Relationship 
Capital  

ª Sales and 
protability growth.  

ª Market share.  

 

____________________  

KPIs stated will continue 
to be relevant in the 
future.  

MARKET LEADERSHIP 
Company aims to 
achieve market 
leadership in the 
automotive industry 
through quality / eco-
friendly products, 
innovation, exceptional 
customer service, and 
strategic market 
expansion. 
__________________ 
TIME HORIZON: 

Medium Term to 

 

 
PRIORITY:

 
High

 

ª Investment in research & 
development. 

ª Enhance product offerings 
like electried vehicles, to 
meet evolving customer 
needs. 

ª Improve customer service 
processes and support 
systems. 

ª Improve feedback 
mechanisms to address and 
exceed customer 
expectations. 

ª
 

Strengthen distribution and 
dealership networks.

 

ª Financial Capital  

ª Manufactured 
Capital  

ª Social and 
Relationship 
Capital  

ª Protability ratios.  
ª Market share.  

 

____________________  

KPIs stated will continue 
to be relevant in the 
future.  

Long Term 

 Short Term to
 Long Term
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Objective

 
Resources

 

Allocated

 
KPIs

 

COMPLIANCE WITH 
LAWS & REGULATIONS

 

Company aims to 
ensure full compliance 
with laws and 
regulations while 
upholding the highest 
ethical and

 
professional

 

standards.
 

_______________________
 

TIME HORIZON:
 

 

 

PRIORITY:
  

High 

ª

 

Regular monitoring to 
ensure that all regulatory 
requirements and best 
industry standards are 
complied with.

 

ª
 

internal and external audits 
to ensure adherence to 
legal requirements.

 

ª
 

Implement and enforce a 
code of ethics and 
professional conduct.

 

ª
 

Provide ongoing training for 
employees on ethical 
behavior and legal 
compliance.

 

ª Establish a transparent 
reporting system for ethical 
concerns and regulatory 
issues. 

ª

 
Human Capital

 

ª
 
Intellectual Capital

 

ª
 
Social and 
Relationship 
Capital

 

 

 

 

 

 

ª

 

Non-compliances 
and ethical 
concerns 
highlighted.

 

ª
 
Findings from 
internal and 
external audits 
related to 
compliance and 
ethics.

 

____________________
 

KPIs stated will continue 
to be relevant in the 
future.

 

 

 

TALENT EXCELLENCE 

Company aims to build 
and maintain a high-
quality, skilled workforce 
through effective 
recruitment, continuous 
training, and ensuring a 
safe and healthy work 
environment. 
_______________________ 

TIME HORIZON: 

 

 
PRIORITY:

 
High

 

 

ª Robust recruitment process 
to attract top talent. 

ª Utilization of multiple 
channels to reach potential 
candidates. 

ª Regular training programs 
on skills / knowledge 
enhancement and safety. 

ª Health and safety policies 
and procedures. 

ª Safety audits and provision 
of necessary safety 
equipment and resources. 

ª Financial Capital  

ª Human Capital  

ª  Workforce related 
ratios.  

ª  Number of 
workplace 
accidents.  

____________________  

KPIs stated will continue 
to be relevant in the 
future.  

SUSTAINABILITY / CSR
 

Company aims to 
contribute toward the 
sustainability of the 
society as a socially 
responsible company.

 __________________
 

TIME HORIZON:
 

 

 PRIORITY:

 High

 
 

 

ª
 

Promote energy efciency, 
waste reduction, and 
sustainable resource use in 
operations.

 ª
 

Support local communities 
through charitable 
initiatives, volunteering, and 
development programs.

 ª

 
Partner with local 
organizations and 
stakeholders to address 
community needs and 
challenges.

 ª

 

Adhere to ethical standards 
and practices in all business 
activities.

 ª

 

Sustainability reporting.

 

ª
 
Financial Capital

 
ª

 
Social and 
Relationship 
Capital

 
ª

 
Natural Capital

 

 

ª
 
Reduction in 
emissions, energy 
consumption, 
water usage and 
wastages.

 ª
 
Amount of 
nancial and in-
kind contributions 
for community 
uplifting.

 ª

 

Number of trees 
planted.

 ª

 

Annual 
sustainability 
reporting

 ____________________

 
KPIs stated will continue to 
be relevant in the future.

 

 

Strategy

 

    

 
 Short Term to
 Long Term

 

 Short Term to
 Long Term

 

 Short Term to
 Long Term
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Resource Allocation Plans to Implement 

Strategy 
To achieve strategic objectives, the organization formulates resource allocation plans that 

cover nancial resources, human resources and other key capitals. Allocating these resources 

to strategic initiatives ensures that business planning is fully integrated with short/medium/long-

term strategic priorities, thereby supporting sustainable growth and value creation. 
 

Key Resources & Capabilities, Providing 

Sustainable Competitive Advantage 
As a prominent automotive player in the country, SAZGAR is dedicated to fostering a culture 

of continuous improvement, sustainable competitiveness, and exceptional performance, all 

while upholding the highest ethical standards. The company is committed to monitoring its 

brand reputation and consistently ensuring customer satisfaction in order to maintain and 

enhance its competitive advantage over time. 

The company benets from a strong brand name within the automotive industry, established 

through a consistent reputation for delivering high-quality products. Its high-capacity modern 

production facilities enable efcient manufacturing processes, while skilled and professional 

workforce drives operational excellence and innovation.  

The diverse product portfolio caters to a broad range of customer needs, supported by a wide 

dealership network that enhances customer reach and effectively implements the brand 

positioning strategy. Continuous investments in state-of-the-art, sustainable, and efcient 

machinery underscore the company's commitment to technological advancement and 

environmental stewardship.  

Additionally, the experienced management team prociently addresses emerging challenges 

and fosters operational efciencies. Regular feedback from stakeholders, including 

employees, customers, and communities, is integral to assessing perceptions of ethical, 

professional, and environmental practices, and to identifying opportunities for ongoing 

improvement. This comprehensive set of resources and capabilities positions the company for 

sustained success and leadership in the automotive sector. 

Company’s Strategy on Market Development, 

Product & Service Development 
As the automotive industry evolves, our company is committed to leading through innovation 

and excellence. Our goal is to deliver superior products while fostering sustainable growth and 

exceptional customer experiences. The Company aims to widen-up both the local and global 

foot print with overall objective to expand the customer base and increase revenue without 

losing good customers and markets. The Company has prioritized the following strategies: 

ª Enhance the product offerings considering the technological advancements and the 

evolving needs of the customers. 

ª Offering customized vehicles tailored for international markets to better serve our 

overseas clientele. 

ª Opening new dealerships that enhances customer reach. 
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ª
 

Targeting new demographic segments such as younger, tech-savvy consumers or 

environmentally conscious buyers, which will boost the sales of electried vehicles.
 ª

 
Social media campaigns and TVCs.

 
Additionally, an efcient operational cycle is essential for successful market development

 
and 

product management. A streamlined value chain ensures optimal manufacturing and 

delivery processes, contributing to high levels of customer satisfaction. This efciency 

signicantly impacts the effectiveness of our market development strategy and product 

performance. By continually rening our products, we aim to sustain a competitive advantage 

and drive sustainable growth in both established and emerging markets.
 

 

Factors Affecting the Strategic Approach 

& Resource Allocation 
Following are some factors and their possible effect on the Company’s strategy and resource 

allocation plan:  

Factors  Effect on Company Strategy Effect on Resource Allocation 

Technological  
Changes  

Adapt strategies  to leverage 
tech-advancements for a 
competitive edge  in terms of 
enhancing product innovation, 
optimizing manufacturing 
processes, and improving 
customer experiences.  

Technological changes will impact 
Financial Capital due to the need for 
investments in new technologies and 
integration. This may also affect Human 
Capital, as skilled resources will be 
required to manage and implement 
these advancements. 

Sustainability  

reporting and 
challenges  

Embed sustainability goals into 
strategic planning.  

Complex regulatory 
requirements  for sustainable 
practices and comprehensive 
reporting.  

Neglecting sustainability can affect the 
Social and Relationship Capital, while 
investing in sustainability initiatives to 
meet regulatory standards will affect 
Financial Capital due to the associated 
costs. 

Promoting 
and enabling 
innovation

 

Adapt to emerging trends, 
market needs and technological 
advancements, thereby securing 
long-term growth and 
maintaining its competitive 
edge.

 

Innovation requires costs
 

for 
infrastructure and hiring specialized 
resources. Accordingly,

 
signicant 

budget might be allocated towards 
training and upskilling employees to 
foster a culture of innovation thus 
impacting the Financial and Human 
Capital.

 

Resource
 

Shortages
 Alternative sourcing and 

operational adjustments, thus 
impacting sales and protability 
targets of the Company.

 

Resource shortages may force the 
company to seek alternative suppliers 
(Social and Relationship Capital), thus 
impacting Financial Capital.
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Aligning Strategic Objectives with Vision & 

Mission
 The Company’s strategic objectives are closely aligned with its overarching vision and mission, 

driving our commitment to excellence and leadership in the automotive industry. Our vision of 

being dynamic, quality-conscious, and ever-progressive informs our goal to achieve market 

leadership by offering safe, economical, and environmentally friendly transportation solutions. 

This vision is supported by our mission to provide international-quality vehicles and

 

automotive 

wheel rims at competitive prices, fostering innovation, and delivering high returns to 

stakeholders. 

 
To achieve these objectives, we set our strategic

 

focus on maximizing local sales and exploring 

export opportunities, thereby expanding our market presence. We are dedicated to 

continuous improvement & innovation, maintaining the highest ethical and professional 

standards and ensuring compliance with laws
 
& regulations, while also building a skilled, high-

quality workforce through effective recruitment and continuous training. 
 

Our commitment to sustainability and social responsibility further reinforces our mission, 

contributing to both societal well-being and long-term growth. 

 

Signicant Plans & Decisions 
 

The Board of Directors
 

afrms that the Company remains committed to its strategic growth 

objectives. From time to time, the Company has diversied its business operations through 

expansions
 

and major capital expenditures. 
 

During the year
 

2023-24, the Board of Directors approved an expansion plan for the four-

wheeler manufacturing facility, along with the installation of a solar power system to support 

the local assembly of New Energy Vehicles. During the current year, the Company revised its 

expansion plan for the four-wheeler

 

facility. The key features of the revised plan are outlined 

in the Directors’ Report 2025

 

(page no. 50

 

of the Annual Report 2025).

 

In addition, the Board has decided to discontinue the Home Appliances business effective 

from September 01, 2025 after a comprehensive review of its nancial performance, market 

dynamics and long-term strategic objectives. The decision has been made in the best interest 

of the shareholders with a view to focusing the Company’s resources on its core businesses 

and more protable segments. All necessary regulatory requirements and contractual 

obligations relating to the discontinuation have been fullled without any disruption to 

employees, customer or stakeholders. Furthermore, the Company holds no material assets or 

liabilities pertaining to the segment of home appliance business.
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Liquidity Position
 

The liquidity position of the Company is on a solid foundation, and it has an adequate capital 

structure mainly supported by equity.
 

The Company is committed to a strong 

repayment practice
 

as the Company 

has never defaulted any payment 

against nancial institutions, vendors, 

Government agencies, etc. and the 

management is condent that the Company would not face any liquidity issues in the future.  

The decrease in long term nance  is mainly on account of repayment amounting to Rs. 192.9 

million during the FY 2024-25.  The Company has sufcient liquid resources in hand to meet its 

working capital requirement. The Company has effectively maintained its current ratio over 

the years, and its current ratio for FY 2024-25 is 1.97 (FY 2023-24 : 1.35). This depicts the 

performance of the management in achieving the targets set by the Board. The management 

ensures all necessary measures to manage the ratio at an optimum level.
 

The Company maintains strong business relationships with leading banks across the country 

and has access to adequate unutilized nancing facilities. Its nancial position remains stable, 

supported by sustainable growth. The Company carefully manages its gearing in line with 

business objectives and regularly monitors the debt-to-equity ratio to mitigate excessive debt 

exposure.

 

 
2025

 
2024
 

 
Rupees

 
Rupees

 
Equity

 
23,714,823,680

 
10,104,086,687

 

Long term Debt 151,892,963 344,773,075 
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I.T. GOVERNANCE, 
CYBERSECURITY 

AND ERP SOFTWARE  



I.T. GOVERNANCE, 
CYBERSECURITY  
AND ERP 
SOFTWARE

 

 Governance and Risk Oversight

 I.T. governance is an integral part of corporate governance framework. The Company’s data 

security and risk management oversight has always remained the top priority. 

 The Board of Directors

 

(BODs)

 

acknowledges its overall responsibility for the Company’s IT 

governance, including oversight of IT systems, internal controls, and the emerging use of 

articial intelligence (AI). The Board afrms its commitment to operational resilience by 

maintaining a comprehensive Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery

 

(BCDR)

 

Plan,

 

which 

sets out clear strategies and processes to minimize disruption, safeguard critical functions, and 

ensure timely recovery in the event of unforeseen incidents.
 

In addition, the Board of Directors has the responsibility to ensure
 

compliance of any legal and 

regulatory
 

requirements regarding data privacy and cyber-Security
 

applicable in Pakistan that 

apply to the Company.  
 

Management reports to the Board on the effectiveness of IT controls, cybersecurity resilience, 

and data governance practices. In the event of a cybersecurity breach, the Board ensures 

that the prompt and appropriate actions are taken by management to minimize the impact 

and safeguard the company’s information systems and assets. However, during the year, there 

were no cyber security breaches.  

The Board actively oversees the management of cybersecurity risks, making sure that the 

company’s policies and procedures are aligned with best practices for risk mitigation. Board is 

engaged in indirect risk oversight through the Risk Management Committee
 

of the Board and 

the Internal Audit function, to have an update on IT governance and cybersecurity
 

matters. 
 

The Board of Directors periodically monitors the Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) of the Company 

for the smooth functioning of the systems and servers, and for the prevention of any unforeseen 

event.
 

The IT department of the Company continuously strives to adopt best practices around the 

industry. IT-related risk

 

assessment

 

is conducted by the IT department, with concurrent 

involvement of the Internal Audit function to offer independent reviews and ensure 

consistency with the company’s risk management framework. IT and cybersecurity risks, along 

with their corresponding controls, are appropriately documented in the risk register.
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Company’s Early Warning System for Cybersecurity Risk

 The Company has established a dedicated and highly skilled information security team 

responsible for monitoring, detecting, and investigating potential cyber incidents, as well as 

implementing preventive and corrective measures against emerging threats. 

 During the year, no signicant or critical threats were identied. To further strengthen resilience, 

the Company has deployed specialized hardware and software solutions to mitigate risks, such 

as: Advanced rewalls, including Intrusion Prevention Systems (IPS) and Web Application 

Firewalls (WAF),

 

deployed at all network

 

entry points;

 

Critical servers are hosted within 

segregated and controlled environments to minimize exposure;

 

DNS security solutions are in 

place to mitigate all types of DNS-based attacks;
 

Multi-factor authentication (MFA) has been 

enabled for selected users and services to strengthen access security; Network Access Control 

(NAC) mechanisms are enforced to prevent unauthorized devices from connecting to the 

corporate network.
 

Disaster Recovery Plan  
Company  prioritizes the security and continuity of operations in the event of potential IT failures. 

A comprehensive disaster recovery plan is in place to minimize the nancial losses and to 

ensure swift and effective responses to such incidents.  

This plan outlines the processes  and strategies to follow in order to mitigate the impact of 

disruptions and to quickly restore critical systems and operations. This plan is made available 

to all relevant
 

persons to ensure continuity in the event of a loss of service or disaster.
 

Cyber Insurance
 

The Company has not encountered any cyber risk incidents to date. However, the Company 

intends to evaluate

 

the option of obtaining cyber insurance

 

in future,

 

with the aim

 

of

 

obtaining 

additional long-term protection against potential risks. Considering this, management will 

carefully assess the available policy options to ensure they provide robust safeguards and are 

fully aligned with the Company’s cybersecurity requirements.

 

Training and Education

 

The Company recognizes the critical role of education and training in mitigating cybersecurity 

risks. Timely and adequate trainings are provided to educate employees about cyber threats, 

promote cybersecurity awareness, and provide guidance on safe computing practices. These 

efforts inculcate signicance of cybersecurity throughout the organization.

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Policies and Procedures
 

A comprehensive set of policies and procedures have been developed to ensure the security 

of IT assets and data. These policies include but not limited to Network Security Policy, IT 

Operation Procedures, Data Back-Up and Restore Policy, Change Management Policy, 

Password Control Policy etc. The Company has established access protocols to manage 

access to all critical systems. Physical access is restricted through lock & key
 

system along with 

CCTV surveillance which monitors all premises to ensure that only authorized personnel can 

access sensitive areas.
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Our commitment to utilizing the ERP system to enhance our business processes, while upholding 

strong governance and security protocols, demonstrates our focus on operational excellence 

and our dedication to meeting the evolving needs of our organization and stakeholders.

 Integration
 The Board of Directors acknowledges the strategic importance of in-house developed 

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system, which is designed to effectively manage and 

integrate core business processes, including nance, human resources, supply chain, and 

inventory management, within a single platform.
 

Our ERP system consolidates various business functions, facilitating seamless data ow and 

collaboration across departments. This integration enhances operational efciency and 

provides real-time insights, enabling informed decision-making. 

Maintenance & Training  
Management in collaboration with IT department is actively involved continuous upgradation 
of the system, incorporating feedback and advancements in technology to maintain optimal 
performance.  

Regular trainings  are conducted for employees across functions to ensure effective system use 
and data accuracy. These initiatives strengthen user competency, enhance operational 
efciency, and support informed decision-making.

 

Risk Management
 

The Company adopts a proactive approach to risk management including the risks 
associated with ERP system. Regular risk assessments are conducted and relevant control 
measures are implemented to mitigate the likelihood and the potential impact.

 

The Company prioritizes system’s

 

security and the protection of sensitive data within the ERP 
system. Access to critical information is restricted based on user roles, and we maintain 
segregation of duties to reduce the risk of unauthorized access and enhance accountability.

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

ERP SOFTWARE  
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RISK 
AND 
OPPORTUNITIES 

 



RISK AND OPPORTUNITIES 
REPORT  

The Company is exposed to a large number of internal and external risks and opportunities. 

These can affect our ability to achieve strategic objectives and our ability to generate 

sustainable value for all stakeholders. The ultimate goal of risk management within SAZGAR is 

to continually assess the control environment to prevent and build strength against these 

internal or external risks.
 

Governance of Risk  

The board of directors has overall responsibility to establish and oversee the Company’s Risk 

Management framework. The board has established Risk Management Policies for the 

governance of risks and determination of Company’s level of risk tolerance. The board reviews 

annually to ensure that the management has maintained a sound system of risk identication, 

risk management and related internal controls to safeguard the assets, resources, reputation 

and interest of the company and shareholders. The system is subject to continuous monitoring 

for its further improvement.  

Risk Management Framework  

Our ERM framework is a comprehensive approach to managing risks that includes a structured 

process for identifying, assessing, and mitigating risks. This framework is integral to our corporate 

governance and is embedded in our strategic planning, operational processes, and decision-

making activities.
 

Company’s risk management framework
 
consists of following components that provide the 

foundations and organizational arrangements for risk management throughout the Company.
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Risk Management Culture
 

Committed to develop a risk management culture, where risk 
management is seen as integral to the achievement of the 

objectives at all levels and where all the employees are alert to 
risks, capable of an appropriate level of risk assessment and 

condent to report risks or opportunities perceived to be important 
to our priorities.

 

Setting objectives & criteria
 

Developing a set of objectives that are the key indicators for 
measuring the progress level of the Company and the criteria for 

the evaluation of the risk.
 

Dening the overall risk appetite that is aligned with the overall 
strategy, business model, and stakeholder expectations. It  guides 

the assessment of identied risks, helping to evaluate which risks are 
within acceptable limits and which require mitigation.  

Identication of Risk  
Identify and document in risk register, the potential risks that could 

affect the achievement of organizational objectives.  

Measurement of Risk  
Evaluate the identied risks based on their likelihood and potential 

impact.  

Mitigation of Risk  
Strategies are devised to treat the risks through which risks can be 

transferred, accepted, reduced or avoided.
 

Reporting and Monitoring
 

Periodical reporting of the key risks along with their mitigation 
measures to the Risk Management committee and to the Board.

 Continuous monitoring and review of the effectiveness of risk 
management procedure, risk mitigation measures, and 

compliance with risk management policy.

 

 

Detail of responsibilities and the methodology regarding the risk management has been 

outlined in the Risk Management policy, which has been placed on Company’s website.  
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KEY RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES 
The following are the principal risks and opportunities faced by the company:

 
 

Availability and Prices of Raw Material and CKDs.

 

Category:

 Operational Risk

 

Risk

 

Source:

 External

 Risk:

 The production of Company’s products including four 
wheelers, three wheelers and tractor wheel rims is 
dependent on the availability of imported raw 
materials and components, any hurdle in availability 
and volatility of its prices may have adverse effects.

  Further any failure or hurdle in local supply of critical 
parts of company’s products, which are procured from 
single source, may disturb the production of these 
products. 

 

Effect on Strategic Objectives:

 Dependence on imported raw materials 
and single-source suppliers can lead to 
production disruptions and increased 
input costs,

 
adversely affecting prot 

margins and nancial performance. This 
can hinder the ability to meet production 
targets, impacting growth objectives. 
Price volatility can strain budgets and 
reduce competitiveness, undermining 
strategic goals of innovation and market 
leadership.

 Form of Capital:
 

Financial Capital
 

Mitigation Strategy:
 

To avoid such kind of situation, company carries higher level of stocks of those parts and 
continuously monitor the supply chain and keeps close contact with the suppliers to solve any issue 
at an early stage.  

Opportunity:  

ª  Explore local sourcing options for raw materials and components to reduce reliance on imports 
and mitigate supply chain risks.  

ª  Develop strategic partnerships with multiple suppliers to ensure a stable supply of critical parts, 
enhancing resilience against price volatility and availability issues. 

ª  Invest in long-term contracts with suppliers to stabilize prices and secure reliable access to 
essential materials.  

  

Currency Devaluation  Category: 

Financial Risk 
Risk Source: 

External 

Risk:
 

Pak Rupee has shown some stability against foreign 
currencies during the current nancial year. Any 
material devaluation of Pak Rupee may deteriorate 
the protability of the Company and adversely affect 
the sales volume.  

 

Effect on Strategic Objectives:
 

Material devaluation of the Pak Rupee 
may affect the overall nancial stability. 
This can hinder the company’s ability to 
invest in growth initiatives and innovation, 
ultimately undermining strategic 
objectives of market expansion and 
competitive positioning.

 

Form of Capital:
 

Financial Capital
 

Mitigation Strategy:
 

The company has plans of availing the hedging and forward cover booking of foreign currency 
facility upon its availability (if it is feasible).

 

Opportunity:

 

Explore opportunity to enhance global footprint via exports, which could provide a natural hedge 
against currency uctuations. By synchronizing the currency proles of

 

expenses with revenues in 
international markets, the company can lessen the adverse effects of

 

Pak Rupee devaluation on 
protability.
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 Economic, Political and Law & Order conditions.

 

Category:

 

Strategic Risk

 

Risk

 

Source:

 

External

 
Risk:

 

Overall stable economic, political, law & order conditions in the 
country have a signicant inuence on the company’s success. 
Any instability may have adverse effects on the Company’s 
revenue and protability. 

 

Effect on Strategic Objectives:

 

This can hinder the company’s 
ability to invest in growth initiatives 
and innovation, ultimately 
undermining strategic objectives 
of market expansion and 
competitive positioning.

 

Form of Capital:

 

Social and Relationship Capital / Financial 
Capital

 Mitigation Strategy:

 We regularly monitor the potential impact of government’s political actions and economic instability 
on the Company as well as the automotive industry as a whole. 

 In addition, the

 

Company carries higher level of stocks of critical parts and continuously monitor the 
supply chain and keeps close contact with the suppliers to mitigate any negative impact at an 
early stage.

 

Opportunity:
 ª

 
Explore opportunities to diversify markets and operations.

 ª
 

Strengthen risk management strategies to adapt to potential economic or political instability, 
enhancing the company’s resilience.

 

 

 

Regulatory and Taxation Policy  
Category: 

Strategic Risk 

Risk Source: 

External 

Risk:
 

The automotive industry is subject to various governmental 
regulations. Any adverse and sudden change in the 
Governments’ taxation and regulatory policy may have 
considerable impact on the Company’s future business.

 

Effect on Strategic Objectives: 

This may lead to increased costs, 
hinder strategic planning, and 
impede growth objectives.

 

Form of Capital:

 

Social and Relationship Capital / Financial 
Capital

 

Mitigation Strategy:

 

The company believes in proactive engagement with policymakers to inuence favorable 
automotive policies. We regularly monitor the economic and legal impacts of government policies 
on the Company as well as the automotive industry as a whole. In addition, we have developed a 
team of qualied and experienced professionals to ensure compliance with all applicable laws, 
rules and regulations.

 

Opportunity:

 

ª

 

Investment in compliance capabilities to navigate changes effectively and minimize 
disruptions.

 

ª

 

Investment in innovative technologies to adapt quickly to new potential regulations.

 

ª

 

Explore new product offerings that align with evolving regulatory trends, such as electric 
vehicles or sustainable practices.
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 General Market Conditions

 

Category:

 

Strategic Risk

 

Risk

 

Source:

 

External

 
Risk:

 
The product range of the company is very successful and 
contributes to it in advantageous position compared with the 
competitors. Any aggressive pricing policy, introduction of new 
products and aggressive change in after sales policy by 
competitors may result in lower revenue, lower protability or 
lower market share of the company.

 

Effect on Strategic Objectives:

 
This may hinder the company’s 
growth objectives, weaken its 
competitive position, and limit 
resources available for innovation 
and expansion efforts.

 

Form of Capital:

 

Social and Relationship Capital / Financial 
Capital

 
Mitigation Strategy:

 The Company carries out continuous monitoring of competitors in order to recognize these risks at 
an early stage. Depending on the situation, product-specic and possible regionally different 
measures are taken to support the weaker markets.

 

Opportunity:
 

ª
 

Innovate and expand the product range to include new offerings that meet emerging 
consumer demands, potentially capturing additional market segments. 

ª  Improve after-sales services to retain existing customers and attract new ones. 
ª  Promote product differentiation by emphasizing unique features and quality to maintain 

competitive advantage despite aggressive pricing from competitors. 

 

 

Sudden break down of Plant & Equipment
 Category:

 

Operational Risk
 

Risk
 

Source:
 

Internal
 

Risk:
 

Any sudden break down of manufacturing plant and 
equipment may lead to stoppage of production and can 
create a risk in achieving the desired business targets. 

 

Effect on Strategic Objectives:
 

Such disruptions may negatively 
impact customer satisfaction, 
damage the company’s 
reputation, and limit the ability to 
meet market demand, ultimately 
hindering strategic growth and 
operational efciency.

 
Form of Capital:

 

Manufactured Capital / Financial Capital

 

Mitigation Strategy:

 

In order to secure and enhance the long-term future viability of production facilities, the equipment 
is continually maintained and modernized. 

 

The natural disasters are out of control of the Company. However, the Company takes appropriate 
precautionary measures, as far as possible, and also arrange insurance policies.

 

Opportunity:

 

ª

 

Improve contingency plans for rapid recovery and production continuity in the event of 
equipment failure.

 

ª

 

Employees training and explore options for external technical support for quick access to 
repairs and minimizing downtime.
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Financial Risks
 

The Company is also exposed to

 

various

 

financial risks

 

which have been stated in Note 35

 

to 

the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 2025.

 

 

Sustainability
 
Risks and Opportunities

 
Sustainability (including climate) related risks

 
and opportunities

 
have been disclosed in 

Sustainability Report 2025.
 

 

Other Uncertainties  
Key uncertainties faced by the Company include:

 

ª  Government’s new taxation and regulatory policies. 
ª  Volatility in prices of raw materials.  
ª  Fluctuations in Pak Rupee exchange rate. 
ª  Law and order situation in the country. 
ª  Energy supply disruptions.  

ª  Political and economic conditions.  

ª  Interest rate.  

ª  Ination.  

 

Risk of Supply Chain Disruption 

Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) factors encompass a wide range of issues, and 

their impact on supply chains can be signicant. Therefore, a comprehensive view of the entire 

process is essential for proactive approach. During the year, no major supply chain disruption 

incidents were noted.
 

The detail on the risk of supply chain disruption due to climate change and other ESG factors 

is outlined in the Sustainability Report 2025
 
on page # 152-156  

 
along with the short / medium / 

long term strategies and potential nancial implications.
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OVERSIGHT 
AND 
COMPLIANCE



CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW REPORT

This review report has been prepared in 
compliance with Section 192(4) of the 
Companies Act, 2017 on the overall 
performance of the Board of Directors (“the 
Board”) of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited 
(“the Company”) and effectiveness of the role 
played by the Board in achieving the 
Company’s objectives. 

The Board performance has been evaluated in 
accordance with the mechanism set by the 
Board for this purpose and overall results are 
satisfactory.  

The majority of economic indicators, for the 
financial year 2025, are reflecting an 
improvement in economic conditions of the 
country. The economy demonstrated a 
resilience and recovery during the year with the 
support of continuous reduction in SBP policy 
rate, exchange rate stability, significant decline 
in inflation, increase in exports, foreign 
remittances and forex reserves.  The Tax revenue 
collection, per capita income and investors’ 
confidence also increased significantly.  

The ongoing IMF programs- EFF of US$ 7 Billion 
and RSF of US$ 1.30 Billion are providing support 
for laying down foundation for sustainable and 
inclusive growth. 

The automotive sector showed a steady 
recovery in line with the economic stabilization 
which encouraged the auto assemblers to 
introduce new brands and models in different 
categories of powertrains-petrol, hybrid, plug in 
hybrid and electric vehicles. This has provided 
the wider choices to the customers.  

Sazgar remains committed to introduce New 
Energy Vehicles with advanced technologies 
and latest features at affordable prices. During 
the year, the company upgraded features of 
HAVAL H6 and Jolion which enhanced the 
performance of these vehicles. In addition to 
this, the company also honored to launch its first 
Plug in Hybrid vehicle (PHEV) of HAVAL H6 as on 
August 16, 2025. The company is consistently 
investing huge funds on the expansion of its 

manufacturing facilities to introduce more New 
Energy Vehicles (NEVs) in the period to come. 

During the year, four wheelers segment (other 
than tractors) witnessed 153,255 sales volume as 
compared to sales volume of 106,491 in 2024 
showing a surge of 43.94% (2024: decline of 
18.54%) whereas three wheelers segment has 
shown an impressive improvement of 65.57% 
(2024: 26.17%) and Tractor has shown a decline 
of 36.42% (2024: increase of 47.03%) in 
accordance with the sales data of PAMA 
(Pakistan Automotive Manufacturers Association.  

By the Grace of Al-mighty Allah, the Company 
has shown an excellent financial performance 
during the current financial year and has 
recorded a highest ever sales revenue of Rs. 
108.69 Billion (2024: Rs 57.64 Billion) and profit 
after tax of Rs. 16.34 Billion (2024: Rs 7.94 Billion). 
The increase in sales and profitability is due to 
the increase in demand of HAVAL SUV vehicles 
that played an instrumental role in achieving this 
milestone. 

The Board declared an interim cash dividend of 
Rs. 32.00 per share i.e. 320% and recommended 
a final cash dividend of Rs 20.00 per share i.e. 
200% making total of Rs 52.00 per share i.e. 520% 
for the year ending June 30, 2025. 

The Board has been constituted with a balance 
of executive, non-executive and independent 
directors with requisite skills, competencies, 
knowledge, experience and gender diversity 
with reference to the Company’s operations.  

The Board exercised all its powers in deciding the 
significant matters including acquisition of land 
of Rupees 1.54 Billion and  revision in expansion 
of four wheelers manufacturing facilities, revised 
estimated cost of Rupees 11.50 Billion (without 
cost of land) for the manufacturing of New 
Energy Vehicles and revised date of roll out of its 
CKD models of NEVs before the end of March 

31, 2026.   

Five (5) Board meetings were held during the 
year in timely manner and sufficient time was 
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spent by the Board to decide the matters. The 
directors actively participated in the process of 
decision making and provided their valuable 
contribution.  Board committees have functioned 
in accordance with their terms of reference 
diligently.   

The Board ensures that the vision, mission and 
overall corporate strategy of the Company has 
been prepared and adopted and adequate 
resources are arranged to achieve the desired 
business targets.  

The Board continuously monitors the 
performance of management as well as 
appropriateness of the financial accounting and 
reporting frame work  of the Company. The 
Board ensures that periodical and annual 
financial statements are prepared, reviewed 
and audited by the external auditors in timely 
manner.  

The Board ensures that the company is in 
compliance of its statutory obligations and good 
corporate governance practices. The Board also 
reviews and ensures that the system of risk 
identification, risk management and system of 
related internal controls is adequate and being 
implemented effectively with continuous 
monitoring.  

The Board has  approved policies for promoting 
DE&I and protection against harassment at the 
work place  so that everyone feels valued, 
respected and supported as well as protected 
from harassment, discrimination and bias. This will 

lead to increase the employment engagement, 
retention and business success.  

 

 

Sustainability considerations have become a 

significant factor influencing the Company’s 

financial performance and long-term success. 

The Board acknowledges that evolving 

regulatory requirements, climate-related risks, 

and changing consumer preferences present 

both challenges and opportunities. Recognizing 

these dynamics, the Board is highly committed 

to integrate sustainable practices into 

company’s strategies and core operations to 

mitigate risks and unlock growth potential. The 

Company’s ESG approach including CSR 

emphasizes reducing environmental impacts, 

fostering social wellbeing and upholding strong 

governance standards. 

I would like to place on record my appreciation 
for the untiring efforts, teamwork and dedication 
shown by the Company’s employees during the 
year under review.  

I would also like to express my gratitude to the 
valued shareholders, customers, suppliers and 
financial institutions for their continued support to 
the Company. 

 
 
 

Lahore      

August 29, 2025     
 
  

                
                                    Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 

              Chairperson 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
 

The directors of your company are pleased to 
present 34th

 
Annual Report along with the 

annual audited financial statements
 

of the 
Company for the year ended 30th

 
June 2025:

 

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES:  

The Company is principally engaged in the 
manufacturing and sale of automobiles 
including Four Wheelers and Three Wheelers, 
Tractor Wheel Rims and marketing of Home 
Appliances.  

THE PRODUCT PORTFOLIO:  

FOUR WHEELERS:  

The Company represents the  four  international 
leading Chinese brands, “HAVAL”, “BAIC”, 
“GWM TANK-500” AND “ORA”.  

HAVAL-H6 VEHICLES  (SUVs) CKD MODELS  

 Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEV) 1.5L  

 Petrol 2.0L Turbo  
 Petrol 1.5L Turbo  

HAVAL-JOLION VEHICLES  (SUVs) CKD MODELS  

 Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEV) 1.5L  

 Petrol 1.5L Turbo  

BAIC JEEP  BJ-40L CKD MODEL  

 Petrol 2.0L Turbo  

GWM TANK-500 HEV VEHICLES-  CBU MODEL  

 Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEV) 7-seaters 
with 2.0 L 4-cylinder petrol engine and 
seat massagers  

ORA EV VEHICLES-
 
CBU MODEL

 

 
ORA-3

 
 

ORA-7
 

 

 

THREE
 
WHEELERS:

 

The Company markets its
 

Three Wheelers
 

business under the brand “SAZGAR”.
 

This segment
 

offers both
 

petrol and
 

Electric 
Vehicles (EV) variants for passengers and 
cargo use, tailored to customer needs. 

The Company also exports three wheelers to 
international markets, including Japan. 

AUTOMOTIVE PARTS: 

In this segment, the Company manufactures 
Tractor Wheel Rims, supplying directly to 
Tractors Assemblers.  

 

HOME APPLIANCES: 

Home appliances are imported and marketed 
under brand “Whirlpool”.  

 

SIGNIFICANT DEVELOPMENTS DURING THE YEAR: 

The Company underwent through the 
following significant developments during the 
year: 
 

Revision in Expansion Plan- Four Wheelers 
Manufacturing Facilities: 

During the year, the Company revised its 
expansion plan of Four Wheelers as below: 

 Expansion of existing paint shop, 
construction of new warehousing facilities, 
installation of solar system of 5.7-megawatt 
and construction and installation of new 
manufacturing/ assembly facilities for the 
local assembly of New Energy Vehicles 
(NEVs)

 

 
Estimated cost of expansion (without land 
cost) has been revised from Rs. 4.50 Billion to 
Rs. 11.50 Billion.

 

 
Planned rollout of CKD model of New 
Energy Vehicle has been revised from 
December 31, 2025 to March 31, 2026.

 

 ª

 ª
 ª

ª

ª

 

 
ª

ª

ª
ª

ª

ª

ª
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Land Acquisition:  
 
The Company’s Board approved to acquire 
140 Kanal land of Rs 1,540.00 million adjacent 
to the existing Four-Wheelers project (car 
plant) from its own sources to support the 
future expansion. However, upto 30th June 
2025, the Company successfully acquired 120 
Kanal 19 Marla land for approximately Rs 
1,330.00 million. 
 
ISO Certifications:  
 
The Company achieved revalidation of the 
following ISO Certifications for its Four-Wheelers 
Project (Car Plant);  
 
ª ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management 

System,  
ª ISO 14001:2015 Environmental 

Management System & 
ª ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and 

Safety Management System. 
 
Credit Rating:  
 
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited 
revalidated the Company’s credit ratings: 

 Medium to long term: “A” 

 Short term: upgraded from “A2” to “A1”. 

 
Upgrading of features of HAVAL H6 and Jolion:  
 
The Company upgraded features of HAVAL H6 
and Jolion that enhanced the performance of 
these vehicles. 
 

THE ECONOMY: 

The economy demonstrated resilience and 
recovery during the year, supported by a sharp 
decline in inflation, reduction in policy rate, 
stability in exchange rates and prudent 
macroeconomic management. The current 
account recorded a surplus, driven by stronger 
exports, higher remittances and rising foreign 
exchange reserves. Tax Revenues and per 

capita income showed a significant 
improvement, while the Pakistan Stock 
Exchange recorded a bullish trend with a 
50.2% increase. 

The ongoing IMF programs- EFF of US $7 Billion 
and RSF of US$ 1.3 Billion with successful review 
and disbursement had laid down the 
foundation for strong, sustainable and inclusive 
growth.  

The detail of major economic indicators for the 
FY 2025 is given below: 

Description 
FY 2025 

July-May 

FY 2024 

July-May 
+á/-â 

GDP growth 2.68% 2.40% á 

Current 
Account 
Balance 
(Deficit)/Surplus 

US$ 1.81 
Billion 

(US$ 1.57) 
Billion 

á 

Trade Deficit  US$ 24.39 US$ 19.98 â 

Fiscal Deficit PKR 4.28 
Trillion 

PKR 5.24 
Trillion 

á 

Foreign 
Remittances 

US $ 34.89 US $ 27.10 á 

Imports  US$ 53.55 US$ 48.4 á 

Exports US$ 29.69 US$ 28.70 á 

Forex Reserves US$ 16.64 US$ 13.12 á 

Agricultural 
growth rate 

0.60% 6.30% â 

Large Scale 
Manufacturing(
contraction)/ 
growth  

(1.20)% 0.86% â 

Average 
inflation rate -
year 

4.50% 23.40% á 

ª

ª
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Description 
FY 2025 

July-May 

FY 2024 

July-May 
+á/-â 

FBR tax 
collection 

Pak Rs. 
11.74 
Trillion 

Pak Rs. 
9.30 

Trillion 

á 

Per Capita 
Income 

US$ 1,824 US$ 1,662 á 

(Source: Monthly Economic Update & Outlook, 
finance division of Government of Pakistan 
and State Bank of Pakistan)  

 

AUTO SECTOR OVERVIEW: 

The Auto Sector showed a steady recovery 
during the year, in line with economic 
stabilization. The Government of Pakistan’s 
continued focus on promoting New Energy 
Vehicles (NEVs), aimed at reducing the oil 
import dependency and fostering the 
environmentally sustainable future, has further 
strengthened the auto sector’s outlook.  

The Four-Wheelers (except tractors) and Three 
Wheelers segments responded positively to the 
favourable economic conditions, however, 
Tractor segment remained under pressure due 
to weak demand during the year. The vehicle 
prices largely remained stable due to the 
stability of Pak Rupee against foreign 
currencies. 

During the financial year, the car financing 
grew by 20% increasing from Rs. 230.5 Billion to 
Rs. 276.6 Billion compared with the 
corresponding period of last financial year. This 
rise was mainly attributed to reduction in SBP 
policy rate from 20.50% to 11% making auto 
financing more accessible. 

Considering the growing potential in auto 
sector, the auto assemblers introduced new 
brands and models across multiple 
powertrains- petrol, hybrid, plug in hybrid and 
pure electric vehicles. This diversification 
expanded the market size and provided 
customers with wider choices.  
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Sazgar remains firmly committed to introduce 
New Energy Vehicles (NEVs) in line with the 
Government policies and for this purpose, the 
Company has undertaken significant 
investment in new manufacturing facilities.  

During the year, four wheelers segment (other 
than tractors) witnessed 153,255 sales volume 
as compared to sales volume of 106,491 in 
2024 showing a surge of 43.94% (2024: decline 
of 18.53%) whereas three wheelers segment 
has shown an impressive improvement of 
65.57% (2024: 26.17%) and Tractor has shown a 
decline of 36.42% (2024: increase of 47.03%) in 
accordance with the sales data of PAMA 
(Pakistan Automotive Manufacturers 
Association).  

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company has shown an excellent 
performance, achieving its highest-ever sales 
and profitability during the current financial 
year. Summary of financial results is given 
below: 

 

FINANCIAL RESULTS:  

 

2025  2024 
(Rupees)  (Rupees) 

Net Sales 108,694,499,692  57,642,468,564 
 
Gross Profit 31,642,050,703 

 
15,646,370,000 

Operating Profit 25,614,594,078  12,452,362,744 
Profit before Tax 26,737,884,062  13,115,344,825 
Profit after Tax 16,336,201,342  7,935,676,576 

Earnings Per 
Share 

270.26  131.29 

 
 
Appropriations: 

The Board of Directors of the Company, at their 
meeting held on August 29, 2025 has 
recommended a final cash dividend @ 200% 
i.e. Rupees 20.00 per share subject to the 
approval of members in the forth coming 
Annual General Meeting of the Company 
(AGM). This is in addition to the interim cash 



 

dividend of 320% making total cash dividend 
of 520% for the year ending June 30, 2025 
(June 30, 2024: 200%). 

Sales Revenue: 

The overall net sales revenue of the Company 
grew by 88.57% from Rupees 57.64 Billion to 
Rupees 108.69 Billion, highest ever sales 
revenue in its history. This milestone was 
primarily driven by increased sales volume of 
four wheelers specifically HAVAL branded 
vehicles.  

Segment wise: The net sale of four wheelers 
increased by 93.21% from Rupees 50.81 Billion 
to Rupees 98.17 Billion, the net sale of Three 
Wheelers by 70.04% from Rupees 5.78 Billion to 
Rupees 9.82 Billion whereas the net sale of 
automotive parts dropped by 33.69% from 
Rupees 1.06 Billion to Rupees 0.70 Billion 
whereas the net sales of home appliances 
increased by 258.07% from Rupees 0.53 Million 
to Rupees 1.90 Million, compared with the 
corresponding period of last year. 

The sale of Three Wheelers also includes an 
export sale of Rupees 69.05 Million (2024: 70.01 
Million) showing a marginal reduction of 0.01% 
as compared to the last financial year. During 
the year, Company exported Three Wheelers 
to Japan, USA, Liberia, Nigeria and Philippine.  

In terms of quantity, the sales volumes are 
given below: 

Product 

Sales 
volume 

2025 

Sales 
volume 

2024 

% of 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Four 
wheelers* 

10,889*   5,392* 101.95 

Three 
wheelers 

25,786 15,014 71.75 

Tractor 
Wheel Rims 

42,622 65,850 (35.27) 

*Four-wheeler sales also includes the sale of 45 unit 
of imported CBU (June 30, 2024: 18 unit).  

 

 

The significant increase in sale of four wheelers 
reflects growing consumer demand of HAVAL 
branded vehicles, Al-Hamdolillah, 
achievement of highest ever annual sales 
volume of four wheelers in a year. Three 
Wheelers sale also recorded a strong growth 
while Automotive Parts declined due to 
reduced demand of tractor wheel rims. 

Gross Profit: 

Company’s gross profit increased by Rupees 
16.00 Billion, from Rupees 15.65 Billion to Rupees 
31.64 Billion compared with the corresponding 
period of last year. Whereas the gross profit 
margin improved from 27.14% to 29.11% mainly 
due to the higher sales volume of four 
wheelers.  

Finance Cost: 

Finance cost increased from Rs 168.91 Million to 
Rs. 230.30 Million showing an increase of 61.38 
Million compared with the corresponding 
period of last year.  

Profit Before Taxation: 

Company’s profit before taxation increased 
significantly from Rupees 13.12 Billion to Rupees 
26.74 Billion showing a surge of Rupees 13.62 
Billion compared with the corresponding 
period of last year.  

Earnings Per Share: 

The Earnings per share of the Company 
increased from Rs. 131.29 to Rs. 270.26 as 
compared to corresponding period of last year 
reflecting a substantial increase in profitability 
and shareholder value.  

Net Worth of the Company: 

The net worth of the Company strengthened 
from Rupees 10.10 Billion to Rupees 23.71 Billion 
showing a growth of 134.63% year-on-year. 
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Production:      

In terms of quantity, the production volumes 
are given below: 

Product 
Production 

volume 
2025 

Production 
volume 

2024 

% of 
Increase/ 

(Decrease) 

Four 
wheelers 

11,039 5,414 103.90 

Three 
wheelers 

24,700 15,678 57.55 

Tractor 
Wheel 
Rims 

41,717 65,711 (36.51) 

 

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES: 

Risks: 

The Company is exposed to a wide range of 
internal and external risks.  Risk is the chance of 
happening of an event that can prevent the 
Company from achieving its objectives. 

All Risks cannot be eliminated entirely, they 
can be effectively managed, mitigated and 
transferred to third parties. 

The board of directors has overall responsibility 
to establish and oversee the Company’s Risk 
Management framework. 

The board has established Risk Management 
Policies for the governance of risks and 
determination of Company’s level of risk 
tolerance. The board reviews annually to 
ensure that the management has maintained 
a sound system of risk identification, risk 
management and related internal controls to 
safeguard the assets, resources, reputation 
and interest of the company and shareholders. 
The system is subject to continuous monitoring 
for its further improvement. 

The policies on Risk Management and Internal 
Control containing complete detail of frame 

work have been placed on Company’s 
website. 

The following are some of principal risks being 
faced by the company: 

Availability and Prices of Raw Material and 
CKDs: 

The production of Company’s products 
including four wheelers, three wheelers and 
tractor wheel rims is dependent on the 
availability of imported raw materials and 
components, any hurdle in availability and 
volatility of its prices may adversely affect the 
production and input costs of these products. 

Further any failure or hurdle in local supply of 
critical parts of company’s products, which are 
procured from single source, may disturb the 
production of these products. To avoid such 
kind of situation, company carries higher level 
of stocks of those parts and continuously 
monitor the supply chain and keeps close 
contact with the supplier to solve any issue at 
an early stage. 

Currency Devaluation: 

Although the Pak Rupee demonstrated relative 
stability against foreign currencies during the 
current financial year. Any material 
devaluation of Pak Rupee may deteriorate the 
profitability of the Company and adversely 
affect the sales volume.  The company intends 
to avail the hedging and forward cover 
booking facilities for foreign currency exposure, 
subject to the feasibility.   

 

Economic, Political and Law & Order 
conditions: 

Overall stable economic, political, law & order 
conditions in the country have a significant 
influence on the company’s performance. Any 
instability in these areas may have adverse 
effects on the Company’s revenue and 
profitability. 
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General Market Conditions: 

The product range of the company is very 
successful and contributes to it in 
advantageous position compared with the 
competitors. Any aggressive pricing policy, 
introduction of new products and aggressive 
change in after sales policy by competitors 
may result in lower revenue, lower profitability 
or lower market share of the company. 

The Company carries out continuous 
monitoring of competitors activities in order to 
recognize these risks at an early stage. 
Depending on the situation, product-specific 
and possible regionally different measures are 
taken to support the weaker markets. 

Regulatory and Taxation Policy: 

The automotive industry is subject to various 
governmental regulations. Any adverse and 
sudden change in the Governments’ taxation 
and regulatory policy may have considerable 
impact on the Company’s future business 
operations and profitability. 

 

Sudden break down of Plant & Equipment: 

Any sudden break down of manufacturing 
plant and equipment may lead to stoppage of 
production and can create a risk in achieving 
the desired business targets. In order to secure 
and enhance the long-term future viability of 
production facilities, the equipment is 
continually maintained and modernized.  

The natural disasters are beyond the control of 
the Company. However, the Company takes 
appropriate precautionary measures, as far as 
possible, and also arrange insurance 
coverage. 

Financial Risks: 

The Company is also exposed to various 
financial risks which have been stated in note 
35 to the audited financial statements. 

 

Uncertainties: 

The company continues to face uncertainties 
that could affect future performance, 
including: 

 Government’s new taxation and regulatory 
policies. 

 Volatility in prices of raw materials. 
 Fluctuations in Pak Rupee exchange rate. 
 Law and order situation in the country. 
 Energy supply disruptions. 
 Political and economic conditions. 
 Interest rate. 
 Inflation. 

MATERIAL CHANGES: 

No material changes or commitments 
affecting the financial position of the company 
have taken place between the end of the 
financial year and the date of the Report 
except as disclosed in the Directors’ Report 
and financial statements.  

 

FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

The economy is expected to continue with a 
growing momentum to consolidate the 
sustainability and inclusive growth. The 
constant rise in exports and workers’ 
remittances are anticipated to further 
strengthen the forex reserves and also 
contribute to the stability of exchange rate. 
The inflation is also expected to remain stable, 
however, heavy rains or flash floods may 
adversely impact agricultural yields and disrupt 
supply chains. 

The KSE-100 Index is demonstrating a bullish 
trend, reflecting an improved investors’ 
confidence in the Government policies, 
reforms and strengthening economic 
conditions of the country.   

Further the ongoing IMF program is expected 
to provide continued support in managing 
external debt obligations and creating a 
platform for more resilient and inclusive 
economic growth in the country. 

ª

ª
ª
ª
ª
ª
ª
ª
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The Auto Sector is showing encouraging signs 
of recovery and gradually regaining its 
momentum. This resurgence is providing 
opportunities for the auto assemblers to 
expand their product offerings across multiple 
categories, including petrol, Hybrid, Plug in 
Hybrid and Electric Vehicles.  

Aligned with the positive outlook, Sazgar 
remains committed to the introduction of New 
Energy Vehicles (NEVs) equipped with 
advanced technologies and modern features 
in line with the Government’s policy frame 
work. The company has successfully launched 
its first CKD Plug-In-Hybrid Electric Vehicle 
(PHEV) HAVAL H6 1.5L on August 16, 2025. In 
addition, CKD rollouts of TANK-500 and 
CANNON PHEVs are planned by March 31, 
2026.  

The Three Wheelers segment is also expected 
to maintain its growth trajectory and In Sha 
Allah shall deliver stronger sales volumes in the 
coming financial year. However, the tractor 
wheel segment is struggling for its survival due 
to reduction in demand of Tractors in the 
market. 

Exports remain a strategic priority- not only to 
strengthen the company’s growth prospects 
but also to contribute to the country’s foreign 
exchange earnings. The Company is making 
continuous efforts to enhance the export 
volumes in the coming years.  

DISCONTINUATION OF HOME APPLIANCES 
BUSINESS:  

The Board has decided to discontinue the 
Home Appliances business effective from 
September 01, 2025 after a comprehensive 
review of its financial performance, market 
dynamics and long-term strategic objectives. 
The decision has been made in the best 
interest of the shareholders with a view to 
focusing the Company’s resources on its core 
businesses and more profitable segments. All 
necessary regulatory requirements and 
contractual obligations relating to the 

discontinuation have been fulfilled without any 
disruption to employees, customer or 
stakeholders. Furthermore, the Company holds 
no material assets or liabilities pertaining to the 
segment of home appliance business. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is the 
continuing commitment by business to behave 
ethically and contribute to economic 
development while improving the quality of life 
of the workforce and their families as well as of 
the local community and society at large.  

The Company’s CSR Policy, placed on 
company’s website, aides the plans to pursue 
social contribution activities that leads to 
strengthen the communities and contribute to 
the enrichment of the society.  

During the year, the Company has undertaken 
the following major CSR activities: 

ª Donation of an aggregate amount of Rs. 

11.4 million has been made to various 

education.  

ª Spent a sum of Rs. 12.3 million in providing 

food items to the poor people and 

employees of the company for the support 

of their well-being. 

ª The Company offered paid internship 

opportunities during the year for university 

graduates, providing them with practical 

exposure to the automotive industry. 

ª The Company organized a blood donation 

drive at its factory site, with a special focus 

on supporting thalassemia patients. 

ª Company sponsored four employees to 

perform Hajj this year, covering all 

associated expenses amounting to Rs. 4.58 

million. 

ª As part of its commitment to employee 

well-being and workplace engagement, 

the Company organized and sponsored a 

Sports Gala during the year, offering 

institutions 
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employees an opportunity to participate in 

a variety of athletic and recreational 

activities. A sum of Rs. 1.87 million was spent 

for this purpose. 

ª Company provided special financial 

assistance to the families of former 

employees who have passed away, for 

food and educational purposes. During the 

year, an amount of Rs. 0.34 million was paid 

for special support. 

ª During the year, Company has paid Rs. 

0.19 million for educational support and 

external trainings of its employees. 

ª Company creates employment 

opportunities for persons with disabilities 

along with the provision of additional 

facilities and appropriate training. 

Currently, 20 individuals, who are differently 

abled, are in the employment of the 

Company. 

ª The Company has planted around 2,000 

trees of Rs. 00.79 million to make the 

environment more friendly. 

 

The complete details of CSR activities have 

been disclosed in Company’s Sustainability 

Report 2025. 

Contribution To National Exchequer: 

The company has made a contribution of Rs. 
37.65 Billion to National Exchequer during the 
year in form of income tax, sales tax, custom 
duties and excise as compared to Rs. 19.96 
Billion of last financial year reflecting an 
increase of 88.62% (June 30, 2024: 293.64%).   
 

IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

Considering the applicable IFRS and going 
concern assumptions used for the preparation 
of these financial statements, the Company 
has assessed the accounting implications of 
this pandemic on these financial statements 
and determines that there has been no 

specifically quantifiable material impact of 
COVID-19 on the Company’s financial 
statements for the year ended June 30, 2025. 

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE: 

The Board is committed to the principles of 
good corporate governance. The Board is 
pleased to confirm that the Company is in 
compliance with Corporate and Financial 
Reporting Framework of the Code of 
Corporate Governance as are applicable for 
the current year and states that:  

ª Presentation of Financial Statements The 
financial statements, prepared by the 
management of the company, present its 
state of affairs fairly, the results of its 
operations, cash flows and changes in 
equity; 

ª Books of Account Proper books of account 
of the company have been maintained; 

ª Accounting Policies Appropriate 
accounting policies have been consistently 
applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are 
based on reasonable and prudent 
judgement; 

ª Compliance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) International 
Financial Reporting Standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed 
in preparation of financial statements and 
departure there from (if any) has been 
adequately disclosed and explained; 

ª Going Concern   There are no significant 
doubts upon the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern; 

ª Best Practices of Corporate Governance 
There has been no material departure from 
the best practices of corporate 
governance, as are applicable to the 
Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.  

ª Financial Data of Last Years Key operating 
and financial data of last six years is 
annexed as per annexure “A”. 
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Dividend The Board of Directors, at their 
meeting held on August 29, 2025 has 
recommended a final cash dividend @ 200% 
i.e. Rupees 20.00 per share subject to the 
approval of members in the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting of the Company 
(AGM) which shall be in addition to the interim 
cash dividend of 320% making total of 520% for 
the financial year ending June 30, 2025 (June 
30, 2024: 200%).  

Outstanding Statutory Dues The outstanding 
statutory dues are given in notes to the 
financial statements.  

Significant Plans and Decisions: To explore new 
business opportunities in automobile sector. In 
this regard the Company intends to expand its 
manufacturing base to add more environment 
friendly vehicles into its products line. 

Code of Business Conduct: The Company has 
prepared a “Code of Business Conduct” and 
has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the 
company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures. It has also been placed on the 
company’s website. 

SUSTAINABILITY, RISKS AND THEIR MANAGEMENT 
/ MITIGATION: 

Sustainability is the creation and maintenance 
of conditions in which people and nature can 
coexist in productive harmony, ensuring that 
environmental, social, economic and other 
needs of present and future generations are 
met. 

Corporate sustainability refers to a business 
approach that integrates environmental, 
social, and governance considerations into a 
company's strategy and for creating long-term 
value for both the business and society while 
minimizing negative impacts on the 
environment and contributing positively to 
communities. 

Key components of corporate sustainability: 

1. Environmental factors: These includes 
financially material risks and opportunities 
such as climate change, use of water, land 
and air. 

2. Social factors: These relate to society, the 
rights of individuals and the well-being of 
the communities within which a company 
operates such as human capital 
management, diversity, health and safety. 

3. Governance factors: These include board 
quality, independence and accountability; 
board oversight of executive performance 
and compensation and the board’s 
oversight of company strategy, risk 
management, performance and disclosure 
including disclosures of environmental and 
social factors.  

Sustainability-related risks are assessed through 
the lens of environmental, social, and 
governance (ESG) considerations.  
 
The Company has prepared a separate 
Sustainability Report for the year 2025 stating 
the sustainability (including climate) related 
risks & opportunities, Company’s environmental 
impact, social initiatives and corporate 
governance practices. 
 

DIVERSITY EQUITY & INCLUSION (DE&I) AND 

PROTECTION AGAINST HARRASSMENT AT A 

WORK PLACE: 

The Company is committed to create and 
promote a culture of diversity, equity and 
inclusion at a workplace where every one feels 
valued, respected and supported as well as 
protected from harassment, discrimination and 
bias.  

The Company is taking various measures to 
promote DE&I which shall lead to increase 
employment engagement, retention and 
business success.  

The Company actively encourages the 
representation of woman on Company’s 
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Board of Directors & its Committees and in line 
with this commitment, has appointed a 
woman as a chairperson of the Board.  

The Board has formally approved policies on 
Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I) and 
protection against harassment at a workplace 
which are available on the Company’s official 
website for stakeholder reference. 

STATEMENT ON ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL 

FINANCIAL CONTROLS: 

The Company has established an adequate 
system of internal financial controls which is 
sound in design and has been effectively 
implemented and is being monitored 
continuously. The review of system will continue 
in future for the improvements in controls.  

Comprehensive detail of the company’s 
internal control framework is set out in Internal 
Control Policy which is also available on the 
Company’s official website. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

Presently, the Board of Directors of the 
Company comprises of the following nine (9) 
directors who shall hold office up to March 19, 
2026:  

1. Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 
2. Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 
3. Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 
4. Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 
5. Mrs. Sana Suleyman 
6. Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 
7. Mr. Umair Ejaz  
8. Mr. Taha Mahmood 
9. Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed 

There was no change in the Board during the 
current financial year. 
 
 
 
 
 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY: 

The Policy is designed to enable the Company 
to attract, motivate and retain the executive 
and non- executive directors and to govern 
the Company successfully and to encourage 
the value addition. 

 Executive Directors 

The remuneration and benefits for the 
Executive Directors including Chief Executive 
are determined by the Board of Directors in 
accordance with the procedure laid down in 
the approved policy. However, no meeting 
attending fee is paid to Executive Directors. 

The Board in its meeting held on August 29, 
2025 has approved the revision in the monthly 
managerial remunerations (net of tax) of its 
Executives Board members as below along 
with free use of Company maintained 
vehicles for official and private purposes, 
re-imbursement of actual medical expenses for 
self and spouse and payment of cash bonuses 
as and when approved by Board of Directors 
and other benefits associated with these 
positions in accordance with the Company’s 
policies and rules for the time being in force: 

Chief Executive Rs. 5.80 M 

Executive Director 

(COO - Three-Wheeler & 
Automotive Parts Division) 

Rs. 3.00 M 

Executive Director 

(COO - Car Division) 
Rs. 1.60 M 

 
These remunerations are effective from July 
01, 2025 and shall be increased by 15% 
annually or such higher amount as decided 
by Board of Directors.  

 Non-Executive Directors 

The Company pays meeting fee to the Non-
Executive Directors including Independent 
Directors for attending Meetings of the Board 
and its Committees. The meeting attending 

ª

ª
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fee is paid in accordance with the scale 
approved by the Board.  The non-executive 
directors including independent directors who 
are residing outside Lahore are also paid 
boarding and lodging for attending the Board 
& Committees meetings. 
 
The Board in its meeting held on August 29, 
2025 has also approved the revision in scale of 
meetings fee for the Non-Executive 
Independent Directors which shall be 
effective from September 01, 2025.  
 
The revised scale of meetings fee is given 
below: 
 

Revised Scale of Meetings Fee For Non-
Executive Independent Directors 

Board Meeting fee Rs 100,000/- 

Committee Meeting fee Rs 60,000/- 

 

Scale of Meeting Fee For Other Non-Executive 
Directors 

Board Meeting fee Rs 50,000/- 

Committee Meeting fee Rs 30,000/- 

 

 
For attending Board or Committee meetings, 
Boarding and lodging of Rs. 50,000/- per visit is 
also paid to the Non-Executive Directors who 
reside outside the Lahore.  

No director had participated in the 
proceedings of meeting for determining his/her 
own remuneration. 

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION PAID DURING THE 
YEAR: 

During the year, the company paid the 
following managerial remuneration and 
benefits to the Chief Executive, Executive 
Directors and meeting attending expenses to 
Non-Executive Directors: 
 

Particulars 

Managerial 
Remuneration 

Bonus and 
Others 

Meeting 
fee & 

Boarding 
lodging 

expenses 

Total 

(Rupees) 

Chief 
Executive 

55,200,000 65,064,234 - 120,264,234 

Executive 
Director (Chief 
Operating 
Officer -Three 
Wheelers & 
Automotive 
Parts Division) 

28,800,000 32,928,299 - 61,728,299 

Executive 
Director (Chief 
Operating 
Officer -Car 
Division)  

15,000,000 15,011,766 - 30,011,766 

Non-Executive 
Directors 

- - 2,130,000 2,130,000 

Attendance in Board and Committees’ 
Meetings: The number of board and 
committees’ meetings held during the year 
and attendance by each director is given 
below:   

Name of 
Directors B
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Total 
Meetings 
Held 

5 4 1 1 1 1 

Mr. Mian 
Asad 
Hameed 

5 - 1 1 - - 

Mrs. Saira 
Asad 
Hameed 

5 - - - - - 

Mr. Saeed 
Iqbal Khan 

5 - - 1 - - 

Mr. Mian 
Muhammad 
Ali Hameed 

5 - - - 1 - 

Mrs. Sana 
Suleyman 

5 4 - - - 1 

Mr. Humza 
Amjad Wazir 

5 - 1 1 - - 

Mr. Umair Ejaz  4 4 1 - 1 1 

Mr. Taha 
Mahmood 

5 4 1 - 1 - 

Mr. 
Muhammad 
Omer Saeed  

5 - - - - 1 

Leave of absence was granted to the Director who could 
not attend the Board Meeting. 
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Directors’ Training Programs during the year: 
The Company is in compliance of certification 
of Directors Training Programme.  Out of nine, 
seven directors have acquired the Directors’ 
Training Programme (DTP) from SECP approved 
Institutions up to June 30, 2025 whereas two 
directors fall under the exemption criteria of 
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations 2019 and also 
obtained exemption from SECP. 

Pattern of Shareholding:  The pattern of 
shareholding is annexed as per annexure “B”. 

Trading in Company’s Shares by Directors, 
executives and their spouses and minor 
children during the year: 

Purchase, sale of Shares and change in 
beneficial ownership: 

Name 
Share 

Purchased/Gift 
Sale/Gift 

Mr. Mian Asad 
Hameed 

- 2,671,276 (Gift) 

Mrs. Sana Suleyman 735,294 (Gift) 50,000 

Mr. Muhammad 
Suleyman Khan 

- 50,000 

Mrs. Amna Humza 
Wazir 

735,294 (Gift) - 

 

COMPOSITION OF BOARD: 

The total number of directors are (9) nine as 
per the following: 

a. Male  : (7) seven 
b. Female : (2) two 

 
The composition of board is as follows: 
 

a. Independent Directors: 

Mr. Umair Ejaz 

Mr. Taha Mahmood 

Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed 

 
b. Non-Executive Directors: 

Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed  

Mrs. Sana Suleyman  

Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 

 
c. Executive Directors including Chief 

Executive: 

Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 

Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 

Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 

 
d. Female Directors: 

Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed  

Mrs. Sana Suleyman  

 
 
Committees of the Board: 
 

Name of 
Members 
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Umair Ejaz ** *  ** * 

Taha 
Mahmood 

* **  *  

Sana 
Suleyman 

*    * 

Hamza 
Amjad Wazir 

 * *   

Mian Asad 
Hameed 

 * **   

Saeed Iqbal 
Khan 

  *   

Mian 
Muhammad 
Ali Hameed 

   *  

Muhammad 
Omer Saeed 

    ** 

 
**Represents that the director is chairman of 
the respective committee 
* Represents that the director is member of the 
respective committee  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

61



 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, 
COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS: 

The board has put in place a mechanism for 
the performance evaluation of its own, its 
committees and individual directors. 

During the year, HR&R Committee has 
undertaken the evaluation process. The results 
were placed before the board for its 
consideration and necessary action. 

EXTERNAL AUDITORS: 

The present auditors, M/S Crowe Hussain 
Chaudhury & Co., Chartered Accountants, 
retire and being eligible offers themselves for 
reappointment. The Audit Committee and the 
Board of Directors have also recommended for 
their reappointment on the following 
remunerations: 

  (Rupees) 

a. Annual Audit                                    2,040,000 

b. Half yearly review                                    360,000 

c. Report on Statement of Compliance 
with Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 
2019  

50,000 

d. Certificate under CDC Regulation     50,000 

e. Report on Free-float of shares  50,000 

 

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS: 

The management and employees’ relationship 
is very cordial and it is hoped that both will 
work with the same spirit to achieve the 
desired goals of the Company. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

We would like to place on record our 
appreciation for the untiring efforts, teamwork 
and dedication shown by the Company’s 
employees during the year under review.  

We would also like to express our gratitude to 
our valued shareholders, customers, suppliers 
and financial institutions for their continued 
support to the Company. 

 

 

Lahore:  
August 29, 2025 

 
For and on behalf of the Board 

 
 
 
 

   
    Mian Asad Hameed        Saeed Iqbal Khan  
      (Chief Executive)             (Director) 
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BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE 

REPORT 
 

The members of the Audit Committee are pleased to present their report to the shareholders 

for the year ended June 30, 2025.  

The Audit Committee of the Board of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited (the Company), 

composed of three  members including the Chairman. Two members of the committee 

including the Chairman are Independent Directors while one member is a Non-Executive 

Director. All Committee members possess economic, nancial, and business expertise, and the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee is nancially literate. The names and proles of the Audit 

Committee members are mentioned on page no. 11-14 & 61 of the Annual Report 2025. 

The Audit Committee has concluded its annual review of the Company's conduct and 

operations for the nancial year ended June 30, 2025, and hereby reports the following: 

Financial Statements  

The Committee has ensured that the Company’s nancial statements present a fair, 

balanced, and understandable picture of the company's nancial position and performance, 

and reports that:  

ª The nancial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 have been 

prepared on a going concern basis under requirements of Companies Act 2017, 

incorporating the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, International 

Financial Reporting Standards and other applicable laws and regulations. 

ª The nancial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs 

as of June 30, 2025, and of the prot and other comprehensive income, the changes in 

equity and its cash ows for the year then ended. 

ª The external auditors have concluded the audit of above nancial statements in 

accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan 

and issued unmodied audit reports.  

ª Major judgmental areas and signicant adjustments have been thoroughly reviewed 

and adequately addressed in the nancial statements. 

ª Accounting policies and practices have been disclosed in the nancial statements and 

consistently applied.  

ª The Committee reviewed quarterly, half-yearly and annual nancial statements of the 

Company and recommended them for approval of the Board of Directors. 

ª The Committee has reviewed all related party transactions prior to approval by the 

Board.  

ª The Committee evaluated the appropriateness of key accounting estimates and 

judgments made by management, ensuring they were reasonable and in line with 

industry practices.  

ª The independent auditors have reviewed and certied the Company’s statement of 

compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 

2019 in a Review Report issued thereon. 
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Internal Control and Risk Management System

 

The Company has developed a sound mechanism for risk identication, risk management

 

and 

devising appropriate mitigation measures which are regularly monitored and implemented by 

the management. The Company's internal control system, including nancial and operational 

controls, accounting systems, and reporting structure, is designed to manage and mitigate the 

risk of not achieving business objectives. 

 
The Committee has determined that the risk management and internal control systems are 

adequate, sound in design

 

and are effectively implemented.

  Internal Audit

 The Company has established an independent Internal Audit function, integral to Company’s 

risk management and internal control framework. The internal audit function plays a vital role 

in enhancing the overall control environment of the Company. The internal audit department 

has conducted independent audits in accordance with an approved internal audit plan

 

and 

reported functionally to the Audit Committee.
 

The internal audit team
 

operates
 
with full independence and has direct access to the Audit 

Committee. The Committee reviews the reports submitted by the Head of Internal Audit, which 

highlight signicant ndings and recommendations, thereby supporting the Board in 

strengthening the Company’s governance, risk management, and internal control
 

system.
 

The Committee has ensured that the internal audit function has adequate resources with 

relevant expertise and has all necessary access to Management and the right to seek 

information and explanations.  

Management facilitated coordination between the internal and external auditors to ensure 

efcient audit processes and transparency in maintaining a reliable nancial reporting and 

internal control system.  

The committee has established arrangements for staff and management to report any 

concerns about actual or potential
 
improprieties condentially.

  

External Audit
 

The statutory auditors of the Company, M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co Chartered 

Accountants, have completed the audit of nancial statements of the Company for the year 

ended June 30, 2025
 

and review of the “Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate 

Governance” for the year ended June 30, 2025.

 

The Audit Committee discussed the audit process

 

and the key audit matters with the external 

auditors of the Company. 

 

The External Auditors do not provide any services other than external audit of the Company. 

The audit rm has no nancial or other relationship of any kind with the Company except that 

of External Auditors.

 

The committee follows a rigorous approach to the appointment or reappointment process of 

the external auditors. Being eligible for reappointment as Auditors of the Company, the Audit 

Committee recommends the appointment of M/s. Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co Chartered 

Accountants as the external auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2026.
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Other Reportable Matters
 

During the nancial year 2024-25, no whistle blowing incident was reported to the Audit 

Committee which is indicative of a strong governance and sound ethical practices.
 

The Audit Committee believes that it has carried out responsibilities to the full, in accordance 

with terms of reference approved by the Board. The Board carries out an annual evaluation 

of its committees and their members.  

The Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the 33rd
 Annual General Meeting of the 

Company for the year 2023-24  held on October 26, 2024 to answer shareholders’ concerns / 

questions / queries, if any, on the audit committee’s scope, roles, and responsibilities. During 

the meeting, no signicant issues were raised. 

 

 

 

Lahore  

August  29, 2025  
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 NAME OF COMPANY: SAZGAR ENGINEERING
 
WORKS LIMITED

 YEAR ENDED:
 
JUNE 30, 2025

 
 

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:  
 

1.  The total number of directors are  (9) nine as per the following:  
a. Male:   (7) seven  
b. Female:  (2) two   

 
2.  The composition of board is as follows:  

 

i  Independent Directors  Mr. Umair Ejaz, Mr. Taha Mahmood, Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed 

ii  Non-Executive Directors  
Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed, Mrs. Sana Suleyman, Mr. Humza Amjad 
Wazir  

iii  Executive Directors  
Mr. Mian Asad Hameed, Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan, Mr. Mian 
Muhammad Ali Hameed 

iv  Female  Directors  Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed, Mrs. Sana Suleyman 

 
3.  The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed 

companies, including  this  company.   
 

4.  The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to  disseminate  it  throughout the company along with its supporting policies and 
procedures.  

 

5.  The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant 
policies of the  company.  The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.  

 

6.  All the powers  of  the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been 
taken  by the  board/  Shareholders  as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these 
Regulations.  

 

7.  The meetings  of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a 
director elected by the Board  for  this  purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act 
and the Regulations  with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the 
Board.  

 

8.  The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the  Act and  these  Regulations. 

  

9.  Detailed as below; seven directors have completed their Directors’ Training Program (DTP), two 
directors  fall under  the exemption criteria of the Regulations and also obtained exemption from 
SECP.   
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Directors who have completed their DTP: 
1. Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 
2. Mrs. Sana Suleyman 
3. Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 
4. Mr. Umair Ejaz 
5. Mr. Taha Mahmood 
6. Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 
7. Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed 

 
Directors exempt from DTP: 
1. Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 
2. Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 

 
Company’s following executives have also acquired DTP: 
  

Name                   Designation 
Mr. Arshad Mahmood                Company Secretary 
Mr. Adil Saeed Khan                Executive Director - Quality Control of the Company 
Mr. Mian Muhammad Ammar Hameed Executive Director – Marketing 
 

10. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of 
Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied 
with relevant requirements of the Regulations.  

 
11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before 

approval of the board. 
 
12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below: 
 

S. No. Name of Committees Name of Members and Chairman  

a) Audit Committee 
Chairman: Mr. Umair Ejaz 
Members: Mrs. Sana Suleyman, Mr. Taha Mahmood 

b) 
HR and Remuneration 
Committee 

Chairman: Mr. Taha Mahmood 
Members: Mr. Mian Asad Hameed, Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir, Mr. 
Umair Ejaz 

c) 
Nomination 
Committee 

Chairman: Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 
Members: Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan, Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 

d) 
Risk Management 
Committee 

Chairman: Mr. Umair Ejaz 
Members: Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed, Mr. Taha 
Mahmood 

e) 
Sustainability 
Committee 

Chairman: Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed  
Members: Mr. Umair Ejaz, Mrs. Sana Suleyman 

 
13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised 

to the committee for compliance. 
 

 
 
 

79



14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following: 
 

Committee Frequency 

Audit Committee Quarterly, Yearly 

HR and Remuneration Committee Yearly, as and when require 

Nomination Committee Yearly, as and when require 

Risk Management Committee Yearly, as and when require 

Sustainability Committee Yearly, as and when require 

 
15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function. 
 
16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed  that they have  been  given a  satisfactory  

rating  under  the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in 
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code  of  ethics as   
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the 
firm involved in the  audit  are  not  a  close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the chief  executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company 
secretary or director of the company. 

 
17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide 

other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory 
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard. 

 
18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have 

been complied with. 
 
 
 
 
        

For and on behalf of the Board  
 

             
August 29, 2025            Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 
            (Chairperson)                               

                                   
            

80



Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2025

(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: -13%

(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: -7%

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company

August 29, 2025

The above percentages reflect the gender pay gap of relevant male versus female 

Mian Asad Hameed
Chief Executive

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT
UNDER SECP'S CIRCULAR 10 OF 2024
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STRIVING FOR EXCELLENCE IN 

CORPORATE REPORTING 

 Compliance with International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS)
 The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting 

Standards Board (IASB)

 

as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, which ensures consistency, 

comparability, and credibility in corporate reporting. 

 
Further, there are certain standards and interpretations which are yet to be effective in 

Pakistan and certain standards not adopted by SECP, as disclosed in the Note 2.5
 

of the annual 

audited financial statements for the year ended June 2025. However, the management 

believes these standards and interpretation does not have any material impact on the 

financial statements of the Company, other than certain additional disclosures.
 

 

Other standards and guidelines adopted 

Sustainability report is integrated with the Annual Report 2025 of the Company which is 

prepared on the basis of Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) standards 2021. The GRI standards 

2021 provide information about adherence to the principles of inclusivity, materiality, 

responsiveness and impact. The GRI content index for the users of this report is mentioned on 

page numbers 255 to 260.
 

In addition, the requirements / guidelines provided by the following have also been adopted:
 

ª
 

Guidelines on ESG Disclosure for Listed Companies 2023 issued by SECP; and 
 

ª

 

ESG Reporting Guidance issued by PSX. 

 

 

The Annual Report 2025

 

has been designed considering the Best Corporate Report (BCR) 

Award 2025

 

Evaluation Criteria, developed by the Evaluation Committee (a sub-committee of 

the Joint Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and the 

Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP)), to promote 

transparency, corporate governance and excellence in financial reporting. The BCR Checklist 

for the users of this report is mentioned on page numbers  247 to 254

 

.
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ANALYSIS OF THE 
FINANCIAL 

PERFORMANCE
NON FINANCIAL 
AND 



ANALYSIS OF THE NON FINANCIAL 

 
 

Manufactured Capital
 Manufactured capital forms the backbone of the Company’s ability to deliver 

reliable and high-quality vehicles. Through its two modern assembly facilities, 

equipped with advanced technology, the Company continues to meet the 

evolving needs of customers while adhering to international standards of quality and safety. 

Continuous investments in efficiency improvements and capacity expansion keep operations 

agile and future-ready, ensuring that the Company remains competitive and well-positioned 

to support the transition toward sustainable mobility.
 

KPI
 

UOM
 

2025
 

2024
 

Three-Wheeler -
 

Annual Production Capacity
 

No.
 

20,000
 

20,000
 

Four-Wheeler -
 

Annual Production Capacity
 

No.
 

24,000
 

24,000
 

Wheel Rims produced
 

No.
 

41,717
 

65,711
 

Three-Wheeler vehicles produced   No. 24,700 15,678 
Four-Wheeler vehicles  produced   No. 11,039 5,414 

* For more details on performance and impact refer to page no. 160-189  

Human Capital  
Human capital lies at the heart of the Company’s success. A skilled and diverse 

workforce brings expertise, innovation, and passion to every stage of operations, 

from assembly to after-sales service. The Company is committed to creating a 

safe, inclusive, and engaging workplace where employees can grow and thrive. Through 

continuous training, leadership development, and health and safety initiatives, the Company 

empowers its people to drive excellence and adapt to the evolving demands of the industry. 

KPI
 

UOM
 

2025
 

2024
 

Number of Employees
 

No.
 

1,552
 

1,392
 

Training Hours
 

Hrs.
 

830
 

866
 

Production per Employee
 

No.
 

52
 

68
 

Revenue per Employee
 

PKR
 

73,392,640
 

44,892,888
 

* For more details on performance and impact refer to page no.
 

160-189
  

Intellectual Capital
 

Intellectual capital drives the Company’s ability to innovate, differentiate, and 

remain relevant in a rapidly evolving automotive landscape. The Company 

leverages its
 

technical know-how, research capabilities, and process excellence 

to continuously enhance product quality, safety, and efficiency.
  

KPI

 

UOM

 

2025

 

2024

 

ISO Certifications

 

No.

 

3

 

3

 

Credit Rating

 

Rating

 
Medium to long term:

 

“A”

 

Short term: “A1”

 Medium to long term:

 

“A”

 

Short term: “A2”

 

* For more details on performance and impact refer to page no.

 

160-189

  

 

PERFORMANCE
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Social & Relationship Capital 
Strong relationships with customers, dealers, suppliers, regulators, and 

communities form the foundation of the Company’s reputation and long-term 

sustainability. By actively engaging with stakeholders and maintaining 

transparent practices, the Company builds trust and loyalty across its value chain. Company’s 

CSR Initiatives  further reinforce its role as a socially responsible organization dedicated to 

shared prosperity.  

KPI  UOM 2025 2024 
Four-wheeler dealerships  No. 20 16 

CSR spending  PKR’M 31.5 18 

* For more details on performance and impact refer to page no. 160-189  

 

Natural Capital  
Natural capital reflects the Company’s responsibility to operate in harmony with 

the environment. The Company recognizes that its long-term growth depends on 

sustainable use of natural resources and continued action to minimize 

environmental impacts. By embedding sustainability into operations, the Company strives to 

contribute positively to the transition toward a low-carbon economy. 

KPI  UOM 2025 2024 

GHG Emissions  (scope1 & 2)  MT C02e 6,682 3,783 

Energy consumption  GJ 49,699 38,316 

Plantations  No. 2,000 1,000 

* For more details on performance and impact refer to page no. 160-189  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rs.
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ANALYSIS OF THE 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

  
(FINANCIAL CAPITAL)

 
Financial Performance in comparison with Prior year

 During the FY 2024-25, the Company achieved a record-breaking net revenue

 

of Rs. 108.69

 billion, marking the highest level since the inception of its operations. This represents a 

significant 89% increase from the Rs. 57.64

 

billion recorded in the FY 2023-24, driven primarily by 

higher sales volumes
 

of four wheelers specifically HAVAL branded vehicles.
 

Gross profit margins
 also saw a notable

 
improvement, rising from 27.14% in FY 2023-24

 
to 29.11% in FY 2024-25.

 
The 

Company reported a net profit
 
of Rs. 16.34

 
billion for the year, compared to Rs. 7.94

 
billion in 

the previous financial year.
 

The net worth
 
of the Company strengthened from Rs.

 
10.10 billion 

to Rs. 23.71 billion showing a growth of 134.63% year-on-year.
 

Financial Performance in comparison with Budget
 

The management has a practice of making yearly budgets and monitoring the performance 

against the same. For any deviations identified,
 
timely corrective actions are taken to minimize 

the
 

negative effect. The Company’s financial performance in FY 2024-25 is in line with the
 

budgeted  expectations. Net revenue reached Rs. 108.69 billion, consistent with the planned 

targets and supported by stronger sales volumes. This achievement represents the 

effectiveness of the management's proactive approach in capitalizing on market 

opportunities, while maintaining operational efficiency. 

Financial Key Performance Indicators  

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) are the measurable values that determine the effectiveness 

and efficiency of achievement of the key business objectives. The Company has used the 

following KPIs to evaluate the success of the business on reaching the targets. 

KPI  2025 2024 % change 

Revenue  Rs.  108,694,499,692 57,642,468,564 89% 

Gross Profit  Rs.  31,642,050,703 15,646,370,000 102% 

Operating Profit
 

Rs.
 

25,614,594,078
 

12,452,362,744
 

106%
 

Profit Before Tax
 

Rs.
 

26,739,315,479
 

13,115,839,655
 

104%
 

Profit After Tax
 

Rs.
 

16,336,201,342
 

7,935,676,576
 

106%
 

Net Profit Margin
 

%
 

15.03
 

13.77
 

9%
 

EBITDA
 

Rs.
 

27,305,619,942
 

13,567,231,814
 

101%
 

Earnings Per Share
 

Rs.
 

270.26
 

131.29
 

106%
 

Market value per share (year-end)
 

Rs.
 

1,139.82
 

832.46
 

37%
 

Methods and Assumptions Used in Compiling the Indicators
 

The Company evaluates its performance through key performance indicators (KPIs) that 
capture both financial outcomes

 

and market dynamics. In developing these indicators, the 

Company considers its market positioning, competitive landscape, and broader economic 

conditions. Core indicators regularly monitored include sales, gross profit, profit after tax, and 

earnings per share, which provide a clear view of financial performance and profitability. In 

addition, the Company’s market price serves as a benchmark of investor confidence and 

market perception.

 

Rs.
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Financial Position Analysis

  
                

Particulars

 

2025 2024 2023

 

2022

 

2021

 

2020

 
     

Equity and Liabilities

Six Years Summary (Annexure A)
    

      
  

Authorized Share 
Capital

 

1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000

 
       

Issued, subscribed and 
paid-up

 

share capital

 

604,459,640

 

604,459,640

 

604,459,640

 

604,459,640

 

464,968,950

 

357,668,420

 

Capital Reserve -

 

share 
premium account

 

557,406,192

 

557,406,192

 

557,406,192

 

557,406,192

 

557,406,192

 

557,406,192

 

Revenue Reserve -

 

un-
appropriated profit

 

22,545,831,628

 

8,942,220,855

 

1,753,182,230

 

792,093,365

 

817,476,633

 

853,884,500

 
       

Total

 

equity

 

23,707,697,460

 

10,104,086,687

 

2,915,048,062

 

1,953,959,197

 

1,839,851,775

 

1,768,959,112

        

Non-Current

 

Liabilities

       
       

Long term financing

 

49,825,282

 

151,892,953

 

344,773,069

 

510,383,878

 

295,398,663

 

257,207,861

 

Deferred tax liabilities

 

203,778,448

 

207,775,728

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

202,107,551

 

Post-employment

 

benefits

 
689,751,270

 

495,893,469

 

392,826,050

 

295,513,621

 

244,891,848

 

-

 

Deferred grant
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

558,743
 

5,699,176
 

5,170,602
 

Deferred revenue
 

-
 

19,763,562
 

6,915,405
 

3,111,783
 

-
 

-
        

Total non-current
 

liabilities
 943,355,000

 
875,325,712

 
744,514,524

 
809,568,025

 
545,989,687

 
464,486,013

 
       

Current Liabilities
       

       

Trade and other 
payables 16,380,112,157

 
16,160,140,423

 
3,809,918,412

 
2,498,331,108

 
2,008,188,102

 
413,569,969

 

Unclaimed dividend 22,228,966 6,269,891 1,407,358  1,407,358  1,407,358  1,443,792  

Short term borrowings - - -  162,875,560  119,679,608  -  

Profit accrued on loans 
and other payables 

134,718,125 17,220,879 23,362,697  34,835,623  8,998,064  40,073,361  

Current portion of long-
term liabilities 

114,469,094 208,427,075 190,881,934  195,141,340  134,125,605  131,637,943  

Taxation-Net 434,275,876 1,854,552,237     
       

Total current liabilities
 

17,085,804,218
 

18,246,610,505
 

4,025,570,401
 

2,892,590,989
 
2,272,398,737

 
586,725,065

 
Total equity and 
liabilities

 

41,736,856,678
 

29,226,022,904
 

7,685,132,987
 

5,656,118,211
 
4,658,240,199

 
2,820,170,190

 
Assets
       

       Non-Current
 

Assets
       

Property, plant & 
equipment

 

7,939,921,844

 
4,560,374,008

 
2,861,287,076

 
2,640,250,123

 
1,844,421,043

 
1,318,332,806

 
Intangible asset

 

62,564

 

130,814

 

199,064

 

284,624

 

382,691

 

76,944

 Long term loans and 
advances

 

74,167,676

 

39,444,745

 

13,593,831

 

21,752,978

 

28,959,063

 

27,490,153

 Long term deposits

 

8,990,470

 

8,930,470

 

6,038,355

 

5,871,855

 

4,045,855

 

3,512,855

 
Deferred Taxation

 

-

 

-

 

39,208,370

 

178,768,131

 

54,931,308

 

21,670,008

        
Total non-current

 

assets

 

8,023,142,554

 

4,608,880,037

 

2,920,326,696

 

2,846,927,711

 

1,932,739,960

 

1,371,082,766

        
Current Assets

       Stores, spares and loose 
tools

 

63,066,066

 

5,809,570

 

3,649,621

 

7,520,318

 

3,278,289

 

5,281,932

 Stock in trade

 

14,227,879,268

 

14,318,096,914

 

2,711,102,908

 

1,741,815,484

 

817,897,347

 

660,110,327

 
Trade debts

 

111,137,653

 

133,017,887

 

270,284,774

 

179,841,812

 

116,923,695

 

122,597,252

 

Loans, advances, 
deposits, prepayments 
and other receivables 

 

2,715,138,956

 

2,398,535,831

 

750,963,903

 

706,970,407

 

1,772,423,816

 

212,278,858

 Cash and bank 
balances

 

16,596,492,181

 

7,761,682,665

 

1,028,805,085

 

173,042,479

 

14,977,092

 

448,819,055

 
       

Total current assets

 

33,713,714,124

 

24,617,142,867

 

4,764,806,291

 

2,809,190,500 2,725,500,239

 

1,449,087,424

 

Total Assets

 

41,736,856,678

 

29,226,022,904

 

7,685,132,987

 

5,656,118,211

 

4,658,240,199

 

2,820,170,190

 

 

----
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587 
2,272 2,893 

4,026 

18,247 
17,086 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
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Current Liabilities

464 
546 

810 
745 

875 
943 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

R
u

p
e
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s 
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n

Non Current Liabilities

1,371 
1,933 

2,847 2,920 

4,609 

8,023 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

R
u
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e
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s 

m
ill

io
n

Non Current Assets

1,449 2,726 2,809 
4,765 

24,617 

33,714 

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

R
u

p
e
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s 
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n

Current Assets

Financial Position Analysis 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Growth Net Assets

Net Assets Total Comprehensive
            Income

  Dividend
Distribution

Net Assets

20252024

R
u

p
e

e
s 

m
ill

io
n

(2,660)

16,263

23,707

10,104
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Profit or Loss Analysis 
   

 
Six Years Summary (Annexure-A) 

            

Particulars

 

2025

 

2024

 

2023

 

2022

 

2021

 

2020

 
       

Sales -

 

net

 

108,694,499,692

 

57,642,468,564

 

18,174,296,868

 

10,274,217,196

 

4,033,601,008

 

2,891,754,502

 

Cost of sales

 

77,052,448,989

 

41,996,098,564

 

15,624,820,657

 

9,381,272,016

 

3,666,877,339

 

2,598,740,361

 

       

Gross profit

 

31,642,050,703

 

15,646,370,000

 

2,549,476,211

 

892,945,180

 

366,723,669

 

293,014,141

 
       

Distribution and 
marketing cost

 
3,474,402,975

 
1,810,895,576

 
588,484,168

 
428,677,498

 
126,876,804

 
96,378,289

 

Administrative 
expenses

 560,327,372
 

383,302,629
 

239,758,490
 

148,116,313
 

122,369,793
 

100,432,901
 

Other operating 
expenses

 1,992,726,278
 

999,809,051
 

102,401,168
 

17,173,228
 

9,423,655
 

6,336,784
 

Total Operating 
expenses

 6,027,456,625
 

3,194,007,256
 

930,643,826
 

593,967,039
 

258,670,252
 

203,147,974
 

       

Operating profit 25,614,594,078 12,452,362,744 1,618,832,385 298,978,141  108,053,417  89,866,167  
       

Other Income 1,355,017,678 832,388,254 30,963,925 18,352,460  17,612,193  14,969,028  
              

Operating profit 

before finance 
cost 

26,969,611,756 13,284,750,998 1,649,796,310 317,330,601  125,665,610  104,835,195  

       

Finance cost 230,296,277 168,911,343 168,360,565 53,878,028  21,185,607  64,061,567  
       

Profit before 
taxation 

26,739,315,479 13,115,839,655 1,481,435,745 263,452,573  104,480,003  40,773,628  
       

 Taxation / levies  10,403,114,137 5,180,163,079 486,359,121 145,613,045  28,684,681  13,140,081  
       
 

Profit after 
taxation 

 

16,336,201,342
 

7,935,676,576
 

995,076,624
 

117,839,528
 

75,795,322
 

27,633,547
 

       
Earnings

 
per share 

-basic and diluted
 

270.26
 

131.29
 

16.46
 

1.95
 

1.25
 

0.96
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Operating Expenses
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Operating Profit

Profit or Loss Waterfall - 2025

Sales - net 
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e
s 

m
ill

io
n

16,336

  Cost
of sales 

Total operating
     expenses 

      Other
     income

     Finance
        cost

    Taxation     Profit After Tax
            2025

(10,403)

(230)

1,355

(6,027)
(77,052)

108,694
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Cash Flow Analysis  
 

Six Years Summary
 

(Annexure -
 

A)
 

Particulars

 

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
       

Cash Flow

 

Statement

 
       

Cash ows from 
operating activities

 
14,114,888,384

 

8,962,518,900

 

1,621,781,900

 

781,162,778

 

(61,903,001)

 

(99,801,706)

 

Cash ows from 
investing activities

 
(3,714,461,120)

 

(1,974,972,332)

 

(453,195,856)

 

(941,471,728)

 

(547,841,015)

 

(335,740,018)

 

Cash ows from 
nancing activities

 
(1,565,617,748)

 

(254,668,988)

 

(312,823,438)

 

318,374,337

 

175,902,052

 

878,393,418

 

Net increase / 
(decrease) in cash 
& cash equivalent

 8,834,809,516
 

6,732,877,580
 

855,762,606
 

158,065,387
 

(433,841,963)
 
442,851,694

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Free Cash Flows

Particulars
 

2025
 

2024
 

2023
 

2022
 

2021
 

2020
 

              Profit Before 
Taxation

 

26,739,315,479

 
13,115,839,655

 
1,481,435,745

 
263,452,573

 
104,480,003

 
40,773,628

 

Adjustment non-
cash

 

items

 

1,643,437,657

 

935,893,684

 

596,496,337

 

252,123,116

 

73,440,082

 

110,714,588

 
Changes in 
working capital

 

(2,248,120,644)

 

(2,072,220,676)

 

304,286,591

 

580,888,732

 

(133,411,200)

 

(142,681,564)

 
Total

 

26,134,632,492

 

11,979,512,663

 

2,382,218,673

 

1,096,464,421

 

44,508,885

 

8,806,652

 
       Less: Capital 

expenditure

 

3,732,521,120

 

1,989,256,217

 

454,614,356

 

945,680,728

 

549,608,015

 

342,567,018

 
Free Cashflows

 

22,402,111,372

 

9,990,256,446

 

1,927,604,317

 

150,783,693

 

(505,099,130)

 

(333,760,366)

 
 

Cash Movement - 2025

R
u

p
e

e
s 

m
ill

io
n (1,566)

    Cash and Cash
  Equivalents at the
beginning of the year

       Net Cash 
    General from
Operating Activities

       Net Cash Used 
          in Investing
            Activities

       Net Cash Used 
          in Financing
            Activities

             Cash and Cash
               Equivalents at
            the End of the Year

16,596

(3,714)

14,115

7,762
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Financial Ratios  – Six Years Analysis  

Particulars

   

2025

 

2024

 

2023

 

2022

 

2021

 

2020

 

Profitability Ratios

         

        

Gross Profit

 

to Sales

 

%

 

29.11

 

27.14

 

14.03

 

8.69

 

9.09

 

10.13

 

Profit Before tax to Sales

 

%

 

24.60

 

22.75

 

8.15

 

2.56

 

2.59

 

1.41

 

Net Profit to Sales

 

%

 

15.03

 

13.77

 

5.48

 

1.15

 

1.88

 

0.96

 

Operating Profit to 
Sales

 

%

 

23.57

 

21.60

 

8.91

 

2.91

 

2.68

 

3.11

 

EBITDA Margin to Sales

 

%

 

25.12

 

23.54

 

10.36

 

4.54

 

3.66

 

4.29

 

Operating leverage

 

Times

 

1.19

 

3.08

 

5.74

 

1.14

 

0.51

 

3.17

 

Shareholders' Funds 

 

(In Million)

 
PKR

 
23,707.70

 
10,104.09

 
2,915.05

 
1,953.96

 
1,839.85

 
1,768.96

 

Return on Equity After 
Tax

 %
 

96.63
 

121.91
 

40.87
 

6.21
 

4.20
 

1.96
 

Return on Capital 
employed -

 
(PBIT)
 %

 
109.41

 
121.00

 
45.08

 
11.48

 
5.27

 
4.69

 

Return on Capital 
employed - After Tax % 66.27 72.28 27.19  4.26  3.18  1.24  

Return on Investment % 46.04 43.00 14.92  2.28  2.03  1.15  

Total Shareholders 
Return 

% 118.18 84.25 4.49  5.21  15.82  11.46  

Sustainable Growth 
Rate

 
%

 
78.04

 
103.34

 
30.94

 
6.21

 
4.20

 
1.96

 

        
Investment / Market Ratios

      

        
Basic Earnings per 
Share (EPS)

 

PKR

 
270.26

 
131.29

 
16.46

 
1.95

 
1.25

 
0.96

 

Price Earnings ratio

 

Times

 

4.22

 

6.34

 

3.09

 

31.86

 

134.15

 

130.45

 
Price to Book ratio

 

Times

 

2.91

 

4.98

 

1.05

 

1.92

 

4.25

 

2.52

 
Dividend Yield ratio

 

%

 

4.56

 

2.40

 

7.87

 

-

 

-

 

-

 Dividend Payout ratio

 

%

 

19.24

 

15.23

 

24.30

 

-

 

-

 

-

 Dividend Cover Ratio

 

Times

 

5.20

 

6.56

 

4.12

    
Cash Dividend per 
share

 

PKR

 

52

 

20

 

4

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
Market value per share 
at the year end

 

PKR

 

1,139.82

 

832.46

 

50.85

 

62.12

 

168.21

 

124.59

 
Market value per share 
-

 

Highest Value during 
the year

 

PKR

 

1,370.41

 

852.72

 

68.59

 

180.15

 

204.54

 

258.64

 

- - -
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Particulars

   

2025

 

2024

 

2023

 

2022

 

2021

 

2020

 

Market value per share 
-

 

Lowest Value during 
the year

 

PKR 830.76 53.91 44.74 60.88 123.98 76.51

 

Breakup value per 
share

 

PKR

 

392.21

 

167.16

 

48.23

 

32.33

 

39.57

 

49.46

 

Free Float Shares

 

No.

 

21,156,087

 

19,162,076

 

18,986,922

 

19,345,905

 

15,101,094

 

6,644,521

 

Free Float Shares as % 
of total shares 
outstanding

 
%

 

35.00

 

31.70

 

31.41

 

32.01

 

32.48

 

18.58

 

Free Cash Flow

 

PKR

 

22,402,111,372

 

9,990,256,446

 

1,927,604,317

 

150,783,693

 

(505,099,130)

 

(333,760,366)

 

        

Activity / Turnover Ratios

 
        

Inventory Turnover

 
Times

 
5.40

 
4.93

 
7.02

 
7.33

 
4.96

 
3.98

 

No. of Days in Inventory
 

Days
 

67.61
 

74.00
 

52.01
 

49.80
 

73.56
 

91.71
 

Debtor Turnover
 

Times
 

890.37
 

285.85
 

80.75
 

69.24
 

33.68
 

24.28
 

No. of Days in 
Receivable

 Days
 

0.41
 

1.28
 

4.52
 

5.27
 

10.84
 

15.03
 

Creditor Turnover Times 58.89 43.42 24.69  16.69  9.39  7.15  

No. of Days in Payable Days 6.20 8.41 14.78  21.87  38.86  51.08  

Operating Cycle Days 68.02 75.28 56.53  55.07  84.40  106.75  

Total Assets Turnover Times 3.06 3.12 2.72  1.99  1.08  1.21  

Fixed Assets Turnover
 

Times
 

17.21
 

15.31
 

6.30
 

4.30
 

2.44
 

2.41
 

Equity Multiplier
 

Times
 

2.10
 

2.84
 

2.74
 

2.72
 

2.07
 

1.70
 

        
Liquidity / Capital

 
Structure

 
Ratios

 
        

Current ratio

 

Times

 

1.97

 

1.35

 

1.18

 

0.97

 

1.20

 

2.47

 
Quick ratio

 

Times

 

1.14

 

0.56

 

0.51

 

0.37

 

0.84

 

1.34

 Cash to Current 
Liabilities

 

Times

 

0.97

 

0.43

 

0.26

 

0.06

 

0.01

 

0.76

 Cash flow from 
operations to Sales

 

Times

 

0.13

 

0.16

 

0.09

 

0.08

 

(0.02)

 

(0.03)

 
Cash flow to capital 
expenditures

 

Times

 

2.37

 

3.38

 

1.88

 

0.17

 

(0.79)

 

1.29

 Cash flow coverage 
ratio

 

Times

 

85.91

 

24.87

 

3.03

 

1.11

 

(0.14)

 

(0.26)

 Financial leverage ratio

 

Times

 

0.01

 

0.04

 

0.19

 

0.28

 

0.24

 

0.24

 
Weighted average cost 
of debt

 

%

 

31.34

 

18.20

 

11.87

 

2.84

 

1.40

 

4.33

 
Debt to Equity ratio 

 

(as per book value)

 

Ratio

 

1 : 99

 

4 : 96

 

19 : 81

 

28:72

 

24 : 76

 

24 : 76
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Particulars

   

2025

 

2024

 

2023

 

2022

 

2021

 

2020

 

        

Debt to Equity ratio 

 

(as per market value)

 
Ratio

 

0.3 : 99.7

 

0.6 : 99.4

 

10.3 : 89.7

 

10.8 : 89.2

 

4.8 : 95.2

 

7.3 : 92.7

 

Net assets per share

 

PKR

 

392.21

 

167.16

 

48.23

 

32.33

 

39.57

 

49.46

 

Interest Coverage ratio
 

Times
 

117.11
 

78.65
 

9.80
 

5.89
 

5.93
 

1.64
 

 

Non-Financial Ratios
         

       

% of Plant Availability % 91 92 85  91  89  83  

Production per 
Employee 

No. 52 68 42  84  122  97  

Revenue per Employee PKR 73,392,640 44,892,888 15,375,886  9,888,563  4,374,838  3,467,332  

Staff turnover ratio % 7.16 6.46 10.83  9.49  8.46  6.59  

Spares Inventory as % 
of Assets Cost

 

%
 

0.15
 

0.02
 

0.05
 

0.13
 

0.07
 

0.19
 

Maintenance Cost as % 
of Operating Expenses

 

%
 

0.31
 

0.74
 

0.80
 

1.78
 

1.93
 

1.88
 

Customer Retention 
Ratio

 

%

 

100.00

 

100.00

 

100.00

 

100.00

 

100.00

 

100.00
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Analysis:  

The Company has recorded improved operating efficiency with EBIT Margin rising to 

24.81% in 2025 from 23.05% in 2024, while Tax and Interest Burdens remained stable. 

However, a decline in Asset Turnover and lower financial leverage (Equity Multiplier 2.10 

vs. 2.84) led to a reduced Return on Equity of 96.63% compared to 121.91% last year. 

DuPont Analysis 
 

Ratio
 

2025
 

2024
 

Tax Burden  61.09% 60.50% 

Interest Burden  99.15% 98.73% 

EBIT Margin  24.81% 23.05% 

Asset Turnover  3.06  3.12  

Equity Multiplier  2.10 2.84 

Return on Equity  96.63% 121.91% 

 

 

Return on Equity  =  
Return on Assets / 

Ownership Ratio 
96.63%  46.04% 47.65% 

     

Return on Assets  
=  

Net Profit Margin 
x 

Assets Turnover 
46.04%  15.03% 3.06 

Net Profit Margin  
=  

Net profit 
/ 

Sales 
15.03%  16,336,201,342 108,694,499,692 

Assets Turnover  
=  

Sales 
/ 

Avg. Total Assets 

3.06  108,694,499,692 35,481,439,791 
     

Ownership Ratio  
=  

Avg. Total Equity 
/ 

Avg. Total Assets 

47.65%  16,905,892,074 35,481,439,791 

Avg. Total Equity  
=  

Avg. Total Assets 
- 

Avg. Total 
Liabilities 

16,905,892,073  35,481,439,791 18,575,547,718 

Avg. Total Liabilities  
=  

Avg. Total Non - Current 
Liabilities + 

Avg. Total Current 
Liabilities 

18,575,547,718  909,340,356 17,666,207,362 
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  Horizontal Analysis 

 
Statement of Financial Position

 

Particulars 
2025  

vs  

2024 

2024  

vs  

2023 

2023  

vs  

2022 

2022  

vs  

2021  

2021  

vs  

2020  

2020  

vs  
 2019  

   

Equity and Liabilities 
  

Authorized Share Capital 
      

Issued, subscribed and paid-up 

share capital 
0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 30.00 %  30.00 %  65.84 %  

Capital Reserve - share premium 
account 

0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %  0.00 %  100.00 %  

Revenue Reserve - un-
appropriated profit 

152.13 % 410.06 % 121.34 % (3.11)%  (4.26)%  3.00 %  
       

Total equity 134.63% 246.62% 49.19%  6.20%  4.01%  69.33%         
Non Current Liabilities 

      

Long term financing (67.20)% (55.94)% (32.45)%  72.78 %  14.85 %  27.54 %  

Deferred tax liabilities (1.92)% 100.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %  (100.00)%  2,112.77 %  

Post-employment benefits 39.09 % 26.24 % 32.93 % 20.67 %  100.00 %  (100.00)%  

Deferred grant 0.00 % 0.00 % (100.00)% (90.20)%  10.22 %  100.00 %  

Deferred revenue (100.00)% 185.79 % 122.23 % 100.00 %  0.00 %  0.00 %         
Total Non-Current Liabilities 7.77% 17.57% (8.04)% 48.28%  17.55%  25.32%         
Current Liabilities       

Trade and other payables 1.36 % 324.16 % 52.50 % 24.41 %  385.57 %  (19.85)%  

Unclaimed dividend 254.54 % 345.51 % 0.00 % 0.00 %  (2.52)%  (3.50)%  

Short term borrowings 0.00 % 0.00 % (100.00)% 36.09 %  100.00 %  0.00 %  

Profit accrued on loans and other 
payables 

682.30 % (26.29)% (32.93)%  287.15 %  (77.55)%  155.32 %  

Current portion of long-term 
liabilities 

(45.08)% 9.19 % (2.18)% 45.49 %  1.89 %  487.63 %  

Taxation-Net (76.58)% 100.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %  0.00 %  0.00 %         
Total current liabilities (6.36)% 353.27% 39.17%  27.29%  287.30%  5.61%         
Total equity and liabilities 42.81% 280.29% 35.87%  21.42%  65.18%  43.09%         
Assets       

Non-Current Assets       

Property, plant & equipment 74.11 % 59.38 % 8.37 % 43.15 %  39.91 %  32.09 %  
Intangible asset (52.17)% (34.29)% (30.06)%  (25.63)%  397.36 %  (29.12)%  
Long term loans and advances 88.03 % 190.17 % (37.51)%  (24.88)%  5.34 %  10.42 %  
Long term deposits 0.67 % 47.90 % 2.84 % 45.13 %  15.17 %  5.81 %  
Deferred Taxation 0.00 % (100.00)% (78.07)%  225.44 %  153.49 %  100.00 %         
Total non-current assets 74.08% 57.82% 2.58% 47.30%  40.96%  33.58%         
Current Assets       

Stores, spares and loose tools 985.55 % 59.18 % (51.47)%  129.40 %  (37.93)%  76.50 %  
Stock in trade (0.63)% 428.13 % 55.65 % 112.96 %  23.90 %  2.21 %  
Trade debts (16.45)% (50.79)% 50.29 % 53.81 %  (4.63)%  6.05 %  
Loans, advances, deposits, 
prepayments and other 
receivables  

13.20 % 219.39 % 6.22 % (60.11)%  734.95 %  21.93 %  

Cash and bank balances 113.83 % 654.44 % 494.54 % 1,055.38 %  (96.66)%  7,421.23 %         
Total current assets 36.95% 416.65% 69.61%  3.07%  88.08%  53.42%         
Total Assets 42.81% 280.29% 35.87%  21.42%  65.18%  43.09%  
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Vertical Analysis  

Statement of Financial Position

 
 

Particulars

 

2025 2024 2023 2022

 

2021

 

2020

  
Equity and Liabilities

 
Authorized Share Capital

       Issued, subscribed and 
paid up share capital

 

1.45%

 

2.07%

 

7.87%

 

10.69%

 

9.98%

 

12.68%

 Capital Reserve -

 

share 
premium account

 

1.34%

 

1.91%

 

7.25%

 

9.85%

 

11.97%

 

19.76%

 Revenue Reserve -

 

un-
appropriated profit

 

54.02%

 

30.60%

 

22.81%

 

14.00%

 

17.55%

 

30.28%

 
       Total equity

 

56.80%
 

34.57%
 

37.93%
 

34.55%
 

39.50%
 

62.73%
        Non-Current

 
Liabilities

       Long term financing
 

0.12%
 

0.52%
 

4.49%
 

9.02%
 

6.34%
 

9.12%
 Deferred tax liabilities

 
0.49%

 
0.71%

 
0.00%

 
0.00%

 
0.00%

 
7.17%

 Post-employment
 

benefits
 

1.65%
 

1.70%
 

5.11%
 

5.22%
 

5.26%
 

0.00%
 Deferred grant

 
0.00%

 
0.00%

 
0.00%

 
0.01%

 
0.12%

 
0.18%

 Deferred revenue
 

0.00%
 

0.07%
 

0.09%
 

0.06%
 

0.00%
 

0.00%
        Total Non-Current

 
Liabilities

 
2.26%

 
3.00%

 
9.69%

 
14.31%

 
11.72%

 
16.47%

        Current Liabilities
       

Trade and other payables
 

39.25%
 

55.29%
 

49.58%
 

44.17%
 

43.11%
 

14.66%
 

Unclaimed dividend  0.05%  0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.03% 0.05% 
Short term borrowings  0.00%  0.00% 0.00% 2.88% 2.57% 0.00% 
Profit accrued on loans 
and other payables  

0.32%  0.06% 0.30% 0.62% 0.19% 1.42% 

Current portion of long-
term  liabilities  

0.27%  0.71% 2.48% 3.45% 2.88% 4.67% 

Taxation-Net  1.04%  6.35% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%        

Total current liabilities  40.94%  62.43% 52.38% 51.14% 48.78% 20.80%        

Total equity and liabilities  100.00%  100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%        

Assets        

Non-Current  Assets        

Property, plant & 
equipment

 19.02%
 

15.60%
 

37.23%
 

46.68%
 

39.59%
 

46.75%
 

Intangible asset
 

0.00%
 

0.00%
 

0.00%
 

0.01%
 

0.01%
 

0.00%
 

Long term loans and 
advances

 0.18%
 

0.13%
 

0.18%
 

0.38%
 

0.62%
 

0.97%
 

Long term deposits
 

0.02%
 

0.03%
 

0.08%
 

0.10%
 

0.09%
 

0.12%
 

Deferred Taxation
 

0.00%
 

0.00%
 

0.51%
 

3.16%
 

1.18%
 

0.77%
        

Total non-current
 

assets
 

19.22%
 

15.77%
 

38.00%
 

50.33%
 

41.49%
 

48.62%
        

Current Assets
       

Stores, spares and loose 
tools

 
0.15%

 

0.02%

 

0.05%

 

0.13%

 

0.07%

 

0.19%

 

Stock in trade

 

34.09%

 

48.99%

 

35.28%

 

30.80%

 

17.56%

 

23.41%

 

Trade debts

 

0.27%

 

0.46%

 

3.52%

 

3.18%

 

2.51%

 

4.35%

 

Loans, advances, deposits, 
prepayments and other 
receivables 

 
6.51%

 

8.21%

 

9.77%

 

12.50%

 

38.05%

 

7.53%

 

Cash and bank balances

 

39.76%

 

26.56%

 

13.39%

 

3.06%

 

0.32%

 

15.91%

        

Total current assets

 

80.78%

 

84.23%

 

62.00%

 

49.67%

 

58.51%

 

51.38%

        

Total Assets

 

100.00%

 

100.00%

 

100.00%

 

100.00%

 

100.00%

 

100.00%
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62.73%

39.50%
34.55%

37.93% 34.57%

56.80%

16.47%

11.72% 14.31% 9.69% 3.00%

2.26%

20.80% 48.78% 51.14% 52.38% 62.43% 40.94%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Total Equity and Liabilities

Total equity Total Non Current Liabilities Total current liabilities

48.62%
41.49%

50.33%

38.00%

15.77%
19.22%

51.38% 58.51% 49.67% 62.00% 84.23% 80.78%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Total Assets

Total Non Current Assets Total Current Assets

Graphical Presentation
 

Vertical Analysis Statement of Financial Position 
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Horizontal Analysis  
Statement of Prot or Loss

 
 

Particulars
 2025 

 

vs
 

 
2024

 

2024 
 

vs
 

 
2023

 

2023 
 

vs
 

 
2022

 

2022 
 

vs
 

 
2021

 

2021 
 

vs
 

 
2020

 

2020 
 

vs
 

 
2019

 

       

Sales -
 

net
 

88.57 %
 

217.16 %
 

76.89 %
 

154.72 %
 

39.49 %
 

(10.15)%
 

cost of sales
 

83.48 %
 

168.78 %
 

66.55 %
 

155.84 %
 

41.10 %
 

(10.01)%
 

       

Gross profit
 

102.23 %
 

513.71 %
 

185.51 %
 

143.49 %
 

25.16 %
 

(11.40)%
 

       

Distribution and marketing 
cost 91.86 % 207.72 % 37.28 %  237.87 %  31.64 %  3.12 %  

Administrative expenses 46.18 % 59.87 % 61.87 %  21.04 %  21.84 %  7.63 %  

Other operating expenses 99.31 % 876.36 % 496.28 %  82.24 %  48.71 %  (44.72)%  

Total Operating expenses 88.71 % 243.20 % 56.68 %  129.62 %  27.33 %  2.48 %  

       

Operating Profit 105.70 % 669.22 % 441.46 %  176.69 %  20.24 %  (32.17)%  

       

Other Income 62.79 % 2,588.25 % 68.72 %  4.20 %  17.66 %  309.41 %  
       
       

Operating Profit Before 
Finance Cost 

103.01 % 705.24 % 419.90 %  152.52 %  19.87 %  (22.99)%  

       

Finance Cost 36.34 % 0.33 % 212.48 %  154.31 %  (66.93)%  163.71 %  

       

Profit Before Taxation 103.87 % 785.35 % 462.32 %  152.16 %  156.24 %  (63.54)%  

       

Taxation / levies 100.83 % 965.09 % 234.01 %  407.63 %  118.30 %  (55.98)%  

       

Profit After Taxation 105.86 % 697.49 % 744.43 %  55.47 %  174.29 %  (66.30)%  
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2.48 %

27.33 %

129.62 %

56.68 %

243.20 %

88.71 %

0.00 %

50.00 %

100.00 %

150.00 %

200.00 %
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300.00 %

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Total Operating Expenses

(66.30)%
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200.00 %
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2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Profit After Tax

Graphical Presentation
 Horizontal Analysis Statement of profit or Loss 

   

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(10.15)%
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0.00 %

50.00 %

100.00 %

150.00 %

200.00 %

250.00 %

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Sales - Net

(11.40)%
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Vertical Analysis 
Statement of Prot or Loss

 

Particulars 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 

Sales - net 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 

cost of sales 70.89 % 72.86 % 85.97 % 91.31 % 90.91 % 89.87 % 

       

Gross profit 29.11 % 27.14 % 14.03 % 8.69 % 9.09 % 10.13 % 

       

Distribution and marketing cost 3.20 % 3.14 % 3.24 % 4.17 % 3.15 % 3.33 % 

Administrative expenses 0.52 % 0.66 % 1.32 % 1.44 % 3.03 % 3.47 % 

Other operating expenses 1.83 % 1.73 % 0.56 % 0.17 % 0.23 % 0.22 % 

Total Operating expenses 5.55 % 5.54 % 5.12 % 5.78 % 6.41 % 7.03 % 

       

Operating Profit 23.57 % 21.60 % 8.91 % 2.91 % 2.68 % 3.11 % 

       

Other Income 1.25 % 1.44 % 0.17 % 0.18 % 0.44 % 0.52 % 

       

Operating Profit Before Finance 
Cost 

24.81 % 23.05 % 9.08 % 3.09 % 3.12 % 3.63 % 

       

Finance Cost 0.21 % 0.29 % 0.93 % 0.52 % 0.53 % 2.22 % 

       

Profit Before Taxation 24.60 % 22.75 % 8.15 % 2.56 % 2.59 % 1.41 % 

       

Taxation / levies 9.57 % 8.99 % 2.68 % 1.42 % 0.71 % 0.45 % 

       

Profit After Taxation 15.03 % 13.77 % 5.48 % 1.15 % 1.88 % 0.96 % 
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Graphical Presentation 
Vertical Analysis - Statement of profit or Loss 
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Horizontal Analysis 
Statement of Cash Flows

 
 

Particulars 
2025 

 

vs  

2024 

2024 
 

vs  

2023 

2023 
 

vs  

2022 

2022 
 

vs  

2021  

2021 
 

vs  

2020  

2020 
 

vs  

2019           

Cash ows from 
operating activities 

57.49 % 452.63 % 107.61 % (1,361.91)%  (37.97)%  (282.01)%   

Cash ows from 
investing activities 

88.08 % 335.79 % (51.86)% 71.85 %  63.17 %  8.96 %   

Cash ows from 
nancing activities 

514.77 % (18.59)% (198.26)% 81.00 %  (79.97)%  292.23 %   

        

Net increase / 
(decrease) in cash 
& cash equivalent 

31.22 % 686.77 % 441.40 % (136.43)%  (197.97)%  (1,608.48)%   

 

 

 

Vertical Analysis 
 Statement of Cash Flows

 

 
Particulars

 
2025

 
2024

 
2023

 
2022

 
2021

 
2020

  
       

Cash ows from 
operating activities

 
159.76 %

 
133.12 %

 
189.51 %

 
494.20 %

 
14.27 %

 
(22.54)%

 

Cash ows from 
investing activities  

(42.04)%  (29.33)%  (52.96)% (595.62)% 126.28 % (75.81)% 

Cash ows from 
nancing activities  

(17.72)%  (3.78)%  (36.55)% 201.42 % (40.55)% 198.35 % 

       

Net increase / 
(decrease) in cash 
& cash equivalent  

100.00 %  100.00 %  100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 
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MIAN ASAD HAMEED
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SAEED IQBAL KHAN
DIRECTOR

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
ANNEXURE-BAS ON JUNE 30, 2025

FORM-20

                

NUMBER OF    TOTAL PERCENTAGE

SHAREHOLDERS FROM TO SHARES HELD %

5,970 1 - 100 186,480 0.31%

2,159 101 - 500 556,030 0.92%

588 501 - 1,000 451,387 0.75%

693 1,001 - 5,000 1,560,970 2.58%

107 5,001 - 10,000 781,826 1.29%

30 10,001 - 15,000 380,058 0.63%

28 15,001 - 20,000 494,520 0.82%

11 20,001 - 25,000 253,123 0.42%

6 25,001 - 30,000 162,085 0.27%

8 30,001 - 35,000 259,942 0.43%

8 35,001 - 40,000 309,600 0.51%

4 40,001 - 45,000 170,555 0.28%

10 45,001 - 50,000 484,809 0.80%

3 50,001 - 55,000 156,200 0.26%

2 55,001 - 60,000 117,764 0.19%

4 65,001 - 70,000 273,500 0.45%

2 70,001 - 75,000 145,388 0.24%

3 80,001 - 85,000 250,749 0.41%

1 85,001 - 90,000 90,000 0.15%

3 95,001 - 100,000 298,000 0.49%

1 110,001 - 115,000 112,122 0.19%

1 115,001 - 120,000 115,917 0.19%

2 120,001 - 125,000 249,800 0.41%

2 130,001 - 135,000 261,968 0.43%

1 135,001 - 140,000 137,000 0.23%

1 145,001 - 150,000 150,000 0.25%

1 150,001 - 155,000 150,480 0.25%

2 155,001 - 160,000 314,433 0.52%

1 165,001 - 170,000 170,000 0.28%

1 210,001 - 215,000 214,031 0.35%

1 265,001 - 270,000 269,900 0.45%

1 270,001 - 275,000 272,435 0.45%

1 290,001 - 295,000 292,652 0.48%

1 345,001 - 350,000 350,000 0.58%

1 420,001 - 425,000 421,170 0.70%

1 495,001 - 500,000 500,000 0.83%

1 535,001 - 540,000 535,395 0.89%

1 645,001 - 650,000 648,800 1.07%

1 800,001 - 805,000 801,857 1.33%

1 890,001 - 895,000 894,000 1.48%

1 925,001 930,000 927,815 1.53%

1 1,030,001 - 1,035,000 1,032,218 1.71%

1 1,200,001 - 1,205,000 1,200,688 1.99%

1 2,705,001 - 2,710,000 2,706,358 4.48%

1 2,995,001 - 3,000,000 2,998,047 4.96%

1 3,815,001 - 3,820,000 3,816,975 6.31%

1 3,870,001 - 3,775,000 3,874,935 6.41%

1 7,015,001 - 7,020,000 7,018,473 11.61%

1 22,600,001 - 22,650,000 22,625,509 37.43%

9,672 - 60,445,964 100.00%

SHAREHOLDING

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 (SECTION 227 (2)(f)) AND THE COMPANIES REGULATIONS, 2024 (REGULATION 30)

SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED 
Registration Number:  0025184

112



CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

ANNEXURE-B/I

NUMBER OF 

SHARES HELD

% OF 

SHAREHOLDING

I Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and their Spouse And Minor Children

i. Mr. Mian Asad Hameed 22,625,509 37.43%

ii. Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed 3,874,935 6.41%

iii. Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 2,706,358 4.48%

iv. Mr. Mian Muhammad Ali Hameed 7,018,473 11.61%

v. Mrs. Sana Suleyman 927,815 1.53%

vi. Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 1,853 0.00%

vii. Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed 528 0.00%

viii. Mr. Umair Ejaz 1,588 0.00%

ix. Mr. Taha Mahmood 1,443 0.00%

x. Mrs. Naghmana Saeed W/o Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan 1,032,218 1.71%

xi. Mr. Muhammad Suleyman Khan spouse of Mrs. Sana Suleyman 16,704 0.03%

xii. Mrs. Amina Humza Wazir W/o Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir 801,857 1.33%

II Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related Parties Nil -

III NIT and ICP Nil -

IV Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Instituitions 771,232 1.28%

V Insurance / Takaful Companies

i. ASKARI GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 5,000 0.01%

ii. PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 1,841 0.00%

iii. CENTURY INSURANCE COMPANY LTD. 7,371 0.01%

iv. ADAMJEE LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LTD-IMF 125,000 0.21%

v. ALFALAH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 23,402 0.04%

vi. ADAMJEE LIFE ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 25,000 0.04%

vii. E. F. U. GENERAL INSURANCE LIMITED 72,087 0.12%

viii. DAWOOD FAMILY TAKAFUL LIMITED 149,986 0.25%

VI Modarabas and Mutual Funds

i. CDC - TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN STOCK MARKET FUND 500,000 0.83%

ii. CDC - TRUSTEE PAKISTAN CAPITAL MARKET FUND 6,300 0.01%

iii. CDC - TRUSTEE ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 150,480 0.25%

iv. CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS STOCK MARKET FUND 137,000 0.23%

v. CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL STOCK FUND 3,850 0.01%

vi. CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND 7,865 0.01%

vii. CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 6,959 0.01%

viii. CDC-TRUSTEE ALHAMRA ISLAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 34,000 0.06%

ix. CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 4,667 0.01%

x. CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 4,700 0.01%

xi. CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 31,188 0.05%

xii. CDC - TRUSTEE APF-EQUITY SUB FUND 7,900 0.01%

xiii CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 112,122 0.19%

xiv CDC - TRUSTEE APIF - EQUITY SUB FUND 5,050 0.01%

xv CDC - TRUSTEE MCB PAKISTAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 15,000 0.02%

xvi CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP STOCK FUND 214,031 0.35%

xvii CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ALPHA FUND 46,741 0.08%

xviii CDC - TRUSTEE ABL STOCK FUND 69,000 0.11%

xix CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON EQUITY FUND 84,260 0.14%

xx CDC - TRUSTEE HBL PF EQUITY SUB FUND 960 0.00%

xxi CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP INCOME FUND - MT 263 0.00%

xxii CDC - TRUSTEE KSE MEEZAN INDEX FUND 59,116 0.10%

xxiii MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 8,000 0.01%

xxiv CDC - TRUSTEE UBL ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 9,900 0.02%

xxv CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND 3,000 0.00%

xxvi CDC - TRUSTEE AWT ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 13,850 0.02%

xxvii CDC - TRUSTEE AWT STOCK FUND 6,100 0.01%

xxviii CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH MTS FUND - MT 6,311 0.01%

xxix CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON TACTICAL FUND 330 0.00%

xxx CDC - TRUSTEE LAKSON ISLAMIC TACTICAL FUND 662 0.00%

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

MIAN ASAD HAMEED
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SAEED IQBAL KHAN
DIRECTOR

NUMBER OF 

SHARES HELD

% OF 

SHAREHOLDING
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS

xxxi CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 1,500 0.00%

xxxii CDC - TRUSTEE ATLAS ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND 3,000 0.00%

xxxiii CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 14,422 0.02%

xxxiv CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH CONSUMER INDEX EXCHANGE TRADED FUND 3,368 0.01%

xxxv CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 13,400 0.02%

xxxvi CDC - TRUSTEE MAHAANA ISLAMIC INDEX EXCHANGE TRADED FUND 2,509 0.00%

xxxvii CDC - TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND-II 1,640 0.00%

VII Shareholders Holding 10% (other than above S.No. I) Nil -

VIII General Public

a. Local 7,707,382 12.75%

b. Foreign 85,556 0.14%

IX Others (to be specified)

i Joint Stock Companies 5,390,431 8.92%

ii Government Holding 292,652 0.48%

iii. Foreign Companies 4,714,447 7.80%

iv. Others 475,852 0.79%

60,445,964
         

100%TOTAL
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66.39%

0.55%

0.06%

7.04%

3.96%

21.99%
2024

Government Finance Providers

To Society Employees

Shareholders Business

Statement of Value Addition 
   

  

June  30,  
2025  

%   June  30,  
2024  

%  

 Rupees    Rupees   
            
VALUE ADDITION       

      
Gross Sales  128,874,658,880    67,777,174,952   

Other Operation Income  1,355,017,678    832,388,254   

Total Income  130,229,676,558    68,609,563,206   
      

Addition of material and services and 
other expenses  

71,950,925,808    38,115,101,948   

      
TOTAL VALUE ADDITION  58,278,750,750    30,494,461,258   
      
VALUE DISTRIBUTION       

      
To Government

      
Workers’

 
welfare fund

 
546,305,117

   287,069,159
  

Sales tax
 

15,350,127,739
   7,619,148,982

  
Income tax, custom duties & F.E.D

 
22,295,235,541

   12,338,901,023
  

 
38,191,668,397

 
65.53%

  20,245,119,164
 
66.39%

 
To Employees

      
Workers' profits participation fund

 
1,442,645,018

   706,047,215
  

Salaries, wages and benefits
 

2,119,369,223
   1,441,861,735

  

 
3,562,014,241

 
6.11%

  2,147,908,950
 
7.04%

 To Society
      

CSR activities
 

31,538,646
   

18,131,608
  

 
31,538,646

 
0.05%

  
18,131,608

 
0.06%

 To Finance Providers
      

Financial charges to providers of 
finance

 

230,296,277
 

0.40%
  

168,911,343
 

0.55%
 

      To Shareholders
      Dividend to shareholders

 
3,143,190,128

 
5.39%

  
1,208,919,280

 
3.96%

       Retained in / (Distributed) from 
Business

 
     

Un-appropriated profit

 

13,120,043,061

 

22.51%

  
6,705,470,913

 

21.99%

 
      TOTAL VALUE DISTRIBUTION

 

58,278,750,750

 

100%

  
30,494,461,258

 

100%

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

65.53%

0.40%

0.05%

6.11%

5.39%

22.51%

2025

Government Finance Providers

To Society Employees

Shareholders Business

and Its Distribution
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Share Price Sensitivity Analysis 

 The Market Capitalization of the Company at the end of the year 2024-25

 

was Rs. 68.9

 

billion. 

There are many factors which affect the Company’s market share price. Some of these factors 

are mentioned below:

 
Stock Market

 
Company’s share price depends on overall market performance, investor 

confidence in the economy and particular sector and the overall fundamentals 

of the Company. Positive sentiments, news-flows prevailing in the market may 

result in an appreciation of the share price of the Company.
  

 
Law and Order

 

A favorable and stable political environment and law order situation help in 

creating a conducive business environment. Sales of the Company are directly 

impacted by political instability and adverse law and order conditions, hence the 

share price.   
 

Interest Rates  

The variation in interest rates may have a direct impact on the sale of vehicles 

through consumer nancing.   

 
 

Material Prices Volatility  

The production of three-wheeler and four-wheeler requires major raw 

materials which constitute a signicant portion of the Company’s total 

annual expenses. Any negative or positive change in the raw material prices 

will affect the Company’s performance and influence the share price.
  

 
Regulations and Government Policies

 

Company is exposed to Government regulations and policies which directly 

affect the Company’s financial performance which in turn may affect the share 

price.
  

 

Exchange Fluctuations
 

Company is frequently engaged in exports and import arrangements, through 

which the entity is exposed to exchange rate risk. Any favorable or unfavorable 

movement in exchange rates might affect the Company’s profitability and 

hence, affect the share price.

  

Rs.
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High Low Closing

The following table shows the monthly high, low and closing share prices of the Company and 

the volume of shares traded on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited during the nancial year 

ended June 30, 2025:

 

Months

 

Highest (Rs.)

 

Lowest (Rs.)

 

Closing (Rs.)

 

No. of Shares 
Traded

 

Market Capitalization in 
Value*

 (Rs.)

  Jul-24

 

1,194.80

 

826.15

 

1,062.97

 

21,043,161

 

64,252,246,353

  
Aug-24

 

1,202.00

 

990.00

 

1,010.74

 

12,024,686

 

61,095,153,653

  
Sep-24

 

1,066.00

 

936.00

 

962.59

 

7,581,092

 

58,184,680,487

  
Oct-24

 

1,061.00
 

930.16
 

1,045.14
 

11,064,490
 

63,174,494,815
  

Nov-24
 

1,135.00
 

962.36
 

1,004.49
 

10,220,173
 

60,717,366,378
  

Dec-24
 

1,272.04
 

1,005.03
 

1,118.38
 

12,691,925
 

67,601,557,218
  

Jan-25
 

1,142.96
 

947.00
 

1,023.76
 

5,410,122
 

61,882,160,105
  

Feb-25
 

1,200.00
 

1,017.00
 

1,075.70
 

8,602,530
 

65,021,723,475
  

Mar-25
 

1,128.00
 

1,095.00
 

1,076.62
 

2,192,170
 

65,077,333,762
  

Apr-25
 

1,401.00
 

1,000.00
 

1,263.81
 

11,306,863
 

76,392,213,763
  

May-25
 

1,365.00
 

1,111.00
 

1,185.86
 

8,042,010
 

71,680,450,869
  

Jun-25
 

1,214.00
 

1,060.00
 

1,139.82
 

4,089,916
 

68,897,518,686
  

*Market Capitalization in Value is calculated on the closing value. 
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Segmental Analysis of Business 

Performance 
 

Based on internal management reporting structure and products produced and sold, the 

Company is organized into the following operating segments: 

- Automobiles - Three-Wheelers 

- Automotive Parts 

- Household Appliances 

- Automobiles - Four-Wheelers 

 

The detail regarding segment wise performance is appearing in the Note 38 Annual Audited 

Financial Statements for the year ended June 2025. 

 

Disclosure of Market Share of the 

Company 
 

The Company is the rising player in the automotive industry in Pakistan, with production 

capacity of 20,000 units of three-wheelers and 24,000 units of four-wheelers. There are many 

competitors in the industry that can match the Company's scale. However, due to the lack of 

accurate and comprehensive industry data, the precise market share measurement is not 

possible.  

 

CEO Presentation Video on the 

Company's Business Performance 
 

CEO’s presentation regarding the Company’s performance, business overview, strategy and 

outlook is placed on the Company’s corporate website and can be accessed through the 

following link: 

https://sazgarautos.com/reports/shareholder-information-investor-complaint/ 
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ABOUT THE 
REPORT 
We are pleased to present the 2nd Sustainability Report of the Company, underscoring 

our commitment to transparency, accountability, and sustainable practices as we 

embark on our journey towards a more environmentally and socially responsible 

future. 

 

Reporting Period 
The report covers the information about activities and impacts for the period commencing 

July 01, 2024 and ending June 30, 2025. The reporting period for this report aligns with the 

Company’s annual financial reporting period (July - June 2025). This Report is published in 

September 2025. 

 

Report Boundary and Content 
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited as a Company operates as a single entity. The Company 

has no holdings, subsidiaries or joint ventures. The sustainability reporting period is aligned with 

the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the:  

ª Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Standards; 

ª Guidelines on ESG Disclosure for Listed Companies issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP); 

ª ESG Reporting Guidance issued by the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX). 

Additionally, the report considers the disclosure requirements of IFRS S1 and IFRS S2, issued by 

the International Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB), as guiding references to enhance 

transparency and investor relevance. 

This report represents a continued step in our sustainability reporting practice, presenting 

transparent disclosures on our material sustainability-related impacts, risks, and opportunities—

including those related to climate. It outlines our performance, key initiatives, and future 

aspirations, aligned with the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). 
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There have been no restatements or revisions of previously reported information on account of 
any errors, changes in measurement methodology, or changes in the nature of the business. The 
reporting period, scope, boundary, and measurement methods applied remain unchanged.



Assurance 

The report is not externally assured. The company has planned to get the external assurance 

on sustainability reporting in the future. However, this report has been reviewed by the 

Sustainability Committee and approved by the Board. 

 

Reporting Commitment 

We commit to the following in our sustainability reporting: 

- We will gather sustainability related data from various sources across the organization 

and ensure it is accurate and reliable. 

- We will publish our sustainability report every year, aligned with our annual financial 

reporting cycle. 

- Our sustainability report will cover all relevant aspects of our operations, including but 

not limited to environmental impact, social responsibility, and governance practices. 

 

Contact for Feedback 

To share any feedback or comments related to this Sustainability Report, please email us at:  

- sazgar@brain.net.pk 

- info@sazgarautos.com 
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COPRPORATE 
SNAPSHOT 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Legal Status and Nature of Business 
Sazgar Engineering Works Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on September 21, 1991 

as a Private Limited Company and converted into a Public Limited Company on 

November 21, 1994. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The 

Company is domiciled in Pakistan and is principally engaged in manufacturing and 

sale of automobiles, automotive parts. The automotive business includes the 

manufacturing and sale of Three Wheelers and Four Wheelers whereas Automotive 

Parts business includes the manufacturing and sale of tractor Wheel Rims. 

The registered office of the company is situated at 88- Ali Town, Thokar Niaz Baig, 

Raiwind Road, Lahore. The manufacturing facility of three-wheeler and tractor wheel 

rims is located at 18- Km Raiwind Road, Lahore and four-wheeler manufacturing facility 

is situated at Maghrabi Tanki-1 Link Road, Near Ijtamah Chowk, Sunder-Raiwind Road, 

Lahore. 

Scale of the Company 
During the current financial year ended June 30, 2025, the Company has registered a 

net sale of Rs. 108.7 billion, which represents the sale of 10,844 Four-wheelers, 25,786 

three-wheelers, 42,622 tractor wheel rims. The Company has earned a net profit after tax 

of Rs. 16.3 billion. The total assets and equity of the Company as at June 30, 2025 were 

amounting to Rs. 41.7 billion and Rs. 23.7 billion respectively. The workforce of the 

Company comprised of 1,552 permanent employees as at the close of financial year. 

Supply Chain 
The supply chain of the Company spans from procurement of raw materials, semi-

finished & finished parts, finished goods, machinery, services and other inputs from local 

and foreign vendors to delivery/sale of finished vehicles and parts to customers through 

a country-wide network of dealers. The Company’s supply chain is both labor and 

capital intensive. During the year, the Company purchases goods and services worth of 

Rs. 76.6 billion from its supply chain partners.  
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Activities, Brands, Products & Services  
SAZGAR operates in Pakistan’s automotive sector, catering to a diverse customer base 

comprising dealers, individual buyers, and institutional clients. The Company 

manufactures and markets four-wheelers of various types under brands “HAVAL”, 

“JOLION”, “BAIC” and three-wheelers under the brand “SAZGAR”. The Company also 

imports and markets four wheelers under brand “TANK-500” and “ORA”. These 

products are distributed through a nation-wide dealership network. In addition, the 

Company offers tractor wheel rims, which are supplied directly to leading tractor 

assemblers across the country. The Company also provides vehicle parts and after-

sales services through its authorized dealers, ensuring continued support and customer 

satisfaction.  

A detailed overview of our product offerings is available on our official website 

(www.sazgarautos.com) and on page no. 7-9 of the Annual Report 2025. SAZGAR 

affirms that it does not manufacture or sell any product that is banned in any of its 

operating markets. 

 

Memberships and external initiatives 
SAZGAR is a member of the following major associations: 

ª Pakistan Automotive Manufacturers Association 

ª Pakistan Association of Automotive Parts & Accessories Manufacturers 

ª The Lahore Chamber of Commerce and Industry. 

ª Pakistan – China Joint Chamber of Commerce & Industry 

The Company does not provide financial contributions to these associations except 

membership fee; however, it actively participates in events such as exhibitions, seminars, 

and workshops organized by these associations. 

Significant changes 

There were no major changes in the Company’s supply chain, locations, operations and 

organizational structure during the year. However, it continued to make significant 

investments on account of CAPEX, research & development / localization, marketing, 

with notable progress in expansion of four-wheeler manufacturing facility and increase 

in number of dealerships. 
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BOARD’S COMMITMENT 
TO CSR PRACTICES

 The Board of Directors of Sazgar Engineering Works Limited (SEWL)

 

is fully committed to 

adopting and promoting best practices in Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as an integral 

part of the Company’s long-term strategy and value creation model. We recognize that 

responsible business conduct—grounded in ethical governance, environmental stewardship, 

and social accountability—is essential to the sustainable growth of our organization and the 

broader automotive ecosystem in Pakistan.
 

Our CSR strategy is guided by ethical governance, ensuring transparency, accountability, and 

responsible decision-making at all levels. It emphasizes environmental sustainability through 

cleaner technologies, resource efficiency, and emission reduction. At the same time, it 

promotes inclusive growth by supporting local communities, enhancing employee well-being, 

and creating fair opportunities for everyone.  

The Board views CSR and sustainability not only as moral imperatives but also as strategic 

drivers of financial resilience. Our investments in clean technologies and sustainable product 

innovation enhance our competitive positioning, and open avenues for revenue growth. 

As a domestic manufacturer of three-wheelers and four-wheelers, we understand our role in 

shaping urban mobility in Pakistan. The Company is actively expanding its portfolio to include 

eco-friendly mobility solutions, such as Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEVs), Plug-in Hybrids
 

(PHEV), 

and Electric Vehicles (EVs)—a testament to our commitment to reducing greenhouse gas 

emissions, lowering dependence on fossil fuels, and contributing to cleaner air and healthier 

urban environments.
 

Going forward, the Board remains committed to strengthening oversight of
 

Environment, Social 

& Governance (ESG)
 

initiatives and ensuring that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
 

considerations are fully integrated into strategic decision-making, capital investment, and 

performance monitoring. Through continuous improvement and innovation, the Company 

aims to lead Pakistan’s transition toward a more inclusive, low-carbon, and responsible 

automotive future.
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MESSAGE FROM THE 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Dear Stakeholders, 

This is the 2nd Sustainability Report of the Company for the financial year 2024–25. 

This report reflects Company’s ongoing commitment to responsible and 

transparent disclosure of environmental, social, and economic impacts. Our 

sustainability strategy is anchored in four key pillars: environmental stewardship, 

social responsibility, ethical governance, and economic resilience.  

SAZGAR recognizes the pressing challenges facing Pakistan, including climate 

change, rising temperatures, water scarcity, air pollution, and extreme weather 

events. These climate-related risks have the potential to disrupt supply chains, 

impact manufacturing costs, and alter consumer preferences. In response, the 

Company is implementing forward-looking initiatives that address both current 

risks and long-term sustainability opportunities. 

To stay resilient and future-ready, SAZGAR is aligning its strategic direction with the 

existing global trends and the evolving needs of the automotive industry in 

Pakistan. The shift towards decarbonization and growing demand for cleaner 

mobility solutions presents both a challenge and an opportunity. The Company is 

proactively embracing these trends by expanding its product portfolio to include 

Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEVs), Plug-in Hybrid Vehicles (PHEVs) and Electric 

Vehicles (EVs), reducing emissions while supporting Pakistan’s transition to a 

greener economy. Backed by ISO 14001, ISO 9001, and ISO 45001 certifications, 

we continue to invest in sustainable innovation, operational efficiency, and 

stakeholder value creation. 

Your continued trust is enabling the Company to navigate risks, seize opportunities, 

and contribute to a more sustainable automotive future. 
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SAZGAR’S MISSION - 
THROUGH ESG LENS 
 

ESG principles have always been a central element of our organization’s 

mission and corporate strategy.  

Environment (E):  
The company’s mission focuses on providing environment friendly means of 

transportation, indicating a commitment to minimizing the company's environmental 

footprint. This involves producing vehicles with reduced emissions, promoting fuel 

efficiency, and exploring alternative technologies. 

Social (S):  
The company’s mission focuses on safety and comfort highlights a commitment to 

social responsibility. Providing safe transportation options contributes to reducing road 

accidents and enhancing public safety. Comfortable transportation solutions also 

prioritize the well-being and satisfaction of customers. Furthermore, growing through 

innovation of new products can create opportunities for job creation and economic 

development, benefiting local communities and society at large. 

Governance (G):  
The company’s mission emphasizes on achieving market leadership and delivering 

higher returns to stakeholders suggests a commitment to strong governance 

practices. This includes transparent and ethical decision-making processes, effective 

risk management, and accountability to shareholders. Aligning with ESG principles in 

governance ensures that the company operates with integrity, accountability and a 

long-term perspective, ultimately enhancing its sustainability and reputation. 
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SUSTAINABILITY 
JOURNEY 
 

 

2002-03 
Policy on Health, Safety and Environment Policy (HSE) 
launched. 

2004-05 
Manufacturing and assembly of noise free and environment 
friendly Three-Wheeler vehicles. 

2009-10 Initiated Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) reporting. 

2018-19 Revision of policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). 

2019-20 
Manufactures Pakistan’s first ever fully Electric Three-Wheeler 
vehicle (EV). 

2022-23 
Launched first ever locally assembled Hybrid Electric Four-
Wheeler Vehicle “Haval H6 HEV”. 

2023-24 

ª Board’s Sustainability Committee Established. 

ª Obtained three ISO Certifications (ISO 9001,14001, 45001). 

ª Sustainability reporting roadmap and prioritized SDGs. 

ª Revision of policy on Health, Safety and Environment 
Policy (HSE). 

ª Policy on Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I) launched. 

ª Policy on Protection Against Harassment at Work Place 
launched. 

ª Introduced two CBU four-wheeler models GWM 'Ora EV’ 
and 'Tank-500 HEV’. 

2024-25 
ª 1st Sustainability Report (2023-24) published. 

ª Initiated the deployment of Solar Power project of 5.7 
mega-watt at four-wheeler manufacturing site. 
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SUSTAINABILITY 
POLICY 
At SAZGAR, we continuously strive to operate our business in an economically, socially 

and environmentally responsible and ethical manner while improving the quality of 

life of the workforce and their families, local community and the society at large. 

We are highly dedicated to integrate ESG principles into our operations, focusing on 

the following key areas: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Our overall sustainability strategy focuses on minimizing environmental impact, 

enhancing social well-being, and ensuring strong governance. Integrating ESG 

principles into our operations enables us to manage ESG risks and opportunities while 

creating long-term value and drive responsible growth in Pakistan’s automotive 

sector. 

Environmental Performance  
Reducing emissions (climate change), improving energy efficiency, exploring 

renewables, waste management, and promote conservation. 

 

Social Performance  
Employee well-being, health & safety, support communities, product 

responsibility, protection of human rights & child labour and foster diversity. 

 

Governance  
Uphold transparency, ethical practices, strong corporate governance, financial 

performance & stability, IT / data security and stakeholder engagement. 
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SAZGAR & SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT GOALS 
(SDGs) 
As a company, we are convinced that the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) provide a 
shared focus that can empower collaborative action and will accelerate progress towards 
sustainability. 

We fully support and committed to align our initiatives with the United Nations’ Sustainable 
Development Goals, as we consider these goals as guiding tool  on our sustainability journey.  

We have prioritized the following core SDGs based on their relevance to our operations, 

stakeholder expectations, and our ability to drive meaningful impact:  

ª (SDG 2) - Zero hunger 

ª (SDG 3) - Good health and well-being  

ª (SDG 4) - Quality education  

ª (SDG 5) - Gender equality  

ª (SDG 6) - Clean water and sanitation  

ª (SDG 7) - Affordable and clean energy  

ª (SDG 8) - Decent work and economic 

growth 

ª (SDG 9) -  Industry, innovation and 

infrastructure  

ª (SDG 10) -  Reduced Inequalities  

ª (SDG 12) -  Responsible consumption 

and production  

ª (SDG 13)  -  Climate action   

 

By focusing on the above SDGs, we are also aiming to comply with the Pakistan Stock 

Exchange’s (PSX) minimum SDGs reporting requirements.  

Aligning with the SDGs will help us make a meaningful contribution to sustainable development 

and position our company strategically in the marketplace  as an environmentally responsible 

manufacturer. 
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CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE  

 

Good corporate governance is fundamental to the smooth, effective and transparent 

operation of a company and its ability to attract investment and to protect the rights of 

shareholders & other stakeholders. 

Our governance structure is based on the requirements of Companies Act 2017, Listed 

Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, applicable guidelines and 

directives issued by the Regulators and other best practices. Our robust governance 

framework reinforces our dedication to upholding high ethical standards, integrity, 

transparency, accountability, and adherence to relevant laws and regulations. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The Board of Directors (BOD) is SAZGAR’s highest governing body. The Board has an oversight 

of the risks and opportunities arising from the Company’s activities and is responsible for 

identifying the direction, strategies & objectives and monitoring the implementation of the 

same by management.  

Board Statement to Establish High Level of Ethics & Compliance in 

the Company 

The Board of Directors are fully committed to maintaining the highest standards of ethics and 

compliance. The Company pledges to uphold all legal and regulatory requirements while 

fostering a culture of honesty, accountability, and ethical conduct.  

The Company expects every stakeholder to act with respect for these principles, ensuring 

fairness and integrity in the operations of the Company.  

By championing these values, the Company aims to build trust and achieve long-term success 

while positively contributing to our community and industry. 

Composition and Diversity 

The Board consists of nine members which includes three Executive Directors, three Non-

Executive Directors and three Independent Directors. 

None of the directors hold directorship of more than seven listed companies. 

The board comprises of highly qualified professionals from varied disciplines, with expertise and 

experience relevant in the context of the company’s operations.  

The Company’s independent directors were selected after due diligence from a database 

maintained by Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) and they have provided 

their consent to act as director, along with ‘Declaration to the Company’ that they qualify the 

criteria of independence notified under the Companies Act 2017. 

The existing board members were elected for a period of three years, in accordance with the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and shall hold office up to March 19, 2026.  
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33%

22%

The Company has not introduced any specific quotas for specific nationalities, ethnic 

minorities, or special age groups for the Board.

 
The Board of the Directors of the Company did not include any foreign Directors. During the 

year, no Board meeting was held outside Pakistan.
 

In addition, the detailed explanation about the following is outlined in the Directors’ Report 

2025.
 

ª
 
Directors’ Training Program (DTP)

 ª
 
Director’ Remuneration Policy

 ª
 
Directors’ Remuneration Packages

 

 

The office of the Chairperson and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
 

are separate, and the 

Chairperson is a non-executive director. The two posts are separate to ensure a clear distinction 

between the Chairperson’s responsibility to manage the Board and the Chief Executive 

Officer’s responsibility to manage the Company’s business. 

Gender diversity on Board  

The company has two female non-executive directors (out of total three NEDs) 

on its board, aligning with the Code of Corporate Governance for listed 

companies, which mandates the inclusion of female directors on the board. 

Allocation of Board seats   

Type  Independent Directors Female Directors 

Seat  Count  03 02 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

Profile of the Board
 

Directors’ profiles including name, status (independent / non-executive / executive), 

education, industry experience and involvement with other companies have been placed on 

page no. 11 the Annual Report 2025

 

and on the website of the company.

 

R e p re s e n ta t i o n O n B o a rd

0% 5% 10% 25% 30% 35%

Women Directors Independent Directors

 

20%15%
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Meetings of the Board 

In compliance with regulations, the Board is required to meet at least once every quarter to 

effectively monitor the Company’s performance. Additional meetings may be conducted in 

order to address other critical matters as needed. 

All Board meetings conducted during the year 2024-25 were in compliance with the 

Companies Act 2017 and related regulations. The Chief Financial Officer and the Company 

Secretary also participated in all of the meetings. The minutes of all the meetings were 

recorded and promptly circulated among all directors for approval. These minutes were then 

formally authorized in subsequent Board meetings. 

For more details about frequency and attendance at Board meetings, refer to the Directors’ 

Report 2025. 

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board 

The Board of Directors plays a pivotal role in guiding the Company towards long-term success 

and enhancing value for stakeholders. It sets the strategic direction for the company, defining 

its vision, mission, core values, ethical standards, and business policies.  

The Board of the Company exercises all its powers and discharges its duties as provided by the 

Companies Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 

2019 and Company’s Articles of Association. These include, but are not limited to, adoption of 

corporate governance practices, setting & monitoring company’s strategies, governance of 

risk & internal control system, appointment of key management positions, approval of annual 

budgets including capital expenditures, investments in new ventures and approval of related 

party transactions.  

Financial statements of the Company, including interim and final dividends and review of 

internal / external audit observations regarding the overall control environment including 

effectiveness of the control procedures, are also approved by the Board. An independent 

Internal Audit department ensures continuous compliance and monitoring of formal policies 

and effectiveness of the internal control framework, designed by the Board for the conduct of 

the Company’s business. 

Decision Taken by the Board & Delegated to Management 

All of the decisions are made after thorough deliberations during Board meetings, ensuring 

compliance with legal requirements and adherence to best practices in corporate 

governance. 

The Board meetings of the Company are usually held quarterly to decide the matters requiring 

the Directors’ approval. Further, if a decision on any matter is required on an urgent basis and 

then an emergent meeting is also called, however, some matters are also decided by the 

Board through a circular resolution. 

The Board members ensure that they fulfill all responsibilities assigned to them as required under 

applicable laws and regulations.  

The Board also delegates its tasks to subcommittees and the management and keeps follow 

up in Board meetings. The day-to-day operational matters and the task assigned by the Board 

or its subcommittees are dealt with by the management in consultation with the CEO. 
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Board’s Performance Evaluation 

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee of the Board conducts an annual 

performance evaluation process.  

The evaluation results are placed before the Board for its consideration and necessary action.  

The Company does not involve an external consultant to carry out an evaluation of the 

Board’s performance. During the year, there were no changes in the composition of Board as 

a result of Board’s performance evaluation. 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

The Board has constituted five committees, with proper delegation as per Listed Companies 

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019, which assist the Board in discharging its 

duties in an effective manner.   

The Board Committees are as follows: 

Sr. No. Name of Committees 

1 Audit Committee 

2 Risk Management Committee 

3 Human Resource & Remuneration Committee 

4 Nomination Committee 

5 Sustainability Committee 

The Committees function according to their respective terms of reference (TORs), which have 

been placed on the website of the company. 

For more details about Board Committees, their structure and meeting frequency, refer to the 

Directors’ Report 2025. 

Roles and Responsibilities of the Chairperson and CEO 

The Chairperson is responsible for leading the Board of Directors, ensuring its effective 

functioning and adherence to corporate governance principles. Chairperson provides 

strategic oversight, guide discussions, and ensures that decisions align with the company’s 

long-term goals. The Chairperson also acts as a liaison between the Board and the CEO, 

fostering a constructive working relationship and ensuring that the Board is informed and 

engaged in key matters affecting the company. 

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management and operational leadership of the 

company, executing the Board’s strategic directives. He drives business performance, 

manage & safeguard resources, and ensures compliance with regulatory and corporate 

governance standards. He is accountable for delivering financial results, fostering a positive 

corporate culture, and representing the company to stakeholders, including investors, 

regulators, and the public. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM  AND RISK MANAGEMENT
 

The Board of Directors has the overall responsibility for the governance of risk
 

and for 

establishing and maintaining an effective
 
& adequate

 
system of internal controls.

 
The Company has established an adequate system of internal controls, which is sound in 

design and has been effectively implemented and is being monitored continuously.
 

The 

credible
 

internal controls and systems provide strategic value beyond being viewed as a cost 

center,
 

strengthening oversight across departments and operations to anticipate and respond 

effectively to evolving business risk profiles.
  

Company prioritizes a proactive approach to risk management to safeguard its operations 

and stakeholders. Company’s risk management process involves systematic identification, 

assessment, and mitigation of risks, including those that are related sustainability.
 

Company’s 

Risk Management Committee reviews the key risks and develop the strategies to mitigate / 

counter these risks.  

The Company has an independent Internal Audit function, which carries out reviews on the 

financial, operational, IT  and compliance controls, and reports to the management and the 

Audit Committee. External auditors also perform systems control testing annually as part of their 

overall external audit.  The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, considers the 

effectiveness of the internal control procedures, reviews and assesses the adequacy of risk 

management for its effectiveness in risk mitigation. It reviews reports from the internal and 

external auditors and reports its conclusions to the Board.  

Company’s risk management framework  and internal control system along with relevant 

responsibilities have been defined in the policy document, which have been placed on the 

Company’s website.  

CORPORATE PRACTICES  /  POLICY COMMITMENTS 
Our commitment to responsible business practices and corporate policies is vital for creating 

value  for our stakeholders. In light of it, Company has established a “Code of Business 

Conduct”  applicable to all members of the Board, senior management and other employees. 

This code outlines the guidelines  / commitment to Ethical behavior, Ethical business practices, 

including  Conflict of interest, Anti-corruption, Anti-competitive behavior, workplace 

harassment, gifts, health & safety, environment etc. 

All Board members and employees are briefed on the Code of Business Conduct upon joining 

SAZGAR and are obligated to adhere to its principles throughout their tenure, to avoid any 

unethical practices.  

All of the policies adopted and implemented by the Company stipulate the application of the 

precautionary principle and these apply to all the organization’s activities and to all its business 

relationships.
 
During the year, no incident of un-ethical conduct identified or reported.

 

Company’s Code of Conduct
 

has been placed on the company’s website
 

(www.sazgarautos.com).
 

Company’s significant policies include
 
but not limited to:

  

ª
 

Communication and Disclosure Policy
 

ª
 

Risk Management Policy
 

ª
 

Internal Control Policy
 

ª
 

Whistle Blowing Policy
 

ª
 

Policy on Related Party Transactions
 

ª
 

Director’ Remuneration Policy
 

ª
 

Investor Relations Policy
 

ª
 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Policy

 

ª
 

Protection Against Harassment Policy
 

ª
 

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Policy
 

(DE&I)
 

ª
 

Health, Safety, and Environment (HSE) 
Policy
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These policy commitments are integrated at every organizational level, from the highest 

governance body to operational teams. The overall responsibility for

 

embedding,

 implementing and reviewing the policy commitments

 

rests with the Board, which is further 

delegated to the CEO

 

of the Company.

 

However, all department heads ensure the

 

day-to-

day

 

implementation of their respective policies.

 

Regular discussions on responsible business 

conduct are held at senior leadership meetings to ensure oversight and accountability.
 

Compliance with the policy commitments is ensured through internal and external
 

audits. The 

Company frequently updates its policies and procedures based on regulatory changes, inputs 

of the stakeholders and need of the business.
 

Mitigating Negative Impacts
 

The Company is committed to provide for or cooperate in the mitigation and remediation of 

the negative impacts of its activities and operations as far as reasonably possible. In addition 

to addressing grievances through established mechanisms, we also consider insights from 

internal evaluations of potential negative impacts to guide
 

our mitigation efforts.
 

Our approach primarily focuses on minimizing environmental and social effects, and we are 

actively working towards it. ESG risks are carefully prioritized and integrated into our strategic 

planning and execution. This proactive stance allows us to identify potential issues early and 

take timely actions to safeguard air, land, water, and community around. 

Policy on Diversity  

The Company is committed to fostering a diverse, equitable, and inclusive workplace where 

individuals of all genders, backgrounds, abilities, and beliefs are valued and respected. Our 

recruitment and employment practices ensure equal opportunities, free from discrimination 

on the basis of race, religion, gender, marital status, age, or disability, with fair and equitable 

remuneration for all.  

We actively hire from different industries, cultures, and communities, including individuals with 

disabilities, and
 

provide the necessary facilities and training to support their success. Our formal 

DE&I and Protection Against Harassment policies, supported by a defined inquiry process and 

whistleblowing mechanism, safeguard against discrimination or harassment and promote a 

culture of openness and mutual respect. This approach enables us to adapt to evolving 

business needs while contributing to social inclusion and community development.
 

Policy on Dividend Distribution
 

The Company ensures full compliance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies 

(Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission 

of Pakistan (SECP). 

 

In line with regulatory guidelines. The Company disburses final dividends within ten working 

days from the date of declaration at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and for interim 

dividend the payment process is completed within ten working days from start of the book 

closure.
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Conflict of Interest 

The Company believes in handling actual or perceived conflicts of interest constructively. All 

employees are directed to avoid situations where there is a possibility of conflict. 

Company’s code of business conduct contains clear policy / guidance to ensure that any 

conflict of interest is properly disclosed, recorded and addressed, upholding the interests of 

the company.  

Additionally, as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2017, every interested Director is required 

to disclose his interest, in respect of any contracts / arrangements / appointments etc. at the 

meeting of the Board. Interested Directors do not participate in voting on the said resolution 

and it is properly recorded in the minutes of the Board meeting. 

The conflict of interests is managed and monitored by instructing employees about managing 

and avoiding conflict of interest, staying away from any kind of actual and perceived conflict, 

imparting the conflict to the stakeholders and implementing strategies to handle the conflict 

of interest. 

Related Party Transactions 

The Policy on Related Party Transactions sets out clear guidelines to ensure such transactions 

are conducted with fairness, transparency, and in the best interest of the Company and its 

shareholders. It mandates strict compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory 

requirements, including accurate reporting and timely disclosures, thereby upholding 

accountability, integrity, and trust in corporate dealings. 

All the transactions between the Company and its related parties are incurred fairly and 

transparently considering the policy framework. 

The details of all related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee of the 

Company, and upon recommendations of the Audit Committee, the same are placed before 

the Board for review and approval.  

Related party transactions not conducted at arm’s length shall be presented separately to the 

Board, with justification, for approval based on the Audit Committee’s recommendation. 

Any Board member who has a potential interest in any Related Party Transaction will disclose 

the fact and abstain from voting on the approval of the said Related Party Transaction. If a 

majority of the directors are involved in a related party transaction, the matter is required to 

be presented to shareholders at a general meeting for approval and ratification, ensuring full 

transparency and strict adherence to sound governance principles. 

The details of the all the related party relationships and transactions are given in Note 37 of the 

annual audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025. 

Whistleblowing  

The Company’s Whistleblowing Policy outlines procedures for employees to report concerns 

about unethical behavior, illegal activities, or violations of company policies in a confidential 

and protected manner. It ensures anonymity and protection against retaliation for 

whistleblowers, while also detailing the investigation process and actions taken in response to 

reported concerns.   

During the year 2024-25 no incident has been reported.  
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Anti-corruption and Anti-competitive Behavior 

Company’s code of business conduct contains explicit guidance on anti-corruption and anti-

competitive behavior. This code is supported by a robust risk management system designed 

to identify and mitigate risks in these areas. During the year, a thorough risk assessment of all 

major operations was conducted, revealing no significant risks related to corruption or anti-

competitive behavior. 

During the FY 2024-25, the Company reported no violations of laws, regulations, and no fines 

or non-monetary penalties were imposed.  

Insider Trading 
The Company has issued clear instructions relating to insider trading which requires all the 

relevant employees to maintain confidentiality of inside information at all times. The Company 

is in compliance with all the requirements of laws & regulations relating to insider trading 

including maintenance of register of persons having access to inside information by 

designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record 

including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.  

PRIVACY AND DATA/RECORDS PROTECTION 
The company is committed to safeguarding the both physical and electronic data/records of 

the Company and the personal information of its stakeholders, recognizing the importance of 

secure data handling and protection. To achieve this, the company continuously improves its 

processes and systems to ensure robust data security. 

Head of Information Technology oversees the implementation, maintenance, and adherence 

to data protection measures and identifies opportunities for technological enhancements to 

further strengthen data security. 

Additional precautionary measures, including the installation of fire extinguishers and fire-

resistant systems, are in place to safeguard the Company’s sensitive documents. Records and 

information that are no longer required are disposed of efficiently and securely. 

GRIEVANCE AND COMPLAINT HANDLING  

The Company is committed to safeguarding the interests of its investors, shareholders, and 

other stakeholders. The Company ensures that all shareholder grievances are addressed 

promptly, efficiently, and transparently, with each matter handled on an individual basis. This 

approach reinforces the Company’s commitment to maintaining shareholder trust, delivering 

high standards of service, and fostering strong, positive relationships with all stakeholders. 

A grievance handling mechanism is implemented at both the operational sites, where 

stakeholder can file their concerns/complaints. The administration department is responsible 

to deal with any such grievances, with support from the relevant department. The 

investigation’s outcomes are reported to the management for appropriate action and 

resolution. 

In addition, a dedicated email address, “sazgar@brain.net.pk”, has also been established to 

facilitate stakeholders in submitting grievances / feedback. In addition to the aforementioned 

email address, complaints and suggestions can also be received in writing, duly addressed to 

the Company Secretary. 

Shareholders are actively encouraged to provide feedback during General Meetings, 

enabling the Company to gain valuable insight into their perspectives on operations and 

decisions.  
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All matters raised through communication with stakeholders, issues reported by suppliers and 

customers, and concerns brought up by members during general meetings are regularly 

evaluated to determine if revisions to the company’s policies or commitments are necessary 

to manage the impact of its operations. 

The Company Secretary is responsible to keep the highest governance body updated on all 

such matters. 

All queries received during the fiscal year 2024-25 were promptly addressed and 

communicated. However, throughout the year, there were no complaints from any individual 

or institutions, concerning public or social issues. 

TRANSPARENCY AND REPORTING 
We are committed to transparency in governance practices and reporting, including the 

publication of comprehensive sustainability report and other relevant disclosures. Our reports 

provide stakeholders with transparent insights into our decisions and performance. By sharing 

accurate and timely information, we aim to enhance accountability, trust, and credibility with 

our stakeholders, ultimately driving positive impacts. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

Company is legally obligated under the Companies Act, Code of Corporate Governance and 

the PSX Listings Requirements to comply with laws and regulations and proactively monitor and 

assess regulatory developments to determine their applicability and impact on the company. 

This proactive approach reflects the Company’s dedication to implementing the necessary 

safeguards to ensure full compliance with an evolving regulatory framework. By doing so, the 

Company strengthens stakeholder confidence and minimizes risks related to reputation, 

finances, and regulatory exposure. 

The Board’s Audit Committee regularly reviews updates in regulations, compliance with legal 

requirements, and adherence to the company's code of conduct. Supported by the internal 

audit department, the committee assesses how well the company complies with laws and 

addresses any breaches of the code of conduct. It also ensures that any violations are properly 

investigated, appropriate actions are taken, and preventive measures are put in place to 

avoid future issues. 

However, no incident of non-compliance with laws & regulations occurred during the year 

2024-25. 

LEGISLATIVE & REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT 
The Company diligently adheres to the robust regulatory framework established by the 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the Pakistan Stock Exchange 

Limited (PSX). The Company complies with the Companies Act, 2017, the PSX Listing 

Regulations and other applicable laws, ensuring transparency and accountability in financial 

reporting and corporate practices.  

The Company’s operations are further guided by the national policies set by the Ministry of 

Industries and Production. The Company strictly follow environmental regulations mandated 

by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and adhere to international standards such as 

ISO certifications.  

The Company’s commitment extends to fulfilling its obligations under tax laws, labor 

regulations, and anti-corruption measures, reflecting its dedication to ethical business 

practices and sustainable growth. Through these efforts, the Company aims to enhance 
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shareholder value, meet regulatory requirements, and contribute positively to the automotive 

industry and the communities it serves. 

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING 

The Company is committed to attracting, developing, and retaining highly skilled, qualified, 

and experienced professionals who can contribute to the Company’s vision and long-term 

growth. Our recruitment process is designed to identify individuals with both technical expertise 

and the values that align with our organizational culture. Once onboard, employees benefit 

from comprehensive training and development initiatives aimed at enhancing their 

capabilities, fostering innovation, and preparing them for evolving business challenges. 

To keep our workforce engaged and motivated, we offer competitive compensation and 

benefits packages that are benchmarked against market standards. Our succession planning 

strategy focuses on spotting talented employees early, helping them grow through specific 

training, and preparing them for future leadership roles. This approach supports career growth, 

keeps employees motivated, and ensures the Company has strong leaders for long-term 

success. 
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STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP 
AND ENGAGEMENT  
Engaging with our stakeholders is integral to our sustainability strategy and decision-making 

processes. We are committed to engage with our stakeholders to better understand their 

needs, expectations, and concerns and providing accurate and timely information. Overall 

frequency of stakeholder’s engagements is based on the corporate and business 

requirements as laid down by the corporate laws, contractual obligations, as and when 

required. 

Through dialogue, collaboration, and transparent communication, we strive to build trusting 

relationships and address stakeholder interests effectively.   

Stakeholders are identified and prioritized based on their nature of relationship with SAZGAR, 

interest of the stakeholder in the business, ability to impact, responsibility, dependence and 

willingness to engage. Stakeholders’ engagements occurred at various occasions throughout 

the year by relevant departments of the company as part of their ongoing activities; however, 

no sustainability report specific engagement was carried out during the year.  

List of stakeholders, frequency of consultations, concerns raised and our response are as 

follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1) Shareholders/Investors 

Frequency: Ongoing/Annual 

Safeguarding our shareholders’ interest is our key responsibility. As the relationship with 

shareholders directly influences the Company’s market confidence and long-term 

valuation. Active engagement and transparent communication help align corporate 

strategies with shareholder expectations, which can enhance investment attractiveness, 

and support sustained business growth and profitability. 

Our shareholders’ interest revolves around profitability, growth, economic returns, new 

projects, transparent disclosures and financial reporting and regulatory compliances.  

Our strategy to meet shareholders’ expectations focuses on the continuous innovation and 

business development, effective governance and corporate reporting.  

Annual General Meetings, stock exchange announcements, corporate briefings, annual 

and quarterly reports, notices to shareholders, company website are the most effective 

means of our engagement with our shareholders.  

 

2) Banks/Lenders 

Frequency: Ongoing 

We value our relationship with our financial partners and lenders, as they allow us the 

means to achieve our vision. Company’s financial performance, new projects and 

compliance are their key interests.  

We meet their expectations by focusing on business sustainability, financial stability and by 

providing transparent financial information in a timely manner.  

Meetings, e-mails, periodic financial reporting are the important means for our 

engagement with this category of stakeholders. 
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3) Suppliers/Vendors 

 Frequency: Ongoing 

Collaborative partnership with suppliers is a key for effective working capital management, 

quality inputs, optimize costs, and strengthened supply-chain resilience, driving stronger 

operational performance and long-term value creation. 

Our suppliers’ interest revolves around new business opportunities, timely payments, 

guidance on new material requirements, mutually beneficial terms & conditions.  

We consistently endeavor to cultivate robust relationship with our suppliers, however, our 

strategy to meet their expectations includes continuous business development which leads 

to increased opportunities, effective training/guidance on new requirements. 

E-mails, request for quotations, periodic site visits, are the most effective means of 

engagement with our suppliers. 

 

4) Government & Regulators 

 Frequency: Ongoing/Annual 

A constructive relationship with government and regulators ensures compliance, reduces 

legal risks, and supports stable, long-term business operations. 

Compliance with laws and regulations is the key concern of this stakeholder group. We 

satisfy their concerns by ensuring compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements 

and contributing to the economy in terms of taxes/duties. 

The engagement methods include submission of periodic reports/returns, responding to 

enquiries, seminars/webinars and meetings as and when required.  

5) Customers 

 Frequency: Ongoing 

Our customers’ expectations are focused on product specifications and quality, product 

price, delivery time, after sale services. Our dealerships and sales and marketing team 

remain in close contact to this segment of our stakeholders to resolve issues on priority basis, 

as our success and performance depends on customers’ loyalty and brand image. 

Our strategy to meet their expectations includes continuous innovation, improving product 

quality, offering competitive pricing, enhancing their experience by improved after sale 

services. 

Customer service channels, events & exhibitions, company website are the most effective 

means of engagement with our customers. 
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6) Dealers 

Frequency: Ongoing 

Strong relationships with dealerships enhance market reach, customer experience, and 

sales performance, directly contributing to revenue growth and company value. 

Our dealers’ expectations are focused on logistics, product quality, trainings, product 

knowledge and return on investment. 

We meet their expectations by providing relevant trainings for better customer experience 

at dealerships, improving product quality and delivery timelines, offering lucrative business 

terms.  

The engagement methods include corporate events, dealers’ conference, training 

sessions, meetings as and when required.    

 

7) Employees 

 Frequency: Ongoing /Annual 

Motivated employees drive productivity, innovation, and operational efficiency, directly 

influencing the company’s performance and long-term value. 

We have extensive employee-engagement arrangements in place. The employees’ 

concerns revolve around remuneration and benefits, responsibilities, trainings, health, 

safety & well-being and work-life balance. 

We meet their needs by compliance with labour laws, competitive remuneration and 

packages, on job trainings, open communication channels, employees’ well-being 

initiatives. 

Staff meetings, trainings, company events, performance appraisals are the most effective 

means of engagement with our employees. 

 

8) Local Community 

Frequency: Ongoing 

The Company actively participates in various social work initiatives as part of its corporate 

social responsibility (CSR).  Employment opportunities, infrastructural development, 

education, health, clean water and other social issues are their key concerns. 

We meet their needs by implementing structured CSR initiatives focusing on health, 

education, hunger and creating job opportunities. 

CSR activities, internship programs are the important means for our engagement with this 

category of stakeholders. 

Local community engagement is always beneficial, as people of Pakistan provide the 

grounds for SAZGAR to build its future. 
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MATTERS RAISED IN THE LAST AGM OF THE COMPANY 

The 33rd Annual General Meeting of the Company, held on October 26, 2024, was attended 

by shareholders of the Company including minority shareholders. The meeting was also 

attended by the Chairman of the Audit Committee to answer any queries and matters within 

the scope of the audit committee’s responsibilities. 

During the meeting, there were no significant matters / issues raised except for discussion on 

the agenda items. 

EFFORTS TO ENGAGE MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 

The Company values all shareholders equally and consider them an integral part of the 

Company. The Company facilitates all shareholders including minority shareholders to attend 

and take part in Annual general meetings. Ever since the Company has made arrangements 

to participate annual general meeting through video conferencing, minority shareholders’ 

participation has further improved, as they can conveniently attend through video link. 

The notice of Annual General Meeting is sent to all shareholders at least 21 days before the 

date of meeting. During the meeting, input from all shareholders is encouraged and their 

concerns and suggestions are noted as a part of continuous improvement process. 

9) Media 

Frequency: Occasional / As required 

Insights on industry and company’s financial performance, transparent & accurate 

information are their key concerns. Our strategy to meet their expectations includes timely 

communication of fair information. 

Interviews, corporate events, TVCs, social media pages are the most effective means of 

engagement. 

Engagement with this stakeholder group would result in effective awareness regarding the 

Company and offered products and services, indirectly have a positive impact. 

10) Analysts 

Frequency: Ongoing/Annual 

Key interests of this stakeholder group revolve around company’s performance, growth, 

economic returns, new projects, transparent disclosures. 

Transparent engagement with analysts supports accurate market valuation, investor 

confidence, and informed decision-making, positively impacting the company’s 

performance and value. 

We meet their expectations by maintaining consistent and transparent financial and 

operational disclosures, while providing timely updates on performance, growth 

initiatives, and new projects to support informed analysis and decision-making. 

Annual General Meetings, stock exchange announcements, corporate briefings, annual 

and quarterly reports, company website are the most effective means of our engagement 

with analysts.  

 

143



 

Further, to provide an additional opportunity to minority shareholders to interact with the 

management of the Company, the Company has also been conducting corporate briefing 

sessions.

 

INVESTORS' RELATIONS SECTION
 

The Company communicates all major financial information needed for investors' decision-

making by uploading it on the corporate website, i.e. (www.sazgarautos.com) under the 

section of Investor Relations, on a timely basis. 
 

CORPORATE BRIEFING SESSIONS OF THE COMPANY
 

Corporate Briefing Sessions are held to brief investors regarding the performance of the 

Company and future outlook. These sessions help the Company to understand and resolve the 

concerns of the shareholders and to add a synergy factor to achieve better results for the 

Company's prospects.
 

This year, two corporate briefing sessions were held on 26-Oct-2024
 

and 22-May-2025. During 

the meeting the management briefed the following matters about the Company:
 

ª  Company overview and scope of business. 
ª  Strategic and operational developments. 
ª  Financial performance along with key ratios. 
ª  Future prospects of the Company.  

Thereafter a Question-and-Answer Session was held. 

For more details on corporate briefing session, please refer the presentation delivered during 

the meeting, placed on our corporate website. 

 

CORPORATE BENEFIT TO SHAREHOLDERS 

Throughout the fiscal year, our dedication to enhancing shareholder value remained 

unwavering. Over the years, shareholders have benefited from both capital appreciation and 

consistent dividend distributions. The Company remains committed to sustainable growth, 

underpinned by prudent financial management, sound governance practices, and strategic 

market positioning to deliver enduring value for all shareholders. 

For detail on dividend declared during the FY 2024-25, refer to the Directors’ Report 2025.
 

 

WHISTLEBLOWING MECHANISM AND PROTECTION OF COMPLAINANTS
 

The Company has a Whistleblowing Policy that provides employees, suppliers, contractors, 

and other stakeholders with a secure and transparent mechanism to report any misconduct, 

malpractice, or unethical behavior. All reported concerns are thoroughly investigated, with 

outcomes and corrective measures communicated to the whistleblower. The Policy ensures 

protection of whistleblowers and those assisting investigations against retaliation, harassment, 

or adverse action, even if allegations are not substantiated, provided they were made in good 

faith. All cases are reported to the Chief Executive and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, 

ensuring independent oversight and fair handling of complaints.
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Identify issues that 
have the potential 

to impact

Assessment and 
prioritization of 

the issues

Approval by 
senior 

management

Continual 
assessment of 

emerging issues

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT 
We undertook a structured materiality assessment to identify, assess and prioritize sustainability-

related impacts, risks, and opportunities that are most relevant to the operations and our 

stakeholders, reflecting:  

- the Company’s actual and potential impacts (both negative & positive) on the 

economy, environment, and people;  

- the sustainability (including climate) related risks and opportunities in the external 

environment that could reasonably be expected to affect the Company’s prospects 

(cashflows, access to finance or cost of capital over the short, medium and long term), 

as well as influence decisions made by primary users of general-purpose financial 

reports. 

To achieve this, we consider both internal and external perspectives, ensuring our approach 

aligns with the expectations of the broader stakeholders while also meeting the information 

needs of the primary users of sustainability-related financial information. 

Significant judgement has been applied to identify and assess the sustainability-related risks 

and opportunities that are relevant to the Company, as well as the material information 

related to those risks and opportunities. 

Methodology: 

ª The sustainability (including climate) related matters were identified taking into account 

the Company’s objectives, strategies, policies, vision, mission & core values, Company’s 

existing risk assessments, operations / value-chain, internal / external resources & 

relationships, impacts of the Company’s activities, possible topics as per GRI standards, 

potential sustainability matters specific to automotive industry, and stakeholders’ 

perspectives. 

ª In addition to above, sustainability (including climate) related risks and opportunities 

identified by entities that operate in the same industry, IFRS Sustainability Disclosure 

Standards (SDS), disclosure topics in SASB Standards, and industry-based guidance of IFRS-

S2 were also considered to identify sustainability including climate-related matters 

relevant to the Company. 

ª Each identified matter was assessed, to evaluate the significance, considering the 

combination of severity & likelihood of the impact. The combination of these two factors 

determines the overall rating. Issues were prioritized based on the assessment results, to 

understand the importance to the Company and guide our mitigation strategies. 

ª Finalized list of material matters was presented to the senior management for approval to 

ensure alignment with the Company’s strategies and targets. 

ª No external experts were engaged during the process of determining the material 

sustainability matters.
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The table below includes the material sustainability-related matters identified as part of the 

materiality process described: 

Material Matters 
Impact on 

economy, environment & people 

Impact on business 

(risks & opportunities) 

E
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 

Economic 
Performance & 
returns 

Positive impacts through consistent 
financial returns, economic contributions, 
payments to employees and suppliers, 
and overall societal well-being. 

Investors’ confidence, 

achievement of strategic 

objectives, impact on 

reputation, regulatory 

changes. 
Indirect Economic 
Impact 

Positive impacts on communities through 
infrastructure projects, growth of service 
sectors and job creation within the supply 
chain. 

Procurement 
Practices / Supply 
Chain Impact 

Business opportunities for suppliers, 
economic development and other 
impacts on environment and society. 

Regulatory changes, effects 
on supply chain (local / 
import) stability. 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

Energy 
Negative environmental effects of using 
non-renewable energy sources. 

Climate change risk, energy 
supply, transitioning to low-
carbon energy sources. 

Emissions & Climate 
Change 

Negative environmental impact due to 
emissions (including product emissions) 

Climate change risk, 
regulatory changes. 

Materials 
Negative impacts through the use of 
depleting finite resources. 

Availability of raw materials 

Waste 
Negative environmental effects from 
waste generation and disposal. 

Regulatory penalties, weaken 
relations with local 
communities. 

Water and Effluents 
Negative impacts on water resources, 
leading to scarcity and environmental 
challenges. 

Regulatory penalties, 
availability of fresh water, 
weaken relations with local 
communities. 

S
o

c
ia

l 

Employment, 
Labour Relations 
and DE&I 

Drive economic growth through job 
creation, while fostering fair & inclusive 
workplaces that enhance employee 
wellbeing and collaboration. 

Attract & retention of top 
talent, enhance compliance. 

Occupational 
Health and Safety 

Negative impacts on health of workforce 
affecting productivity. 

Strategic objectives and 
target meeting. 

Training & 
Education 

Improves employees' ability to contribute 
effectively, supporting the company’s 
success and value creation. 

Strategic objectives and 
target meeting. 

Local Communities 

Positive impacts on communities through 
socio-economic development, 
healthcare, education, and food support. 

Negative impact of business activities on 
business. 

Build reputation as a socially 
responsible citizen. 

 

Materiality Matrix 

Impact on business /  
Influence on stakeholder 
decisions 

High    

Moderate    

Low    

 
 Low Moderate High 

 
Significance of economic, social  

and environmental impacts 
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SUSTAINABILITY (INCLUDING CLIMATE) 
RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES 

SUSTAINABILITY OVERSIGHT 
 

We recognize the critical importance of strong governance in driving our sustainability efforts. 

Our governance framework ensures that sustainability (including climate) considerations are 

integrated into our decision-making processes and business operations.

Board Oversight 

The Board of Directors is responsible for governance and oversight of sustainability (including 

climate) related risks and opportunities, which includes the environmental, social and 

governance considerations, within the company by setting the company’s sustainability 

strategies and assessing their potential financial & operational impacts, setting priorities and 

targets to create long term corporate value.  

Sustainability including climate-related impacts, risks and opportunities are integrated into the 

Board’s review of corporate strategy, major investments, and risk management processes. 

Strategic proposals, including capital allocation, new projects, or business expansion, are 

evaluated with reference to their ESG implications. 

In order to effectively discharge the sustainability related duties, the board has established a 

dedicated Sustainability Committee. 

Recognizing the growing importance of sustainability, moving forward, emphasis will be 

placed on proficiency in ESG topics including climate-related issues, when evaluating and 

selecting candidates for Board positions. This focus ensures that leadership is equipped to 

address sustainability challenges and opportunities, reinforcing a commitment to responsible 

governance. 

 

Sustainability Governance Structure: 

  

Board of Directors

Sustainability Committee

Chief Executive Officer

Senior Management / HODs
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Board Sustainability Committee
 

The Sustainability Committee monitors and review sustainability (including climate) related 

impacts, risks and opportunities, devises sustainability strategies based,
 

setting and monitoring 

relevant targets,  oversees compliance of relevant laws pertaining to relevant sustainability 

related considerations and reports, at-least once a year, to the Board on sustainability matters. 

The structure and the Terms of reference (TORs) of the sustainability committee have been 

placed on the website of the company.  

Role of Management  

Senior management, led by the CEO,  supports the Board Sustainability Committee in terms of 
day-to-day implementation of the company’s sustainability strategy, recommending and 

developing sustainability metrics and targets and reviewing progress; and the sustainability 

report.  

The CEO, supported by the executive team  / HODs, is responsible for integrating sustainability 

considerations into strategic planning and operational decision-making, ensuring that 

sustainability (including climate) risks are addressed proactively and that opportunities are 

effectively leveraged.  

The assessment and management of sustainability (including climate) related impacts, risks 

and opportunities is embedded across the Company at various levels and delegated authority 

flows down from the board through the CEO. 

The Company is making all the efforts to embed sustainability objectives into its performance 

management systems. Plans are underway to align annual performance reviews, 

remuneration, and promotion decisions with the achievement of sustainability goals. A cross-

functional team, comprising representatives from key departments, is being established to 

drive sustainability initiatives across the organization and to support the development of 

comprehensive sustainability reporting.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND STRATEGY

 
 

SAZGAR’s risk management system and risk management policy are designed to provide a 

consistent and clear framework for managing risks and reporting risks to management &

 

to the 

board.

 Company’s risk management framework along with relevant responsibilities have been 

outlined in the policy document, which have been placed on the Company’s website.

 
Identifying and Assessing Sustainability (including climate) Related Risks

 

and Opportunities

 The Company’s process for identifying and assessing Sustainability (including climate)

 

related

 risks

 

and opportunities

 

are embedded within its broader risk management framework.

 

Risks

 and opportunities
 

are identified as part of the broader process, which includes brainstorming, 

inquiries with key stakeholders,
 

inputs
 
from senior management

 
and consulting other sources.

  
The detail of the process is set out in the ‘Materiality Assessment’ section

 
of this report.

  
The Board of Directors conducts an annual review of business risks

 
and opportunities, which 

includes Sustainability (including climate)
 
risks

 
and opportunities. This ensures that emerging 

sustainability risks  and opportunities, including those related to climate, are understood and 

addressed. The Sustainability Committee specifically monitors and reviews Sustainability 

(including climate)  risks  and opportunities, ensuring that these are consistently identified and 

assessed.  

 

Integration of Sustainability (including climate) Risks and Opportunities into the Overall Risk 

Management
 

Framework
 

Sustainability (including climate) risks
 
and opportunities

 
are integrated into the organization’s 

overall risk management framework in the following ways:
 

Unified Risk Management Approach:
 
Sustainability (including climate) risks are treated as part 

of the overall risk management process. Company
 

follows
 

the same
 

identification, assessment, 

and management procedures as for other business risks, ensuring consistency and coherence.

 

Board and Committee Oversight:

 

Both the Board and the Sustainability Committee play key 

roles in overseeing the identification, assessment, and management of Sustainability (including 

climate)

 

risks

 

and opportunities, ensuring that these are aligned with the company’s broader 

risk management strategies.

 

Risk

 

Culture Development:

 

The organization fosters a risk-aware culture that includes climate-

related risks

 

and opportunities. This culture is supported by the CEO and Risk Owners, who 

ensure that all employees understand the importance of identifying and managing these risks

 

and opportunities.

 

Risk Register Inclusion:

 

Sustainability (including climate)

 

risks are included in the company’s Risk 

Register, which is regularly updated and reviewed to ensure that all identified risks are being 

effectively managed and monitored.
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Climate-related Scenario Analysis 

A climate-related scenario analysis was performed to understand and evaluate the potential 

impacts of the climate change on the Company’s operations, using a range of expected 

scenarios. The scenario analysis was carried out as part of the Company’s strategic planning 

cycle for the year ended 30 June 2025. 

The scenarios selected reflect the potential temperature change that is ‘Below 2.0°C scenario’ 

and ‘4.0°C scenario’ (source: Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change - IPCC). Our 

scenario analysis has identified various categories of risks and opportunities. We have assessed 

their impact on financial conditions over the short, medium, and long term. 

We categorized and identified risks as physical risks and transition risks. Physical risks result from 

extreme weather events while transition risks result from the transition to a low-carbon and 

climate-resilient economy which includes policy & legal risks, technology risks, market risks, and 

reputational risks. 

Key Assumptions used are as follows: 

Below 2.0°C scenario 4.0°C scenario 

In this scenario, it assumed that aggressive 
measures to achieve low-carbon & climate-
resilient economy (till year 2050) will be 
promoted globally. Based on that we 
expect: 

- Major shifts in policy and regulations, such 
as new levies / taxes, regulations on fuel 
efficiency and zero-emission vehicles. 

- Transition to a circular economy. 

- Significant shift in consumers’ preferences, 
widespread use of carbon-free products 
like EVs. 

- Technological advancements, availability 
of energy-saving clean technology. 

 

In this scenario, we assume that irreversible 
environmental changes will occur, leading 
to: 

- More intense storms, rainfall patterns, 
flooding and heatwaves. 

- Widespread / extremely severe supply 
chain disruption due to disastrous 
weather events. 

Transitional Risks are set to have a more 
substantial impact in this scenario but low 

physical risks. 

Physical risks impacts will be more 
significant under the higher temperature 

rise scenario in the long term. 

 
Time Horizon considered for risks and opportunities: 

Years Comments 

Short Term 0 – 3 

The Company defines the short term as a period of up to 
three years, aligned with its annual capital expenditure 
and operating expense budgets, and focused on 
immediate operational and financial planning. 

Medium Term 3 – 10 

The medium term covers a three-to-ten-year horizon, 
reflecting the Company’s strategic resource allocation 
and funding plans to address identified risks and 
opportunities. 

Long Term Greater than 10 

The long term extends beyond ten years, with the time 
frame determined by the nature and anticipated impact 
of specific risks or opportunities, particularly those with 
material climate or market implications. 

Period 
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Climate-Related Risks and 
Opportunities 
Company is exposed to various risks associated with climate change, including the impact of 

increased severe weather events on our operations (including supply chain), workforce and 

infrastructure, regulatory changes and changing consumer preferences.  

As regulatory and stakeholder expectations around climate action continue to intensify, the 

company may face increased operational costs, shifts in product demand, and pressure on 

profit margins. Emerging or potential regulations—whether at the international or local level—

could require the company to further reduce emissions associated with the use of its products, 

modify manufacturing processes, or realign its product portfolio toward lower-emission 

alternatives. These adaptations may necessitate significant investments and could result in 

material financial impacts. 

 

Transition towards a lower-carbon economy 

Our short-, medium-, and long-term action plan to address climate-related uncertainties and 

our environmental impacts is focused on: 

 

Key Transition Levers 

Renewable Power Source Operational Energy Efficiency 
Low Emission Products  

(EV / HEV) 

Green Supply Chain 
Engagement 

Regulatory Compliance Facility Upgrades 

Offsetting / Carbon Credits Sustainable Financial Planning  

 

 

 

 

Expected Outcomes 

Reduced GHG emissions & 
exposure to energy price 

volatility 

Reduced energy / carbon 
intensity per unit produced 

Enhanced market share 

Supply chain resilience and 
reputation 

Reduced regulatory risk 
Reduced exposure to climate 

related risks 

Improved sustainability 
reporting 

Enhanced Investor and 
Stakeholder Confidence 
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Physical Risks
 

Type / Driving Factor

 
Value Chain 

Location

 
Risk

 
Time 

Horizon

 

Severe weather events 
and changes in 

climate conditions

 

(Acute / Chronic)

 

Upstream, Direct 
Operations,

 

Downstream

 
Physical climate change may adversely 

affect the supply chain, hinder production 
activity, and reduce workforce efficiency.

 
Long

 

term

 

 

Effects on business model and value chain
 

Increased intensity, frequency and duration of storms / rainfall, heatwaves / temperature 

extremes as a result of climate change may damage our facilities, disrupt our production 

activity, energy supply, logistics operations, procurement of materials from our suppliers, and 

the timely delivery of our products to customers. In addition, it may negatively impact the 

working conditions at our business sites and those of our suppliers, reducing workforce 

efficiency and productivity. 
 

We purchase a wide variety of materials / parts, freight & transportation services from 

numerous suppliers to support the manufacturing of our products. In some instances, we 

purchase materials / parts from a single source, which may increase risk of supply disruptions. 

The critical raw materials primarily include imported iron sheets, imported components for 

three-wheelers and four-wheelers. 

Potential 
Impact Risk Level 

Effects on strategy and  

decision-making  Financial Effects  

4.0°C 
scenario 

Long term: High 

Short /  
Medium term: 
Moderate 

Short / Medium term 

- Diversification of our supplier 
base and developing 
alternative sourcing options to 
minimize the impact of supply 
disruptions, especially for 
critical raw materials.  

- Close collaboration with 
logistics partners to ensure 
flexibility in our transportation 
networks, enabling us to 
respond swiftly to disruptions.

 
-
 

Monitor and regulate indoor 
temperatures to maintain safe 
and comfortable working 
conditions for employees.

 
-
 

Improvements in emergency 
response plans.

 
Long term

 
-
 

Holding higher inventory levels 
to buffer against supply chain 
disruptions.

 
-

 

Facility preparedness, with 
ongoing investments in 
infrastructure upgrades and 
backup power solutions to 
mitigate the effects of 
weather conditions.

 

There are no current financial 
effects  on  the business. 
However, the anticipated short 
/ medium / long term impacts 
on financial position, financial 
performance, and cash flows 
are as follows, along with the 
reference to the Notes to the 
Annual Financial Statements 
‘that are likely to be affected’:  

-  Increased CAPEX required for 
infrastructure upgrades.

 
(Note: 17)

 
 
 -
 
Impairment of assets due

 
to

 
frequent disruptions and 
damages.

 (Note: 17)
 

 
 -

 
Increased repair and 
maintenance expenditures.

 (Note: 26)
 

 
 -

 
Increased working capital 
requirements due to buffer 
inventory.

 
(Note: 11, 21)

 
 
 

-

 

Increased insurance cost.

 (Note: 27 & 28)

 
 

-

 

Increased finance cost.

 (Note: 31)

 

- Intense disruptions to 
production operations, 
resulting in delays. 

- Elevated temperatures 
leading to health risk for 
employees, equipment 
failures and increase the 
likelihood of power outages.

 

-
 

Compromised transportation 
networks / routes

 

-
 

Rising sea levels and coastal 
flooding may threaten the 
viability of ports.

 

Below 
2.0°C 

scenario
 

Long term: Low
 Short

 
/

  Medium term: Low

 

-
 

Weather events may 
continue to evolve.

 
-

 

Disruption to supply chains, 
are expected to be more 
manageable and less severe.

 

Our ongoing strategies to manage physical climate-related risks focus on building long-term 

resilience and adaptability across our operations and supply chain.
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Transition Risks 

Type / Driving 
Factor 

Value Chain 
Location 

Risk Time Horizon 

Policy and Legal 
risk 
 
(Energy, water, 
waste 
management 
etc.) 

Direct 
Operations 

Increased operating cost due to 
carbon tax / levy. 
 
Increased reporting requirements. 
 
Fines / penalties due to potential non-
compliance with laws & regulations. 
 

Short term 

Policy and Legal 
risk 
 
(Vehicle emissions 
and fuel 
economy) 

Downstream Increasing pressure to meet stringent 
regulations on vehicle emissions and 
fuel economy including forced 
product modifications. 

Fines / penalties due to potential non-
compliance with laws & regulations. 

Long term 

Market risk: 
Change in 
consumer 
behavior 

Downstream Drop in unit sales of internal-
combustion engine (ICE) vehicles. 

Long term 

Technology risk Direct 
Operations 

Advancements in green technologies 
requires increased capital 
investments. 

Medium term 

Policy and 
legal / 
Reputational risk 

Upstream Increased pressure from our key 
suppliers to adopt sustainable 
practices. 

Medium term 

 
Climate-
related 

Scenario 

Risk 
Type 

Risk Level 
(Short / 

Medium / Long 
term) 

Effect on Strategy and  
business model 

(short / medium / long term) 
Financial Effects 

4.0°C 

Tr
a

n
si

ti
o

n
 r

is
k
s 

Low 

ª Regular monitoring of 
governmental developments 
and take proactive actions. 

ª Capital investments for 
energy-efficient and low-
carbon technologies. 

ª Initiatives to promote cleaner 
environment. 

ª Development & introduction 
of new variants of electric / 
hybrid electric vehicles. 

ª Reporting on company’s ESG 
performance. 

There are no current financial 
effects on the business. However, 
the anticipated short / medium / 
long term impacts on financial 
position, financial performance, 
and cash flows are as follows, 
along with the reference to the 
Notes to the Annual Financial 
Statements ‘that are likely to be 
affected’: 
 

ª Increased CAPEX. (Note: 17) 
 

ª R&D and other operational 
expenditures. 

(Note: 27 & 28) 

Below 
2.0°C 

High 
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Climate-related Opportunities 

Type / Driving 
Factor 

Value Chain 
Location 

Opportunity 
Time 

Horizon 

Anticipated 
Financial Effects 

(No current financial 
effects) 

Severe 
weather 
events and 
changes in 
climate 
conditions 

Direct 
Operations 

Supply chain 
diversification and 
localization; infrastructure 
resilience upgrades; 
improved working 
conditions for employees. 

Short 
term 

Investment in 
R&D. 
 
Increased CAPEX 
/ OPEX. 

Policy and 
Legal 

Direct 
Operations 

Strengthened competitive 
position (build reputation 
as an environmentally 
responsible manufacturer) 

Increased access to 
capital / green funding by 
compliance to 
environmental policies 
and regulations including 
reporting requirements. 

Medium 
term 

Increased access 
to capital. 

Market & 
Technology 
change 

Downstream 
Develop and promote 
sales of low emission / new 
energy vehicles. 

Short 
term 

Increased 
revenues through 
access to new 
and emerging 
markets. 

Technology 
change 

Direct 
Operations 

Optimize operating cost 
with transition to 
renewable energy sources 
or energy-saving 
technologies. 

Short 
term 

Increased CAPEX 

 

Effect on strategy and business model: 

Our overall strategy to exploit the climate-related opportunities includes localization of 

imported parts, transition to renewable energy sources, making investment to improve 

working conditions for employees, pursuing green financing, promoting NEVs via 

aggressive marketing campaigns, targeting new demographic segments such as tech-

savvy consumers or environmentally conscious buyers.  

 
 
 

Resources for Climate Action  

The company’s strategy is supported by diverse funding sources, including internally 

generated equity, liquid assets, and available credit facilities, which provide the financial 

flexibility to implement climate-related initiatives and resilience measures. 
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Disclosure Uncertainty 

The quantitative information about the financial effects of sustainability including climate-

related risks or opportunities is not provided because the level of measurement uncertainty 

involved in estimating those effects is so high that the resulting quantitative information would 

not be useful. 

 

Climate Resilience 

The company’s strategies collectively bolster resilience against sustainability including climate 

related risks and related uncertainties. Company’s approach is to remain agile, and 

continuously assess its capacity to adjust and adapt its strategy and business model to climate 

changes. 

Currently, the company has the capacity to adjust or adapt over the short, medium, and long 

term, supported by substantial financial resources. These resources include equity, which 

reflects the strong retained earnings, liquid assets as well as available credit facilities. This 

combination of internal funds and external borrowing capacity provides the financial flexibility 

needed to manage unforeseen challenges, invest in strategic initiatives, and sustain long-term 

growth.  

As the company continues its impressive growth, we anticipate an increasing capacity to 

effectively manage uncertainty in the years ahead. 
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Other Sustainability Related Risks and Opportunities 
 

Risk 

V
a

lu
e

 

C
h

a
in

 

Ti
m

e
 

H
o

ri
zo

n
 

Opportunity 
Effect on Strategy 

and business 
model 

Financial Effect 

Water and Waste Management                                                             

Failure to optimize 
water usage and 
effectively treat the 
waste (both solid / 
water) produced in 
operations, may put 
at risk future 
business 
opportunities, lead 
to imposition of 
fines, non-
availability of fresh 
water, strained 
relations with local 
communities and a 
trust deficit among 
stakeholders. 

D
ir
e

c
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

/ 
D

o
w

n
st

re
a

m
 

Lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 

 

Build reputation 
as an 
environmentally 
responsible 
manufacturer, 
opening doors 
to new 
partnerships. 

Adopt water 
recycling initiative 
to reduce 
freshwater 
dependency. 

Continuous 
monitoring and 
improvement in 
waste 
management 
system. 

Regular 
monitoring of 
governmental 
developments 
and take 
proactive actions. 

There are no current 
financial effects on 
the business. 
However, the 
anticipated short / 
medium / long term 
impacts on financial 
position, financial 
performance, and 
cash flows are as 
follows, along with 
the reference to the 
Notes to the Annual 
Financial 
Statements ‘that 
are likely to be 
affected’: 
 

ª Increased 

CAPEX. (Note: 17) 
 

 

Energy Crisis                                                                                                                          

Inadequate energy 
supply can lead to 
production 
disruptions, delayed 
output, damaging 
reputation and 
customer 
relationship.  

Energy constraints 
can also hinder 
expansion plans 
and prevent the 
company from 
meeting growing 
demand. 

D
ir
e

c
t 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s 

Lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 

Build reputation 
as an 
environmentally 
responsible 
manufacturer 
by reducing 
dependency 
on fossils fuels. 

Continuous 
monitoring of 
energy utilization. 
 
Investment in 
renewable 
energy sources. 

ª Increased 

CAPEX. (Note: 17) 
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METRICS AND TARGETS 

Climate-Related Performance Metrics & Targets 

GHG emissions generated during FY 2024-25: 

Metric MT C02e Target 

Total GHG Emissions 
(Scope 1 & 2) 

6,682 - 

(Unit-1: Wheel Rims) 
GHG Emissions per unit produced 

0.01 2% reduction till Year 2030 

(Unit-1: Three-Wheelers) 
GHG Emissions per unit produced 

0.03 2% reduction till Year 2030 

(Unit-2: Four-Wheelers) 
GHG Emissions per unit produced 

0.49 5% reduction till Year 2030 

*For onwards monitoring, baseline period will be FY 2024-25. 

The key objective for the CO2 target is to reduce the carbon footprint of the company, to 

achieve this emission reduction target, we are leveraging key climate transitioning levers, as 

mentioned earlier. This target applies to the Company in its entirety. 

For measuring and reporting GHG emissions, the Control Approach under the Greenhouse Gas 

Protocol has been considered. This approach is selected because it aligns with the Company's 

operational structure, where it exercises full control over its activities. By using the Control 

Approach, the Company reports 100% of the emissions from both operational sites, as these 

sites fall within the Company’s defined boundaries based on its operational control. This 

method ensures transparency and accountability in reflecting the environmental impact of 

the Company's operations. 

A centralized approach is implemented for aggregating GHG emissions data at the corporate 

level. Activity data from both the operational units are systematically collected, consolidated, 

validated and the appropriate documented emission factors are applied, to obtain a 

comprehensive overview of the Company's total emissions. Key inputs to the GHG 

measurements include energy consumption and usage of various fuels across both the 

facilities.  

Sources of Scope-1 and Scope-2 GHG emissions include stationary combustion and mobile 

combustion. GHG emissions measured above covers only three constituent greenhouse gases 

namely Carbon dioxide (CO2), Methane (CH4), and Nitrous oxide (N2O). The global warming 

potential values used are based on a 100-year time horizon using assessment report of IPCC. 

For Scope 1 GHG emissions, the Company utilizes cross-sector calculation tool (emission 

factors) as specified by the Greenhouse Gas Protocol. Scope 2 GHG emissions factors are 

sourced from Institute for Global Environmental Strategies (IGES) List of Grid Emission Factors. 

Other industry metrics: 

No metric and targets have been set for the ‘amount and percentage of assets or business 

activities vulnerable to climate-related transition / physical risks. Currently, no carbon pricing 

has been applied by the Company in the decision making and additionally, no specific 

amount of capital expenditure, financing or investment has been deployed towards climate-

related risks and opportunities. However, moving forward this shall be considered in 

sustainability target setting. 
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Other Sustainability Related Key 
Performance Metrics & Targets 
 

Category Metric UOM 
Performance for  

2024-25 
Target 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E
N

T 

Board / Management team 
oversee and/or manage 
sustainability including climate 
related risks 

- Yes - 

Company follows a formal 
environmental policy 

- Yes - 

Total amount of energy 
consumed 

GJ Page No. 165 - 

Total amount of energy 
consumed per unit produced 

GJ Page No. 165 - 

Percentage of energy consumed 
from renewable energy source 

% 0% 
2% 

For the year 
2026 

Ratio of electrified three wheelers 
out of total three-wheeler sales. 

% 0.16% 
0.5% 

For the year 
2026 

Sale of electrified (HEV/EV) four 
wheelers Vehicles. 

 
% Yes  - 

Plantation of trees No. 2,000 
2,000 

For the year 
2026 

SO
C

IA
L 

Gender Pay Gap Ratio Page No. 81  - 

Employees turnover rate % Page No. 173 - 

Gender diversity 
(Female employees under staff 
category) 

% 1.42% 
Enhance 

gender diversity 
by 2026. 

Policy on DE&I, Protection 
Against Harassment at Work 
Place, Non-Discrimination exists. 

- Yes - 

Grievance redressal procedure / 
mechanism exist 

- Yes - 

Differently abled individuals in the 
workforce. 

No. 20  - 
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Category Metric UOM 
Performance for  

2024-25 
Target 

SO
C

IA
L 

Company follows a formal 
employee Health & Safety policy 

- Yes - 

    

CSR activities and total amount 
spent 

Rs. Page No. 182 
Enhance the 
CSR spending 

For 2026 

Number of employee training 
hours 

No. Page No. 178 - 

Number of injuries reported 
during the year 

No. zero 
Zero injury rate 

For the year 
2026 

Percentage of four-wheel 
vehicle models rated by NCAP 
with an overall 5-star safety rating 

% 89% - 

Number of Safety-related defect 
complaints received during the 
year 

No. zero 
Zero, 

for the year 
2026 

Number of vehicles recalled 
during the year 

No. zero 
Zero, 

for the year 
2026 

Average fuel economy of 
vehicles (three & four wheelers) 
sold during the year, weighted by 
sales volume 

Km/L 22.46 - 

G
O

V
E
R

N
A

N
C

E
 Number of Board seats occupied 

by women 
No.  2  - 

Office of the Chairperson and 
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) 
are separate 

- Yes - 

Number of Board seats occupied 
by independent directors 

No. 3  - 

Formal code of conduct / ethics 
/ anti-corruption policy exists 

- Yes - 

Compliance with Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations 2019 

- Page No. 77  - 

Company publishes sustainability 
report 

- Yes - 
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ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE 
  

SAZGAR is committed to up-lift the economy besides various challenges faced by the country. 

We believe, we have a huge responsibility to play an active role in strengthening the auto 

industry ensuring healthy returns to our shareholders with ethical business practices. 

Our approach to economic performance involves a holistic and proactive strategy aimed at 

achieving financial stability, driving revenue growth, and maximizing value creation for 

stakeholders while minimizing negative impacts on the economy and society. 

Our comprehensive risk management systems and processes are designed to identify and 

evaluate potential adverse effects resulting from our operations. Leveraging proactive 

measures, such as careful planning, optimal resource allocation, and technological 

innovations, we endeavor to proactively anticipate or alleviate both potential and realized 

negative impacts. 

We are contributing to multiple UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) through our 

economic performance. 

Economic Impacts 
Economic performance is a critical aspect of our 

sustainability efforts at SAZGAR, as it reflects our ability to 

create value for stakeholders and contribute to economic growth and 

prosperity.  

Our operations have both direct and indirect economic impacts, which are 

essential to understand for a comprehensive assessment of our economic 

performance.  

Direct economic impacts are the payment of dividends, duties and taxes, financial charges, 

employment opportunities, salaries and benefits to employees, supply chain payments. 

Whereas, the indirect economic impacts are employment opportunities in upstream and 

downstream industries, stimulating growth in the service sectors like insurance, logistics etc. and 

development of local communities through CSR initiatives such as education, healthcare, 

hunger and infrastructure development.  

The Board of Directors is responsible for the economic impact of SAZGAR operations. The 

objectives, policies and targets are discussed and approved by the Board of Directors. The 

Board has delegated the execution of policies and decision-making on day-to-day Company 

affairs to the Chief Executive. The economic performance is reviewed on a quarterly basis at 

Board meetings and appropriate actions are taken by the Board.  

Our Performance 
Company’s financial performance for the year 2025 represents a significant growth in revenue 

by 89% and net-profit by 106% as compare to the year 2024. 

For detailed information on financial review and performance for the year 2025, refer to the 

Director’s Report on page 52  of the Annual Report 2025. 

Sustainable value creation involves establishing operations that can be maintained 

independently, without dependence on subsidies or grants. During the year the Company did 

not receive any direct or indirect financial assistance from the government. 

Manufactured Capital, Social And Relationship Capital & Financial Capital

- Economic Performance     - Indirect Economic Impacts     -  Supply Chain Impacts     -  Procurement Practices
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Risks and opportunities posed by climate change that have the potential to impact the 

Company’s business prospects, have been disclosed earlier in this report. 

Fair business transactions and transparent approach to taxation 

Company’s Code of Conduct strictly prohibits any form of corruption in its operations and 

business dealings. To reinforce this principle, a comprehensive risk management framework is 

in place to detect areas vulnerable to misconduct and apply preventive controls. In addition, 

the Company ensures fair and transparent payments to government authorities, contributing 

to national development and the provision of public services. 

There is zero tolerance for tax evasion and we also ensure that our business partners, 

employees and other stakeholders comply with applicable tax laws. SAZGAR endeavors to 

build and maintain a constructive relationship with Pakistan’s tax authorities based on mutual 

respect, transparency and trust.  

Our dedication to accuracy and ethical tax practices is maintained through rigorous controls 

and processes overseen by the Chief Financial Officer. Moreover, we actively engage with 

various stakeholders, including tax authorities and industry peers, to gather insights and 

feedback. This helps us identify areas for improvement, address concerns, evaluate the 

effectiveness of our actions, and shape our responsible tax management approach. 

We remain transparent in our dealings and pay appropriate amount of taxes according to the 

laws and regulations as applicable in Pakistan. During the financial year 2025, the Company 

made a contribution of Rs. 37.6 billion to the national exchequer.  

See page 115 of Annual Report 2025 for further details of taxes paid to the government and 

other value distribution. 

Particulars Rs. 

Economic Value Generated 58,278,750,750 

Economic Value Distributed 45,158,707,689 

Economic Value Retained 13,120,043,061 

 

 

SAZGAR’S Defined Benefit Plan 
We offer defined benefits in the form of gratuity scheme to its employees where no 

contribution is required from employees. It does not maintain a separate fund for gratuity and 

the liability for the defined benefit plan is calculated on the basis of actuarial valuation by 

using projected unit credit method. 

For more details, refer Note 9 to the annual audited financial Statements for the year ended 

June 30, 2025. 
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ELECTRIC (EVs) AND HYBRID ELECTRIC 

VEHICLES (HEVs / PHEVs):  

Contribution To Economic Resilience 
Electric Vehicles (EVs) and Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEVs / PHEVs) 

significantly contribute to economic performance, particularly in 

Pakistan, by addressing several key challenges while unlocking various benefits.  

By transitioning to EVs and HEVs / PHEVs, SAZGAR facilitates substantial cost savings for 

consumers, in the form of reduced fuel consumption. Moreover, the decreased consumption 

of fossil fuels lessens Pakistan's dependence on imported oil, thus conserving valuable foreign 

exchange reserves.  

Additionally, the adoption of EVs and HEVs / PHEVs fosters the growth of a domestic electric / 

hybrid vehicle industry, leading to job creation and economic stimulation. This shift towards 

cleaner transportation alternatives not only mitigates environmental degradation but also 

reduces healthcare costs, thereby improving overall societal well-being.  

To further escalate this, the Company is undertaking a major infrastructure investment to 

expand its four-wheeler manufacturing/assembling facilities to accommodate the local 

assembly of New Energy Vehicles (NEVs). This strategic expansion, with an estimated budget 

of PKR 11.5 billion, reflects our long-term commitment to advancing the local vehicle 

ecosystem. 

SAZGAR’s contribution to economic resilience based on the sales for the year 2024-25: 

Fuel Consumption Saving* Foreign Exchange Saving * 

9.5 million Liters US$ 8.8 Million 

* Approximate figures, based on the sale units of HEVs / EVs (4W) & EVs (3W) during the year 2024-25. 

 
Localization Program for Four-Wheel Segment 

SAZGAR has initiated a localization program to manage the local sourcing of the parts of our 
four wheelers. This initiative promotes industrial development, new technologies, job creation, 
skill development and economic development of the country. 

Our localization department is working closely with potential and existing supply 
chain partners to assist them to follow and meet principal standards of safety and 
quality. Our close collaboration and support have led our suppliers to make 
dedicated investments in order to supply high-quality parts for our four-wheel 
vehicles.  

 

Our Dealerships 

We have 50+ authorized booking agents for our three-wheel segment and 20 
authorized dealerships for our four-wheel segment, operating nationwide which 
are independently owned and controlled. All our products and services, including 
new vehicles (both three & four wheelers), spare parts, and after sales services are 
offered at our authorized dealers.  

Our dealerships’ activities result in direct and in-direct economic impacts in the form of 
payment of taxes, creation of job opportunities, use of energy and water and compliance 
with laws as applicable in Pakistan. 
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As a rising player in the automotive industry, we need to ensure exceptional experience for our 
respected customers at our dealerships. We support our dealers through workshops, training 
sessions, and we also provide them detailed guidance for operational improvements leading 
to greater customer satisfaction. In addition, dealer surveys are also conducted based on a 
pre-defined criteria, by our sales & marketing team. Based on the survey results, appropriate 
actions are planned by the management and promptly communicated to the respective 
dealer. 

In addition, we are making efforts to educate and inform our dealers about our sustainability 

ambitions, and we encourage them to adopt and implement similar initiatives, in order to 

uphold sustainability principles. 

 
Supply Chain 

We recognize the wide-reaching impacts of our activities and partnerships throughout the 

supply chain. We prioritize supporting local economic development by sourcing materials and 

services locally. Intensive dialogue and close coordination have always been essential for 

effectively managing any negative impacts within the supply chain and achieving sustainable 

business, process and production practices.  

The Company’s supply chain is both labor and capital intensive. The company procures 

materials and services from both local and foreign suppliers. Our goal is to pay fairly to all our 

supply chain partners.  

The procurement departments at both Three-Wheeler unit and Four-Wheeler unit are 

responsible for ensuring a reliable supply of quality input materials/services that covers the 

following categories:  

Category Sources 

Four-wheeler CKDs and CBUs Import 

Parts and materials for wheel rims and three wheelers Local/Import 

Parts and accessories to support after-sales services Local/Import 

Goods & services for operations and administration Local 

We have a well-defined procurement policy and a supplier assessment mechanism in place. 

Our procurement team at each operational site evaluates the potential and existing suppliers 

based on the pre-defined criteria followed by visits to suppliers’ geographic location (Pakistan 

only), leads to risk mitigation and performance enhancement. 

In addition, we constantly make efforts to educate and inform our suppliers about our 

sustainability ambitions, and we encourage them to implement the same, to strengthen the 

supply chain resilience, drive innovation, and uphold sustainability principles. 

During the year, the Company purchases goods and services worth Rs. 76.6 billion from its 

supply chain partners.  

In 2025, 9% of our goods and services were procured locally and the remaining 91% were 

procured from foreign suppliers. 
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE   

- Climate Change          - Energy          - Emissions          - Water and Effluents          - Materials          - Waste 

We are deeply committed to environmental sustainability and recognize the critical role our 
operations play in shaping the ecological landscape. As a manufacturing concern operating 
in Pakistan, we understand the importance of minimizing our environmental impact and 
promoting responsible stewardship of natural resources. 

We are committed to implementing environmentally friendly technologies and streamlining 
processes to minimize our environmental footprint. Our stringent Health, Safety, and 
Environment (HSE) policy, applicable on both the manufacturing sites, underscores our 
dedication to maintaining high standards. 

We ensure effective environmental management and resource efficiency through third-party 
certified environmental management systems. We have successfully achieved three ISO 
Certifications including; 

ª ISO 14001: 2015 Environmental Management System 

ª ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System 

ª ISO 45001: 2018 Occupational Health & Safety Management System. 

Management at both manufacturing sites oversees plant performance, ensures regulatory 
compliance, and monitors compliance standards, while integrating HSE considerations 
through regular training to promote safe, healthy, and environmentally responsible operations. 

The Company regularly obtains compliance certificate by Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA), Government of Punjab. No non-compliances have been reported during the year. 
Further, no environment-related complaints were received through the Company’s formal 
grievance mechanism during the reporting period. 

Climate Change 
Climate change poses one of the most significant challenges of our time, with far-reaching 
implications for ecosystems, communities, and economies worldwide.  

At SAZGAR, we are committed to playing our part in the shift to a low-carbon economy by 

reducing our environmental footprint. Working closely with our partners, we aim to cut 

emissions and minimize environmental impacts across our entire value chain. Through a 

proactive approach, we focus on preventing and mitigating potential adverse environmental 

impacts, giving our stakeholders the confidence that we are taking meaningful action to 

address climate change. 

Our approach to addressing climate change encompasses multiple initiatives: monitoring and 
identifying ways to minimize GHG emissions from our operations; excessive plantations; 
exploring opportunities to transition to cleaner energy sources across our operations; measures 
to optimize energy usage; and enhancing our resilience to climate-related risks and impacts. 
 
Role of governance body, related risk & opportunities, response strategies and related metric 
& targets have been stated in the “Sustainability (including Climate) Related Financial 
Disclosures” section of this report. 
 
We are contributing to multiple UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) through our actions 

outlined this section. 

Natural Capital, Intellectual Capital & Manufactured Capital

164



ENERGY CONSUMPTION  
SAZGAR fully committed to using energy efficiently thereby reducing the overall energy 
consumption and associated GHG emissions. The Company operates two manufacturing 
facilities. The Company’s major

 
sources of energy are grid-based

 
electricity, natural gas, LPG

 and diesel. Currently there is no use of renewable energy source.
 

The data on energy consumption and emissions is obtained from management systems. The 
conversion factors are sourced from U.S. Energy Information Administration. The energy 
consumption and sources in this report have been determined from data provided by 
production sites of Company and present an

 
overall

 
picture of energy consumption in 

manufacturing operations
 
only.

 

Fuel consumption within the organization during the year 2024-25 includes:
 

Description
 

Consumption
 
(GJ)

 
Electricity

 
28,135

 
Natural Gas  & LPG  14,036 
Diesel  7,528 
Total  49,699 

 

Description  
Unit-1 Unit-1 Unit-2 

Wheel Rims Three-Wheelers Four-Wheelers 

Total Consumption  

(Unit: GJ*)  
4,063 6,094 39,543 

Energy Intensity  

(GJ*/ unit produced)  0.10  0.25 3.58 

*  Energy consumption data is recorded in relevant conventional unit, for instance, M3 for 
natural gas, kWh for electricity. Unit of measurement of all energy sources are converted into 
consolidated unit, gigajoules (GJ), as a standard measure for representing energy 
consumption.  

 

The total energy consumed within the organization during the year 2024-25 is 49,699 GJ as 
compare to 38,316 GJ during the year 2023-24.

 
 

SAZGAR strives to optimize its plants’ energy efficiency and intensity to reduce overall energy
 

consumption and related greenhouse gas emissions.
 

 

Energy efficiency
 
for the production of four-wheelers achieved during the year 2024-25 is 

23,821
 

GJ, based on the decrease in the energy intensity from 5.74 to 3.58.
 

 

Year-on-year efficiency is assessed by comparing current energy intensity with the previous 
year’s energy intensity. To measure efficiency, the prior year’s intensity is applied to the current 
year’s production level and compared with the actual energy consumed, with the difference 
representing the energy savings achieved.
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Saving Energy 
The company has implemented a series of proactive energy-saving measures to 

drive positive environmental impact:  

ª Our assembly plants’ design helps to maximize the use of natural light during the daytime 

to reduce energy use. 

ª Energy efficient LED lights are installed throughout our premises. 

ª Use of inverter-based air conditioners instead of non-Inverter air conditioners. 

ª Use of efficient AC/DC fans instead of traditional ceiling fans. 

ª Employees are encouraged to conserve energy by switching off extra electrical 

appliances when not used and / or during breaks. 

 

Moving towards Renewable Energy 
The Company strongly believes in environmental conservation via adopting renewable energy 
sources, which will reduce the carbon footprint and improve energy efficiency to reduce 
reliance on conventional electrical energy and result in cost savings.  

For the coming year 2025-26, SAZGAR aims to explore and implement options to add the share 
of renewable energy in the energy mix. 
 

GHG EMISSIONS 
Greenhouse Gases (GHG) emissions are a major cause of climate change. Our use of natural 
gas, LPG, diesel and electricity in production activities are the major contributors to our GHG 
emissions. The Company has set the target to reduce GHG emissions per unit produced. In 
addition, opportunities are being explored to expedite the shift to the low carbon economy.  

The total emissions (scope 1 & 2) during the year 2024-25 were 6,682 MT as compare to 3,783 
MT during the year 2023-24. The Company has adopted the practice of comparing current-
year emissions against those of the previous year to monitor the trend. During the year, the 
emissions have increased primarily on account of increase in production. 

Description 

Unit-1 Unit-1 Unit-2 

Total 
Wheel Rims 

Three-
Wheelers 

Four-
Wheelers 

GHG Emissions CO2 
equivalent, MT (Scope I) 

179 448 1,772 2,399 

GHG Emissions CO2 
equivalent, MT (Scope 2) 

249 373 3,661 4,283 

Total GHG Emissions 427 822 5,433 6,682 

GHG Emissions intensity 
(MT CO2e / unit 
produced) 

0.01 0.03 0.49 - 

Other greenhouse gases, such as CH4, N2O, are also included in the overall calculation of 
greenhouse gas emissions (CO2e).  

There were no emissions of biogenic substance and ozone-depleting gases (ODS) during the 
year. The Company does not use ozone-depleting substances (ODS) in its vehicle production 
or facility operations. All air conditioning systems in vehicles and buildings use non-ODS 
refrigerants. Additionally, the Company ensures proper maintenance, leak prevention, and 
responsible handling of refrigerants to minimize environmental impact. 
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The GHG figures only include the emissions caused by the Company. The Company does not 
have a mechanism in place to calculate scope 3 emissions. However, efforts are being made 
to develop and implement a comprehensive measurement system. 

Company regularly obtains validation for gaseous emissions and ambient air from Environment 
Protection Agency (EPA), Government of Punjab. Moreover, NOX, SOX and other significant 
air emissions are minimal and are within the limits prescribed by Punjab Environmental Quality 
Standards (PEQS). 

Future Commitments – 2025-26  

Key commitment for the coming year includes the Installation of on-site renewable energy 
capacity. 
 
 

Green Initiative 
In pursuit of our commitment to environmental stewardship and sustainable 
practices, we are proud to highlight our ongoing initiative to mitigate the impact 
of greenhouse gas emissions through plantation of trees.  

During the year, we have planted around 2,000 trees (2023-24: 1000 trees) of Rs. 794,000 at our 
factory premises and surrounding areas. Through this endeavor, we aim to offset our carbon 
footprint while concurrently promoting biodiversity and ecosystem resilience. 
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Contribution to a Cleaner 

Environment through EVs & HEVs / 

PHEVs 

In our efforts to promote environmental sustainability, our Electric Vehicles (EVs) 
and Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEVs) play a crucial role in creating a cleaner 
environment. Unlike traditional vehicles powered by internal combustion engines, our EVs and 
HEVs produce significantly lower emissions of pollutants such as carbon dioxide (CO2).  

Operating on electric power leads to improved air quality and reduced pollution in urban 
areas.  
 

Embracing this innovative technology results in: 
 

53% reduced CO2 emissions (in-direct) 
 

* (Calculation based on the saving of fuel consumption by the sale of Four-Wheeler HEVs  / EVs  and  Three-
Wheeler EVs during the year 2024-25.) 
 

Additionally, the use of EVs and HEVs helps to decrease noise pollution, contributing to quieter 
and more peaceful surroundings. Through the adoption of cleaner and more sustainable 
transportation alternatives, we are committed to minimizing our environmental impact and 
fostering a healthier, greener future for communities in Pakistan and beyond.  
 

WATER FOOTPRINT  
In our commitment to sustainability, we understand the critical role of water 
stewardship across our operations. We are dedicated to the responsible water 
management to ensure the availability of fresh/clean water for our communities 
and ecosystems.  

Our approach to water management takes into account water as a shared resource  with 
communities. Efficient management of water resources and securing access to safe water 
and sanitation are critical for fostering economic growth and productivity. Recognizing this, 
we are committed to reducing our freshwater withdrawal, improving water use efficiency, and 
safeguarding local water ecosystems. 

We mainly use water for the production process, largely in the paint section,  and for our 
employees for drinking / sanitation purposes. We meet our water requirements through the 
underground water sourced from non-protected areas, ensuring no impact on protected 
species, however, size or volume of the water body cannot be estimated reliably.  

We actively ensure the provision of safe drinking water and adequate sanitation facilities at all 
our business locations. By doing so, we contribute to improved health and well-being for our 
employees, while supporting broader efforts aligned with SDG-6. 

To identify and address water-related impacts, the Health, Safety & Environment (HSE) team 
undertakes periodic site assessments, focusing on water usage patterns, discharge practices, 
potential for runoff or leakages and awareness among employees.  

The Company is committed to collaborating with local communities and stakeholders to 

address water quality and availability concerns. As part of our community engagement and 

water stewardship efforts, we have established a filtered freshwater access point  at our three-

wheeler manufacturing facility, providing clean drinking water to the surrounding community.  
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Currently, the Company does not have a mechanism in place to monitor or quantify actual 

water withdrawal, consumption and discharge. However, to enhance transparency and 

improve water stewardship, we plan to invest in a monitoring system in the coming year. While 

no long-term water-related targets have been established yet, the Company remains 

committed to refining its water management approach and aims to develop measurable 

targets as our capabilities evolve. 

Waste Water Handling 

Water used during the production processes contain harmful pollutants and it is processed 
before it can be discharged into the drain. This treatment ensures that pollutants are reduced 
to acceptable limits, as the Punjab Environmental Quality Standards (PEQS) prescribes. 

Company regularly obtains validation for waste water and drinking water from Environment 
Protection Agency (EPA), Government of Punjab. 

 MATERIAL CONSUMPTION 
We are committed to ensure that natural resources are utilized in a manner that is sustainable 
in order to generate economic benefits along with meeting the needs of our customers. Our 
approach is guided by internal procurement standards, supplier requirements, and 
compliance with environmental laws and regulations. 

We rely on different types of materials and chemical substances which are used in the 
production, and their sourcing and consumption can have significant environmental, social, 
and economic impacts.  

The major categories of materials are metals, plastics, textiles, natural materials, fuels, 
consumable liquids, electronics, glass, and other compounds. 

We ensure that our material consumption aligns with defined standards and is reinforced by 
rigorous quality checks to maintain compliance and efficiency. These measures have resulted 
in low rejection rates, minimizing waste and contributing to economic value creation, 
reflecting our commitment to responsible consumption and production. 

The calculation of the weight of the materials used in the production requires significant 
amount of work considering the volume and the complex nature of materials. However, we 
are making all our efforts to identify and report the weight of different materials used in the 
production. 

As a company, we are continuously searching for ways in which we can incorporate 
environmentally friendly materials in our products. There was no recycled material used in the 
production processes in this year. Company does not reclaim products and their packaging 
materials. 

 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 
Waste poses serious risks to human health, ecosystems, and natural resources. Our operations 
produce both hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Disposal of wastes through incineration, 
landfilling, and other practices can adversely impact the environment and public health. As 
a result, we emphasize robust waste management practices to mitigate the harmful effects of 
waste and its disposal. 

The non-hazardous waste consists of plastic scrap, wood, iron/metal items, and packing 
material. The hazardous waste mainly consists of paint shop waste.  
Our approach is to minimize waste generated from our operations and carefully manage our 
waste streams to reduce environmental impacts. We prioritize waste prevention over recovery 
or disposal and promote waste prevention throughout our value chain. However, unavoidable 
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Re-cycling / Re-using waste materials   

We make all efforts to use reuse / recycle the waste materials where possible.  

Metal sheet waste generated from the production of tractor wheel rims are being used for the 
development of iron parts of three-wheelers. Additionally, iron waste at our four-wheel plant is 
being used for creating items like racks, that are being placed in inventory stores, production 

areas etc.    

Strategy & Performance 

Waste by type and disposal method 

Type Disposal method 

Non-Hazardous Re-use / Disposal (plastic, wood, iron / metal, packing material) 

Hazardous Disposal (paint shop waste) 

During the year 1,719 tons of solid waste (both hazardous & non-hazardous) was disposed 
through scrap dealers. 

 

Waste by composition, in metric tons (t) 

Type 

2024-25 

Waste 
generated 

Waste diverted 
from disposal 

Waste directed 
to disposal 

Non-Hazardous 1,701 - 1,701 

Hazardous 18 - 18 

Total 1,719 - 1,719 

 

Waste diverted to disposal-by-disposal operation, in metric tons (t) 

Type 

2024-25 

Onsite Offsite Total 

Non-Hazardous 

Incineration (with energy recovery) - - - 

Incineration (without energy recovery) - - - 

Landfill - - - 

Other disposal operations - 1,701 1,701 

Total 1,701 

Hazardous 

Incineration (with energy recovery) - - - 

Incineration (without energy recovery) - - - 

Landfill - - - 

Other disposal operations - 18 18 

Total 18 
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE 

- Employment & Labour Relations      - Occupation Health & safety      - Training & Education     - Local Communities                   

 

- Product Responsibility 

 

OUR PEOPLE OUR STRENGTH 
Our employees are at the heart of our social responsibility. Their talent, dedication, and diverse 
perspectives not only drive our financial strength and competitiveness but also help us foster 
an inclusive, safe, and supportive workplace—enabling us to create lasting value for our 
stakeholders and the communities we serve. 

The Company is committed to long-term employee development by hiring the right talent, 
maximizing their potential, and ensuring their continuous growth.  

We have comprehensive HRM policies covering employee training, equal opportunity, DE&I, 
health & safety and protection against harassment at workplace. We strictly adhere to labor 
and safety laws, including those against forced, compulsory, and child labor. Our commitment 
to fair working conditions and human rights is strong, with a focus on gender equality and 
diversity to empower all employees to reach their full potential. 

Head of HR department oversees the employment and labour practices. The HR department 
actively tracks any violations of these practices and commits to compliance with laws and 
regulations through regular discussions and reports to the management. 

We continually enhance our human resources practices, systems, and service quality. 
Performance appraisals help identify career development and training needs, ensuring a fair 
reward system.  

To uphold our reputation as a responsible employer, we regularly evaluate our performance, 
updating our policies and procedures based on feedback and sharing these updates with 
stakeholders. 

We are contributing to multiple UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) through our actions 

outlined in this section. 

 

 
 
  

 

Employee Recruitment and Retention 
At SAZGAR, we understand that our success hinges on attracting and retaining top talent. Our 
approach to employee recruitment and retention is designed to build a diverse, skilled 
workforce and create an environment where employees are motivated to grow and excel. 
Our commitment to these practices is integral to our sustainability strategy, supporting our long-
term goals and reinforcing our values. 
 
Our recruitment strategy focuses on finding individuals who are not only highly qualified but 
also align with our company values and culture.  

We ensure that all hiring decisions are based on the qualifications, experience, and suitability 
of candidates for the job. Our recruitment process is designed to be fair and unbiased, 
providing equal opportunities to all applicants. We prioritize recruiting from local communities 
to support regional development. By aligning job opportunities with the skills and expertise 
available locally, we contribute to the growth and empowerment of the communities we 

Human Capital, Social And Relationship Capital & Intellectual Capital
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operate in. We actively seek to build a diverse workforce by implementing strategies that 
reach a wide range of candidates. This diversity enriches our company culture and drives 
innovation.

 
 

Retaining  top talent is crucial for maintaining continuity and achieving our strategic objectives. 
Our retention efforts are centered around creating a supportive and rewarding work 
environment. Key initiatives include:  
-  Skill enhancement trainings  to support our employees in their professional growth. 
-  Comprehensive compensation package that is competitive within the industry. 
-  Actively seeking feedback from employees through regular meetings, using their input to 

improve workplace conditions and address their concerns. 
-  Recognize the achievements and contributions of our employees. This helps to motivate 

and retain talent by acknowledging their hard work and dedication. 
 

The Company only provides full-time employment and does not offer employment on part-
time or temporary basis and no portion of the organization’s activities are performed by 
workers who are not employees of the Company. 
  

Employee Composition 
The Company’s employees’ composition is shown below. This data has been compiled by the 
Company’s human resource department as per actual and no assumptions have been made. 

During the year  2024-25, the hiring rate was 18% while the turnover rate was 7%. 

 

Total Workforce (Head count)  

FY 2025  1,552 

FY 2024  1,392 

 

Workforce Employment –  By Gender  

Type  
2025 2024 

Male  Female  Total Male Female Total 

Permanent  1,549  3  1,552 1,389 3 1,392 

Temporary  -  -  - - - - 

Total  1,549  3  1,552 1,389 3 1,392 

 

Workforce by Employment Type –  By Gender 

Type  2025 2024 

Male  Female  Total Male Female Total 

Full Time  1,549  3  1,552 1,389 3 1,392 

Part Time  -  -  - - - - 

Total  1,549  3  1,552 1,389 3 1,392 

 

Workforce By Age Group  

Type  2025 2024 

No.  % No. % 

<30  596  38% 542 39% 

30-50  786  51% 693 50% 

>50
 

170
 

11%
 

157
 

11%
 

Total
 

1,552
 

100%
 

1,392
 

100%
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Workforce Employment –

 

By Region

 Type

 

2025

 

2024

 Permanent

 

Temporary

 

Total

 

Permanent

 

Temporary

 

Total

 Lahore

 

1,525

 

-

 

1,525

 

1,367

 

-

 

1,367

 Karachi

 

20

 

-

 

20

 

19

 

-

 

19

 Islamabad

 

7

 

-

 

7

 

6

 

-

 

6

 Total

 

1,552

 

-

 

1,552

 

1,392

 

-

 

1,392

 

 Workforce by Employment Type –
 

By Region
 

Type
 

2025
 

2024
 Full Time

 
Part Time

 
Total

 
Full Time

 
Part Time

 
Total

 Lahore
 

1,525
 

-
 

1,525
 

1,367
 

-
 

1,367
 Karachi

 
20

 
-

 
20

 
19

 
-

 
19
 Islamabad

 
7

 
-

 
7
 

6
 

-
 

6
 Total

 
1,552

 
-

 
1,552

 
1,392

 
-

 
1,392

 

 
 

Hiring and Attrition   
 

Hiring By Age Group  

Type  
2025  2024 

No.  % No. % 
<30  170  64% 159 57% 

30-50  92  35% 111 40% 

>50  4  2% 7 3% 

Total  266  100% 277 100% 
 

Hiring By Gender  

Type  2025  2024 

No.  % No. % 

Male
 

264
 

99.2%
 

274
 

99%
 

Female
 

2
 

0.8%
 

3
 

1%
 

Total
 

266
 

100%
 

277
 

100%
 

 

Hiring By Region
 

Type
 2025

 
2024

 

No.
 

%
 

No.
 

%
 

Lahore
 

263
 

98.9%
 

272
 

98%
 

Karachi
 

1
 

0.4%
 

-
 

-
 

Islamabad
 

2
 

0.8%
 

5
 

2%
 

Total

 

266

 

100%

 

277

 

100%

 

 

Attrition By Age Group

 

Type

 
2025

 

2024

 

No.

 

%

 

No.

 

%

 

<30

 

55

 

52%

 

30

 

37%

 

30-50

 

39

 

37%

 

42

 

51%

 

>50

 

12

 

11%

 

10

 

12%

 

Total

 

106

 

100%

 

82

 

100%

 

174



Attrition By Gender

 
Type

 

2025
 

2024
 No.

 
%

 
No.

 
%

 Male
 

104
 

98%
 

82
 

100%
 Female

 
2

 
2%

 
-
 

-
 Total

 
106

 
100%

 
82

 
100%

 

 
Attrition By Region

 

Type
 

2025
 

2024
 

No.
 

%
 

No.
 

%
 

Lahore  105  99% 81 99% 
Karachi  -  -  - - 

Islamabad  1  1% 1 1% 
Total  106  100% 82 100% 

 
 
 

Individuals In Governance Body - Board of Directors 
 

 
BOD -  By Gender  

Type  
2025  2024 

No.  % No. % 
Male  7  78% 7 78% 

Female  2  22% 2 22% 

Total  9  100% 9 100% 

 

BOD -  By Minority Group  

Type  2025  2024 

No.
 

%
 

No.
 

%
 

Muslim
 

9
 

100%
 

9
 

100%
 

Non-Muslim
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Total
 

9
 

100%
 

9
 

100%
 

 

BOD -
 

By Age Group
 

Type
 

2025
 

2024
 

No.
 

%
 

No.
 

%
 

<30

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

30-50

 

5

 

56%

 

5

 

56%

 

>50

 

4

 

44%

 

4

 

44%

 

Total

 

9

 

100%

 

9

 

100%
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Diversity, Equity
 
and Inclusion

 
(DE&I)

 
The Company is dedicated to promoting equality, diversity, and inclusion. We believe that 
gender equality and empowering women are crucial for sustainable development and for 
building a peaceful and successful world.

  
To support these values, we have set up a fair hiring

 
process. We ensure equal opportunities 

for everyone, regardless of race, religion, gender, marital status, age, or disability.
  

The Company hires both males and females with vast experiences, from different industry 
backgrounds, cultures, beliefs, and ethnicities. This ensures that the Company can adapt to 
the changing needs of business.

 
During the year, 02

 
female employees

 
were 

hired. We do not discriminate in terms of basic salary or remuneration. The ratio of 
salary

 
and remuneration of men to women is 0.89

 
to

 
one

 
(this ratio is of relevant 

male versus female employees for staff category). Female employees are eligible 
for parental leave  as per company policy. A total of three female employees 
were eligible out of which no employee availed parental leave in 2025. 
We have a formal policy on DE&I  and Protection against harassment, which aims 
to proactively tackle discrimination or harassment of any kind. A well-defined 
inquiry procedure is  part  of this policy and is governed by an Inquiry Committee 
that deals with sexual harassment complaints and ensures swift and fair action. 

We are happy to report that there were no reported incidents of discrimination or 
harassment  during the  year.  

We are committed to fostering and  maintaining strong relationships between 
management and employees through effective communication. Our 
management team actively encourages employees to share their perspectives 
and seek clarity on strategic issues. We promote a culture of open dialogue, 
where employees are invited to raise concerns or request information from their 
line managers. Additionally, we have established a whistleblowing mechanism to 
address concerns related to business ethics, compliance, safety, environmental 
performance, harassment, and other employment-related matters. 

 

Workforce by Minority Group –  By Gender  

Type  2025  2024 

Male  Female  Total Male Female Total 

Muslim
 

1,503
 

3
 

1,506
 

1,347
 

3
 

1,350
 

Non-Muslim
 

46
 

-
 

46
 

42
 

-
 

42
 

Total
 

1,549
 

3
 

1,552
 

1,389
 

3
 

1,392
 

 
 

Hiring disabled persons 

We provide employment opportunities to persons with disabilities along with the provision of 

additional facilities and appropriate training. Currently, 20
 

individuals, who are differently 

abled, are working for the Company.
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Remuneration and benefits 
We offer fair and competitive salaries to attract and retain top talent and build a robust human 
capital. We ensured that our remuneration packages align with market benchmarks. 
Additionally, we ensured that the workforce at both our operational sites receive minimum 
wages by directly paying them into their bank accounts. 

To build a culture promoting merit and competence, we have a well-structured and open 
annual performance appraisal system that is continuously reviewed for improvement. All our 
employees, regardless of category or gender, go through a formal appraisal and feedback 
process on an annual basis. 

The results for annual performance appraisal are used as a basis for determination of annual 
increments. High performers are promoted to advanced roles and receive higher salary 
increases. 

The Company also values and honors the dedication and outstanding contributions of its long-

serving employees. We are committed to recognizing and appreciating the 

loyalty and hard work of our team members throughout their time with us. To 

acknowledge their significant contributions, we present a Lifetime Achievement 

Award, a meaningful way to celebrate their exceptional service. 

In 2024-25, we paid Rs. 2.12 billion to our workforce as salaries and 
other benefits, surpassing the Rs. 1.44 billion disbursed in 2023-24.  
 

Benefits provided to full-time employees 

 

ª Gratuity 
ª Loans and advances 
ª Bonus 
ª Medical coverage 
ª Leave Encashment 
ª Casual, Sick and Annual leaves 

ª Fuel benefit 
ª Daily meal 
ª Pick and drop facility 
ª Residential facility for non-resident 

employees 
ª Hajj sponsorship

 
 

Respect for Human Rights 
The Company is committed to ensuring a workplace free from discrimination and harassment, 
where everyone is treated with respect and fairness, and given equal opportunities. Human 
rights violations of any sort are not tolerated.  

Key management practices including such as observance of working hours, respect for 
diversity and workplace health and safety are continuously reinforced at the Company. We 
regularly review our operations to uphold human rights and have set up an effective system 
for reporting any issues. Head HR oversees the human rights issues, monitors compliance with 
policies and reports to the management. 

We recognize that any potential non-compliance with labour / human rights laws & regulations 
by our supply chain partners may have significant consequences, we constantly make efforts 
to educate and encourage them to implement the applicable laws and adopt the best 
available practices in this regard. 

This year, we did not identify or receive any reports of human rights violations. The Company 
makes every effort to engage in sincere discussions with its employees about any issues that 
exist or might arise. This helps in maintaining a relationship of mutual trust. 

One month notification period is allowed before implementation of any change that can have 
an impact on employees.  
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Zero Tolerance for Child and Forced 
Labour 
The Company strongly discourages any form of child labor and firmly complies with local 
regulations concerning legal minimum age requirement for work permits. The Company does 
not have any child/forced/compulsory labor within its operations nor is it aware of any such 
cases at its dealerships. 

There were no complaints reported during the year related to violation of human rights. 
 

Training and development 
Retaining talent and cultivating future leaders are essential for reaching both 
our short and long-term objectives. 

As a result, the Company provides a broad range of opportunities to its employees in the form 
of on-the-job learning, trainings, and courses. Such programs include various in-house, 
national, and international seminars / conferences / programs. 

We support development at all levels – starting from career training through to further 
development of top management. 

However, no transition assistance programs have been provided to employees who have 
resigned/ retired during the year. 

 

Annual training hours per employee – FY 2025 

Training hours 830 

Number of Employees 1,552 

Training hours per Employee 0.53 

 

Training Hours by Gender – FY 2025 

Description Male Female 

Training hours per Employee 0.53 1.33 

 

Training Hours by Category – FY 2025 

Description Staff Workers 

Training hours per Employee 1.81 0.33 
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Educational Assistance 
As part of our commitment to employee development, we provide financial support for 
educational and other training opportunities. 

This initiative helps employees advance their skills and knowledge, benefiting both their 
personal growth and our organization.  

By covering costs for relevant training courses and programs, we ensure that our team 
members have the resources they need to succeed and excel in their roles. During the year 
2024-25, we paid Rs. 0.19 million for external trainings and educational support of our 
employees.  
 

Health and Safety 
We prioritize the health and safety and well-being of our workforce as 
fundamental to our sustainable business practices. We have successfully 
achieved ISO 45001 - Occupational Health & Safety Management System, marking a 
significant milestone in our commitment to managing occupational health and safety risks. 
Regular internal audits and external audits against compliance with ISO 45001 were performed 
during the year to review the performance. 

Company regularly obtains validation for drinking water, indoor air, noise levels, ambient air 
etc. from Environment Protection Agency (EPA), Government of Punjab. All the results are 
within the acceptable limits prescribed by the Punjab Environmental Quality Standards (PEQS) 
and OHSA guidelines. 

Our Health, Safety and Environmental (HSE) Policy underscores our dedication to maintaining 
safe working conditions across all operations. We have implemented robust safety 
management system, including hazard identification, regular risk assessments, incident 

reporting, safety trainings, and first-aid facility. These measures enable us to proactively identify 
and mitigate potential hazards, ensuring a secure environment for our employees. 

The health and safety system covers all operational locations, activities, and covers 100% of 
our employees including management and non-management. 
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The Company places strong emphasis on workers’ participation and consultation in all aspects 

of the health and safety management system, led by the Health & Safety Department. 

Currently there is no formal joint management-worker health and safety committees exist. A 

process has been established that engage employees and workers under our control, allowing 

their input to influence and shape our safety practices. Regular safety meetings are 

conducted to provide a platform for workers to discuss health & safety matters, to share 

experiences, and propose improvements. Feedback mechanism is also in place to allow 

workers to report hazards. 

Key health and safety instructions are prominently posted throughout the company’s facilities 

to help maintain a safe working environment. Workers are provided with appropriate personal 

protective equipment (PPE) and ventilation / temperature control facilities to mitigate 

negative occupational health and safety impacts. 

Regular training sessions on occupational health and safety are essential in fostering a culture 

of safety among our workforce. These sessions include general safety practices, fire safety, 

basic first aid, and training on specific job-related hazards. These trainings are provided free of 

charge, during paid working hours. Trainers deliver these sessions in the local language to 

ensure clear understanding by all employees. 

We identify work-related hazards and assess risks on both routine and non-routine tasks. These 
processes are carried out by experienced personnel, ensuring that assessments are of high 
quality. The competency of these individuals is maintained through periodical trainings. A 
structured hierarchy of controls is followed to eliminate or minimize risks, and the outcomes of 
these risk assessments are continuously reviewed to enhance the overall occupational health 
and safety management system. 

There are clear instructions that allow workers to remove themselves from any situation they 
believe could cause injury or illness, with safeguards in place to prevent reprisals for exercising 
this right. Additionally, workers are encouraged to report any risks and safety incidents. The 
Company carefully tracks incidents and complaints received from employees and take 
prompt actions for resolution. All the relevant findings are used to improve the organization's 
occupational health and safety management system continually. 

Occupational health physician is available 24/7 at both manufacturing sites to provide 
medical assistance, manage workplace health emergencies, and support employees’ well-
being. In addition to emergency care, they conduct periodic health checks, and promote 
preventive healthcare practices, thereby contributing to the overall health and safety culture 
of the organization. 

Moreover, in-house ambulance facility is also available to immediately transport the 
unwell/injured employees to the nearest hospital. 

During the year, no significant work-related ill health fatalities, or any other cases of significant 
injuries have been reported. 

 

Looking forward, we remain committed to continuous improvement in health and safety 

performance. By leveraging our ISO 45001 certification and adopting innovative technologies, 

we aim to enhance our safety monitoring capabilities and further reduce risks. Our goal is to 

create a workplace where safety is ingrained in every aspect of our operations, contributing 

to the long-term well-being and success of our workforce and business. 
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EMPOWERING COMMUNITIES  
 
The Company is committed to addressing societal challenges while creating value for the 
company. As a responsible corporate citizen, we actively engage in initiatives that benefit 
local communities. Company’s CSR Policy aides the plans to pursue social contribution 
activities that leads to strengthen communities and contribute to the enrichment of society. 

The senior management of our HR, Admin & Corporate Affairs department supported by a 
team, oversees the implementation and monitoring of our social initiatives, with regular 
progress updates provided to top management. 

Our efforts primarily focus on health, education, and other community-driven projects. We 
strive to create sustainable value through operations that can be maintained independently, 
without relying on subsidies or grants. 

No impact assessment of the CSR interventions was conducted during the year. However, we 
engage with local communities at different occasions, we have determined that there was no 
significant actual or potential negative impact of our operations on communities around the 
plant sites. 

During the year, the Company has contributed 0.4% of its after-tax profit of the preceding year 
(FY-2024) towards community investment. 

 

CSR Spend 2025 

RS. 31.5Million 
 
 
 
 

Paid Internship Opportunity 
We offer paid internship opportunities for university graduates / diploma holders, 
providing them with practical exposure to the automotive industry. These 
opportunities aim to enhance their knowledge and skills, preparing them for future 
career prospects. 
During the year, students from various reputed institutions like NUST, GCU, UET joined for the 
paid internship at Sazgar. 
 

Industrial / Educational Visits 
The Company facilitates students and officials from various institutes and organizations to visit 
its production plants at Lahore. 
This year (2025), officials and students from the following institutions visited our plants and 
observed the process of production of vehicles and auto-parts (wheel rims). Visitors took keen 
interest in the assembly line and appreciated the precision exhibited by the workers. 
 

- Government College of Technology, Bahawalpur (Mechanical Power – Auto & Farm 
Machinery – Technology). 

- The Association for Overseas Technical Cooperation and Sustainable Partnerships 
(AOT/SABK Dosokai Lahore Regional Center). 

- Ghulam Ishaq Khan Institute of Engineering Sciences and Technology. 
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Ramadan Ration Boxes 
In observance of the holy month of Ramadan, the Company distributed ration 

boxes to employees and poor people having worth Rs. 12.3 million, reflecting our 

commitment to supporting their well-being during this time of reflection, compassion, and 

togetherness.  

This initiative aimed to ease the burden of daily essentials, enabling employees and their 

families to focus on the spiritual and communal values of the season. Through this act of care 

and solidarity, we positively impacted more than 1,500 families, reinforcing our culture of 

empathy and mutual support. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Blood Donation Drive 
As part of its commitment to community well-being and social responsibility, the 
Company collaborated with the Aleem Dar Foundation to organize a blood 
donation drive at its manufacturing site, with a special focus on supporting 
thalassemia patients who require regular blood transfusions for survival.  

Employees were encouraged to voluntarily donate blood, contributing to a critical healthcare 
need and helping improve the quality of life for affected individuals. The initiative fostered a 
culture of empathy, volunteerism, and social impact within the workforce while strengthening 
the Company’s engagement with the community. 
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Hajj Sponsorship 
The company sponsored four employees to perform Hajj this year, covering all associated 
expenses amounting to Rs. 4.58 million. This initiative reflects our dedication to supporting our 
employees' spiritual growth and honoring their personal and religious commitments, fostering 
a sense of care and community within the organization.  

 
 
   

 
   

SAZGAR Sports Gala 
As part of its commitment to employee well-being and workplace 
engagement, the Company organized a Sports Gala during the 
year, offering employees an opportunity to participate in a variety 
of athletic and recreational activities. A sum of Rs. 1.87 million was spent for this purpose. 

The event promoted physical fitness, teamwork, and a healthy work-life balance, while 
strengthening interpersonal connections across the workforce. By encouraging active lifestyles 
and supporting mental well-being, the initiative reflects the Company’s dedication to fostering 
a healthier, more motivated, and inclusive workplace culture. 
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Cover Story

Special Financial Assistance 
We are committed to supporting our employees and their families 
during difficult times.  

We provide special financial assistance to the families of former 
employees who have passed away, for food and educational purposes, 

helping to ease the financial burden during these challenging circumstances.  

Our goal is to offer meaningful support that reflects our dedication to the well -
being of our workforce and their loved ones. 

During the year 2024-25, we paid Rs. 0.34 million for special support of our former employees. 

  

Donations 
We are dedicated to fostering community well-being through our 
donations in the areas of health, education, and food. Through our 
financial contributions, we aim to provide essential support to 
underserved communities, ensuring access to vital healthcare services, 
nutritious food, and quality learning opportunities that can significantly 
enhance their quality of life and future prospects.  

These contributions are directed toward initiatives such as improving medical 
facilities, supporting treatment for vulnerable patients, providing food 
assistance to families in need, upgrading educational infrastructure, and 
enabling skill development programs. By channeling resources into these 
critical areas, the Company seeks to empower individuals, strengthen 
community resilience, and create a foundation for long-term social progress. 
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Donations In-kind 
In addition to financial contributions, the Company extended support to organizations through 
in-kind donations, which includes three-wheeler vehicles, including electric (EV) three-
wheelers, to facilitate their community service operations.  

These vehicles are intended to assist organizations in enhancing mobility for their outreach 

programs and delivering essential goods and services more efficiently.  

By contributing sustainable transportation solutions, the Company not only supports the 
operational capacity of these organizations but also promotes cleaner mobility and reduced 
environmental impact, reflecting its commitment to social welfare and environmental 
responsibility. 

 
In 2024-25, the Company has made a total contribution of Rs. 11.43 million. The company does 
not make any contributions to any political party or for any political purpose to any individual 
or body. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

186



PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY  
 Our approach to product responsibility is governed by a comprehensive management system 

that ensures quality, safety, and sustainability are embedded in every aspect of our business. 

 
Product responsibility is integral to our

 

company’s mission of delivering vehicles that are safe, 
reliable, and environmentally sustainable. Our commitment to customer safety is 
embedded in every stage of our product lifecycle, from design and 
manufacturing to after-sales service.

 
ISO 9001 certification further emphasizes our

 dedication to maintaining the highest quality standards across all operations.
  

 We maintain a culture of continuous improvement, with cross-functional teams 
regularly reviewing and enhancing our practices to address emerging challenges 
and opportunities.

 
 

Product Design and Safety Standards
 

Safety remains our top priority. We design and engineer our vehicles to meet stringent safety 
standards, conducting extensive testing to validate the safety and reliability of our vehicles 
under various operating conditions  to identify and mitigate potential risks. 
All our three & four-wheeler products  (100%) are extensively tested during Production and 
before final delivery. It includes durability testing, environmental testing, evaluations of 
electronic systems to prevent malfunctions and battery safety 
assessments.  

All our four-wheel products GWM Haval H6, Jolion, Ora and Tank 
holds an impressive 5-star  ANCAP  safety rating internationally.  

 

During the year, no incidents of non-compliance concerning the health and safety impacts of 
our products occurred.  

 

Innovation in Safety Technology 

The use of cutting-edge safety technologies makes our products safer than any other. Our 
four-wheelers are designed with advanced safety features to ensure the protection of our 
customers  like  Electronic Stability Control, Traction Control System, Second Collision Mitigation, 
Cornering Brake Control, Roll Movement intervention, Brake Assist, HDC/HHC and many more.

 

 

Environmental Sustainability
 

Environmental sustainability is a key priority in our product responsibility strategy. We are 
committed to reducing the environmental impact of our vehicles through innovative design 
and advanced technologies. Our efforts are focused on developing and promoting electric 
and hybrid vehicles that contribute to a cleaner, greener future.

 

 

Hybrid Electric Four-Wheelers
 

We offer
 

hybrid electric four-wheelers that combine the benefits of traditional internal 
combustion engines with electric propulsion. These hybrid vehicles are designed to reduce fuel 
consumption and lower greenhouse gas emissions, offering a balanced solution for

 

customers 
seeking both performance and sustainability. Our hybrid electric four-wheelers are equipped 
with advanced technology that optimizes energy use, providing an efficient and 
environmentally friendly driving experience.
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Electric Three-Wheelers 

In response to the growing demand for eco-friendly transportation, we have introduced a 
range of electric three-wheelers designed to reduce emissions and provide efficient, 
sustainable mobility solutions. 

These vehicles are ideal for urban environments, offering zero-emission transportation that 
helps reduce air pollution and dependence on fossil fuels. Our electric three-wheelers are 
engineered for durability, energy efficiency, and low maintenance, making them an attractive 
option for both individual and commercial users. 
 

After-Sale Services 

Our commitment to product responsibility extends beyond the sale of our vehicles. We provide 
comprehensive after-sale services, including free checkups, oil changes, and test rides, to 
ensure that our customers' vehicles remain in optimal condition. Our marketing approach is 
centered on transparency and customer satisfaction, offering clear and accurate information 
to help customers make informed decisions. We also maintain a robust network of trained 
dealers who are equipped to deliver exceptional service and support throughout the vehicle's 
lifecycle. 

 

Customer Feedback and Continuous Improvement  
We actively gather and analyze customer feedback related to vehicle safety and 

performance. This feedback informs our ongoing efforts to enhance safety features and 

address any potential risks. Our customer service 

team is trained to respond promptly to safety-

related concerns, ensuring that any issues are 

resolved quickly and effectively. 

We have introduced a WhatsApp chatbot 
designed to ensure customers’ experience with 
SAZGAR. “SAZ” (chatbot) is a one stop solution 
for all questions whether it relates to sales, after 
sales, vehicle performance etc. We value 
customers’ feedback and ensure their concerns 
are addressed promptly. 
 
 

Safety Recalls and Transparency 
In the rare event of a safety recall, we maintain 
full transparency and take immediate action to notify customers and rectify the issue. Our 
recall procedures are designed to minimize inconvenience to customers while prioritizing their 
safety. However, during the year no vehicle was recalled due to safety malfunctioning. 
 

Commitment to Ongoing Safety 

As the automotive industry evolves, so too our approach to customer health and safety. We 
are committed to staying at the forefront of safety innovation, ensuring that our vehicles not 
only meet current safety standards but set new benchmarks for the future. 

 

Marketing Communications 
We uphold the highest standards of integrity in our marketing communications. All promotional 
materials are designed to be honest and transparent, providing customers with accurate 
details about our products, including safety features, environmental impact, and performance 
capabilities. 
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We maintain connectivity with our customers through our website and various social media 
platforms. The online presence allows the company to maintain continuous communication 
with customers; help customers in locating nearby dealerships; and furnish customers with 
comprehensive information on product features and pricing.

 
We are committed to fair competition and strictly adhere to anti-competitive regulations, 
ensuring that our marketing practices are ethical and in compliance with all relevant laws and 
standards.

 

 

Dealers’  Trainings  
Recognizing the critical role that our dealers play in customer satisfaction; we invest seriously 
in their training and development. Our dealer training programs cover a wide range of topics, 
including product knowledge, customer service, and safety protocols. By equipping our 
dealers with the skills and knowledge they need, we ensure that they can provide the highest 
level of service and support to our customers. 

Throughout the year, multiple training sessions were conducted, attended by both company 
staff and dealers.  
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2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

1,000,000,000       1,000,000,000       

604,459,640          604,459,640          

557,406,192          557,406,192          

22,545,831,628     8,942,220,855       

23,707,697,460     10,104,086,687     

49,825,282            151,892,953          

203,778,448          207,775,728          

689,751,270          495,893,469          

-                         19,763,562            

943,355,000          875,325,712          

16,380,112,157     16,160,140,423     

22,228,966            6,269,891              

-                         -                         

134,718,125          17,220,879            

114,469,094          208,427,075          

434,275,876          1,854,552,237       

17,085,804,218     18,246,610,505     

-                         -                         

41,736,856,678     29,226,022,904     

7,939,921,844       4,560,374,008       
62,564                   130,814                 

74,167,676            39,444,745            
8,990,470              8,930,470              

8,023,142,554       4,608,880,037       

63,066,066            5,809,570              
14,227,879,268     14,318,096,914     

111,137,653          133,017,887          

2,715,138,956       2,398,535,831       
16,596,492,181

     
7,761,682,665

       

33,713,714,124
     

24,617,142,867
     

41,736,856,678
     

29,226,022,904
     

Note

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24
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 FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

STATEMENT OF

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share Capital and Reserves

Authorized share capital

  100,000,000 (2024: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Capital reserve - share premium

Revenue reserve - unappropriated profit

Shareholders' Equity

Non Current Liabilities

Diminishing musharakah financing

Deferred tax liability

Post employment benefits

Deferred revenue

Current Liabilities 

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Profit payable

Current portion of non-current liabilities

Taxation - net

Contingencies and Commitments

Total Equity and Liabilities

ASSETS

Non Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Long term loans to employees

Long term deposits

Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments

and other receivables 

Cash and bank balances

Total Assets

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements



 PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

STATEMENT OF

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Sales - net 25 108,694,499,692

     

57,642,468,564

       

Cost of sales 26 (77,052,448,989)

      

(41,996,098,564)

      Gross Profit 31,642,050,703

       

15,646,370,000

       
Distribution and marketing costs 27 (3,474,402,975)

        

(1,810,895,576)

        Administrative expenses 28 (560,327,372)

           

(383,302,629)

           Other operating expenses 29 (1,992,726,278)
        

(999,809,051)
           

(6,027,456,625)
        

(3,194,007,256)
        

Operating Profit 25,614,594,078
       

12,452,362,744
       

Other income 30 1,355,017,678         832,388,254            

Finance cost 31 (230,296,277)           (168,911,343)           

1,124,721,401
         

663,476,911
            

Profit before Levy and Taxation 26,739,315,479
       

13,115,839,655
       

Levy / final taxation 32 (1,431,417)

               

(494,830)

                  

Profit before Taxation 26,737,884,062

       

13,115,344,825

       

Taxation 32 (10,401,682,720)

      

(5,179,668,249)

        

Net Profit for the Year 16,336,201,342

       

7,935,676,576

         

Earnings per Share - Basic and Diluted 33 270.26 131.29

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements
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 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

STATEMENT OF

Note
2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Net Profit for the Year 16,336,201,342
    

7,935,676,576
   

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss -                       -                     

Items that will not be re-classified subsequently to profit or loss

Re-measurement of net defined benefit obligation 9.6 (72,968,153)         (21,286,383)       

Other comprehensive loss for the year (72,968,153)
         

(21,286,383)
       

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 16,263,233,189
    

7,914,390,193
   

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements
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 CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

STATEMENT OF

Capital Reserve Revenue Reserve

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Balance as at June 30, 2023 604,459,640

         

557,406,192

             

1,753,182,230

         

2,915,048,062

       
Net profit for the year -

                       

-

                           

7,935,676,576

         

7,935,676,576

       
Other comprehensive loss for the year -

                       

-

                           

(21,286,383)

             

(21,286,383)

          
Total comprehensive income for the year -

                       

-

                           

7,914,390,193

         

7,914,390,193

       

Transaction with Owners 

-
                       

-
                           

(241,783,856)
           

(241,783,856)
        

-                       -                           (483,567,712)           (483,567,712)        

Balance as at June 30, 2024 604,459,640         557,406,192             8,942,220,855         10,104,086,687     

Net profit for the year -                       -                          16,336,201,342       16,336,201,342     

Other comprehensive loss for the year -                       -                          (72,968,153)             (72,968,153)          

Total comprehensive income for the year -
                       

-
                           

16,263,233,189
       

16,263,233,189
     

Transaction with Owners 

-

                       

-

                           

(725,351,568)

           

(725,351,568)

        

-

                       

-

                           

(604,459,640)

           

(604,459,640)

        

-

                       

-

                           

(604,459,640)

           

(604,459,640)

        

-

                       

-

                           

(725,351,568)

           

(725,351,568)

        

Balance as at June 30, 2025 604,459,640

         

557,406,192

             

22,545,831,628

       

23,707,697,460

     

share for the year ended June 30, 2024

Final cash dividend @ Rs. 12 (120%) per ordinary 

First interim cash dividend @ Rs. 10 (100%) per 

share for the year ended June 30, 2025

Share Capital Total
Share Premium

Unappropriated 

Profit

Particulars

Final cash dividend @ Rs. 4 (40%) per ordinary 

share for the year ended June 30, 2023

First interim dividend @ Rs. 8 (80%) per ordinary 

share for the year ended June 30, 2024

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements

Second interim cash dividend @ Rs. 10 (100%) per  

ordinary share for the year ended June 30, 2025

Third interim cash dividend @ Rs. 12 (120%) per 

share for the year ended June 30, 2025
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 CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

STATEMENT OF

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Generated from Operations 34

Finance cost 13

Income tax 

Deferred revenue 10

Staff gratuity 9.2

Workers’ welfare fund 11.4

Workers (profit) participation fund 11.3

Net Cash Generated from Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 17

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 17.1.2

Long term deposits

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Diminishing musharakah financing repaid 7

Profit on bank deposits received 30

Dividend paid

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 24

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

26,096,113,287       11,955,069,844     

(106,974,170)           (126,543,748)         

(11,827,387,778)      (2,738,424,302)      

(22,909,102)             22,730,792            

(23,953,853)             (33,544,401)           

-                           (37,705,776)           

-                           (79,063,509)           

(11,981,224,903)      (2,992,550,944)      

14,114,888,384       8,962,518,900       

(3,732,521,120)        (1,989,256,217)      

18,120,000              17,176,000            

(60,000)                    (2,892,115)             

(3,714,461,120)        (1,974,972,332)      

(192,880,112)           (185,217,610)         

1,270,925,705         651,037,657          

(2,643,663,341)        (720,489,035)         

(1,565,617,748)        (254,668,988)         

8,834,809,516         6,732,877,580       

7,761,682,665         1,028,805,085       

16,596,492,181       7,761,682,665       
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 TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTES

Note 1

The Company and its Operations

Manufacturing facility - three wheeler, wheel rim 

and household electric appliances 18-Km Raiwind Road, Lahore.

Manufacturing facility - four wheeler Maghrabi Tanki-1 Link Road, Near Ijtamah Chowk, 

Sunder-Raiwind Road, Lahore.
Note 2

Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

-

 as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

-

notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

2.2 Basis of measurement

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

2.4 Key judgements and estimates

- Useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment – Note 3.3 & 17.1

- Liability in respect of post employment benefits Note 3.1 and 9

- Current income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax asset (for carried 

forward tax losses and credits) - Note 3.7, 8, 15 and 32

Sazgar Engineering Works Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on September 21, 1991 as a Private Limited Company and

converted into a Public Limited Company on November 21, 1994. The Company is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange

Limited. The Company is domiciled in Pakistan and is engaged in manufacturing and sale of automobiles, automotive parts

and household electric appliances.

The geographical locations and addresses of the Company’s business units, including production facilities are as under:

Business unit Geographical location

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Pak Rupees (Rs.) which is the Company's functional and

presentation currency. All the figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in

Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of

policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and related assumptions

are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities

that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as

applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS and IFAS, the provisions

of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the recognition of

post employment benefits and interest free loans to employees at present value.

Registered office 88- Ali Town, Thokar Niaz Baig, Raiwind Road, Lahore. 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued by the International Accounting  Standards  Board (IASB)

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are 

These estimates and related assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Accounting estimates are revised in the

period in which such revisions are made. Significant management estimates in these financial statements relate

primarily to:

- Estimation of contingent liabilities - Note 3.19 and 16
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2.5 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

2.5.1

IAS 1

IAS 7

2.5.2

Standard or Interpretation

IAS 21

IFRS 7 & 9

IFRS 7 & 9

IFRS S2

IFRS 1

IFRS 18

IFRS 19

Amendments to lack of exchangeability 

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of Financial 

Instruements - Amendments to IFRS 7 and IFRS 9
January 01, 2026

IFRS 1, 7, 9, 

10 and 

IAS 7

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became effective during the

year

The following standards, amendments, and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025. These

standards, amendments and interpretations are either irrelevant to the Company's operations or are not expected

to significantly impact the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. 

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date - Annual Periods

Beginning on or After

January 01, 2025

However, the management believes that the change in outcome of estimates would not have a material effect on

the amounts disclosed in these financial statements.

IFRS 7

Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendments) 

Amendments to IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" 

Amendments to IFRS 7 "Financial Instruments Disclosures"- Supplier

Finance Arrangements

January 01, 2024

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or

after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either

not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's

financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective Date - Annual Periods

Beginning on or After

January 01, 2024

IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 16 "Leases" - Clarification on how seller-lessee 

subsequently measures sale and lease back transaction January 01, 2024

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries Without Public Accountability: Disclosures'

General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related 

Financial Information
IFRS S1 July 01, 2025

Climate-Related Disclosures July 01, 2025

The management believes that adoption of the new standards, amendments and interpretations, which are in issue

but not yet effective, is not likely to have any material impact, on the recognition, measurement, presentation and

disclosure of items in the financial statements for current and future periods and foreseeable future transactions.

Other than the aforementioned standards, interpretations, and amendments, IASB has also issued the following

standards, which have not been notified locally, in relation to the Company, by the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at June 30, 2025:

First Time Adoption of IFRS

January 01, 2024

Contracts referencing Nature-dependent Electricity

Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
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Note 3

Material Accounting Policy Information

3.1 Employee benefits

3.1.1 Short term obligation

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within

twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in

respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected

to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the

statement of financial position.

Material accounting policy information adopted in the preparation of these financial statements is set out below. These policies

have been consistently applied to all the periods presented unless stated otherwise.

3.1.2 Post employment benefits

Defined benefit plan

Defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than the defined contribution plan.

3.2 Compensated absences

3.3 Property, plant and equipment

Owned

3.4 Capital work-in-progress

Items of property, plant and equipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation

and identified impairment losses, if any. Freehold land is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss.

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees. The provision is made on the

basis of actuarial valuation by using the projected unit credit method. In calculating the Company's obligation in

respect of a plan, any actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the statement of other

comprehensive income. The gratuity is payable on the basis of last drawn basic salary of an employee after

completion of six months of service.

The Company accounts for compensated absences of its employees on un-availed balance of leaves in the period

in which the leave are earned.

Normal maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals

and replacements are capitalized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future

economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured

reliably.

Disposal of an asset is recognized when significant risks and rewards, incidental to the ownership of the assets have

been transferred to the buyer. Gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is determined by

comparing the carrying amount of the assets with the realized sale proceeds and is recognized in the current year's

statement of profit or loss.

Cost in relation to self manufactured assets includes direct cost of materials, labour and applicable manufacturing

overheads. Cost of tangible fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the construction /

erection period and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working condition.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment except freehold land and capital work progress is charged by

applying the reducing balance method in accordance with the rates specified in note 17.1 of these financial

statements, whereby the cost of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. Depreciation on additions is

charged when the asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged when the asset is disposed off.

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with

specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. Cost

may also include applicable borrowing costs. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are

available for use. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss during the period in

which these are incurred.

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on

depreciation is significant from previous estimates.
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3.5 Impairment of fixed assets

3.6 Loan, advances and prepayments and other receivables

3.7 Taxation

These are recognized at cost, which is fair value of the consideration given. However, an assessment is made at

each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is an indication that assets may be impaired.

If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss is

recognized for the difference between the recoverable amount and carrying value.

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax and is recognized in statement of profit or loss

except to the extent that relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which

case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

The company assesses at each statements of financial position date whether there is any indication that a fixed

asset may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether

they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount,

assets are written down to the recoverable amount.

3.7.1 Current

3.7.2 Deferred

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to

be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the year end of the reporting date.

The charge for current tax is higher of corporate tax (higher of tax based on taxable income and minimum tax) and

alternative corporate tax. Super tax applicable on the Company is also as per the applicable rates as per the

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. However, in case of loss for the year, income tax expense is recognized as minimum

tax liability on turnover of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Corporate tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing laws of

taxation. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the

profit for the year if enacted after taking into account tax credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for

current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years

arising from assessments framed during the year for such years. 

Alternative corporate tax is calculated at 17% of accounting profit, after taking into account the required

adjustments. Current tax for current and prior periods, to the extent unpaid is recognized as a liability. If the amount

already paid irrespective of current and prior period exceeds the amount due to those periods the excess

recognized as an asset.

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities if, and only if, the entity has a legally enforceable

right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle

the liability simultaneously.

When minimum tax is higher than tax calculated on taxable profits, excess amount is recognized as levy under IFIRC

21 / IAS 37. Further, the Company shall also charge tax expense under levy when tax is calculated under final tax

regime. 

The management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situation in which

applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provision where appropriate.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary timing differences

arising from the difference between the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities in the financial statements and

the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. However, deferred tax is not accounted for

if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the

time of transaction neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
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3.8 Store, spares and loose tools

Deferred tax is calculated at rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on

the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or have been notified for subsequent enactment by the

reporting date.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

using the average rates that are expected to apply to the taxable profits / (tax losses) of the periods in which

temporary differences are expected to be reversed.

These are valued at weighted average cost except items in transit which are valued at cost comprising invoice

value and other charges paid thereon.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores, spares and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made

for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and physical form. Impairment, if any, is also made for slow

moving items identified as surplus to the requirements or future usability of the Company.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in case where the item to which the

deferred tax asset or liability pertains, is recorded in comprehensive income or equity, the corresponding deferred

tax charge is also recognized in other comprehensive income or equity.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent of

probable future taxable profit available that will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

3.9 Stock-in-trade

3.10 Revenue Recognition
 

a) Identify the contract with a customer;

b) Identify the performance obligation in the contract;

c) Determine the transaction price of the contract;

d) Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations in the contract; and

e) Recognize the revenue as the Company satisfies a performance obligation

Cost of work in process and finished goods includes direct material, labour and appropriate portion of
manufacturing expenses.

Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation is satisfied by applying the following five steps model of 
revenue recognition:

In case of vehicles and parts, revenue is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to the customers.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract, adjusted for variable consideration such

as discount, if any. In most cases, the consideration is received before the goods are dispatched / invoiced.

Deferred payment terms may also be agreed in case of sales to certain categories of customers. Transaction price is

adjusted for time value of money in case of significant financing component.

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to transfer goods or services without charges such as free 

inspections of vehicles. Such promised goods or services are generally considered performance obligations and

related sales revenue is deferred under IFRS 15, if it is deemed material.

Stock in trade is valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. The average cost in relation 

to work in process and finished goods represents direct costs of raw materials, labour and appropriate portion of

overheads. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs

necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock in trade on a regular quarterly basis and as appropriate,

inventory is written down to its net realizable value or provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in its

usage pattern and physical form of related stock in trade. The provision of slow moving items is determined based

on the management's assessment regarding their future usability.

3.11  Segment reporting

 

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief operating 
decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the 
basis of its internal reporting structure, a reportable segment is identified where it becomes a distinguishable component that
is engaged in providing an individual product or service or a group of related products or services within a particular 
economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other segments. Expenses which
cannot be directly allocated activity-wise, are apportioned on appropriate basis as required by chief operating decision 
maker.
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3.12 Cash and cash equivalents

3.13 Trade and accrued liabilities

3.14 Provisions

3.15 Financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash flow

statement, cash and cash equivalent consists of cash in hand and balances with banks.

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be

paid in the future for the goods and services received, whether billed or not to the Company. The amounts are

unsecured and are usually paid as per terms and conditions. Trade and other payables are presented as current

liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past

events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the

obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best

estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to

settle the obligation, the provisions are reversed.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All the financial assets are derecognized at the

time when the Company looses control of the contractual rights that comprise the financial assets. All financial

liabilities are derecognized at the time when they are extinguished that is, when the obligation specified in the

contract is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gains or losses on de-recognition of the financial assets and

financial liabilities are taken to the statement of profit or loss.

(i) Amortized cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of

principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in

other income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognized

directly in statement of profit or loss and presented in other operating income / (expenses), together with foreign

exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

3.15.1 Financial assets 

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

Recognition and derecognition

Measurement

Debt instruments

a) Amortized cost where the effective interest rate method will apply;

b) Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL);

c) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTCI).

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual

terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in the statement of profit or loss or

statement of other comprehensive income. The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its

business model for managing those assets changes.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing the asset

and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company

classifies its debt instruments.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Company

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from

the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership.

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. In the case of a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

(FVTPL), the Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash

flows are solely payment of principal and interest.
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(ii) Fair value through statement of other comprehensive income (FVTCI)

(iii) Fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)

De-recognition of financial assets

Impairment of financial assets

Following are financial instruments that are subject to the ECL model:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the assets’

cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVTCI. Movements in the carrying

amount are taken through statement of other comprehensive income, except for the recognition of impairment

gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in statement of profit

or loss. When the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in statement of

other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to statement of profit or loss and recognized in other income

/ expenses. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate

method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other income/expenses and impairment expenses are

presented as separate line item in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FVTCI are measured at FVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt

investment that is subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and presented In

operating gains / (losses) in the period in which it arises.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been

transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

For trade debts, the Company applies the simplified approach, which requires expected lifetime losses to be

recognized from initial recognition of the receivables. The Company recognizes in statement of profit or loss, as an

impairment gain or loss, the amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss

allowance at the reporting date.

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its debt

instruments carried at amortized cost and FVTCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there

has been a significant increase in credit risk.

– Trade debts

– Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables

– Bank balances

Write-off

3.15.2 Financial liabilities

Classification, initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss

(ii) Amortized cost

a) At fair value through profit or loss; and

b) Other financial liabilities

The Company determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities are

recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, also include directly attributable

transaction costs. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held-for-trading and financial liabilities

designated upon initial recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not designated

any financial liability upon recognition as being at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities which are interest bearing are subsequently measured at amortized

cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through effective interest rate amortization process.

The Company write off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and

has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
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3.15.3 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

3.16 Earning per share

3.17 Interest free loans to employees

3.18 Provision of warranty obligation

3.19 Contingent liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position

if the Company has legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and intend either to settle on a net

basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender with substantially different terms, or

the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-

recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying

amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair or replace products under warranty

at the reporting date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the statement of profit or loss when

the sale is recognised.

The Company presents Earning Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding

during the year.

The Company provides interest free loans to its employees for various purposes. The loans are initially recognized at

fair value which is the present value of future deductions to be made from employees’ salaries, discounted at the

market interest rate. The difference between fair value of the interest free loan and principal amount at initial

recognition is recorded as expense in statement of profit or loss. The loan is subsequently measured at amortized

cost with respective finance income to be recorded in profit or loss. In addition, the deferred employee benefit is

fully expensed in the statement of profit and loss at the time of initial recognition.

A contingent liability is disclosed when there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not

wholly within the control of the Company.

A contingent liability is also disclosed when there is a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not

probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits would be required to settle the obligation or

the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

3.20 Return on Bank Deposits

3.21 Foreign currency translation

Return on bank deposits is recognized and recorded on an accrual basis, reflecting the income as it is earned rather 

than when it is received.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees using the exchange rate prevailing at the dates of

transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees at the

rates of exchange approximating those prevalent at the statement of financial position date. All exchange

differences are charged to statement of profit or loss. 

Note 4

Summary of Other Accounting Policies

4.1 Research and development

Other accounting policies which do not have significant impact on financial statements are set out below for ease of user's

understanding of these financial statements. These polices have been applied consistently for all periods presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with the prospect of gaining new technical knowledge and

understanding, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as an expense as incurred.
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4.2 Borrowing cost

4.3 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

4.4 Intangible assets

The intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and identified impairment loss, if any. The

cost of intangible assets is amortized over a period of five (5) years using the straight line method. 

Amortization on additions to the intangible assets is charged when an asset is capitalized and / or is available for

use, while no amortization is charged when the asset is disposed off. The amortization expense is charged to the

statement of profit or loss.

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 38 "Intangible Assets" requires review of amortization period and the

amortization method at least at each financial year end. Accordingly the management assesses at each statement

of financial position date the assets' residual values and useful lives in addition to considering any indication of

impairment, and adjustments are made if impact on amortization is significant. 

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the

production of new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalized if the product or process is

technically and commercially feasible and the company has sufficient resources to complete development. The

expenditure capitalized includes the cost of materials, direct labour, an appropriate proportion of overheads and

other directly attributable expenditure. Other development expenditure is recognized in the statement of profit or

loss as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, capitalized during the year, are classified under "Intangible assets". 

Borrowing cost is recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred. Borrowing costs are recognised as

an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such costs are directly attributable to the

acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalised as part of the

cost of that asset.

Dividend declared and appropriations to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which

they are approved.

Note 5

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

2025 2024 2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

21,363,000    21,363,000    213,630,000    213,630,000    

39,082,964    39,082,964    390,829,640    390,829,640    

60,445,964
    

60,445,964
    

604,459,640
    

604,459,640
    

5.1

5.2 As at the reporting date, the shares of the Company as held by its related parties are as follows:

2025 2024 2025 2024

Directors 61.47% 64.76% 37,158,502

      

39,144,484

      

Others 5.75% 2.45% 3,478,132

        

1,479,940

        

5.3 No shares were further issued or cancelled during the year.

Percentage Number of Shares

Number of Shares

All ordinary shares rank equally with regards to the residual assets of the Company. Ordinary shareholders are

entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the form of bonus and right shares as

and when declared by the Company. Voting and other rights are in proportion to the shareholding.

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash 

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each allotted as fully 

paid bonus shares 
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Note 6

Capital Reserve - Share Premium

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Premium on issuance of right shares 557,406,192    557,406,192    

6.1

Note 7

Diminishing Musharakah Financing

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Diminishing musharakah - Islamic banking

MCB Islamic Bank Limited 7.2 3,390,996        14,885,496      

Meezan Bank Limited 7.3 47,460,305      124,679,285    

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 7.4 84,375,002      121,875,002    

Faysal Bank Limited 7.5 16,666,660      83,333,292      

151,892,963    344,773,075    

Less: Current portion of diminishing musharakah financing (102,067,681)   (192,880,122)   

49,825,282      151,892,953    

7.1 Movement in diminishing musharakah financing

Opening balance 344,773,075    529,990,685    

Obtained during the year -                   -                   

Repaid during the year (192,880,112)   (185,217,610)   

Closing balance 151,892,963    344,773,075    

This represents the premium received on right shares issued during the year ended June 30, 2020. This reserve can be utilized

 by the Company only for the purposes specified in Section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

Note
Financial 

Institution

For the year 

ended June 

30,

Total 

Facility

Utilized 

Portion

Un-Utilized 

Portion
Purpose of Facility

Rate of 

Profit

Payment of 

Installment

Repayment 

Commencement 

Date

Date of 

Maturity
Tenure Security Details

2025 44.6 3.39 41.21

2024 44.6 14.89 29.71

32.71
6M-KIBOR + 

1.75%
Quarterly

August 

 2021

November 

 2025

Seven years 

including two 

years and 7 

months grace 

period

14.75
SBP Rate + 

4%
Quarterly

October 

 2021

July 

 2026

Five years and 

six months 

including 9 

months grace 

period

98.12
6M-KIBOR + 

1.75%
Quarterly

August 

 2021

November 

 2025

Seven years 

including two 

years and 7 

months grace 

period

26.50
SBP Rate + 

4%
Quarterly

October 

 2021

July 

 2026

Five years and 

six months 

including 9 

months grace 

period

2025 94 84.37 9.63

2024 132 121.87 10.13

2025 67 16.67 50.33

2024 133 83.33 49.67

- Pari passu charge over fixed 

assets of Rs. 627.33 million

- Personal guarantees of certain 

directors

----Rs. in million----

7.2

MCB Islamic 

Bank 

Limited

For the acquisition 

of four wheeler 

plant and 

machinery

6M-KIBOR + 

1.35% and 

1.75%

April 

 2020

November

2025

Six years 

including one 

year grace 

period

- Pari passu charge over fixed 

assets of Rs. 90 million

- Personal guarantees of certain 

directors

7.3

Meezan 

Bank 

Limited

2025 48 0.54

For the acquisition 

of four wheeler 

plant and 

machinery

Quarterly 

2024 161 36.38

November 

 2022

Quarterly

Quarterly
August 

 2025

Four years 

including one 

year grace 

period

- Pari passu charge over fixed 

assets of Rs. 534.00 million

- Pari passu charge over current 

assets of Rs. 200 million

- Personal guarantees of certain 

directors

October 

 2022

July

 2027

Five years 

including one 

year grace 

period

- Pari passu charge over fixed 

assets of Rs. 267.00 million

- Pari passu charge over current 

assets of Rs. 200 million

- Personal guarantees of certain 

directors

7.5
Faysal Bank 

Limited

For the acquisition 

of four wheeler 

plant and 

machinery

3M-KIBOR + 

1.75%

7.4

Habib 

Metropolitan

 Bank 

Limited

For the acquisition 

of four wheeler 

plant and 

machinery

3M-KIBOR + 

1.50%
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Note 8

Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset)

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Taxable temporary differences

Accelerated tax depreciation 366,729,894          296,217,362          

Deductible temporary differences

Provision against doubtful trade debts (281,371)               (719,926)               
Provision against warranty (157,833,524)        (73,950,607)          
Deferred revenue (4,836,551)            (13,771,101)          

203,778,448         207,775,728         

8.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities / (assets) - Net

Opening balance 207,775,728          (39,208,370)          
Charged to profit or loss during the year 32 (3,997,280)            246,984,098          

Charged to other comprehensive income during the year -                        -                        

Closing balance 203,778,448          207,775,728          

8.2 Analysis of deferred tax

2025 2025

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Accelerated tax depreciation 366,729,894      296,217,362    70,512,532            117,280,635          

Provision for doubtful trade debt (281,371)            (719,926)          438,555                (719,926)               

Provision for warranty (157,833,524)     (73,950,607)     (83,882,917)          (60,797,679)          

Minimum tax u/s 113 of the Income 

Tax Ordinance, 2001 -                    -                  -                        204,992,169          

Deferred revenue (4,836,551)         (13,771,101)     8,934,550             (13,771,101)          

203,778,448     207,775,728   (3,997,280)            246,984,098         

Statement of Financial Position Statement of Profit or Loss

2024 2024

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) on temporary differences are measured at effective rate of 39% (2024: 39%) per annum.8.3 

Note 9

Post Employment Benefits

2025 2024

Note

Staff gratuity - unfunded 9.1 689,751,270          495,893,469          

9.1

RupeesRupees

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering its permanent employees subject to completion

of minimum prescribed period of service. Most recent actuarial valuation was carried out as on June 30, 2025.

Actuarial valuation estimates are based on assumption on anticipation of future salary increase, mortality and

inflation rates.
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9.3 Charge for the year 

Current service cost 73,465,811            54,216,686            

Interest cost 71,377,690            61,108,751            

144,843,501          115,325,437

9.2 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations

Opening balance 495,893,469          392,826,050          

Current service cost 73,465,811            54,216,686            

Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 71,377,690            61,108,751            

Benefits paid (23,953,853)          (33,544,401)          

Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions 49,706,040            3,273,429             

Experience adjustments 23,262,113            18,012,954            

689,751,270         495,893,469         

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

9.4 The charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 26.2 102,978,860 82,689,038

Distribution and marketing costs 27.1 9,856,067 8,058,931

Administrative expenses 28.1 32,008,574 24,577,468

144,843,501         115,325,437

9.5 Year end sensitivity analysis (± 100 Bps) on defined benefit obligation

Discount rate + 100 bps 637,318,315 460,871,248

Discount rate - 100 bps 751,829,134 536,840,578

Salary increase + 100 Bps 752,285,770 537,558,114

Salary increase - 100 Bps 635,939,373 459,647,986

9.6 Re-measurement recognized in other  comprehensive income

Actuarial losses from changes in financial assumptions 49,706,040            3,273,429             

Experience adjustments 23,262,113            18,012,954            

Total re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income 72,968,153           21,286,383           

9.7

The expense is recognized in the following line items in the statement of profit or loss under the head salaries,

wages and other benefits.

The Company does not have any plan assets covering its post-employment benefits payable. The comparative

statement of present value of defined benefit obligations is as under: 

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Present value of defined

benefit obligations 689,751,270    495,893,469      392,826,050     295,513,621          244,891,848          
Fair value of plan assets -                  -                    -                  -                        -                        
Net liability 689,751,270   495,893,469     392,826,050   295,513,621         244,891,848         

9.8 Estimated Charge for future period

2026

Rupees

Service cost 99,740,794            
Interest cost 70,154,981            

169,895,775         
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9.9 Actuarial assumptions

2025 2024

Discount rate for year end obligation 11.75% 14.75%

Discount rate for interest cost in profit or loss 14.75% 16.25%

Average expected remaining working lives of employees 8 Years 8 Years

Expected mortality rate for active employees

Actuarial valuation method

Retirement assumption

Expected rate of increase in salary level - per annum
11.75% for 2026 

and onwards

15% for 2025 and 

13.75% onwards

9.10      Expected benefit payments for next 10 years and beyond

Rupees

Year 2026           185,375,209 

Year 2027             46,388,808 

Year 2028             58,469,855 

Year 2029             62,295,899 

Year 2030             72,235,090 

Year 2031             70,810,611 

Year 2032           102,958,511 

Year 2033             99,316,011 

Year 2034             83,213,191 

Year 2035           108,768,957 

Year 2036 and onwards      16,127,532,869 

The present value of defined benefit obligations and charge for the current year have been determined on the

basis of actuarial estimates provided by the actuary as under:

Projected Credit Unit Method

SLIC 2001-2005 Setback 1 Year

60 Years

Note 10

Deferred Revenue

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Deferred revenue 10.1 12,401,413            35,310,515            

Less: Current portion of deferred revenue 14 (12,401,413)          (15,546,953)          

-                       19,763,562           

10.1      Movement in deferred revenue

Opening balance             35,310,515             12,579,723 

Additions during the year             76,314,000             37,779,000 

Revenue recognized during the year            (99,223,102)            (15,048,208)

Closing balance 12,401,413           35,310,515           
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Note 11

Trade and Other Payables

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Advances from trade customers - contract liability 11.1 9,800,690,718
       

12,950,356,962
     

Creditors - unsecured 1,270,441,912
       

1,346,313,454
       

Accrued and other liabilities 422,470,568
          

303,116,364
          

Sales tax and excise duty payable 340,260,459          267,769,041          

Income tax deducted at source 516,555,367          127,976,423          

Provision for warranty claims 11.2 404,701,343          189,616,937          

Workers' (profit) participation fund 11.3 2,148,692,235       706,047,217          

Workers' welfare fund 11.4 815,249,142          268,944,025          

Islamic mode of financing - Murabaha / Musawammah:

 - Faysal Bank Limited 11.5 363,245,850          -                        

 - Meezan Bank Limited 11.6 297,804,563          -                        

 - Habib Bank Limited 11.7 -                        -                        

 - United Bank Limited 11.8 -                        -                        

 - Allied Bank Limited 11.9 -                        -                        

 - Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 11.10 -                        -                        

 - Askari Bank Limited 11.11 -                        -                        

 - Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 11.12 -                        -                        

 - The Bank of Punjab 11.13 -                        -                        

 - Bank Al-Habib Limited 11.14 -                        -                        

 - Bank Alfalah Limited 11.15 -                        -                        

16,380,112,157    16,160,140,423    

11.1      

11.2      Movement in provision for warranty claims

Opening balance 189,616,937          45,454,925            
Charged during the year 217,434,818          144,162,012          

407,051,755          189,616,937          
Utilized during the year (2,350,412)            -                            
Closing balance 404,701,343         189,616,937         

11.3      Movement in workers' (profit) participation fund

Opening balance 706,047,217          79,063,511            
Expense recognised during the year 29 1,442,645,018       706,047,215          

2,148,692,235       785,110,726          
Payments made during the year -                        (79,063,509)          
Closing balance 2,148,692,235      706,047,217         

11.4
      

Movement in workers' welfare fund

Opening balance 268,944,025
          

19,580,642
            

Expense recognised during the year 546,305,117
          

268,944,025
          

Prior year adjustment -
                        

18,125,134
            

29 546,305,117
          

287,069,159
          

815,249,142
          

306,649,801
          

Payments made during the year -
                        

(37,705,776)
          

Closing balance 815,249,142
         

268,944,025
         

This represents advances received from customers in respect of sale of vehicles and related parts. The opening

balance of contract liability has been recognized as revenue during the year.
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Islamic mode of financing - Murabaha / Musawammah

`

Note
Financial Institutions 

Name  / Facility Type

For the Year 

Ended June 

30,

 Total 

Funded 

Facility 

Utilized 

Portion

 Un-Utilized 

Portion 

Maximum 

Period
Rate of Profit Security Details

2025 400 363.25

        

36.75 120 Days KIBOR + 1.00%

2024 300 -

             

300 120 Days KIBOR + 1.00%

2025 400 297.80

        

102.20 180 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2024 400 -

             

400 180 Days KIBOR + 1.25%

2025 160 -

             

160 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2024 160 -

             

160 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2025 350 -
             

350 180 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2024 350 -
             

350 180 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2025 Nil -             Nil Nil - -

2024 135 -
             

135 90 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

185 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 110 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2025 200 -

             

200 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2024 200 -

             

200 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

11.8

United Bank Limited - 

Ameen Islamic 

Banking Murabaha 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.5)

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs.

467 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of

Rs. 350 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

11.9

Allied Bank Limited - 

Murabaha 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.6)

11.10

 Habib Metropolitan 

Bank Limited - 

 Murabaha 

arrangement 

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.7)

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

267 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 200 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

----Rs. in million----

11.5

Faysal Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking - 

Murabaha 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.8)

11.6

Meezan Bank Limited 

- Muswammah 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.3)

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

534 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 400 million (2024: Rs. 300 million)

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

797.33 million

- Pari passu charge over the current 

assets of Rs. 400 million 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

11.7

Habib Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking - 

Muswammah 

arrangement

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

214 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 160 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors
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Islamic mode of financing - Murabaha / Musawammah

Note
Financial Institutions 

Name  / Facility Type

For the Year 

Ended June 

30,

 Total 

Funded 

Facility 

Utilized 

Portion

 Un-Utilized 

Portion 

Maximum 

Period
Rate of Profit Security Details

2025 300 -

             

300 120 Days KIBOR + 1.25%

2024 300 -

             

300 120 Days KIBOR + 1.25%

2025 300 -

             

300 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2024 300 -

             

300 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2025 250 -

             

250 180 Days KIBOR + 1.00%

2024 250 -
             

250 180 Days KIBOR + 1.00%

2025 250 -             250 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2024 250 -             250 120 Days KIBOR + 1.10%

2025 350 -
             

350 120 Days KIBOR + 1.00%

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

467 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 350 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2024 Nil -

             

Nil Nil - -

11.15

Bank Al Falah Limited 

- Islamic Banking - 

Muswammah 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.15)

----Rs. in million----

11.11

Askari Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking - 

Murabaha 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.9)

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

400 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 300 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

11.12

11.14

Bank Al Habib 

Limited - Islamic 

Banking - Murabaha 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.12)

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

334 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 250 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

Dubai Islamic Bank 

Pakistan Limited - 

Islamic Banking - 

Murabaha 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.10)

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

400 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 300 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

11.13

The Bank of Punjab - 

Islamic Banking - 

Muswammah 

arrangement

(Sublimit of Note 

16.2.11)

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 

334 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of 

Rs. 250 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors
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Note 12
Short Term Borrowings

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

 - Habib Bank Limited 12.1 -

                 

-

                 

 - Askari Bank Limited 12.2 -

                 

-

                 

 - United Bank Limited 12.3 -

                 

-

                 

 - Meezan Bank Limited 12.4 -

                 

-

                 

 - Allied Bank Limited 12.5 -

                 

-

                 

 - Faysal Bank Limited 12.6 -

                 

-

                 

 - The Bank of Khyber 12.7 -

                 

-

                 

-

                 

-

                 

Istisna arrangements

 - Meezan Bank Limited 12.8 -

                 
-

                 

 - Bank Alfalah Limited 12.9 -
                 

-
                 

 - Bank Al Habib Limited 12.10 -
                 

-
                 

-
                 

-
                 

Islamic mode of financing (Shariah compliant financial institution)

Running Musharakah arrangements 

Note

Financial Institutions 

Name  / Facility 

Type

For the Year 

Ended June 

30,

Sublimit 

of Note

 Total 

Funded 

Facility 

Utilized 

Portion

 Un-Utilized 

Portion 

Rate of 

Profit

2025 160 -
          

160
KIBOR + 

1.10%

2024 160 -

          

160
KIBOR + 

1.10%

2025 100 -

          

100
KIBOR + 

1.25%

2024 100 -

          

100
KIBOR + 

1.25%

2025 280 -

          

280
KIBOR + 

1.10%

2024 280 -

          

280
KIBOR + 

1.10%

2025 400 -

          

400
KIBOR + 

1.1%

2024 221 - 221
KIBOR + 

1.25%

Security Details

----Rs. in millions----

12.1

Habib Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking - 

Running 

Musharakah 

arrangement 

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 214 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 160 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

11.7

12.2

Askari Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking - 

Running 

Musharakah 

arrangement 

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 400 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 300 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

12.3

United Bank Limited - 

Ameen Islamic 

Banking - Running 

Musharakah 

arrangement

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 467 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 350 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

12.4

Meezan Bank 

Limited - Running 

Musharakah 

arrangement

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 761.33 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 400 million 

(2024: Rs. 329 million)

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

11.11

11.8

11.6
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Note

Financial Institutions 

Name  / Facility 

Type

For the Year 

Ended June 

30,

Sublimit 

of Note

 Total 

Funded 

Facility 

Utilized 

Portion

 Un-Utilized 

Portion 

Rate of 

Profit

2025 Nil -

          

Nil -

2024 45 -

          

45
KIBOR + 

1.10%

2025 100 -

          

100
KIBOR + 

1%

2024 Nil -

          

Nil

2025 250 -

          

250
KIBOR + 

1%

2024 Nil -
          

Nil

2025 Nil -
          

Nil  - 

2024 40 -

          

40
KIBOR + 

1.25%

2025 350 -

          

350
 KIBOR + 

1% 

2024 Nil -

          

Nil  - 

100 -

          

100
 KIBOR + 

1.10% 

1,488 -

          

1,488  Nil 

2024 Nil - Nil  - 

Security Details

----Rs. in millions----

12.5

Allied Bank Limited - 

Business Running 

Musharakah 

arrangement

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 185 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 110 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

12.6

Faysal Bank Limited - 

Running 

Musharakah 

arrangement

11.9

11.5

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 534 million.

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 400 million.

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

-

12.7

The Bank of Khyber - 

Running 

Musharakah 

arrangement

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 334 million.

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 250 million.

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

12.8

Meezan Bank 

Limited - Istisna 

arrangement

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 797.33 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 329 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

-

11.6

- Pari passu charge over fixed assets of Rs. 467 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 350 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

12.9
Bank Alfalah Limited - 

Istisna arrangement

12.10

Bank Al-Habib 

Limited - 

Istisna arrangement

2025

- Parri passu over fixed assets of Rs 334 million

- Pari passu charge over current assets of Rs. 250 million

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

110% cash margin

-

11.15

11.14

-

-
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Note 16

Contingencies and Commitments

16.1 Contingencies

16.1.1

16.1.2

The Director General (HQ) / Adjudicating Officer of Punjab Employees Social Security Institution (PESSI) has passed

an order against the Company and sustained the demand created by the Deputy Director (Admin) of Rs.

6,547,688 as on June 12, 2019. The Company filed an appeal against the said order before The Honourable Labour

Court, Lahore and has been granted a stay order. The appeal is still pending. In the opinion of the legal advisor,

favourable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

The Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) restored sales tax on renting of immovable property services, retrospectively vide

Sindh Sales Tax on Services (Amendment) Act, 2018. Consequently the landlord of the Company's Karachi Office

has claimed sales tax on rental services amounting to Rs. 257,064 for the tax year 2016, 2017 and 2018. The

Company has challenged the law by filing a writ petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court, Karachi and has

been granted a stay order on December 31, 2018. In the opinion of the legal advisor, the outcome of the case is

expected in favour of the Company, hence no provision is incorporated in these financial statements. 

Note 13

Profit Payable

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Diminishing musharkah financing - secured 7,221,639
                 

15,356,278
           

Short term borrowings - secured 2,032,033
                 

1,854,412
             

Interest on Workers' (Profit) Participation Fund 124,644,932
             

10,189
                  

Profit on muswammah payable 819,521
                    

-
                       

134,718,125
            

17,220,879
          

Note 14

Current Portion of Non-Current Liabilities

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Diminishing musharakah financing - Islamic banking 7 102,067,681             192,880,122         
Deferred revenue 10 12,401,413               15,546,953           

114,469,094            208,427,075        

Note 15

Taxation - Net

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Opening balance 1,854,552,237          -                       

Add: Charge for the current year 10,441,322,209        4,932,684,151      

Less: Prior year (34,210,792)              -                       

Less: Payment / adjustment during the year (11,827,387,778)       (3,078,131,914)    

Closing balance 434,275,876            1,854,552,237     

15.1

15.2

The provision for current year tax represents corporate tax at 29% (2024: 29%) and super tax at the rate of 10%

(2024: 10%) as per the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Income tax assessments are deemed finalized by the management up to the Tax Year 2024 as tax returns were

filed under the self assessment scheme.
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16.1.3

16.1.4

During the year 2022, ATIR decided the case against the Company for tax year 2013 of Rs. 2,479,693 as on

November 09, 2021. The Company filed a reference petition before the Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore on

February 03, 2022. The said petition is pending before the Honourable Court. In the opinion of the legal counsel,

favourable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

16.1.5

16.1.6

16.1.7

16.1.8

16.1.9

16.1.10

Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) initiated proceedings under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2018 and created a tax demand of Rs. 8,848,110 as on February 06, 2020, The

Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeal CIR(A) and got a relief of Rs.

4,264,240. However the DCIR filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of CIR(A). On the other hand, the

Company also filed an appeal before the ATIR as on April 14, 2020. The proceedings of ATIR are still pending. In the

opinion of tax consultant, favourable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in

these financial statements.

DCIR initiated proceedings under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax year 2017 and

created a tax demand of Rs. 33,952,716 as on March 30, 2019, The Company filed an appeal against this order

with CIR (A) and CIR (A) deleted the order of DCIR as on June 25, 2019. However, DCIR filed an appeal with ATIR

against the order of CIR (A) as on August 27, 2019, proceedings are still pending. In the opinion of tax consultant,

favourable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

The Company has filed writ petition in the Honourable Lahore High Court, Lahore (LHC) against the illegal

selection by the Commissioner Inland Revenue for the audit of sales tax affairs for tax year 2017 under section 25

of the Sales Tax Act, 1990. Which was rejected by the honourable Court. The Company filed an Intra Court Appeal

(ICA) before LHC and the honourable Court has granted an interim relief to the Company and restrained the

Commissioner Inland Revenue to pass a final order till the decision of appeal as on January 21, 2020. The case is

still pending. In the opinion of the legal counsel, outcome of this case will be in favour of the Company. Hence,

no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

A group of persons in rickshaw market Karachi deposited a sum of Rs. 10.93 million (2024: Rs. 10.93 million)

unilaterally in the Company's bank account for the purchase of auto rickshaw without any authorization from the

Company. The Company filed a suit in Honourable Sindh High Court, Karachi (SHC) against these persons as on

September 24, 2019. Instead of appearing in the Honourable Sindh High Court, Karachi, they filed nine civil suits

against the Company for the declaration, cancellation, recovery and damages amounting to Rs. 109.43 million

The cases are still pending. In the opinion of the legal advisor, these claims are frivolous and the outcome of these

cases will be in favour of the Company, hence, no provision has been incorporated in these financial statements.

DCIR passed an order under section 11 (2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from July-2013 to June-2014

and created a demand of Rs. 7,418,949 as on September 28, 2017. The Company filed an appeal against this

order with CIR (A) and got a relief of Rs. 5,694,504 as on April 30, 2021. For remaining tax upheld of Rs. 1,724,445,

the Company filed an appeal before ATIR as on June 29, 2021. Further, the Department also filed an appeal

before ATIR regarding the relief of Rs. 5,694,504. The appeals are still pending and in the opinion of the tax

consultant, favourable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial

statements. 

DCIR passed an order under section 11 (2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax period from July-2011 to June-2012 
and created a demand of Rs. 192,568,536 as on May 30, 2018, . The Company filed an appeal against this order
with CIR (A). The CIR (A) has remanded back the case to DCIR with upheld amount of Rs. 2,223,033. The Company
filed an appeal with ATIR against the decision of CIR (A) for the upheld amount and decision of remand back. In 
the opinion of the tax consultant, favourable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence, no provision is 
incorporated in these financial statements.

Federal Board of Revenue issued SRO 845(I)/2021 dated June 30, 2021 in which Additional Custom Duty (ACD) was

imposed on import of our four wheels CKD kits. The Company filed writ petitions in LHC as on March 30, 2021 and

Honourable Sindh High Court, Karachi as on April 15, 2021 and obtained stay orders. The cases are still pending. In

the opinion of legal counsel, favourable outcome of the cases is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in

these financial statements.
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16.1.11

16.1.12

16.1.13

DCIR issued an order under Section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990, for the tax periods from July 2020 to June 2021,

creating a demand of Rs. 226,283,805 on January 27, 2023. The Company filed an appeal against this order with

the CIR(A) on February 23, 2023. CIR(A) subsequently remanded the case back to the assessing officer. As neither

the Company nor the Department was satisfied with the order of CIR(A), both parties filed appeals with ATIR. The

proceedings are still pending. In the opinion of tax consultant, favourable outcome of the appeal is expected,

hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

The Company has challenged the legality and constitutionality of section 5 (A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

by filing a constitutional petition in LHC as on July 10, 2018. During the previous years, the FBR brought various

amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 relating applicability of section 5A, which may have material

bearing on our case. Therefore, the matter was discussed in detail with the legal counsel and it was decided that

with the permission of Honourable Court, the present writ petition was withdrawn and fresh writ petition was filed

before the LHC. Therefore, the Company filed a fresh writ petition on the subject matter as on December 19, 2022.

In the opinion of the legal counsel, favourable outcome of the petition is expected, hence, no provision is

incorporated in these financial statements.

16.1.14

16.1.15

16.1.16

16.1.17

16.1.18

Proceedings under Section 122(5A) were initiated by the DCIR for the tax year 2009, resulting in a tax demand of

Rs. 5,440,062 as of March 31, 2015. The Company filed an appeal with the CIR(A), which granted relief amounting

to Rs. 5,318,163. For the remaining tax demand of Rs. 121,899, the Company appealed to the ATIR. Additionally,

the DCIR filed a separate appeal with the ATIR against the relief granted by the CIR(A). During the year, the ATIR

ruled in favor of the Company, nullifying the demands raised by the DCIR. Subsequently, the CIR filed a reference

application with LHC on October 25, 2023, challenging the ATIR's decision. The case is still pending, in the opinion

of legal counsel, favourable outcomes of the reference application are expected, hence, no provision is

incorporated in these financial statements.

The DCIR issued an order under Section 122(5A) for the tax year 2003, creating an income tax liability of Rs.

545,930. The Company appealed the order to the CIR(A), which upheld the DCIR’s decision. The Company then

filed an appeal with the ATIR on November 12, 2009. On April 14, 2021, the ATIR ruled in favor of the Company,

deleting the demands upheld by the CIR(A). Following this, the CIR filed a reference petition with LHC challenging

the ATIR's decision. The case is still pending, in the opinion of legal counsel, favourable outcomes of the reference

application are expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

Proceedings under Section 122(5A) were initiated by the DCIR for the tax year 2012, resulting in a tax demand of

Rs. 387,050,666 as of April 30, 2018. The Company filed an appeal with the CIR(A) on June 4, 2018, where the CIR(A)

annulled the DCIR’s order and instructed a reassessment based on the available records. Subsequently, the

Company appealed the decision of reassessment before the ATIR, and the case remains pending without any tax

demand. In the opinion of tax consultant, favourable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence, no provision is

incorporated in these financial statements.

The Company received an order passed by DCIR as on January 25, 2024 under section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 

1990 for the tax periods from July 2017 to June 2018 and created a demand of Rs. 39,069,356. The Company filed 

an appeal against this order before CIR(A) as on February 21, 2024. On April 24, 2025, the case was remanded 

back by ATIR, Lahore. Furthermore, the Intra-Court Appeal is pending adjudication. In the opinion of tax consultant, 

favourable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

ACIR passed an order as on June 19, 2023 under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax 
year 2021 and created a demand of Rs. 2,512,850. Subsequent to the reporting date, the Company filed an 
appeal against this order before CIR (A) as on July 18, 2023. The proceedings are still pending. In the opinion of tax 
consultant, favourable outcome of the appeal is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial 
statements.

Proceedings under Section 122(5A) were initiated by the DCIR for the tax year 2015, resulting in a tax demand of

Rs. 31,262,633 as of July 9, 2021. The Company filed an appeal with the CIR(A) on July 19, 2021 where the CIR(A)

annulled the DCIR’s order and instructed a fresh proceeding based on the available record, along with a

speaking order. The Company subsequently appealed before the ATIR, contesting that the CIR(A) should have

passed a speaking order. The case is still pending, with no tax demand. In the opinion of tax consultant,

favourable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial

statements.
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16.1.19

16.1.20

16.1.21

16.1.22

The ACIR initiated proceedings under Section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2017,

resulting in a tax demand of Rs. 11,385,589 as of September 26, 2018. The Company appealed this order to the

CIR(A) and received partial relief of Rs. 5,745,964 with directions to the OIR for verification of certain matters.

Subsequently, the DCIR appealed the CIR(A)'s order to the ATIR, and the Company also filed an appeal before

the ATIR on April 14, 2021. On October 18, 2023, the ATIR remanded the case to the OIR for reconsideration. The

assessment is still pending, with no tax demand. In the opinion of tax consultant, favourable outcome of the

appeals is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial statements.

The ACIR initiated proceedings under Sections 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, for the tax year 2014

resulting in a tax demand of Rs. 8,468,165 as of December 6, 2019. The Company appealed this order before the

CIR(A), and the CIR(A) annulled the ACIR’s order, directing a fresh proceeding after providing a fair opportunity to

be heard. Dissatisfied with the CIR(A)’s decision, the Company appealed to the ATIR. On October 18, 2023 the ATIR

remanded the case to the OIR for reconsideration. The assessment is still pending, with no tax demand. In the

opinion of tax consultant, favourable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in

these financial statements.

The DCIR issued an order on January 27, 2023 under Section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax periods

from January, 2014 to February, 2017, creating a demand of Rs. 6,770,083. The Company filed an appeal with the

CIR(A) on February 23, 2023. On April 28, 2023 the CIR(A) upheld the DCIR’s order. Aggrieved by this decision, the

Company appealed to the ATIR. On January 5, 2024 the ATIR remanded the case, directing that a fresh order be

passed after providing an adequate opportunity to be heard. The assessment is still pending, with no tax demand.

In the opinion of tax consultant, favourable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence, no provision is

incorporated in these financial statements.

16.1.23

16.2 Commitments

16.2.1

16.2.2

Commitments in respect of outstanding letters of credit for raw materials amount to Rs. 12,785.50 million (2024: Rs.

13,061.57 million) as at the reporting date.

Commitments in respect of capital expenditures amount to Rs. 1,164.11 million (2024: Rs. 25.10 million) and bank

guarantees amount to Rs. 602.05 million (2024: Rs. 30.82 million) as at the reporting date.

The company have filed a case before Honorable Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) under case No.

1443/LB/2011 for the tax year 2004 against the order No 28 dated 28-07-2011 of the Commissioner Inland Revenue

Appeal (involving an amount of Rs. 2,675,142/- exclusively related to the provision for gratuity. The ATIR, vide order

dated 19-04-2017, decided the matter in the Company’s favor. Subsequently, the CIR filed an appeal before the

Honorable Lahore High Court (LHC), Lahore. The LHC remanded the case back to the ATIR with directions to issue

a speaking order. The matter is currently pending adjudication before the ATIR. In the opinion of tax consultant,

favourable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence, no provision is incorporated in these financial

statements.

The DCIR issued an order on January 27, 2023 under Section 11(2) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 for the tax periods

from July, 2019 to June, 2021 creating a demand of Rs. 177,877,849. The Company appealed this order before the

CIR(A) on March 8, 2023. On June 6, 2023 the CIR(A) upheld the DCIR’s order. Aggrieved by this decision, the

Company appealed to the ATIR, which deleted the CIR(A)’s order concerning the sale of auto rickshaws and

remanded the sales related to loaders to the OIR for further verification. The assessment is still pending, with no tax

demand. In the opinion of tax consultant, favourable outcome of the appeals is expected, hence, no provision is

incorporated in these financial statements.
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Outstanding Letters of Credit

Note
Financial Institutions 

Name  / Facility type

For the year 

ended June 30,

 Total Unfunded 

Facility 

 Utilized 

Facility 

 Un-Utilized 

Facility 
Security Details

5,000 2,329.65 2,670.35

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement, 

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

600 -
          

600

- 100% cash margin or as per SBP requirement, 

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2024 1,200 1,021.74 178.26

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement, 

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2025 3,550 269.90 3280.10

2024 2,050 1,792.4 257.60

3,000 1404.26 1595.74

- 15% cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- 15% cash margin in form of lien over saving

account

- Lien on import documents

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

250 -          250

- 100% cash margin or as per SBP requirement, 

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

600 536.74 63.26

600 -          600

250 -
          

250

- 100% cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents

2025 Nil Nil Nil

2024 225 -
          

225

2024 1,500 1,021.64 478.36

2,451.33
- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

16.2.7

 Habib Metropolitan 

Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking

2025 2,500 48.67

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2025

2024

16.2.6
Allied Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

16.2.5

United Bank Limited - 

Ameen Islamic 

Banking

2025

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement, 

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

------Rs. in million------

16.2.3 Meezan Bank Limited

16.2.4
Habib Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking
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Outstanding Letters of Credit

Note
Financial Institutions 

Name  / Facility Type

For the Year 

Ended June 30,

 Total Unfunded 

Facility 

 Utilized 

Portion 

 Un-Utilized 

Portion 
Security Details

2,933 2,933 -

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement, 

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2,000 1,472.60 527.40

- 30% cash margin in form of  lien over saving 

account

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

130 - 130

- 100% cash margin in form of  lien over saving 

account

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

1,500 1,131.18 368.82

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

7,000 5,716.69 1,283.31

- 15% or 100% lien over saving account

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

1,500 1,201.88 298.12

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

500 - 500

- 100% cash margin in form of lien over saving

account

- Lien on import documents

2024 500 276.24 223.76

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

537.55
- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors
2024 750 656.14 93.86

750 212.45

16.2.9
Askari Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking

16.2.10
Dubai Islamic Bank 

Pakistan Limited

2025

2025

------Rs. in million------

16.2.8
Faysal Bank Limited - 

Islamic Banking

2025

2024
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600 600 -

- 25% cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2025 1,000 521.33 478.67

- 100% cash margin in form of lien over saving

account

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2025 700 - 700

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

2025 1,000 292.60 707.40

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

- 100% cash margin in form of lien over saving

account

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

16.2.13

National Bank of 

Pakistan -

Islamic Banking

2024 1,000 - 1,000

16.2.12
Bank Al Habib 

Limited

- 25% cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

1,488 169.60 1318.40

- 30% cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors

3,798.812025 5,000 1,201.19

Nil -

16.2.15
Bank Al Falah Limited 

- Islamic Banking

2024 Nil Nil Nil -

16.2.14
The Bank of Khyber - 

Islamic Banking

2024 Nil Nil

2024

- Nil cash margin or as per SBP requirement,

whichever is higher

- Lien on import documents 

- Personal guarantees of certain directors
2024 1,000 845.54 154.46

1,474.68

16.2.11 The Bank of Punjab

2025 3,000 1,525.32

Outstanding Letters of Credit

Note
Financial Institutions 

Name  / Facility Type

For the Year 

Ended June 30,

 Total Unfunded 

Facility 

 Utilized 

Portion 

 Un-Utilized 

Portion 
Security Details

------Rs. in million------
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Property, Plant and Equipment

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Operating fixed assets - owned 17.1 6,061,900,046

  

4,223,942,764

  

Capital work in progress 17.2 1,878,021,798

  

336,431,244

     

7,939,921,844

  

4,560,374,008

  

17.1 Operating fixed assets - Owned

 Freehold Land 

 Freehold -

Building and 

Civil Works 

 Plant and 

Machinery 

 Electric 

Fittings 

 Furniture 

and Fittings 

 Office 

Equipment 

 Electric 

Installations 
 Vehicles Total

 Rupees  Rupees  Rupees  Rupees  Rupees  Rupees  Rupees  Rupees Rupees

Cost 

Balance as at July 01, 2023 335,952,940
      

2,509,800
    

610,617,278
    

2,296,563,940
  

12,384,572
 

9,898,061
    

20,211,225
  

62,166,437
    

148,752,493
     

3,499,056,746
  

Additions 1,085,350,400
   

-
              

188,199,026
    

149,275,537
     

12,129,451
 

6,705,611
    

24,254,544
  

24,701,794
    

192,208,610
     

1,682,824,973
  

Disposals -
                    

-
              

-
                   

-
                   

-
              

-
               

-
              

-
                 

(20,469,000)
      

(20,469,000)
      

Balance as at June 30, 2024 1,421,303,340   2,509,800    798,816,304    2,445,839,477  24,514,023 16,603,672  44,465,769  86,868,231    320,492,103     5,161,412,719  

Additions 1,366,832,550   -              165,917,427    387,102,830     -              9,114,080    988,000       56,202,124    204,773,555     2,190,930,566  

Disposals -                    -              -                   -                   -              -               -              -                 (19,947,000)      (19,947,000)      

Balance as at June 30, 2025 2,788,135,890   2,509,800   964,733,731    2,832,942,307 24,514,023 25,717,752  45,453,769 143,070,355  505,318,658     7,332,396,285  

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at July 01, 2023 -                    1,379,396    140,406,155    420,098,938     7,460,505   2,842,795    5,998,823    12,136,592    77,446,466       667,769,670     
Depreciation charged during the year -

                    
113,040

       
48,197,940

      
189,958,202

     
969,529

      
1,158,105
    

1,983,595
    

5,488,451
      

34,543,704
       

282,412,566
     

Disposals -
                    

-
              

-
                   

-
                   

-
              

-
               

-
              

-
                 

(12,712,281)
      

(12,712,281)
      

Balance at June 30, 2024 -
                    

1,492,436
    

188,604,095
    

610,057,140
     

8,430,034
   

4,000,900
    

7,982,418
    

17,625,043
    

99,277,889
       

937,469,955
     Depreciation charged during the year -

                    
101,736

       
63,168,951

      
201,843,518

     
1,608,399
   

1,483,561
    

3,741,180
    

7,425,298
      

56,567,293
       

335,939,936
     Disposals -

                    
-

              
-

                   
-

                   
-

              
-

               
-

              
-

                 
(2,913,652)

        
(2,913,652)

        
Balance at June 30, 2025 -

                    

1,594,172

   

251,773,046

    

811,900,658

    

10,038,433

 

5,484,461

    

11,723,598

 

25,050,341

    

152,931,530

     

1,270,496,239

  
Carrying amount As at June 30, 2024 1,421,303,340

   

1,017,364

   

610,212,209

    

1,835,782,337

 

16,083,989

 

12,602,772

  

36,483,351

 

69,243,188

    

221,214,214

     

4,223,942,764

  
Carrying amount As at June 30, 2025 2,788,135,890

   

915,628

      

712,960,685

    

2,021,041,649

 

14,475,590

 

20,233,291

  

33,730,171

 

118,020,014

  

352,387,128

     

6,061,900,046

  Rate of depreciation -

                    

10% 5% - 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 20%

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

17.1.1 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 26 284,065,980

     

249,603,811

     

Distribution and marketing costs 27 21,609,687

       

14,282,611

       

Administrative expenses 28 30,264,269

       

18,526,144

       

335,939,936

     

282,412,566

     

 Leasehold - 

Building and 

Civil Works 

 Rupees 

Note 17

17.1.2 Detail of disposals of property, plant and equipment

Toyota Corolla 2,406,000

      

616,894

            

620,000

           

3,106

            

Mr. Sheikh Ijaz Company policy GM Marketing

ORA 7 17,541,000

    

16,416,454

       

17,500,000

       

1,083,546

     

Mr. Muhammad Usman Negotiation Third Party

19,947,000

   

17,033,348

      

18,120,000

      

1,086,652

     

Honda Civic 2,637,000
      

696,395
            

706,000
           

9,605
            

Mr. Zubair Aamir Company policy GM Project

Honda Civic 3,003,000
      

562,254
            

570,000
           

7,746
            

Mr. Arshad Mahmood Company policy Company Secretary

Haval 2.0 6,550,000
      

4,089,401
         

9,500,000
         

5,410,599
     

Mr. Faisal Hashmi Negotiation Third Party

Baic BJ40 6,730,000
      

2,221,499
         

4,600,000
         

2,378,501
     

Mr. Sajid Mahmood Khan Negotiation Third Party

Shahzore Hyundai 1,549,000
      

187,170
            

1,800,000
         

1,612,830
     

Mr. Muhammad Haleem Negotiation Third Party

20,469,000
   

7,756,719
        

17,176,000
      

9,419,281
     

------------------------Rupees------------------------

The details of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year are as follows:

Asset

June 30, 2025

Cost
 Carrying 

Amount 
Sale Price Gain Particulars of the Buyer Mode of Disposal

Relationship with the 

Purchaser

Asset

June 30, 2024

Mode of Disposal
Relationship with the 

Purchaser

------------------------Rupees------------------------

Cost
 Carrying 

Amount 
Sale Price Gain Particulars of the Buyer
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17.1.3 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) of the Company are as follow:

(Acres)

Owned 71.84

Owned 5.46

Leased 0.36

Leased 0.10

17.1.4 The property, plant and equipment of the Company are subject to pari passu charge as security for certain financing by certain banks (note 7, 11 and 12).

B-66, State Avenue S.I.T.E, Karachi.

78-W, Roshan Center, Main Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.

Four Wheeler Plant

Three Wheeler Plant & Automotive Parts

Warranty Center, Karachi

Haval Display Center

Location  Usage of immovable property 

Maghrabi Tanki-1, Link Road, Near Ijtamah Chowk, Sunder-Raiwind Road, 

Lahore.

18 KM, Raiwind Road, Lahore.

Nature Total area

17.2 Capital work in progress

Reconciliation of carrying amounts is as follows:

Balance as at 

July 01, 2024

Expenditure 

incurred during 

the year

Inter 

classification

 Transfer to 

operating fixed 

assets 

 Balance as at 

June 30, 2025 

Plant and machinery        11,843,730 78,992,468        196,404,694      (111,412,780)       175,828,112        

Civil works      128,182,820 1,502,732,423   -                     (213,054,610)       1,417,860,633     

Advances to suppliers      196,404,694 284,333,053      (196,404,694)     -                      284,333,053        

    336,431,244    1,866,057,944                        -         (324,467,390)      1,878,021,798 

Balance as at 

July 01, 2023

Expenditure 

incurred during 

the year

Inter 

classification

 Transfer to 

operating fixed 

assets 

 Balance as at 

June 30, 2024 

Plant and machinery                      -          107,197,254                        -   (95,353,524)
        

11,843,730
          

Civil works                      -          316,381,846                        -   (188,199,026)
       

128,182,820
        

Advances to suppliers                      -          196,404,694                        -   -
                      

196,404,694
        

Advance for land        30,000,000                        -                          -   (30,000,000)
        

-
                      

      30,000,000       619,983,794                        -         (313,552,550)         336,431,244 

17.2.1 The capital work in progress as of June 30, 2025, pertains to plant, machinery and civil works.

…............…......Rupees…...........................

…............…......Rupees…...........................

2024

2025
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Note 18

Intangible Assets

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Net Carrying Value

Opening balance 130,814               199,064               

Additions during the year -                      -                      

Amortization during the year 18.2 (68,250)               (68,250)               

Closing balance 62,564                130,814              

Gross Carrying Value

Cost 4,699,173            4,699,173            

Accumulated amortization (4,636,609)          (4,568,359)          

Net book value 62,564                130,814              

Useful life 5 Years 5 Years

18.1 Intangible assets include costs incurred on patents, copyrights, trademarks, and designs.

18.2 Amortization charge for the year has been allocated to cost of sales.

Note 19

Long Term Loans to Employees

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Loans to employees (secured - considered good)

- Executives 45,788,425          28,652,925          

- Non-executives 120,391,091        87,399,441          

166,179,516        116,052,366        

Less: Discounting of loan to employees (54,334,274)        (48,509,413)        

Unwinding of discount 3,436,682            1,408,095            

115,281,924        68,951,048          

Less: Current portion of loans (41,114,248)        (29,506,303)        

74,167,676         39,444,745         

19.1 These loans and advances have been granted as per the Company's policy. These are secured against post

employment benefits payable to employees. These loans are interest free and are repayable within 20 years (June

30, 2024: 20 years). The maximum amount of loan outstanding to executives at the end of any month during the

year was Rs. 46.16 million (2024: Rs. 28.65 million). These loans do not include any amount receivable from directors

or chief executive of the Company. The credit quality of these financial assets can be assessed with reference to

no default history. Any outstanding loan due from an employee at the time of leaving the service of the Company

is adjustable against final settlement of gratuity. 

These loans were initially recognized at fair value using effective profit rates of 12.89% (2024: 20.85%). The difference

between cash paid and present value of cash inflows upon initial recognition has been recognized as expense in

statement of profit or loss.
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19.2 Reconciliation of loans to employees

Opening 

balance
Closing balance

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

         28,652,925          28,566,600           45,788,425 

         87,399,441          79,567,161         120,391,091 

      116,052,366       108,133,761         166,179,516 

        76,343,494         82,290,067         116,052,366 

Note 20

Long Term Deposits

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Deposit with Pakistan Steel Mills 400,000
               

400,000
               

Securities with utility companies 4,800,470
            

4,511,855
            

Rent securities 3,745,000
            

3,905,000
            

Others 45,000
                 

113,615
               

8,990,470           8,930,470           

Note 21

Stock in Trade

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Raw materials and components 8,257,739,347     6,803,018,057     

Work-in-process 41,674,019          32,066,787          

Finished goods 2,698,243,142     1,848,659,626     

Less: Provision for slow moving items 21.2 (33,451,460)        (27,016,712)        

10,964,205,048   8,656,727,758     

Stock in transit 3,263,674,220     5,661,369,156     

14,227,879,268  14,318,096,914  

21.1      

21.2      Movement in provision for slow moving items

Opening balance 27,016,712          14,965,212          
Charged during the year 6,434,748            12,051,500          
Less: Written off during the year -                      -                      
Closing balance 33,451,460         27,016,712         

Carrying value as at June 30, 2024

Executives

           (46,575,511)

           (11,431,100)

Repayments / 

transfers

Disbursements / 

transfers
Description

          (42,581,195)

Carrying value as at June 30, 2025

Non-executives

The stock in trade of the Company is subject to pari passu charge as security for certain financing by banks (note 7,

11 and 12).

          (58,006,611)

Note 22

Trade Debts

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Considered good 111,137,653

        

133,017,887

        
Considered doubtful 721,465

               

1,845,965

            
111,859,118

        

134,863,852

        
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 22.1 (721,465)

             

(1,845,965)

          
111,137,653

       

133,017,887
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22.1 Allowance for expected credit loss

Opening balance 1,845,965            1,221,865            

Loss allowance for the year -                      1,124,500            

1,845,965            2,346,365            

Less: Reversal of credit loss allowance during the year (1,124,500)          (500,400)             

Closing balance 721,465              1,845,965           

22.2 The customer has no history of default. For age analysis of these trade debts, refer to note 35.1 (b).

Note 23

Loans, Advances, Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables 

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Current portion of long term loans to employees 19 41,114,248          29,506,303          

Advance to employees for expenses 23.1 9,892,245            4,140,328            

Advance to suppliers (unsecured - considered good) 120,602,391        93,559,628          

Letter of credit margins 509,672,406        462,218,771        

Prepayments 16,371,907          15,959,774          

Other receivables 1,400,000            834,000               

Bank guarantee margins 5,413,160            5,413,160            

Accrued profit on bank deposits 121,484,596        118,912,865        

Advance sales tax 1,889,188,003     1,667,991,002     

2,715,138,956    2,398,535,831    

23.1 These amounts are given in the normal course of business and do not carry any interest or mark-up.

Note 24

Cash and Bank Balances

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Cash in hand 1,988,530            2,144,370            

Cash at banks in:

- Current accounts - Conventional banking 25,649,903          53,637,696          

- Current accounts - Islamic banking 1,108,623,930     492,918,918        

- Saving accounts - Islamic banking 24.1 15,460,229,818   7,212,981,681     

16,594,503,651   7,759,538,295     

16,596,492,181  7,761,682,665    

24.1      

24.2      

These represents shariah compliant bank deposits with Islamic banks that yield profit at the rates ranging from 3.67%

to 19.17% (2024: 6.77% to 23.18%) per annum. During the year, profit of Rs. 1,273.50 million (2024: 769.95 million) was

earned on these shariah compliant deposits.

The above figures of cash and bank balances reconcile to the amount of cash and cash equivalents shown in the

statement of cash flows.

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees
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Note 25

Sales - Net

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Gross sales 25.1 128,880,790,540    67,790,386,654      

Less: Sales tax 15,350,127,739      7,619,148,982        

Federal excise duty 4,830,031,449        2,515,557,406        

Sales return 6,131,660              13,211,702            

(20,186,290,848)    (10,147,918,090)    

108,694,499,692  57,642,468,564    

25.1

25.2

25.3

25.4 The Company's revenue based on geographical location is given as under:

Pakistan 108,625,450,635    57,572,456,674      

Japan 23,578,110            22,883,310            

Afghanistan -                         26,765,625            

Tanzania -                         12,184,098            

Liberia 9,941,750              5,133,240              

Philippines 8,457,000              -                         

Nigeria 23,485,415            -                         

Others 3,586,782              3,045,617              

108,694,499,692  57,642,468,564    

Note 26

Cost of Sales

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Raw materials and components consumed 26.1 73,155,528,578      39,452,894,267      

Salaries, wages and other benefits 26.2 1,576,715,288        1,058,475,389        

Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 356,197,986          193,818,785          

Power and fuel charges 861,070,549          622,030,158          

Repairs and maintenance 253,613,468          328,568,911          

Other manufacturing expenses 112,403,040          38,776,680            

Provision for slow moving items 21.2 6,434,748              12,051,500            

Depreciation 17.1.1 284,065,980          249,603,811          

Amortization 18.2 68,250                   68,250                   

76,606,097,887    41,956,287,751    

Work in process:

- Opening stock 32,066,787            47,015,266            

- Closing stock 21 (41,674,019)           (32,066,787)           

(9,607,232)             14,948,479            

Cost of goods manufactured 76,596,490,655    41,971,236,230    

Finished goods:

- Opening stock 1,848,659,626        638,790,179          

- Closing stock 21 (2,698,243,142)      (1,848,659,626)      

- Cost of finished goods purchased during the year 1,305,541,850        1,234,731,781        

455,958,334          24,862,334            

77,052,448,989    41,996,098,564    

Contract liabilities as at the beginning of the year have been recognized as sales upon dispatch of vehicles against

such advances.

The disaggregation of revenue is disclosed in note 38 of these financial statements.

This amount includes Rs. 69.05 million (2024: Rs. 70.01 million) related to export sales. It also includes the amortization of

deferred revenue amounting to Rs. 99.22 million (2024: Rs. 15.05 million), that has been recognized in respect of

deferred revenue outstanding at the beginning of the year.
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26.1 This includes adjustment of scrap sales of Rs. 82.05 million (2024: Rs. 59.83 million).

26.2 This includes Rs. 102.98 million (2024: Rs. 82.69 million) in respect of post employment benefits.

Note 27

Distribution and Marketing Costs

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Salaries and other benefits 27.1 179,203,372        123,392,890          

Freight, octroi and others 467,617,943        313,952,998          

Commission 2,034,087,913     947,096,353          

Travelling and conveyance 55,638,944          43,789,620            

Provision for warranty claims 217,434,818        144,162,012          

Packing materials consumed 21,615,052          10,040,769            

Advertisement and sale promotion 242,973,413        193,894,838          

Insurance 63,827,959          2,217,376              

Rent expenses 27.2 23,454,423          11,713,180            

After sales service 141,065,874        3,259,134            

Printing and stationery 5,873,577            3,093,795              

Depreciation 17.1.1 21,609,687          14,282,611            

3,474,402,975    1,810,895,576      

27.1 This includes Rs. 9.86 million (2024: Rs. 8.06 million) in respect of post employment benefits.

27.2 This represents lease rentals recognised on leases classified as short term.

Note 28

Administrative Expenses

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Salaries and other benefits 28.1 363,450,563        259,993,456          
Electricity 536,868              789,693                 
Communication expenses 24,026,171          20,960,462            
Vehicle running expenses 27,825,901          24,020,222            
Legal and professional 4,805,250            12,887,328            
Travelling and conveyance 6,520,472            1,373,498              
Fees and subscription 45,363,368          18,947,132            
Insurance 1,450,667            1,460,548              
Rent, rates and taxes 28.2 2,345,387            4,076,289              
Printing and stationery 6,023,144            6,775,360              
Entertainment 25,589,365          7,837,158              
Office supplies 7,245,160            1,765,719              
Miscellaneous expenses 3,104,079            -                        
Donations 28.3 11,776,708          3,889,620              
Depreciation 17.1.1 30,264,269          18,526,144            

560,327,372       383,302,629         

28.1

28.2 This represents lease rentals recognised on leases classified as short term.

28.3 Directors and their spouses do not have any interest in the donees.

This includes Rs. 32 million (2024: Rs. 24.58 million) in respect of post employment benefits.
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Note 29

Other Operating Expenses

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Auditors' remuneration 2,212,500
            

2,005,000
              

Tax consultancy services 1,563,643
            

3,561,661
              

Exchange loss -
                      

1,516
                    

Provision for doubtful debts -
                      

1,124,500
              

Workers' (profit) participation fund 11.3 1,442,645,018
     

706,047,215
          

Workers' welfare fund 11.4 546,305,117
        

287,069,159
          

1,992,726,278
    

999,809,051
         

29.1
      

Auditors’ remuneration 

  Statutory audit 1,700,000
            

1,600,000
              

  Half yearly review 300,000
              

260,000
                 

  Workers' (profit) participation fund audit 52,500
                

25,000
                   

  Certificate fee 160,000              120,000                 

2,212,500           2,005,000             

Note 30

Other Income

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Income from financial assets
   

Profit from Islamic banking deposits 30.1
   

1,273,497,436
     

769,950,522
        

Exchange gain 442,421
               

-
                       

Unwinding of discount 19 2,028,587
            

1,408,095
            

Income from non financial assets

Gain on disposal of vehicles 1,086,652
            

9,419,281
            

Reversal of provision for doubtful debts 22.1 1,124,500
            

500,400
               

Sale of scrap items 50,190,367
          

34,036,651
          

Rectification charges 26,647,715
          

17,073,305
          

1,355,017,678     832,388,254        

30.1     This represents income from shariah compliant bank deposits.

Note 31

Finance Cost

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Profit on:    
 - Long term finances - Islamic banking 41,442,069          96,874,767          
 - Short term borrowings - secured - Islamic banking 53,515,333          820,316               
 - Profit on muswammah / murabaha - Islamic banking 874,618               7,037,329            

Discounting of loan to employees 19 5,824,861            48,509,413          
Interest on workers' (profit) participation fund 124,634,743        11,988,279          
Bank charges and others 4,004,653            3,681,239            

230,296,277        168,911,343        
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Note 32

Taxation

Note

Note 33

Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted

2025 2024

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders Rupees 16,336,201,342
      

7,935,676,576
      

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding during the year Numbers 60,445,964
             

60,445,964
           

Basic earnings per share Rupees 270.26
                    

131.29
                  

33.1 There is no dilution effect on the earnings per share of the Company as the Company does not have any convertible
instruments in issue as at the reporting date (2024: Nil) which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to 

convert is exercised.

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Levy / final taxation 1,431,417
            

494,830
               

Current tax

- Current year 7,762,995,720
      

3,614,858,427
      

- Prior year (34,210,792)
         

-
                       

- Super tax 2,676,895,072      1,317,825,724      
10,405,680,000    4,932,684,151      

Deferred tax 8 (3,997,280)           246,984,098        

10,401,682,720    5,179,668,249      

10,403,114,137    5,180,163,079      

32.1
     

Reconciliation of tax charge for the year

Profit before Levy and Taxation     26,739,315,479     13,115,839,655 

Tax @ 29% (2024: 29%) on profit before taxation       7,754,401,489       3,803,593,500 

Tax effect of amounts that are allowable 

deductions for tax purposes              4,725,917            64,560,300 

Tax effect of profit attributable to 

-presumptive income               (128,966)            (6,311,275)

-presumptive tax 1,431,417

            

                494,830 

Super tax       2,676,895,072       1,317,825,724 

Prior year          (34,210,792)                           -   

    10,403,114,137       5,180,163,079 

32.2 Reconciliation of Levy and Income tax under IAS-12

Current Tax liability as per applicable tax laws 10,407,111,417 4,933,178,981 

Portion of current tax liability representing 

- Income tax as per IAS -12 (10,405,680,000) (4,932,684,151)

- Levy as per IFRIC 21 / IAS 37 (1,431,417)                (494,830)

DifferenceDifferenceDifference                             -                              -   

32.3 The current tax expense for the year is calculated using corporation tax rate of 29% (2024: 29%) and super tax at 10%

(2024: 10%) per annum. Deferred tax assets and liabilities on temporary differences are measured at effective rate of

39% (2024: 29%) per annum.
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Note 34

Cash Generated from Operations

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Profit before levy and taxation 26,739,315,479

      
13,115,839,655

    

Adjustment for:

- Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 17.1 335,939,936
           

282,412,566
         

- Amortization on intangibles 18 68,250
                    

68,250
                  

- Provision for post employment benefits 9.3 144,843,501
           

115,325,437
         

- Provision for slow moving items - net 21.2 6,434,748
               

12,051,500
           

- Reversal for doubtful debt 22.1 (1,124,500)
             

(500,400)
               

- Provision for doubtful debt 22.1 -
                         

1,124,500
             

- Workers’ (profit) participation fund 11.3 1,442,645,018
        

706,047,215
         

- Provision for warranty claims - net 11.2 215,084,406
           

144,162,012
         

- Workers’ welfare fund 11.4 546,305,117
           

287,069,159
         

- Finance cost 31 224,471,416
           

120,401,930
         

- Discounting of loan to employees 31 5,824,861
               

48,509,413
           

- Bank profits on saving accounts 30 (1,273,497,436)
       

(769,950,522)
        

- Effect of unwinding on loan to employees 30 (2,028,587)
             

(1,408,095)
            

- Miscellaneous income (442,421)
                

-
                        

- Gain on disposal of fixed assets 30 (1,086,652)
             

(9,419,281)
            

1,643,437,657
        

935,893,684
         

Operating profit before working capital changes 28,382,753,136
     

14,051,733,339
   

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

- Store, spares and loose tools (57,256,496)            (2,159,949)            

- Stock-in-trade 21 83,782,898             (11,619,045,506)   

- Trade debts 22 23,004,734             136,642,787         

- Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 19 & 23 (92,834,393)            (257,987,071)        

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

- Trade and other payables 11 (2,204,817,387)       9,670,329,063      

(2,248,120,644)       (2,072,220,676)     

Increase in long term loans (38,519,205)            (24,442,819)          

Cash Generated from Operations 26,096,113,287     11,955,069,844   

Note 35
Financial Risk Management

35.1 Financial risk factors and risk management framework

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, other price risk

and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on

the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial

performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s management under policies approved by the Board of Directors.

The Company's management evaluates and hedges financial risks based on principles for overall risk management,

as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk,

provided by the Board of Directors. All treasury related transactions are carried out within the parameters of these

policies.

The Company’s overall risk management procedures to minimise the potential adverse effects of financial market

on the Company’s performance are as follows:
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(a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Letters of credit commitments     13,949,608,453 13,086,670,000

    Foreign currency bank account              3,368,290 759,730
                13,952,976,743

   
13,087,429,730

   

Rupees per foreign currency rate
USD USD

279.34 283.12

283.76 278.34

CNY CNY

38.72 38.99

39.60 38.31

(ii) Interest rate risk

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees
Fixed rate instruments

Financial liabilities

Murabaha financing 661,050,413

         

-

                       

Floating rate instruments

Financial liabilities

Diminishing musharakah financing 151,892,963

         

344,773,075

Financial assets

Saving accounts - Islamic banking 15,460,229,818 7,212,981,681

      

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. This exists due to the Company's exposure resulting from

outstanding import and foreign currency payments.

As at June 30, 2025, if Pakistani Rupee had weakened / strengthen by 1% against the the foreign currencies with

all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 139.53 million

(2024: Rs. 130.87 million), mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses / gains on translation of the foreign

currencies financial assets and liabilities.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result

of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risk i.e., currency risk, interest rate risk and

price risk.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rates. The Company's interest rate risk arises from short and long-term borrowings.

These are benchmarked to variable rates which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. 

The effective interest / mark-up rates for interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments are mentioned in

relevant notes to the financial statements. The Company's interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments as at

the reporting date are as follows:

The following exchange rates were applied during the year:

Average rate 

Reporting date rate 

Average rate 

Reporting date rate 
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

(iii) Price risk

(iv) Other price risk

(b) Credit risk

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Trade debts 22 111,137,653         133,017,887         

Bank balances 24 16,594,503,651    7,759,538,295      

The aging of trade debts as at reporting date is as follows:

Not past due 82,339,625
           

61,775,262
           

Past Due 0-30 days 28,329,620
           

70,541,739
           

Past due 31-120 days 468,408
                

700,886
                

Past due more than 120 days -

                       

-

                       

111,137,653

        

133,017,887

        

As at June 30, 2025, if interest rates on the Company's borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with all other

variables held constant, profit before tax for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 146.47 million (2024:

Rs. 68.68 million), mainly as a result of interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.

The profit before taxation for the year would have no fluctuation as there are no such instruments.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer

contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily

trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and

other financial instruments.

The management assesses the credit quality of customers, taking into account their financial position, past

experience and other factors. The utilization of credit limits is regularly monitored. For banks and financial

institutions, only independently rated parties with a strong credit rating are accepted.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such

assets and available external credit ratings, if any. As at June 30, 2025, the maximum exposure to credit risk is

equal to the carrying amount of the financial assets as detailed below:

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether

those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors

affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk

since there are no direct investments in equity instruments traded in the market at the reporting date. The

Company is also not exposed to commodity price risk since it does not hold any financial instrument based on

commodity prices.

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market prices (Other than those arising from interest/profit risk or currency risk) whether those

changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all

similar financial instruments traded in the market. At present, the Company is not exposed to price risk as there

are no investments in marketable securities.
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The credit quality of bank balances that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to

external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate:

Customers credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policies,

procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is assessed

based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this

assessment. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposure is

spread over a large number of counter parties.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit

losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar

loss patterns (i.e. by geographical region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of

credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time

value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past

events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The Company does not hold collateral

as security. The letters of credit are considered integral part of foreign trade receivables and considered in the

calculation of impairment.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are

operated in largely independent markets. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties

are either banks (with reasonably high credit ratings) and trade receivables for which the exposure is spread

over a large number of counter parties.

Rupees Rupees

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 2,401,235,882
       

129,487,380
       Bank Al-Habib Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 611,921,559

         
660,026,985

       Habib Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS 2,119,656,804
       

485,263,860
       The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA 682,346,157

         
588,215,041

       
Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A1 AA- VIS 881,790,627

         
1,966,347

           
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS 849,327,338

         
1,240,214,432

    
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 3,565,496,197

       
715,527,302

       
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 21,568,949

           
27,557,207

         
Bank Islami Limited A1 AA- PACRA 15,597,465

           
14,663,690

         
JS Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 2,956

                    
992,579

              
MCB Islamic Bank Limited A1 A+ PACRA 2,268,217             4,891,990           
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS 346,343,060         61,298,510         
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A1+ AA VIS 8,287,031             10,822,239         
Bank Alfalah Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 69,853,189           58,384,313         
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 2,576,210,783       3,303,628,803    
Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 2,440,251,644       456,597,617       

Bank of Khyber A1 A+ PACRA 2,345,793             -                      

    16,594,503,651     7,759,538,295 

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an 

adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to dynamic nature of the business, the Company maintains flexibility in funding

by maintaining committed credit lines available. The Company's liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and

considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios and maintaining debt

financing plans. The table below analyses the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

period as at the reporting date to contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows:

2025 2024
Short term

Rating

Long term

Rating

Agency
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Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2025:

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows
Within 1 year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years Above 5 Years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Trade and other payables 1,692,912,480

     

     1,692,912,480      1,692,912,480 -

                   

-

                        

-

                      
Profit payable         134,718,125         134,718,125         134,718,125 -

                   

-

                        

-

                              151,892,963         151,892,963         102,067,681 49,825,282

      

-

                        

-

                      
1,979,523,568

    

1,979,523,568

    

1,929,698,286

    

49,825,282

     

-

                       

-

                     
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at June 30, 2024:

Carrying 

amount

Contractual 

cash flows
Within 1 year 1-2 Years 2-5 Years Above 5 Years

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

Trade and other payables 1,649,429,818
     

     1,649,429,818      1,649,429,818 -
                   

-
                        

-
                      Profit payable           17,220,879           17,220,879           17,220,879 -

                   
-

                        
-

                      Diminishing musharakah 

 financing         344,773,075         442,573,344         247,593,582 194,979,762
    

-
                        

-
                      2,011,423,772

    
2,109,224,041
    

1,914,244,279
    

194,979,762
   

-
                       

-
                     

(d) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

- inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).

- inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety shall be determined based

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Currently, there are no financial assets or

financial liabilities measured at their fair value in the statement of financial position.

Description

Description

The carrying value of all financial instruments, i.e., financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements, approximates

their fair values. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurement', requires the company to classify fair

value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

35.2 Financial instruments by categories

Financial asset as at amortized cost

2025 2024 
  Rupees   Rupees 

Trade debts 111,137,653
          

133,017,887
         

Cash and bank balances 16,596,492,181
     

7,761,682,665
      

Long term loans to employees 115,281,924

          

68,951,048

           

Accrued profit on bank deposits 121,484,596

          

118,912,865

         

16,944,396,354

    

8,082,564,465

     

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Trade and other payables 1,692,912,480

       

1,649,429,818

      

Profit payable           134,718,125             17,220,879 

Diminishing Musharakah Financing           151,892,963           344,773,075 

Islamic mode of financing - Murabaha / Musawammah           661,050,413                            -   

Unclaimed dividends 22,228,966

            

6,269,891

             

2,662,802,947

      

2,017,693,663

     

The Company did not possess any financial assets designated as fair value through profit or loss and fair value through other

comprehensive income categories.

Diminishing musharakah 

 financing
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Note 36

Capital Risk Management

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Total borrowings           812,943,376           344,773,075 

Cash and bank balances (16,596,492,181)   (7,761,682,665)     

Net debt    (15,783,548,805)   (7,416,909,590)     

Equity 23,707,697,460     10,104,086,687    

Total capital employed 7,924,148,655      2,687,177,097     

Gearing ratio Nil Nil

Note 37

Balances and Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions for the period

2025 2024

Related party Nature of Transaction Rupees Rupees

Sale of goods

-Vehicle -                         9,280,990             

-Rims 1,191,776              9,381,189             

Receipt against sales 2,780,811              17,073,144           

The Company's objective when managing capital is to safe guard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can

provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained

development of its business. The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to

it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the

amount of dividend paid to shareholders or issue new shares. As at June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Company had surplus reserves to meet

its requirements.

Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of

gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity (as shown in the statement of financial position). Net debt is

calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings) less cash and bank balances and liquid investments.

The Company is not exposed to any externally imposed capital requirements.

As at the reporting date, the gearing ratio of the Company was worked out as under:

Associate

Related parties comprise associated companies due to common directorship, directors and key management personnel. The

Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. The Company enters into transactions

with related parties on the basis of mutually agreed terms. Outstanding balances as at the reporting date are unsecured and interest

free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or

payables. Significant balances and transactions with related parties are as follows:

Pak Tractor 

Manufacturing 

Company (Private) 

Limited

Relationship
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2025 2024

Related party Nature of Transaction Rupees Rupees

Purchase of goods -

                         

64,841

                   

Payment against purchases 46,285

                   

18,555

                   

Meeting fee paid 2,080,000
              

2,820,000
             

50,000
                   

150,000
                

Sale of goods - vehicles -
                         

32,791,970
           

Receipts against sale of goods -
                         

29,291,970
           

Dividend paid 203,835,600
          

49,548,416
           

Remuneration, allowances

and benefits 287,820,175
          

202,028,381
         

Sale of goods - vehicle -
                         

8,119,490
             

Receipts against sale of goods -
                         

8,119,490
             

Dividend paid 1,457,311,012
       

420,761,412
         

Sales of operating fixed asset

vehicle -
                         

570,000
                

Receipts against sale of 

operating fixed asset -                         570,000                

Remuneration, allowances

 and benefits 38,898,649            23,627,394           

Dividend paid 50,421,696            3,269,040             

Spouses of directors Dividend paid 72,610,748            13,985,820           

Relatives of Directors Sale of goods - vehicles 10,058,750            -                        

Receipts against sale of goods 10,058,750            -                        

Dividend paid 4,648,894              2,005,804             

Balances outstanding as at June 30, 2025 

 Pak Tractor Manufacturing 

Company (Private) Limited -                         1,589,035             

Power Vision Systems (Private) Limited -                         46,286                   

37.1

Associate

Pak Tractor Manufacturing Company (Private) Limited Associate

Power Vision (Private) Limited Associate

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Mian Asad Hameed Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Saeed Iqbal Khan Executive director

Mr. Mian Muhammad  Ali Hameed Executive director

Mr. Arshad Mehmood Company secretary

Mr. Muhammad Atif Rao Chief Financial Officer

Non-Executive Director

Mrs. Saira Asad Hameed Non-executive director

Mrs. Sana Suleyman Non-executive director

Mr. Humza Amjad Wazir Non-executive director

Mr. Muhammad Omer Saeed Non-executive director

Mr. Umair Ejaz Non-executive director

Mr. Taha Mahmood Non-executive director

Relationship

0.001%
0.003%

Payable

Other executives

Travelling, boarding and lodging 

expenses

Key management 

personnel

Trade debt

Power Vision Systems 

(Private) Limited
Associate

Name

Non-executive 

directors

Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions or have arrangement / agreement in place.

Relationship % of Shareholding

Common directorship

Common directorship

37.43%

1.535%

Nil

4.48%

6.411%

11.61%

0.07%

0.002%

0.003%
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Spouses of Directors

Mrs. Naghmana Saeed Spouse of director

Mr. Muhammad Suleyman Khan Spouse of director

Mrs. Amina Humza Wazir Spouse of director

Other Executives

Mr. Mian Muhammad Ammar Hameed Other executive

Mr. Adil Saeed Khan Other executive

Relatives

Mr. Naveed Iqbal Khan Relatives

Mr. Waheed Iqbal Khan Relatives

Mrs. Zehra Ambreen Ali Relatives

Mr. Ahsan Ejaz Relatives

Mr. Khalid Iqbal Khan Relatives

Mr. Mian Pervaiz Hameed Relatives

Mr. Nadeem Ahmed Roomi Relatives

Mr. Ishtiaq Ahmed Roomi Relatives

Mr. Mian Zafar Hameed Relatives

Note 38

Segment Reporting

38.1

The pricing for inter-segment transactions is determined on an arm’s length basis.

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of receivables, inventories and

property, plant and equipment, net of impairment and provisions but do not include deferred tax. Segment liabilities include

all operating liabilities and consist principally of trade and bills payable.

0.141%

0.011%

A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products that are subject to risks and returns

that are different from those of other business segments. The management has determined its operating segments based on

the information that is presented to the Chief Operating Decision Maker for allocation of resources and assessments of

performance. Based on internal management reporting structure and products produced and sold, the Company is

organized into the following operating segments:

- Auto-Rikshaw

- Automotive Parts

- Household Appliances

- Automobiles-Four Wheeler

1.327%

2.433%

0.005%

1.708%

0.028%

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (the Chief Executive Officer) of the Company monitors the operating results of its

business units separately for the purpose of making decision about resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment performance is generally evaluated based on certain key performance indicators including business volume, gross

profit, profit from operations, reduction in operating cost and free cash flows.

0.004%

0.008%

0.009%

0.000%

0.002%

0.005%

0.005%

% of ShareholdingRelationshipName
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38.2 Segment analysis

The segment information for the reportable segments for the year ended June 30, 2025 is as follows.

Segment Results for the year ended June 30, 2025

Segment revenue - Net 9,824,849 700,749 1,904                                 98,166,998            108,694,500        

Segment operating results 408,850 12,839 35                                      27,181,821            27,603,545          

Segment assets 1,636,980 663,472 -                                     22,779,293 25,079,745          
Unallocated assets -                         -              -                                     -                         16,657,111

Total assets 1,636,980 663,472 -                                     22,779,293 41,736,856

Segment liabilities 1,044,224 218,105 -                                     15,475,739 16,738,068          
Unallocated liabilities -                         -              -                                     -                         1,291,092

Total liabilities 1,044,224 218,105 -                                     15,475,739 18,029,160

Capital expenditure -                         -              -                                     3,732,521              3,732,521            

…....Rupees in Thousands……

Total
Automobiles-Four 

wheeler

Automobiles-

Three wheeler

Automotive 

parts
Household Appliances

Depreciation and 

amortization 13,765 12,474 -                                     309,769 336,008               

59,146 26,414 -                                     65,718 151,278               

Segment Results for the year ended June 30, 2024

Segment revenue - Net 5,778,023 1,056,745 532                                    50,807,170            57,642,469          

Segment operating results 124,771 28,195 33                                      13,293,606            13,446,605          

Segment assets 752,231 439,153 2,336 18,560,389 19,754,110          

Unallocated assets -                         -              -                                     -                         9,471,913

Total assets 752,231 439,153 2,336 18,560,389 29,226,023

Segment liabilities 427,341 35,247 -                                     16,409,051 16,871,639          

Unallocated liabilities -                         -              -                                     -                         2,250,298

Total liabilities 427,341 35,247 -                                     16,409,051 19,121,937

Capital expenditure -                         -              -                                     2,019,256                          

Depreciation and amortization 14,025 13,892 -                                     254,564 282,481               

50,220 22,427 54 55,800 128,501               

38.3

38.4 Entity-wise disclosures regarding reportable segment are as follows:

- Information about major customers

Automotive 

parts

Non-cash charges other 

than depreciation and 

amortization

…....Rupees in Thousands……

Household Appliances
Automobiles-Four 

wheeler
Total

Automobiles-

Three wheeler

The Company’s customer base is diverse with no single customer accounting for more than 10% of sales. The automotive

parts sales is mainly related to Millat Tractors Limited and Al Ghazi Tractors Limited.

99.94% (2024: 99.88%) of the gross sales of the Company are made to customers located in Pakistan.

2,019,256

Non-cash charges other 

than depreciation and 

amortization
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- Information about geographical areas

-  All non-current and current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2025 are located in Pakistan.

-  Revenue from export sales is Rs. 69.05 million (2024: Rs. 70.01 million).

38.5 Product-wise reconciliation of sales

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees

Automobiles - Four wheeler 98,166,998,402
     

50,807,169,646
    

Automobiles - Three wheeler 9,824,848,097
       

5,778,022,619
      

Automotive parts 700,749,142
          

1,056,744,521
      

Home appliance 1,904,051              531,778                
Scrap sales 132,239,394          93,866,787           

108,826,739,086  57,736,335,351    
Less: Scrap sales transferred to cost of sales (82,049,031)          (59,830,136)          

Less: Sale of scrap transferred to other operating income (50,190,363)          (34,036,651)          

108,694,499,692  57,642,468,564    

Note 39
Liabilities arising from Financing Activities

Diminishing musharakah financing

Murabaha financing

Total liabilities from financing activities

Diminishing musharakah financing

Short term borrowings

Total liabilities from financing activities

Note 40
Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

  Managerial remuneration 55,200,000      43,575,000    43,800,000    30,502,500    -              -              273,921,380    178,263,133    372,921,380     252,340,633     
  Bonus 18,400,000      14,498,590    14,600,000    10,114,680    -              -              90,177,522      56,308,975      123,177,522     80,922,245       
  Leave encashment -                   -                 -                 -                 -              -              6,955,910        4,099,770        6,955,910         4,099,770         
  Income tax benefit 46,664,234      29,647,362    31,944,180    19,100,270    -              -              81,478,348      46,171,236      160,086,762     94,918,868       
  Medical expenses -                   609,215         683,385         414,193         -              -              6,613,852        3,803,461        7,297,237         4,826,869         
  Other allowances -

                   
-

                 
712,500

         
-

                 
-

              
-

              
3,305,078

        
59,500

             
4,017,578

         
59,500

              
  Meeting Fee -

                   
-

                 
-

                 
-

                 
2,130,000

    
2,970,000

    
-

                   
-

                   
2,130,000

         
2,970,000
         

Total 120,264,234
    

88,330,167
   

91,740,065
   

60,131,643
   

2,130,000
   

2,970,000
   

462,452,090
    

288,706,075
    

676,586,389
     

440,137,885
     

Number of persons 1 1 2 2 6 6 90 53 99 62

40.1 The Chief Executive, executive directors and certain executives of the Company are also provided with company maintained cars for official and personal use.

40.2 An executive is defined as an employee, other than the Chief Executive and directors, whose basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.2 million in a financial year.

----------------------------Ru pees----------------------------

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for the year for remuneration, including certain benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors and Other Executives of

the Company are as follows:

Particulars
Chief Executive  Executive Directors

Independent / Non 

Executive Directors
 Executives Total

Rupees Rupees Rupees

As at June 30, 2024 Non-cash changes Cash flows (Net)

Rupees Rupees Rupees

344,773,075

                           

-

                                          
-

                                     

661,050,413

                      
(192,880,112)

                               

-

                                               

(192,880,112)

                              

529,990,685

                           

181,964,475

                           

711,955,160
                           

-
                                     

(367,182,085)
                              

(185,217,610)

                               

(181,964,475)

                               -

                                     

-

                                     

661,050,413

                      

344,773,075

                           

As at June 30, 2025

As at June 30, 2024

151,892,963

                                  

661,050,413

                                  

812,943,376

                                 

As at June 30, 2023 Non-cash changes Cash flows (Net)

344,773,075

                                  

-

                                                

344,773,075
                                 

Rupees

Rupees

244

 TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

NOTES



Note 41

Shariah Screening Disclosures by Company Listed on Islamic Index

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

Loans / advances obtained as per Islamic mode 7 812,943,376

          

344,773,075

          

Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances / overdrawn 24 16,568,853,748

     

7,705,900,599

       

Profit earned from Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances 30 1,273,497,436

       

769,950,522

          

Revenue earned from a Shariah compliant business segment 25 108,694,499,692

   

57,642,468,564

     

Gain / loss or dividend earned from shariah compliant investments -

                         
-

                         

Shariah compliant exchange gain earned 442,421
                 

-
                         

Mark up paid on Islamic mode of financing 31 95,832,020
            

104,732,412
          

Profits earned on any conventional loan or advance -
                         

-
                         

Interest paid on any conventional loan or advance -
                         

-
                         

Relationship with shariah compliant financial institute 41.1 -
                         

-
                         

41.1

Note 42

Plant Capacity and Production

2025 2024

Numbers Numbers

Note 43

Number of Employees

2025 2024

Number Number

Number of permanent employees at the year end 1,552
                     

1,392
                     Average number of permanent employees during the year 1,481

                     

1,284

                     
Note 44

Shariah compliant financial institutions are disclosed in note 7, 12, 16 and 24.

Total Capacity

 -Auto rickshaw - three wheeler (8 hours single shift basis) 20,000                    20,000                  
 -Automobiles - four wheeler  (8 hours single shift basis) 24,000                    24,000                  

Actual Production

 -Auto rickshaw 42.1 24,700                    15,678                  
 -Four wheeler 44.2 11,039                    5,414                    

 -Automotive parts

         -Wheel rims 41,717                    65,711                  

42.1

42.2 Under utilization of capacity was due to lower demand during the year.

The excess production of Auto rickshaw over normal capacity is due to working on overtime schedule to meet the 

increased demand during the year.

 -The capacity of the plant and machinery relating to automotive parts is indeterminable due to the versatility of 

production.

Subsequent Event

The Board of Directors, in their meeting held on August 29, 2025, proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 20 per share i.e 200% 

amounting to Rs. 1,208.92 million (2024: Rs.12 per share i.e 120% amounting to Rs. 725.352 million) for the year ended June 30, 2025 for

approval of the members at the 34th Annual General Meeting. This dividend is in addition to interim dividend paid of Rs. 32 per share 

i.e. 320% amounting to Rs. 1,934.271 million declared during the current year.The financial statements for the year ended 

June 30, 2025 do not include the effect of the proposed appropriations, which will be accounted for in the financial statements for 

year ending June 30, 2026.
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MIAN ASAD HAMEED
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SAEED IQBAL KHAN
DIRECTOR

MUHAMMAD ATIF RAO
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Note 46

General

Note 45

Corresponding figures are rearranged / reclassified for better presentation and comparison. No material re-arrangement / reclassification 
has been made in these financial statements.

Authorization of Financial Statements

These financial statements were approved and authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company for issuance on

August 29, 2025.
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Sr. No. Statement of Clause
Annual Report 

Page Reference No. 

1 Organizational Overview and External Environment

1.01 Mission, vision, code of conduct, ethical, principal and core values. 2, 3, 24

1.02
Profile of the company including principal business activities, markets (local and 

international), key brands, products and services.
6, 7-9, 22

1.03
Geographical location and address of all business units including sales units and 

plants.
22 - 23

1.04 The legislative and regulatory environment in which the company operates. 138

1.05

Ownership, operating structure and relationship with group companies (i.e. 

subsidiary, associated undertaking etc.) and number of countries in which the 

organization operates.

N/A

1.06
Name and country of origin of the holding company / subsidiary company, if such 

companies are a foreign company.
N/A

1.07

Disclosure of beneficial (including indirect) ownership and flow chart of group 

shareholding and relationship as holding company, subsidiary company or 

associated undertaking.

N/A

1.08
Organization chart indicating functional and administrative reporting, presented with 

legends.
10

1.09
A general review of the performance of the company, including its subsidiaries, 

associates, divisions etc., for the year and major improvements from last year.
52 - 53

1.10
Description of the performance of the various activities / product(s) / service(s) / 

segment(s) of the entity and its group entities during the period under review.
53, 122

1.11
Position of the reporting organization within the value chain showing connection with 

other businesses in the upstream and downstream value chain. 
17

a)  Explanation of significant factors affecting the external environment including 

political, economic, social, technological, environmental and legal environment that 

is likely to be faced in the short, medium and long term and the organization’s 

response.

25 - 26

b)  The effect of seasonality on business in terms of production and sales. 26

1.13 The legitimate needs, interests of key stakeholders and industry trends. 27

1.14 SWOT Analysis of the company. 28

1.15

Competitive landscape and market positioning (considering factors such as the 

threat of new competition and substitute products or services, the bargaining power 

of customers and suppliers, relative strengths and weaknesses of competitors and 

customer demand and the intensity of competitive rivalry).

26

1.16 History of major events. 18 - 19

1.17 Details of significant events occurred during the year and after the reporting period. 20 - 21, 245

2 Strategy and Resource Allocation

2.01
Short, medium and long-term strategic objectives and strategies in place to achieve 

objectives.
30 - 32

Resource allocation plans to implement the strategy. Resource mean ‘Capitals’ 

including:

a)  Financial Capital;

b)  Human Capital; 

c)  Manufactured Capital;

d)  Intellectual Capital;

e)  Social and Relationship Capital; and

f)  Natural Capital.

2.03
The capabilities and resources of the company that provide sustainable competitive 

advantage, resulting in value creation by the company.
32

2.04 Company’s strategy on market development, product and service development. 32 - 33

The effects of the given factors on the company strategy and resource allocation:

a) Technological Changes;

b) Sustainability reporting and challenges;

c) Initiatives taken by the company in promoting and enabling innovation; and

d) Resource shortages (if any).

30 - 32

33

1.12

2.02

2.05

BCR (BEST CORPORATE REPORTING)
CHECKLIST-2025
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Page Reference No. 

2.06

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to measure the achievement against strategic 

objectives including statement as to whether the indicators used will continue to be 

relevant in the future.

30 - 31

2.07
The linkage of strategic objectives with company’s overall mission, vision and 

objectives.
34

2.08 Board’s statement on the internal controls including IT controls of the company. 59 , 134

2.09

Board’s statement on the significant plans and decisions such as corporate 

restructuring, business expansion, major capital expenditure or discontinuance of 

operations.

34

a) Information about defaults in payment of any debt with reasons and its repayment 

plan; 

b) Board strategy to overcome liquidity problems and plans to meet operational 

losses.

3 Risks and Opportunities

3.01
Key risks and opportunities (internal and external), including sustainability-related risks 

and opportunities, affecting availability, quality and affordability of Capitals.
43 - 46

3.02

Company’s robust assessment of the principal risks and uncertainties being faced, 

including those that would threaten the business model, future performance and 

solvency or liquidity. This may include operational risk, IT risk, regulatory risk, legal risk, 

political risk, strategic risk, and credit risk etc.

3.03
Risk Management Framework covering principal risks and uncertainties facing by the 

company, risk methodology, risk appetite and risk reporting.

3.04

Specific steps being taken to mitigate or manage key risks or to create value from 

key opportunities by identifying the associated strategic objectives, strategies, plans, 

policies, targets and KPIs.

43 - 46

3.05

Disclosure of a risk of supply chain disruption due to an environmental, social or 

governance incident and company’s strategy for monitoring and mitigating these 

risks (if any).

46

4 Sustainability Disclosures & Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Disclosure of the role of the Board to address the company’s sustainability risks and 

opportunities, as required under the recent amendments of the SECP ‘Listed 

Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, SECP SRO 920/2024 

dated June 12, 2024 for the following:

49, 58, 147, 148

a) Disclosures of company specific sustainability-related risks and opportunities 

(climate-related risks and opportunities) and their impact on the financial 

performance in the short, medium and long term and how these are managed or 

mitigated;

151 - 156

b) Disclosures about four-pillars core content (Governance, Strategy, Risk 

Management and Metrics and Targets), together with the specific metrices designed 

by the company to demonstrate the performance and progress of the company.

147 - 159

c) Disclosure of company’s sustainability and DE&I related strategies, priorities and 

targets, the measures taken to promote in the company as well as performance 

against these targets are periodically reviewed and monitored.

58, 128, 

157-159, 176

d) Boards are encouraged to adopt of the SECP’s ESG Disclosure Guidelines 

(https://www.secp.gov.pk/document/secp-esg-disclosure-guidelines-for-listed-

companies/)

82, 120

Highlights of the company's performance, policies, initiatives and plans in place 

relating to the various aspects of sustainability:
128, 151

· Social initiatives - financial inclusion, research and development, employment 

generation, community health and education, and health and safety of staff etc.;
172 - 186

· Environmental initiatives - climate change mitigation etc. by focusing on 3R's 

(Reduce, Reuse & Recycle), how does the company reduce pollution, depletion and 

degradation of natural resources; and indirect like investment/financing in green 

/sustainable project.

164 -171

· Technological innovation - use of advanced technology, innovative ideas leading 

to sustainability practices like energy-efficient processes or eco-friendly product 

designs;

187 - 188

·  Information on consumption and management of materials, energy, water, 

emissions and waste.
164 -171

35

41 - 42

2.10

4.01

4.02
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a) Has the board established a dedicated sustainability committee, having at least 

one female director, or assign additional responsibilities to an existing board 

committee.

61 , 147

b) Has the committee submitted to the board a report, at least once a year, on 

embedding sustainability principles into the organization's strategy and operations to 

increase corporate value.

120 - 121, 148

4.04

Board’s statement for the adoption of CSR best practices including Board’s 

commitment to promote CSR and how the company’s sustainable practices can 

affect the financial performance of the company.

124

4.05 Highlights of the company's performance, policies, initiatives for CSR. 56, 182

5 Governance

Board composition:

a)  Leadership structure of those charged with governance; 59, 61, 130

b)  Name of independent directors indicating justification for their independence; 61, 130

c)  Diversity in the board i.e. competencies, requisite knowledge & skills, and 

experience;
130 - 131

d)  Profile of each director including education, experience and engagement in 

other entities as CEO, Director CFO or Trustee etc.;
11 - 14

e)  No. of companies in which the executive director of the reporting organization is 

serving as non-executive director.
11 - 14 , 130

5.02 A brief description about role of the Chairman and the CEO. 133

5.03

A statement of how the board operates, including a high-level statement of which 

types of decisions are to be taken by the board and which are to be delegated to 

management.

132

Chairman’s Review Report on the overall performance of the board including:

a) Effectiveness of the role played by the board in achieving the company’s 

objectives;

b)  Chairman’s significant commitments, such as strategic, financial, CSR and ESG 

etc., and any changes thereto from last year’;

c) Board statement on the company’s structure, processes and outcomes of internal 

control system and whether board has reviewed the adequacy of the system of 

internal control.  

5.05
Board statement of its commitment to establish high level of ethics and compliance 

in the company.
130

5.06
Annual evaluation of performance, along with a description of criteria used for the 

members of the board, including CEO, Chairman, and board’s committees.
133

5.07
Disclosure if the board’s performance evaluation is carried out by an external 

consultant once in every three years.
133

5.08 Details of formal orientation courses for directors. 61

5.09

Directors’ Training Program (DTP) attended by directors, female executives, and 

head of departments from the institutes approved by the SECP, along with names of 

those who availed exemptions during the year.

61

5.10

Description of external oversight of various functions like systems audit or internal 

audit by an external specialist and other measures taken to enhance credibility of 

internal controls and systems.

134

Disclosure about related party transactions:

a)  Approved policy for related party transactions;

b)  Details of all related party transactions, along with the basis of relationship 

describing common directorship and percentage of shareholding;

c)  Contract or arrangement with the related party other than in the ordinary course 

of business on an arm’s length basis, if any along with the justification for entering into 

such contract or arrangement;

d)  Disclosure of director’s interest in related party transactions;

e)  In case of conflict, disclosure of how conflicts are managed and monitored by 

the board.

Disclosure of Board’s Policy on the following significant matters:

a)     Risk Management and internal control policies. 41, 134

b)     Disclosure of director’s interest in significant contracts and arrangements. 136

48 - 49

136

4.03

5.01

5.04

5.11

5.12
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c)     Remuneration of non-executive directors including independent directors for 

attending board meetings and general meetings.
59 - 60

d)     Retention of board fee by the executive director earned by him against his 

services as non-executive director in other companies.
N/A

e)     Security clearance of foreign directors. 131

f)       Board meetings held outside Pakistan. 131

g)     Human resource management including:

·        Preparation of succession plan;

·        Merit based recruitment;

·        Performance based appraisal system;

·        Promotion, reward and motivation;

·        Training and development;

·        Diversity, Equity & Inclusion (DE&I) policy; and

·        Employee engagement /feedback.

h)     Social and environmental responsibility including managing and reporting 

policies like procurement, waste and emissions.
164

i)       Communication with stakeholders. 140

j)       Dividend policy. 135

k)     Investors’ relationship and grievances. 137-138

l)       Employee’s health, safety and protection. 172, 179

m)    Whistle blowing policy 136

n)     anti-harassment policy to safeguard the rights and well-being of employees. 176

o)     Safety of records of the company. 137

5.13
Board statement of the organization’s business continuity plan or disaster recovery 

plan.
37

5.14
Compliance with the Best Practices of Code of Corporate Governance (No marks in 

case of any non-compliance).
77, 78 - 80

Disclosure about:

a)  Shares held by Sponsors / Directors / Executives;

b)  Distribution of shareholders (Number of shares as well as category, e.g. Promoter, 

Directors / Executives or close family member of Directors / Executives etc.) or foreign 

shareholding (if any).

5.16 Details about Board meetings and its attendance. 60

5.17
TORs, composition and meeting attendance of the board committees including 

(Audit, Human Resource, Nomination and Risk management).
133

Timely Communication:

Date of authorization of financial statements by the board of directors:

Within 40 days - 6 marks

Within 50 days - 6 marks (in case of holding company who has listed subsidiary 

/subsidiaries)

Within 60 days - 3 marks

(Entities requiring approval from a Regulator before finalization of their financial 

statements would be provided a 20 days relaxation, on providing evidence to the 

Committee).

Audit Committee report should describe the work of the committee in discharging its 

responsibilities. The report should include:

a)  Composition of the committee with at least one member qualified as “financially 

literate” and all members are non-executive / Independent directors including the 

Chairman of the Audit Committee.

b)  Committee’s overall role in discharging its responsibilities for the significant issues 

related to the financial statements, and how these issues were addressed.

c)  Committee’s overall approach to risk management and internal control, and its 

processes, outcomes and disclosure.

d)  Role of Internal Audit in risk management and internal control, and the approach 

to Internal Audit to have direct access to Audit Committee and evaluation of Internal 

Auditor’s performance.

e)  Review of arrangements for staff and management to report to Audit Committee 

in confidence, concerns, if any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial 

and other matters, and recommended instituting remedial and mitigating measures.

113 - 114

246

74 - 76

135, 139,

172-178

5.18

5.12

5.15

5.19
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f)  An explanation as to how it has assessed the effectiveness of the external audit 

process and the approach taken to the appointment or reappointment of the 

external auditor; and if the external auditor provides non-audit services, an 

explanation as to how auditor’s objectivity and independence is safeguarded.

g)  If Audit Committee recommends external auditors other than the retiring external 

auditors, before the lapse of three consecutive years, reasons shall be reported.

h)  The Audit Committee’s views whether the Annual Report was fair, balanced and 

understandable and also whether it provided the necessary information to 

shareholders to assess the company’s position and performance, business model and 

strategy.

i)  Results of the self-evaluation of the Audit Committee carried out of its own 

performance.

j)  Disclosure of the number of whistle-blowing incidences reported to the Audit 

Committee during the year.

5.20

Presence of the chairman of the Audit Committee at the AGM to answer questions 

on the Audit Committee’s activities / matters that are within the scope of the Audit 

Committee’s responsibilities.

76

Board disclosure on Company’s use of Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) software 

including:

a)  How it is designed to manage and integrate the functions of core business 

processes / modules like finance, HR, supply chain and inventory management in a 

single system;

b)  Management support in the effective implementation and continuous updation;

c)  Details about user training of ERP software;

d)  How the company manages risks or control risk factors on ERP projects;

e)  How the company assesses system security, access to sensitive data and 

segregation of duties.

5.22

Disclosure about the Government of Pakistan policies related to company’s business 

/ sector in Directors’ Report and their impact on the company business and 

performance.

51 - 52

5.23

Information on company’s contribution to the national exchequer (in terms of 

payment of duties, taxes and levies) and to the economy (measured in terms of GDP 

contribution, new jobs creation, increase in exports, contributions to society & 

environment and community development etc.)

57 , 115

6 Analysis of the Financial Information

Analysis of the financial and non-financial performance using both qualitative and 

quantitative indicators, showing linkage between:

a)  Past and current performance;

b)  Performance against targets /budget; and

The analysis should cover significant deviations from previous year in operating results 

and the reasons for loss, if incurred, as well as future prospects of profits.

a)  Analysis of financial ratios (Annexure I) with graphical presentation and disclosure 

of methods and assumptions used in compiling the indicators.

b)  Explanation of negative change in the performance as compared to last year.

6.03

Vertical and horizontal analysis of Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and 

summary of Cash Flow Statement for last 6 years. Weightage to be given to graphical 

presentation.

103 - 111

6.04
Cash Flow Statement based on Direct Method (separate Cash Flow for specific funds 

e.g. Zakat).
-

a)           Information about business segment and non-business segment; and

b)           Segmental analysis of business performance including segment revenue, 

segment results, profit before tax, segment assets and liabilities.

6.06 Disclosure of market share of the company and share price sensitivity analysis. 116 - 118

Statement of value added and its distribution with graphical presentation:

a)  Employees as remuneration; 

b)  Government as taxes (separately direct and indirect);

c)  Shareholders as dividends;

93 - 101

118 , 243

115

39

83 - 92

74 - 76

5.19

5.21

6.01

6.02

6.05

6.07
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d)  Providers of financial capital as financial charges;

e)  Society as donation; and

f)  Retained within the business.

Statement of Economic value added (EVA) 

[ EVA = NOPAT – WACC x TC , where NOPAT is Net Operating Profit After Tax, WACC is 

Weighted Average Cost of Capital, and TC is Total Invested Capital]

6.09

CEO presentation video on the company’s business performance of the year 

covering the company business strategy to improve and future outlook. (Please 

provide relevant webpage link of the video in the company's annual report).

118

7 Business Model

7.01
Describe the business model including inputs, business activities, outputs and 

outcomes as per international applicable framework.

7.02 Explanation of any material changes in the entity’s business model during the year.

8 Disclosures on IT Governance and Cybersecurity

8.01

The Board responsibility statement on the IT system/ controls and AI strategy of the 

company including compliance of legal and regulatory requirements regarding 

data privacy and cyber security and how the board is engaging with management 

in case of any breaches.

8.02

Disclosure related to IT governance and cybersecurity programs, policies and 

procedures and industry specific requirements for cybersecurity and strategy in 

place.

8.03

Disclosure that at least one board-level committee is charged with oversight of IT 

governance and cybersecurity matters and how the board administers its IT risk 

oversight function related to these risks.

8.04

Disclosure about company’s controls and procedures about an “early warning 

system” that enables the company to identify, assess, address, make timely 

disclosures and timely communications to the board about cybersecurity risks and 

incidents.

8.05

Disclosure of policy related to independent comprehensive security assessment of 

technology environment, including third party risks and when last such review was 

carried out.

8.06

Disclosure about resilient contingency and disaster recovery plan in terms of dealing 

with a possible IT failure or cyber breach and details about company’s cyber 

insurance.

8.07

Disclosure of advancement in digital transformation on how the organization has 

leveraged 4.0 Industrial revolution (Artificial Intelligence  (AI ), RPA, Data Analytics, 

Block Chain, Cloud Computing etc.) to improve transparency and governance, 

value creation and
 

reporting.

8.08
Disclosure about education and training efforts of the Company to mitigate 

cybersecurity risks.

9 Future Outlook

9.01

Forward-looking statement in narrative and quantitative form, including projections 

or forecasts about known trends and uncertainties that could affect the company’s 

resources, revenues and operations in the short, medium and long term.

9.02

Status of the projects in progress and those disclosed in the forward-looking 

statement in the previous year and whether the performance of the company is 

aligned with the forward-looking statement.

9.03
Disclosures about the company’s future plans for AI adoption and its potential impact 

on the company's long-term strategy.

9.04 Disclosure about company’s future Research & Development initiatives.

9.05
Sources of information and assumptions used for projections / forecasts in the forward-

looking statement, and any assistance taken by any external consultant.

10 Stakeholders Relationship and Engagement

10.01
Stakeholder’s engagement policy of the company and how the company has 

identified its stakeholders.
140

37 - 38

37 - 38

55 - 56

-

15 - 16

115

6.08

6.07
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Stakeholders’ engagement process and the frequency of such engagements during 

the year. Explanation on how the relationship is likely to affect the performance and 

value of the company, and how those relationships are managed.

These engagements may be with: 

a)  Institutional investors; 

b)  Customers & suppliers; 

c)  Banks and other lenders; 

d)  Media; 

e)  Regulators; 

f)  Local committees; and 

g)  Analysts.

10.03
Steps taken by the management to encourage the minority shareholders to attend 

the general meetings.
143

10.04
Investors' Relations section on the corporate website with all relevant information 

including audited annual reports are available in the section.
144

10.05 Issues raised in the last AGM, decisions taken and their implementation status. 143

a)          Steps board has taken to solicit and understand the views of stakeholders 

through corporate briefing sessions; and

b)          Disclosure of brief summary of Corporate Analyst briefing conducted during 

the year.

10.07
Highlights about redressal of investors' complaints including number of complaints 

received and resolved during the year.
137 - 138

10.08
Details about corporate benefits to shareholders like value appreciation, dividend 

etc.
144

10.09

Disclosure of whistle blowing mechanism to receive and handle complains in a fair 

and transparent manner, and provide protection to the complainant against 

victimization and reporting in the Audit Committee’s report.

144

11 Striving for Excellence in Corporate Reporting

11.01

Board’s responsibility statement on full compliance of financial accounting and 

reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan (i.e. International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)).

11.02

BCR criteria cross referred with page numbers of the annual report. (details can be 

maintained by companies on the Investor Relation section of the company’s 

website).

12 Specific Disclosures of the Financial Statements

Specific disclosures of the financial statements required under the Companies Act, 

2017 and IFRSs (Annexure II):

Fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Particulars of significant / material assets and immovable property including location and

area of land.

Capacity of an industrial unit, actual production and the reasons for shortfall.

Specific disclosures required for shariah compliant companies / companies listed on the

Islamic Indices as required under clause 10 of the Fourth Schedule of the Companies Act,

2017.

Disclosure requirements for common control transactions as specified under the Accounting

Standard on ‘Accounting for common control transactions’ developed by ICAP and notified

by SECP (through SECP S.R.O. 53(I)/2022 dated January 12, 2022)

Disclosure about Human Resource Accounting (includes the disclosure of process of

identifying and measuring the cost incurred by the company to recruit, select, hire, train,

develop, allocate, conserve, reward and utilize human assets).

Where any property or asset acquired with the funds of the company and is not held in the

name of the company or is not in the possession and control of the company, this fact along

with reasons for the property or asset not being in the name of or possession or control of the

company shall be stated; and the description and value of the property or asset, the person

in whose name and possession or control it is held shall be disclosed.

144

82

12.01 201 - 246

140 - 14310.02

10.06
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13 Assessment based on Qualitative Factors

Assessment of overall quality of information contained in the annual report based on 

the following qualitative factors:

a)  Clarity, simplicity and lucidity in presentation of Financial Statements;

b)  Theme on the cover page;

c)  Effective use of presentation tools, particularly diagrams, graphs, charts, smart arts, 

icons, tables and infographics in the annual report;

d)  Effectiveness and relevance of photos and graphs;

e)  Effectiveness of the theme on the cover page.

Overall Report13.01
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Statement of use

 

Sazgar Engineering Works Limited has reported in accordance with the GRI Standards for the period 

 

01 July 2024

 

to 30 June 2025.

 

GRI 1 used

 

GRI 1: Foundation 2021

 

Applicable GRI 
Sector Standard(s)

 

No sector standard is available for our sector.

 

 

GRI Standard/

 

Other Source

 

Disclosure

 
Location

 

(Page 
No.)

 
Omission

 

Requirement(s) 

 

Omitted

 

Reason

 

Explanation

 

General disclosures

 

GRI 2: General 
Disclosures 
2021

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2-1 Organizational details

 

122

    

2-2 Entities included in the 
organization’s sustainability 
reporting

 120
    

2-3 Reporting period, 
frequency and contact point

 120-121
    

2-4 Restatements of information 120 
   

2-5 External assurance 121    

2-6 Activities, value chain and 
other business relationships 

123    

2-7 Employees
 

173-175
    

2-8 Workers who are not 
employees

 

173
    

2-9 Governance structure and 
composition

 

130

    
2-10 Nomination and selection 
of the highest governance 
body

 

130

    

2-11 Chair of the highest 
governance body

 

130

    2-12 Role of the highest 
governance body in 
overseeing the management 
of impacts

 

132

    
2-13 Delegation of responsibility 
for managing impacts

 

132

       
2-14 Role of the highest 
governance body in 
sustainability reporting

 

147-148

       2-15 Conflicts of interest

 

136
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GRI Standard/

 

Other Source

 

Disclosure

 

Location

 

(Page 
No.)

 Omission

 

Requirement(s) 

 

Omitted

 

Reason

 

Explanation

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

2-16 Communication of critical 
concerns

 

136-137

       

2-17 Collective knowledge of 
the highest governance body

 

61

       

2-18 Evaluation of the 
performance of the highest 
governance body

 
133

       

2-19 Remuneration policies

 

59

       

2-20 Process to determine 
remuneration

 
59

       

2-21 Annual total 
compensation ratio

 -
 

All
 Confidentiality 

constraints
 

Due to confidentiality 
reasons, the information 
cannot be disclosed

 

2-22 Statement on sustainable 
development strategy 

124-125
       

2-23 Policy commitments 134-135        

2-24 Embedding policy 
commitments 

135        

2-25 Processes to remediate 
negative impacts 

135        

2-26 Mechanisms for seeking 
advice and raising concerns

 
136-138

       

2-27 Compliance with laws and 
regulations

 

138
       

2-28 Membership associations

 
123

       
2-29 Approach to stakeholder 
engagement

 

140

       
2-30 Collective bargaining 
agreements

 

-

 

All

 

-

 

-

 
Material topics

 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 

3-1 Process to determine 
material topics

 

145

       3-2 List of material topics

 

146

       Economic performance

 
GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 

3-3 Management of material 
topics

 

145-146

 

160

 
      GRI 201: 

Economic 
Performance 
2016

 

201-1 Direct economic value 
generated and distributed

 

160

       

201-2 Financial implications 
and other risks and 
opportunities due to climate 
change

 

151-155
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GRI Standard/

 

Other Source

 

Disclosure

 

Location

 

(Page 
No.)

 
Omission

 

Requirement(s) 

 

Omitted

 

Reason

 

Explanation

 

201-3 Defined benefit plan 
obligations and other 
retirement plans

 

161

       

201-4 Financial assistance 
received from government

 

160

       

Indirect economic impacts

 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 
3-3 Management of material 
topics

 
145-146

 

160

 
      

GRI 203: 
Indirect 
Economic 
Impacts 2016

 

203-1 Infrastructure investments 
and services supported

 
162

       

203-2 Significant indirect 
economic impacts

 
160-163

       

Procurement practices
 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 3-3 Management of material 
topics

 145-146
 

163
 

      

GRI 204: 
Procurement 
Practices 2016 

204-1 Proportion of spending 
on local suppliers 163       

Materials 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021 

3-3 Management of material 
topics 

145-146 
169 

      

GRI 301: 
Materials 2016

 

301-1 Materials used by weight 
or volume

 

-
 

All
 

Information 
unavailable /

 incomplete
 

 
Information not available 

as required by GRI 
Standards.

 
301-2 Recycled input materials 
used
 

169
       

301-3 Reclaimed products and 
their packaging materials

 

169

       

Energy

 
GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 

3-3 Management of material 
topics

 

145-146

 
165

 
      

GRI 302: 
Energy 2016

 

302-1 Energy consumption 
within the organization

 

165

       

302-2 Energy consumption 
outside of the organization

 

-

 

All

 

Information 
unavailable /

 

incomplete

 

Company does not 
calculate the energy 
consumption outside the 
organization as such 
information is not 
significant in the overall 
context.

 
302-3 Energy intensity

 

165
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GRI Standard/

 

Other Source

 

Disclosure

 

Location

 

(Page 
No.)

 

Omission

 

Requirement(s) 

 

Omitted

 

Reason

 

Explanation

 

302-4 Reduction of energy 
consumption

 

-

 

All

 
  

Information 
unavailable /

 

incomplete

 
  

Information not available / 
calculated as required by 
GRI Standards.

  

302-5 Reductions in energy 
requirements of products and 
services

 

-

 

Water and effluents

 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 

3-3 Management of material 
topics

 

145-146

 

168

 
      

GRI 303: Water 
and Effluents 
2018

 

303-1 Interactions with water as 
a shared resource

 

168

       

303-2 Management of water 
discharge-related impacts

 

168, 169

       

303-3 Water withdrawal

 

-

 

All

 

Information 
unavailable /

 

incomplete

 
  

Information not available 
at the end of the reporting 
period.

 

303-4 Water discharge

 

-

 

All

 

303-5 Water consumption

 

-

 

All

 

Emissions

 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 

3-3 Management of material 
topics

 

145-146

 

166

 
      

GRI 305: 
Emissions 2016

 

305-1 Direct (Scope 1) GHG 
emissions

 

157, 166

    

305-2 Energy indirect (Scope 2) 
GHG emissions

 

166

       

305-3 Other indirect (Scope 3) 
GHG emissions

 

-

 

All

 
Information 

unavailable /

 

incomplete

 
Scope-3 emissions not 
calculated due to the non-
availability of reliable 
data.

 

305-4 GHG emissions intensity

 

166

       

305-5 Reduction of GHG 
emissions

 
-

 

All

 Information 
unavailable /

 

incomplete

 
Information not available / 
calculated as required by 
GRI Standards.

 

305-6 Emissions of ozone-
depleting substances (ODS)

 

166-167
 

      

305-7 Nitrogen oxides (NOx), 
sulfur oxides (SOx), and other 
significant air emissions.

 
      

Waste
 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021 

3-3 Management of material 
topics 

145-146 

169 
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GRI Standard/
Other Source

Disclosure
Location

(Page 
No.)

Omission

Requirement(s) 
Omitted

Reason Explanation

GRI 306: Waste 
2020

306-1 Waste generation and 
significant waste-related 
impacts

169-170

306-2 Management of 
significant waste-related 
impacts

169-170

306-3 Waste generated 171

306-4 Waste diverted from 
disposal

171

 

   

306-5 Waste directed to 
disposal

171

 

Employment, Labor Relations and DE&I

 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

3-3 Management of material 
topics

145-146

 

172

 
      

GRI 401: 
Employment 
2016

401-1 New employee hires and 
employee turnover

 

173

       

401-2 Benefits provided to full-
time employees that are not 
provided to temporary or part-
time employees

 

177

       

401-3 Parental leave

 

176

 

c, d, e

 

Not Applicable

 
 

No employee availed 
parental leave during the 
year.

 

GRI 402: Labor 
/ Management 
Relations 2016

402-1 Minimum notice periods 
regarding operational changes

 

177

       

GRI 405: 
Diversity and 
Equal 
Opportunity 
2016

405-1 Diversity of governance 
bodies and employees

 

175

       

405-2 Ratio of basic salary and 
remuneration of women to 
men

176

       

Occupational health and safety

 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

3-3 Management of material 
topics

145-146

 

172,179

 
      

GRI 403: 
Occupational 
Health and 
Safety 2018

403-1 Occupational health and 
safety management system

 

179-180

       

403-2 Hazard identification, risk 
assessment, and incident 
investigation

 

180

       

403-3 Occupational health 
services

180

       

403-4 Worker participation, 
consultation, and 
communication on 
occupational health and 
safety

180
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GRI Standard/

 

Other Source

 

Disclosure

 

Location

 

(Page 
No.)

 Omission

 

Requirement(s) 

 

Omitted

 

Reason

 

Explanation

 

403-5 Worker training on 
occupational health and 
safety

 
180

       

403-6 Promotion of worker 
health

 

180

       

403-7 Prevention and 
mitigation of occupational 
health and safety impacts 
directly linked by business 
relationships

 
180

       

403-8 Workers covered by an 
occupational health and 
safety management system

 179
       

403-9 Work-related injuries
 

180
       

403-10 Work-related ill health 180       

Training and education 

GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021 

3-3 Management of material 
topics 

145-146 
172 

      

GRI 404: 
Training and 
Education 2016

 

404-1 Average hours of training 
per year per employee

 
178

       

404-2 Programs for upgrading 
employee skills and transition 
assistance programs

 

178
       

404-3 Percentage of 
employees receiving regular 
performance and career 
development reviews

 

177

       

Local communities

 
GRI 3: Material 
Topics 2021

 

3-3 Management of material 
topics

 

145-146

 
182

 
      

GRI 413: Local 
Communities 
2016

 

413-1 Operations with local 
community engagement, 
impact assessments, and 
development programs

 

182-186

       413-2 Operations with 
significant actual and potential 
negative impacts on local 
communities

 

182
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 SDG INDEX

160, 162

176

-

SDGs

183, 185

162, 168, 176, 177, 179, 183, 184,

185, 187

178, 182, 185

160, 162, 176, 177, 184

Page Number

160,162

160, 176

168

166,



SDGs Page Number
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
 Notice is hereby given that 34th Annual General Meeting of

 

Sazgar Engineering Works Limited will be held at 
Encore by Zafar, Fusion Hall, Near Shanu Baba Chowk, Pine Avenue Road, Lahore on Thursday, September 25, 
2025 at 11:30 A.M. to transact the following businesses: 

 ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

 1.
 

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended 30th June, 2025 together with the Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report and Chairperson’s Review 
Report. 

 2.
 

To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2026. The present auditors’ 
M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, offer themselves 
for re-appointment. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors have recommended their re-
appointment. 

 3.
 

To approve the payment of final cash dividend @ 200% of current paid up share capital i.e. Rupees 20/- 

per ordinary share as recommended by the Board of Directors, in addition to the interim cash dividend 
of 320% already paid making total of 520% for the year ended June 30, 2025. 

 
                                                                 By order of the Board 

 
Lahore                                 
September 04, 2025                                                                           Arshad Mahmood 

 Compa ny Sec  re   t a  r  y    

Notes: 
a.  The share transfer books of the company will remain closed from September 19, 2025 to September 25, 

2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the share registrar office M/s Corp Tec Associates 
(Pvt.) Ltd., 503-E, Johar Town, Lahore at the close of business on 18th September, 2025 will be treated in 
time for the entitlement of final cash dividend and to attend the 34th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. 

 

b.  A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to 
attend the meeting and vote for his/her behalf. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the 
Share Registrar Office duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours (working days only) before the 
time of holding of the meeting. 

 

CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the guidelines as laid down in Circular 1 dated January 
26, 2000 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for attending the meeting and 
appointment of proxies.  

c.
 

Members are requested to promptly communicate the change in their addresses, if any, to the 
Company’s share registrar.   

d.
 

Placement of Annual Report on Web-site: 
In terms of the approval of the members of the Company in their Annual General Meeting held on 
October 26, 2023 and pursuant to the SECP’s Notification No. SRO 389 (1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, the 
Annual Report of the Company containing audited financial statements of the Company for the year 
ended June 30, 2025 along with Auditors and Directors Report thereon, the Chairperson’s Review and 
notice of AGM etc. have been placed on the website of the Company which can be downloaded from 
the following link and / or QR enabled code:  

Weblink QR Code 

https://sazgarautos.com/reports/  
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The shareholders who wish to receive hard copy of the Annual Report may send their request to the 
Company Secretary / Share Registrar, the Standard Request Form available on the website of the 
Company and the Company will supply hard copy of the Annual Report to the shareholders on demand, 
free of cost, within one week of such demand. 

 

e.

 

Video Conference Facility: 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, members can avail video conference facility to 
participate in this Annual General Meeting provided that the Company receives consent from the 
members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding, residing in a city, at least seven (7) days prior 
to the date of meeting. Subject to the fulfillment of the above conditions, members shall be informed of 
the venue along with complete information necessary to access the facility. Format of request form has 
been placed on the Company’s website. 

 
f.

 

Attendance through Zoom: 
The members may attend the AGM online through ZOOM, by following the below guidelines: 
(i)

 

The member shall get himself/herself registered by sending his/her request to the Company at e-mail 
ID  as per Standard Request Form available on  the Company’s website (www.sazgarautos.com) or can 
send his/her request to the Company Secretary at 88-Ali Town, Thokar Niaz Baig, Raiwind Road, Lahore, 
along with a legible copy of CNIC not later than September 22, 2025. 
(ii) Zoom Link shall be sent by the Company only on email ID or Mobile/Whatsapp  Number mentioned in 
Standard Request Form. 

(iii) Members may send their comments / suggestions on any of the agenda item to Company Secretary 
on email ID; company.secretary@sazgarautos.com not later than September 22, 2025. 

 g.
 
Deposit of Physical Shares into CDC Account: 
As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing company shall be required to replace its 
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the 
Commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Act i.e. May 30, 
2017. 

 

The Physical Shareholders having physical shareholding are encouraged to open CDC Investor Account 
with CDC or CDC Sub- Account with any of the brokers to place their physical shares into Script less form.   

    

h.  Particulars of Physical Shareholders: 

According to Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 47 of the Companies Regulations, 
2024, all physical shareholders are advised to provide their mandatory information such as CNIC number, 
address, email address, contact mobile/telephone number, International Bank Account Number (IBAN), 
etc. to Company’s Share Registrar at their address, M/s CorpTec Associates (Pvt) Limited, 503-E, Johar 
Town, Lahore,  email (info@corptec.com.pk) immediately to avoid any non-compliance of law or any 
inconvenience in future.  

i.

 

Electronic Payment of Dividend: 
The provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) read with Companies (Distribution of 
Dividends) Regulations, 2017 provide that any cash dividend declared by a listed company must be paid 
through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. In order 
to receive dividend directly into their bank account, shareholders are requested to communicate, if not 
already provided, below detailed information by filling in Electronic Credit Mandate Form available on 

Company’s website (www.sazgarautos.com) and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the 

Share Registrar of the Company, in case of physical shares. In case shares are held in CDC, then 
Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholder’s broker / participant / CDC 
account services. In the absence of valid bank account details and CNIC, dividend amount will be 
withheld in compliance with the aforesaid provisions of the Act and Regulations. Electronic Credit 
Mandate Form shall authorize the Company to credit their current and future cash dividends directly to 
their designated bank accounts. The required information are: 

 

a) International Bank Account Number (IBAN) 
b) Name of Bank 
c) Branch name and address 
d) Valid copy of CNIC 
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The current withholding tax rates on dividend payments as prescribed by the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001 (the Ordinance) are 15% for persons whose names are appearing in the active taxpayers’ list (ATL) 
and 30% for persons whose names are not appearing in the ATL. To enable the Company to make tax 
deduction on the amount of Cash Dividend @ 15% instead of 30%, all the shareholders whose names are 
not entered into the ATL available on the website of the Federal Board of Revenue, are advised to make 
sure that their names are entered into ATL before the date of dividend payment, otherwise they shall not 
be treated as Active Taxpayers (despite the fact that they are filers of income tax return) and tax on their 
Cash Dividend will be deducted @ 30%.  

 
The Corporate Shareholders having CDC account are required to have their National Tax Number (NTN) 
updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy 
of their NTN certificates to the Share Registrar of the Company.  

 
The FBR has clarified that shareholders’ accounts jointly held by Filers and Non-Filers shall be dealt with 
separately and in such particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a Filer or a 
Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his/her shareholding. If the share is not ascertainable 
then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and the deduction will be 
made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher rate, the joint account 
holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar of the 
Company. 

 
Folio / CDC 

Account No. 
Total 

Holding 
Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder 

  Name & 
CNIC No. 

Shareholding 
proportion (No. of 

Shares) 

Name & 
CNIC No. 

Shareholding 
proportion (No. of 

Shares) 

      

 

In case the required information is not provided to the Company’s Share Registrar by September 22, 
2025, it will be assumed that the shares are held in equal proportion by the principal shareholder and joint 
holder(s). 

 

k.
 
Exemption from Deduction of Income Tax / Zakat: 
Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or deduction at reduced rate, are requested 
to submit a valid exemption certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be. 
Members desiring non-deduction of Zakat are also required to submit a valid declaration, duly attested 
by Notary Public on Stamp Paper to Company’s Shares Registrar for non-deduction of Zakat.  

Moreover, as per FBR’s clarification, the valid Exemption Certificate under Section 159 of the Ordinance is 
mandatory to claim exemption of withholding tax under Clause 47B of Part-IV of Second Schedule to the 
Ordinance. Those who fall in the category mentioned in above clause must provide valid Tax Exemption 
Certificate to the Company’s Shares Registrar; otherwise tax will be deducted on dividend amount as 
per prescribed rates. 

 

l.

 

Unclaimed/Unpaid Dividend and Share Certificates: 
In compliance of Section 244 of the Act, the Company has already requested through individual letters 
to shareholders and also through newspaper to collect their unclaimed shares / unpaid cash dividend, if 
any. Shareholders are once again requested to lodge a claim for unclaimed shares / unpaid cash 
dividends with the Company’s Share Registrar i.e. M/s CorpTec Associates Pvt. Limited, 503-E, Johar Town, 
Lahore. 
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j. Income Tax Deduction from Dividend Payment:  
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 FORM OF PROXY

I / WE

of

a member of

hereby appoint Mr. / Mrs. / Ms.

of

of

Who is / are also member / s of SAZGAR Engineering Works Limited to act as my / our proxy and to vote for me/us 

and on my/our behalf at the  34th Annual General Meeting of the share holders of the Company to be held on

 September 25, 2025 at 11:  A.M. at , Fusion Hall Near Shanu Baba Chowk , Pine Avenue Thursday 30 Encore by Zafar

Road, Lahore and at any adjournment thereof.

or failing him Mr. / Mrs. / Ms.

Signed this day of 2025

Folio No. CDC Participant ID No.
CDC Account No.
 Sub-Account No.

No. of shares held

Signature over 

Revenue Stamp of 

Rupees 50/-

Witness 1 Witness 2

Signature.

Name

CNIC NO.

Address

Notes: The proxy must be a member of the company.

The signature must tally with the specimen signature / s registered with the company.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

If a proxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in Central Depository

Company of Pakistan Limited, the proxy must be accompanied with participant’s ID number

and CDC account/sub-account number along with attested photocopies of Computerized 

National Identity Card or the Passport of the beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate 

members should bring the documents required for such purpose.

The proxy shall produce his / her original (CNIC) or original passport at the time of the meeting.

The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Share Registrar Officer

of the Company not less than 48 hours(working days only) before the time of holding the

 meeting.

Signature.

Name

CNIC NO.

Address

SAZGAR ENGINEERING WORKS LIMITED
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